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[ON RECORD] 1 


  CHAIR:  Good morning, everyone.  Today’s date is 2 


November 30th, 2022.  This is a regularly scheduled session of 3 


the Baltimore County Board of Appeals.  We’re doing this by 4 


remote because of the ongoing issues with the COVID pandemic.  5 


Today’s case is, involves Grey Rock Properties, LLC.  It is 6 


case number 21-273-SPHX.  And we have counsel present for the 7 


parties.  If they could identify themselves?   8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Certainly, Mr. Evans.  Good morning, 9 


and members of the panel.  I’m Lawrence E. Schmidt, with the 10 


law firm of Smith, Gildea & Schmidt with offices in Towson at 11 


600 Washington Avenue.  I’m representing the Petitioner in this 12 


case, which is Grey Rock Properties, Inc., Grey Rock 13 


Properties, LLC, excuse me.   14 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Good morning, Mr. Pennington, Mr. Lauer 16 


and Mr. Evans.  Michael McCann on behalf of the Protestants.  17 


The Protestants are Grey Rock Flats Condominium Association, 18 


Grey Rock Villas Condominium Association and the Grey Rock 19 


Maintenance Corporation, three separate entities. 20 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  That’s Grey Rock Flats Condominium 21 


Association, Grey Rock Villa –- 22 


  MR. MCCANN:  Villas. 23 


  CHAIR:  -- Villas Condominium Association and Grey 24 


Rock Maintenance –- 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Corporation. 1 


  CHAIR:  -- Corporation.  Okay, okay. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you.   3 


  CHAIR:  All right.  Are there any preliminary matters 4 


that we need to address before we begin?   5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I don’t believe so from our standpoint. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  And none on our end as well, thank you. 7 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, then, Mr. Schmidt, maybe you’d 8 


like to make an opening statement and sort of give us an idea 9 


of what the heck we’re doing today. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Sure, I’d be happy to, Mr. Evans.  As I 11 


indicated, I represent Grey Rock Properties, LLC, which is the 12 


owner of the Grey Rock Mansion, which you may or may not be 13 


familiar with.  It’s somewhat of a landmark, I think, in 14 


Baltimore County.  And I know I personally have been there for 15 


events, including my daughter’s wedding reception a number of 16 


years ago.  And you’ve, and the members of the panel may have 17 


been there as well.   18 


  This is a property that is actually comprised of two 19 


separate lots.  One is over two acres and it’s zoned BR, on 20 


which is located what is known as the Grey Rock Mansion, which 21 


is an old building originally associated with John Eager 22 


Howard, former governor, signer of the Declaration of 23 


Independence.  And, and at one time, the Grey Rock Mansion, I 24 


think, was the center piece of a, of a large estate.   25 
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  Presently, the Grey Rock Mansion is used as a 1 


catering facility where one can have events there and lease the 2 


premises for weddings, bar mitzvahs, things of that nature.  3 


Almost any kind of celebration.  As I indicated, I’ve been 4 


there for a wedding receptions and fundraisers and things of 5 


that nature.   6 


  The property, as I indicated, both collectively, is 7 


comprised of two lots.  One is the two plus acre property on 8 


which the mansion sits, and the second is an adjacent lot, 9 


which is about three quarters of an acre on which a parking lot 10 


is located.   11 


  This case springs from the fact that the owners of 12 


the property, and I, I have as a witness today, a principal of 13 


Grey Rock Properties, LLC, a lady seated immediately to my 14 


left, who I’ll move the camera when she testifies, Anne 15 


Pomykala.   16 


  And Ms. Pomykala is the owner of the property, wanted 17 


to have a residential quarters, the building is multi-storied, 18 


but she wanted to have a small apartment on one of the upper 19 


floors of the mansion.  Presently, the mansion is used on the 20 


lower floors and the grounds also for, as I indicated, events 21 


that are held there.   22 


  But for purposes of security and just to have an 23 


onsite presence, she wanted to have somebody living there.  24 


Thought it would be good if there was ever a fire or any kind 25 
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of emergency, break in, power failure, whatever it might be, to 1 


have someone live there.   2 


  I have another witness who is a prior owner, who 3 


would testify that indeed, in the past there have been 4 


residential quarters on the property.  But, or, or in the 5 


building, at, at one time.  And obviously the mansion, when it 6 


was built back in the 1800’s was built as a residence.   7 


  Under the zoning regulations, under the BR zone, 8 


which is a commercial zone as the Board is aware, residential 9 


quarters or residential use within the building, even though 10 


it’s ancillary to the, to the catering and the business 11 


facility, is only permitted by special exception.   12 


  So, we filed a request for a special exception for 13 


the living quarters.  Again, I think you have to appreciate 14 


that the primary purpose of the property is for the commercial 15 


use.  And the building itself, in the immediate area around the 16 


building is zoned BR, business roadside, which allows the 17 


catering facility.  So, the special exception relates only to 18 


this residential apartment, which is proposed.   19 


  One thing that I would point out is if you’ve had the 20 


opportunity to read Administrative Law Judge Murphy’s decision, 21 


she restricted that as a restriction in her decision to a 22 


single person and we would like to revisit that.  Ms. Pomykala 23 


is going to testify that at the present time, she doesn’t have 24 


anybody lined up and scheduled to live there appropriately.   25 
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  She has in mind the person that she wants, but it 1 


would either be a single person or if it’s a person who’s 2 


married, then it would be a couple.  So, having the 3 


restriction, allowing it to one individual is problematic for 4 


the owner and we would ask that the Board revisit that issue.  5 


And I’ll allow her to testify.   6 


  Again, she doesn’t have anybody picked out, selected 7 


at this point in time to live, to live there to keep an eye on 8 


it.  But whoever would live there, it could be a single man, a 9 


single woman or a husband and wife or something of that nature.  10 


So, that’s the special exception.   11 


  As the Board is aware, when one files a special 12 


exception with the Zoning Office, to go before the, a hearing 13 


before the Administrative Law Judge, a required piece of the 14 


packet is a site plan.  And we filed that in this case and it’s 15 


an exhibit below and will be an exhibit in this case.   16 


  And what that shows is, and I think kind of giving 17 


the nature on that, and I’ll have testimony about this, but 18 


just to kind of give the Board a little explanation as to the 19 


other part of the relief that we’re requesting, is that 20 


obviously when the Grey Rock Mansion was built a hundred and 21 


sixty years ago, a hundred and fifty years ago, the entire 22 


grounds, it was a large tract of land that was in that family 23 


at the time.   24 


  And over the years, parcels had been sold off.  And 25 
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as I indicated, we only own now, only own, Grey Rock 1 


Properties, LLC, only owns these two parcels, which 2 


collectively are something around three acres.  And what has 3 


happened is the clients who Mr. McCann represents, development 4 


has encroached and been created surrounding the mansion.   5 


  And I have some aerial photographs, which you, you 6 


will see.  There are residences right, immediately around the 7 


mansion.  If you’ve ever been there, you know as you turn off 8 


of Reisterstown Road and go up Grey Rock Road to get to the 9 


mansion itself, you pass a number of villas and townhouses 10 


where folks are living.   11 


  The testimony will be that in 1989 is when that 12 


residential development around Grey Rock Mansion started and 13 


when it was initially approved by Baltimore County.  And it was 14 


built over a series of years, not uncommon in a lot of 15 


residential development, where there’s phased development, 16 


phase one, phase two of the residential development. 17 


  In 2000, apparently to accommodate the residential 18 


development as it was surrounding the mansion, the Baltimore 19 


County Council rezoned a large portion of the properties 20 


surrounding the mansion.  It appears to accommodate the 21 


residential development, which was, which was being 22 


contemplated and built out.   23 


  And as you look at the site plan now, you will see 24 


that the BR zoning is a rectangle or a square kind of shape 25 
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that immediately surrounds the mansion, so that part of the 1 


parking area for the mansion and, indeed, part of the lawn area 2 


of the mansion, which includes a tent, which is attached to the 3 


mansion building, is now in the DR zone.   4 


  So, when we filed the underlying Petition for Special 5 


Exception for the caretaker’s quarters, the Zoning Office drew 6 


our attention to the fact that, as components to the 7 


residential use, I’m sorry, as components to the commercial 8 


use, the parking and the lawn area, the commercial catering use 9 


is not permitted in the DR-3.5 zone. 10 


  So, we filed a Petition for Special Hearing to 11 


permit, as a non-conforming, or grandfathered use, that the 12 


activities associated with the mansion business be continued to 13 


be permitted in these areas which are now zoned DR-3.5. 14 


  So, in the special hearing, which is, essentially, as 15 


you know, sort of a catchall relief, which you can file, we 16 


have asked for approval of these areas of the Grey Rock 17 


Properties, LLC property, which is now zoned DR-3.5 so that it 18 


can, those areas can, can, can continue to be used in an area 19 


associated with the business at the mansion.   20 


  The parking, people who would come there can park as 21 


guests, and also the lawn area, which is used as the tent.  And 22 


even the outdoor area, which you’ll hear testimony about, which 23 


is used in nice weather as part of the events that occur at the 24 


mansion can continue to be used in that area.   25 
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  Sort of under a belts and suspenders approach as 1 


well, Section 409.12 of the zoning regulations, which the Board 2 


may be familiar with, allows what is called a modified parking 3 


plan.  And that basically is a tool which is used where there 4 


not, may not be strict compliance with all the parking 5 


regulations, either the number of parking spaces required or 6 


the striping or surface of the lot and so on and so forth.   7 


  And because of the existing parking arrangement, 8 


which is again, surrounding the mansion and then on this three-9 


quarters of an acre lot, we filed also a request for modified 10 


parking plan.  And I think the Board, in its wisdom, can grant 11 


relief to allow the parking to continue either as a modified 12 


parking plan under 409.12, or it can, can find it non-13 


conforming, or a combination of both, however the Board wants 14 


to address it.   15 


  But we just filed both of those requests to accomm, 16 


to give the Board, and the ALJ below, sort of an underlying 17 


flexibility as to approach the parking.  So, I have a coup, 18 


several (stops talking). 19 


  CHAIR:  You just muted yourself.   20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Ms. Pomykala is going to lead off, who 21 


is the present owner of the property and I also have Ralph 22 


Skudrna, who is the prior owner of the property, who you will 23 


hear from.  We have a site plan and I do have the registered 24 


landscape architect available who can introduce that plan, if 25 
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need be.   1 


  Also, Carl Richards is here.  You know, may know Mr. 2 


Richards as a long-time supervisor in the County Zoning 3 


Department, to discuss the zoning issues.  And he also has 4 


personal knowledge of this property going back as far as the 5 


1980’s when he used to go out there for certain events.  So, 6 


that’s sort of an outline, Mr. Evans and members of the panel, 7 


of, of what the case is about today.  Hopefully that’s been 8 


helpful. 9 


  CHAIR:  That, that has.  If, if there were strict 10 


compliance with the parking requirements, what, what would that 11 


entail? 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, it would entail a couple of 13 


things, Mr. Evans.  The site plan shows that collectively there 14 


are a hundred four spaces provided for the mansion, either 15 


between the lot that’s originally surrounding the mansion and, 16 


and the lot on the three-quarters of an acre, which is within 17 


five hundred feet of the building, which is a requirement that 18 


the parking has to be within that area.   19 


  There, there’s a couple of issues there.  Strictly, 20 


the parking requirement requires, if you look at Section 409 of 21 


the zoning regulations, requires for a catering facility twenty 22 


spaces for, per thousand square feet for a catering facility.   23 


  As you know, the parking regulations usually generate 24 


the number of parking required by a mathematical formula, where 25 
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it’s a certain number of spaces required per thousand square 1 


feet.  The Grey Rock Mansion is about ten thousand square feet 2 


in terms of building.   3 


  However, not all of the building is used for a 4 


catering facility.  It’s closer to about half of that.  So, 5 


that would require more spaces, Mr. Evans, if you did the 6 


strict mathematical formula, would be one issue that would be 7 


addressed.   8 


  I think Ms. Pomykala and Mr. Skudrna would testify 9 


that they’ve always found that the parking that’s provided 10 


there accommodates the events that are there.  And they, they 11 


haven’t had a parking issue.  But, so there is an issue as it 12 


relates to the number of spaces. 13 


  The, the other issue that’s a little bit of an 14 


interesting issue is when the residential community was being 15 


built, there was an easement agreement that was entered into in 16 


the 1980’s between the then owners of the Grey Rock Mansion and 17 


the community.   18 


  If you look at the aerial, which I’ll show you, 19 


you’ll see that the community swimming pool is right next to 20 


the mansion, it’s in proximity.  And so, the owners of the 21 


mansion at that time, granted an easement to the community to 22 


allow them to park, to go to the swimming pool, if people 23 


wanted to drive from within the community and park there.  So, 24 


there is that shared parking facility, shared use. 25 
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  I think the owners of the mansion would say that 1 


generally, I think most of the events occur in the evening 2 


hours typically and so, there’s not a conflict between the pool 3 


operation.  But Mr. Evans, you just asked what kind of the 4 


parking issues, so that’s, that’s another complication or 5 


issue, I guess I would say.   6 


  That the fact that that particular area, which is 7 


used for parking, is subject to that easement, which allows 8 


folks who go to the community.  The easement does indicate that 9 


the owners of the mansion can continue to use that parking area 10 


as well.  But it’s more of a shared arrangement.   11 


  CHAIR:  Okay, great.  Thanks.   12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And I think also I will say that the 13 


lot around the mansion, there’s a comment from the Planning 14 


Office, a ZAC comment.  I think you’ll see that, suggests that 15 


the lot be restriped.  I think it’s been a while since the lot 16 


has been restriped, is that right, Anne? 17 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, we had it restriped -- 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Recently? 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Recently. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Well, that may be moot at this 21 


point, but when the Planning Office rep went out there to do 22 


their zoning advisory committee comment, they suggested that it 23 


be restriped.  Ms. Pomykala just whispered in my ear that 24 


that’s been done recently, so maybe that’s no longer an issue.  25 
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But I point that out because, Chairman Evans, as you know, 1 


that’s also a requirement that a parking lot should be striped. 2 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Mr. McCann? 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Oh, I’m sorry.  I wanted to add one 4 


other thing.  I know it’s the practice of the Board that 5 


exhibits that were introduced below, Mr. Evans, I think are 6 


part of the record of the case and are before you.  There were 7 


seven exhibits that we introduced below and when I submitted, 8 


at Ms. Cannington’s request, the exhibits for his hearing 9 


today, they are the same first seven exhibits.   10 


  I don’t know whether I have to re-introduce those.  11 


But I can just tell you what they are.  I know Mr. McCann 12 


should be familiar with them.  But they’re a site plan, which 13 


was exhibit number one, and then three aerial photographs, 14 


which we’ve taken from My Neighborhood, the County website, 15 


which are Exhibits 2-A, B and C.   16 


  A series of site photographs, which are 3-A through 17 


3-X, which were introduced.  Number four was a, a resume from 18 


the registered landscape article Ms. Tien (phonetic), who is, 19 


prepared the site plan.  Number five were some, a couple of 20 


newspaper articles that were in The Sunpapers and the 21 


Jeffersonian just from back before 2000, talking about the 22 


functions at the, at the mansion.   23 


  Number six were a series of a copy of the development 24 


plans for when the residential development plan was being, when 25 
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the residential development was being processed and reviewed by 1 


Baltimore County.  Those plans, they’re from the County 2 


records.  And then, number seven is a prior zoning case in 3 


connection with the development plan, as well as the plan from 4 


that case. 5 


  So, most of these are from County files or 6 


photographs and they were submitted below.  I guess I can ask 7 


Mr. McCann if he has any objections to any of them or whether 8 


we can just admit them and refer to them.  It might make life a 9 


little easier.   10 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, we do need, for the, it’s, it’s 11 


vastly better, preferred for the record, to reintroduce them as 12 


Board exhibits -- 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 14 


  CHAIR:  -- at, at this stage.   15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 16 


  CHAIR:  But certainly if Mr. McCann is willing to 17 


stipulate to them then that, you know, that makes the logistics 18 


that much easier.  But -- 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  I, I have no objection to the exhibits.  20 


The only thing I would ask is Mr. Schmidt indicated that one of 21 


the exhibits is, consists of some newspaper articles and 22 


generally I don’t have a problem with those, they talk about 23 


the mansion.  Just, and I guess it’s helpful to the Board as 24 


background.   25 
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  But having read those a while ago and having not 1 


reread them, frankly, I can’t recall if there’s anything 2 


specific in there that, for instance, the timeline of things 3 


that Mr. Schmidt may be relying upon for substantive purposes 4 


relating to his, the relief that’s requested.  So, I would 5 


just, if I could, as we go along maybe I’ll read them again.  6 


But otherwise, no objections. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 8 


  CHAIR:  Okay.   9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  We’ll certainly have one of the 10 


witnesses talk about them.  I, I wanted to have, Mr. Evans, I 11 


want to have Ms. Pomykala and Mr. Skudrna go first, just 12 


because I thought them explaining the property and the history 13 


made it easier for everybody to understand before I even 14 


introduce the site plan.   15 


  But if Mr. McCann, and I appreciate that, Mr. McCann, 16 


if he’s stipulated to those exhibits, certainly I have the 17 


witness available if anybody has any questions about anything 18 


in particular.  And Mr. Richards will refer to them as well.   19 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  It’s just kind of, I thought the 21 


easiest order in terms of putting people on to testify would 22 


make it, make it simple.  Okay? 23 


  CHAIR:  Okay.   24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Then I would call -- 25 







17 
 


  CHAIR:  Well, wait, hold it one second.   1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 2 


  CHAIR:  Mr. McCann, did you want to make an opening? 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  I do not but thank you, Mr. Evans. 4 


  CHAIR:  Okay, all right.  Okay.  Mr. Schmidt, the 5 


floor is yours.   6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I’m going to call as my first 7 


witness, Anne Pomykala, and I’m going to move around this 8 


screen a little bit so you can see her.  Can you all see her 9 


and me still? 10 


  CHAIR:  Yes. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Does she need to be sworn in, 12 


Mr. Lauer?  Or is that how you’re going to do it? 13 


  CHAIR:  Yes. 14 


  MR. LAUER:  Yes, we’ll do that.  Would you raise your 15 


right hand, please?  Do you swear and affirm under the penalty 16 


of perjury, that the testimony you’re about to give is true and 17 


correct to the best of your knowledge and belief? 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I do so testify that it will be true 19 


and correct. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.   21 


  MR. LAUER:  Okay and please give us your name, spell 22 


your last name and give us your address for the record. 23 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I’m having trouble hearing him.   24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  He said, state your name and your 25 
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address. 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I am Anne Pomykala.  I reside at 1400 2 


Greenspring Valley Road, Stevenson, Maryland 21153. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and can you all hear her okay?   4 


  CHAIR:  Yes. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 6 


  MR. LAUER:  Yes. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.   8 


  CHAIR:  But can you spell your last, your first and 9 


last name, please? 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  A-N-N-E, Anne, Pomykala is P as in 11 


Peter-O-M-Y-K-A-L-A. 12 


  MR. LAUER:  Thank you, ma’am.   13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Mr. Evans, might, I’m going to 14 


ask her about some of these photographs as she’s describing the 15 


property.  So, I don’t know if you have to pass me the baton or 16 


how we do that.   17 


  CHAIR:  Yeah.  Okay, do you have it?  Got it there? 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I think so, not sure.  Tell you what.  19 


Carl, ask Alyssa to come in here.  I just want to make sure I 20 


get these up okay.  Give me just a minute if I get my tech 21 


person in here.   22 


  CHAIR:  Sure. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I’m always reluctant that I’m going to 24 


hit the wrong button and disconnect myself, so give me just a 25 
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minute.  I’m sorry.  Ah, okay, okay.  Members of the panel, can 1 


you, can you all see?  Have I done this successfully?   2 


  CHAIR:  Yes. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Ms. Pomykala, let me ask you a 4 


couple questions, if I can, just to get started.  How are you 5 


affiliated or are you affiliated with Grey Rock Properties, 6 


LLC? 7 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I’m affiliated with the two entities 8 


that own it.  The property’s LLC is the one that owns the 9 


property.  The one that manages it is the mansion LLC.   10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 11 


  MS. POMYKALA:  As an LLC, we are members.  I am the 12 


chief operating officer there.  It’s my responsibility to get 13 


everything done and done correctly. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and how long have you owned the, 15 


the properties, the Grey Rock Mansion properties? 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Okay.  The property, unfortunately, 17 


went up for foreclosure in December.  And so, we signed our 18 


agreement in December 14th of ’18 to buy the properties.  But 19 


then it has to be approved by the Board as being a legal 20 


exchange and there’s no hanky panky or anything.  It takes the 21 


Courts awhile to do that, unfortunately, and we did not become 22 


the legal owners March 29th ’19. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Twenty nineteen? 24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yeah. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, you’ve owned it for about 1 


three and a half years at this point? 2 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 4 


  MS. POMYKALA:  So, yes. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and I pull, I pulled up a copy of 6 


the site plan that’s been introduced in this case.  And is it 7 


fair to say, Ms. Pomykala, that the properties are actually two 8 


different lots? 9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And I’m using the cursor here, if you 11 


can describe the, the one lot that I’m kind of circling, what, 12 


what’s on that and how that’s laid out? 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Okay.  The dark line around it that’s 14 


triangular in shape, is where the mansion is.  On the right 15 


side of the mansion, you can see the house lines there, is the 16 


garden area.  And to the left of that, the house, is the 17 


parking area. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and is there then a second lot 19 


associated with the mansion property? 20 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The second lot is the parking lot.   21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and that’s where the cursor is 22 


indicating now? 23 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct, um hm. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I’ve got some photographs of the 25 
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area that I’ve taken from, well, let me, let me use the ground 1 


photographs, that might be easier.  I’m going to enlarge these 2 


a little bit so the Board can see them better.  And maybe we 3 


can just go through these, Ms. Pomykala, briefly, just so you 4 


can kind of familiarize the Board with what the property looks 5 


like.   6 


  So, for the record, Mr. Evans and member of the 7 


panel, these would be Exhibits 3-A through 3-X.  And again, 8 


they were submitted, Mr. McCann, these are the same ones that 9 


were submitted below, just so you know the same, same ones that 10 


we have.  Okay. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  No objection.  And Mr., Mr. Schmidt, can 12 


you send me, have someone send me the exhibits, please? 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Sure, sure. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, I’m just going to go through 16 


these and, Anne, if you can just kind of describe what we’re 17 


looking at.  So, 3-A? 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  You’re looking at the front part of 19 


the mansion.  The circle in front of the mansion does not 20 


belong to us, it belongs to the community associations.  There 21 


is a statute in it of, to John Eager Howard, who had so many 22 


responsibilities.  He’s one of our principal people in the 23 


revolution that brought us into a country.   24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and this was originally part of 25 
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the John Eager Howard family?   1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes, um hm. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and the white building is the 3 


mansion building itself? 4 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  3-B? 6 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This is a side, this is from the 7 


parking lot side of the mansion.  You can see a fence to the 8 


left, and that goes into the parking lot area. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The parking lot, the road area in 11 


front of the steps to the mansion, according to surveys, does 12 


belong to us. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 14 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And, I, I’ve walked it from the cement 15 


post to the other cement post and it does, in my estimation, is 16 


a true and complete rendering of how it should be. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and 3-C, just another photograph? 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It’s another photograph of the front 19 


with the part of the roadway that belongs to us. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Some of these are a little bit 21 


duplicative.  But that’s, again, the mansion at the front. 22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The mansion, um hm. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And the drive, the cir, part of the 24 


circular driveway that’s immediately in front? 25 
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  MS. POMYKALA:  Um hm. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and 3-E?  Now, the lawn, this is 2 


the lawn area in the front, can you see that? 3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This is the, yeah, it’s the lawn area 4 


in front. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And that’s owned by the community? 6 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That is owned by the community. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and then the circular driveway, 8 


you can kind of see on the back side of the lawn area? 9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Just barely. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, all right.  3-F? 11 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Is a, the walkway that goes into the 12 


garden side of the mansion showing the tent in sort of the 13 


center left.  And then the big window of the terrace room of 14 


the mansion.   15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Which we restored. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Now, the tent that you, you 18 


described, is that attached to the side of the building? 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It’s on poles right up, next to the 20 


building.  So, I would say it was attached because we don’t get 21 


water down through there. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  And I’ll ask you about how 23 


the property is used.  3-G?   24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This is, again, another picture of the 25 
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fountain in the garden area and the gazebo in the fountain 1 


area. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Oops, sorry about that.   3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It also shows, there was no 4 


landscaping there, except what was left over from the Epstein 5 


family.  And that little brown spot there, we made another 6 


little garden area, so that we’re trying to recapture the 7 


spirit of Ethel Epstein, who had tremendous gardens.  They were 8 


photographed by Audrey Boudein (phonetic), lots of photographs.  9 


I bought some at auction.  But this was an important house at 10 


that time.   11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  What, what kind of, what year or 12 


what timeframe are you talking about with the Epsteins when 13 


they owned it? 14 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That is the nineteen, they started 15 


owning it in the 1920’s.  A.K. Epstein died tragically in 19, 16 


the beginning of the 1930’s. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  But Ethel Epstein, the daughter of the 19 


original Epstein, Jacob Epstein, continued all his work and 20 


restored this place magnificently.  It’s a tremendous part of 21 


Jewish history.   22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  I’m scrolling down to 3-H. 23 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This is the tent here.  That 24 


landscaping, I do not know who put it in.  It was probably put 25 
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in by Ethel Epstein at some point, we do not know. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  Now, 3-I. 2 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This is on the parking lot side.  It’s 3 


as you turn from the driveway in front into the parking area. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, this would be, this is the-- 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That’s the columns. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  In the front porch? 7 


  MS. POMYKALA:  On the front porch. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, we’re looking out from the 9 


mansion, is that -- 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  We’re looking out from the roadway 11 


that takes you into the parking lot. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The gate is right near where it says 14 


Petitioner’s Exhibit 31.  But it does not show the gate to the 15 


parking area. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, all right.  And 3-J? 17 


  MS. POMYKALA:  3-J is the center field that is owned 18 


by the association, plus the memorial statute to John Eager 19 


Howard. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Again, this looks to be kind of 21 


a duplicate of the lawn area out front, 3-K? 22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Just to try to get through these.  24 


Okay.  Now, this 3-L, what are we looking at here? 25 
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  MS. POMYKALA:  This would have to be the parking, 1 


parking lot area that’s near the pool. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and is the building, brown 3 


building, is that associated with the mansion or the pool or 4 


what is that? 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That’s -- 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Can you see it?  It’s hard to see it 7 


now. 8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I am not sure.  That could be one of 9 


the, the, the buildings that, that belong to the association 10 


that, either the (inaudible) or the condos. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And it looks like, kind of looks like 12 


the pool back in this corner.  I know it’s hard to see. 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I cannot, I cannot see it. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I know it’s hard to see.  And 15 


this, this same building and parking area. 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right, that is, so obviously then that 17 


is associated with the pool. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, that’s a building associated 19 


with the pool, and then on the left side? 20 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Is the parking area. 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And that’s the three-quarter acre piece 22 


that your referred to. 23 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct.   24 


  CHAIR:  Okay and that’s M, just for the record.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, that’s M.  This looks like, I’m 1 


sorry, we got some that are kind of duplicates, 3-N is, again, 2 


the pool building and that area? 3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yeah. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And again, the same thing. 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Same thing.   6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  3-O is looking from the parking area on 7 


that, at the pool building? 8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yeah, um hm. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Now, this is 3-P. 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That is the parking lot next to the 11 


mansion. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Next to the mansion, okay.  And I think 13 


-- 14 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This again is the parking lot next to 15 


the mansion.   16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, that’s 3-Q.  3-R?  This is a 17 


little bit of the same thing, I think.   18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Same thing. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 20 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That, that’s where it was.  We did 21 


stripe that. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  That’s the one that’s been re-23 


striped? 24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and 3-S?   1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Same thing, that is the attached shed 2 


to the mansion that was done for the catering purposes.  Okay 3 


and 3-T? 4 


  MS. POMYKALA:  3-T is again the back shed to the 5 


mansion.  You can see the mansion rising up above.  And permits 6 


would have had to be applied for that, that I’m sure Rob could 7 


testify to.  He got permits to put that building in.   8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Okay and is the, where the 9 


cursor is, is that, I know this, these are hard to -- 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That’s the tent. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  That’s the tent looking at that from 12 


the back side of the building? 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Um hm, right. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  U is, I think, the same parking 15 


area? 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right, um hm. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  For some reason some of these are 18 


smaller.  3-V? 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right, all I can say is we put that 20 


white fence in so that when you were in the dining room area of 21 


the house you would see a beautiful garden and you wouldn’t see 22 


the cars, etcetera. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and W, again, the mansion and the 24 


parking lot to the side? 25 
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  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct.  That’s where it’s striped 1 


here.   2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and I think we just added this.  3 


It’s been shown in some other photographs, but this, what is 4 


this monument to? 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Like it’s all of the things that he 6 


did in his life that are tremendous, for the nation and the 7 


state. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.   9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And that was Sons of the American 10 


Revolution that put that up with the permission of the 11 


association.   12 


  VOICE: (inaudible). 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  So, those are the 14 


photographs.  Just a couple other photographs that I think 15 


might be helpful for the Board, you might be able to explain, 16 


Ms. Pomykala, is some of these aerial photographs.  And if you 17 


can, can you, can you describe -- 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Well, we, of course, see the house 19 


there in the white shades.  The parking lot on the left, the 20 


garden area on the right.  I think it’s, if you move it down a 21 


little bit. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Um hm. 23 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, I mean, the other way.  I think 24 


it’s important to note that back here in the parking lot, we 25 
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could, we do intend to make that more of a garden space and, 1 


you know, plant something along the division between the houses 2 


so they’re not looking over into it.  There’s lots and lots of 3 


things we plan to do with this property to make it worthy of 4 


its history.   5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and just so we’re clear, this is 6 


the parking lot next to the mansion where the cursor is? 7 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That is correct, um hm.   8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And then, this is the garden and tent 9 


area? 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The garden and the tent area. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  All in here? 12 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Um hm.   13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And then, this would be the, the other 14 


parking lot, the, the one associated with the pool right here? 15 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct, um hm. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and then just a little further 17 


out, just to give the Board some context, again, the subject 18 


property with the mansion where my cursor is, is that right? 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Um hm, correct. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And the parking area serving the pool 21 


and mansion is where my cursor is? 22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right.  I think it’s also wise to note 23 


that things change over the years.  This part right here, that 24 


street, was supposed to be the, at one point, the original 25 
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gateway to the property. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 2 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And then, so it’s always mentioned in 3 


every legal document that comes out. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  That’s Clifton Court, but that -- 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right, Clifton Court, um hm. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- but that stops short of the 7 


property? 8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Short of about fifteen feet of the 9 


property.  There’s various owners in there.  It’s very hard to 10 


even track who owns what.  The association owns a little part 11 


of it, we own a little part of it, the city owns a decent part 12 


of it.  It’s very hard to straighten that little mess out 13 


there. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  But you can’t get from Clifton 15 


Court into, into the Grey Rock Mansion property by car? 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  By car, right. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  You can’t drive in, right? 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right, because I don’t own the 19 


property -- 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 21 


  MS. POMYKALA:  -- at the end of Clifton Court. 22 


  CHAIR:  How, how do you get from the parking lot 23 


that’s associated, the, the shared parking lot with the pool, 24 


how do you get from the pool to the mansion?  (inaudible)? 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  You can see, you can kind of see the 1 


road here.  This is the circle driveway in front of the 2 


mansion. And then this road where my cursor, this leads out to 3 


Reisterstown Road, but you would drive in, you would go in the 4 


circle driveway and you would either park here or if there was 5 


a big overflow, you would park here. 6 


  CHAIR:  And then how do you go, do you just walk from 7 


the -- 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Just walk from here, it’s, it’s two 9 


hundred feet or so from the mansion to this parking lot down 10 


here. 11 


  CHAIR:  Do, do you walk on the road or can you cut 12 


through the side there or -- 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Is there, is there a sidewalk or 14 


something? 15 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, there is no sidewalk.  You’d have 16 


to walk on the grass.   17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Or you could walk on the 18 


driveway? 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct. 20 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 21 


  MS. POMYKALA:  But I will say that we have rarely had 22 


to use that parking lot, even though we have a two thousand 23 


five hundred capacity.  But we’re, usually I would say the 24 


average number of people there are a hundred and thirty, maybe 25 
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a hundred and twenty-five, would be a regular party at the 1 


mansion. 2 


  CHAIR:  Um hm. 3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Because you come to it in a car 4 


usually, we rarely use that parking lot.  The only time, I 5 


think, that we used it was with the Cal Ripken event.  And that 6 


was a blessing to the community because, just a little incident 7 


there, BG&E cut the power lines to everything in the community.  8 


And because it was Cal Ripken who got on the phone and said we 9 


need help -- 10 


  CHAIR:  Uh huh. 11 


  MS. POMYKALA:  -- we immediately, within ten minutes, 12 


had two big, three big, was it three big generators -- 13 


  VOICE:  No, it was eight BG&E trucks. 14 


  MS. POMYKALA:  -- eight big BG&E generator trucks, 15 


which immediately, within the hour restored power not only to 16 


us but to the community also.  So, we can be a blessing at 17 


times.   18 


  CHAIR:  Um hm, okay. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  When you know people in high places, I 20 


guess. 21 


  VOICE: (inaudible). 22 


  CHAIR:  So, so, I, I don’t know who it is, just for 23 


the record here, there’s, there’s someone speaking off camera 24 


there in your office, Mr. Schmidt.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, and that’s, that’s Brian Pomykala 1 


who is here, who is Mrs. Pomykala’s son. 2 


  CHAIR:  That’s her husband?   3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I’ll try to keep him not to say 4 


anything. 5 


  CHAIR:  Yeah, please.  We can’t have that actually. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah. 7 


  CHAIR:  Okay? 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I, I apologize.   9 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  He was just correcting, saying it was 11 


more than three trucks. 12 


  CHAIR:  I, no, I get that.  But really we’re not 13 


supposed to, that, that, that shouldn’t be happening.   14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and Ms. Pomykala, this, I guess 15 


this other aerial is a little further.  I’m just going to 16 


point, this road here would be what road?  Can you tell, can 17 


you see that?   18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I guess that has to be Reisterstown 19 


Road. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Right, and then one would enter onto -- 21 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Grey Rock Road. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and drive up -- 23 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Up the driveway.  You could still see 24 


the fences that were put in during the Epstein ownership. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and then, the circle driveway that 1 


you’ve testified about. 2 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right, um hm. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Is here and the parking here? 4 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes, correct. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  The swimming pool is kind of 6 


obvious, you see the bright blue color.  And then the mansion? 7 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Can you see that okay?  Okay.  9 


All right.  You can be seated, Ms. Pomykala.  Let me, you’ve 10 


talked about it a little bit.  But talk, tell, tell us what 11 


goes on in the years that you’ve, well, before you do that.  12 


Tell, you talked a little bit, but tell us a little bit about 13 


the history of the mansion, just a little bit of the background 14 


that you’re aware of.   15 


  MS. POMYKALA:  From the beginning or -- 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, just, just, not to dwell on it, 17 


but just to give the Board a little bit of context of the 18 


mansion.   19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It was originally owned, two hundred 20 


plus acres or more, by John Eager Howard’s grandfather, who was 21 


a, he came over from England and was given a land grant here.  22 


So, he established it.  It was called the Forest.  It was a 23 


stopping place.   24 


  He, they had a lot of children that continued the 25 
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farming operation.  And then one of the chil, grandchildren, 1 


was John Eager Howard, who established himself as a primary in 2 


the revolution helping George Washington and went on to do many 3 


things in this, Maryland with government and politics.   4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  So, he, after the Howard family 6 


finished their tenancy, Dr. James Maynard was the one who 7 


bought the property and built the original house there.  It was 8 


by an unknown architect.  He had, went to some of his family 9 


and then was, passed on to, to, to the Epstein family.   10 


  Somebody for the Epstein family bought it and it was 11 


immediately given (inaudible) Katz and his wife, Ethel Epstein, 12 


who was one of the two daughters of Jacob Epstein.  They’ve 13 


transformed, or I say, she was the primary.  She, along with 14 


A.J. Katz transformed that mansion into replicas of 18th century 15 


buildings, so it was 1700 buildings.   16 


  They were from Europe, they were from the United 17 


States.  But just to say the importance and how much she did it 18 


was the library, has a tremendous flower and bird carving.  19 


That is an exact, the original was taken from England, it was 20 


put in the Pennsylvania Museum of Art.  It was an exact copy.  21 


We have, at our national register location, we show both the 22 


original and the one that was done at Grey Rock.   23 


  She transformed the whole house.  The dining room was 24 


pushed out, the ballroom was eventually put in.  She did 25 
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amazing things to the interiors.  They, they are, you know, 1 


people that had a lot of money did the originals and she had a 2 


lot of money, and she copied those originals perfectly. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And I think you said the Epsteins, this 4 


was like in the 19th, first half of the 20th century. 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right, as Baltimore’s bargain 6 


basement, he was, Jacob Epstein was the Amazon of the day.  He 7 


sent the Jewish peddlers out west peddling their things.  He 8 


was the one that supplied them.  He was a founder of the 9 


Baltimore Museum of Art.  The statue, The Thinker, was donated 10 


by him.  Without his money and his support, and Ethel’s 11 


support, who was on the board afterwards and continued his 12 


interest, we would not have that Baltimore Museum of Art. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Now, let me ask you.  You 14 


mentioned, Ms. Pomykala, about an application to the national 15 


historic registry. 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Um hm. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Does the property, does it have any 18 


kind of historic designation presently? 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes, it is designated a property 20 


interest by the, the Maryland Historical Trust. 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  But it’s not, it’s not a county 22 


landmark? 23 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It has gone through lots, in order to 24 


be nominated onto the national register, it has to be approved 25 
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by the State and the County.  It’s been approved by the, and 1 


all of the approvals has gone into the National Park Service, 2 


which has sat on it for months.  So, one of my things is 3 


finding out whose desk it’s sitting on now.  Because I was 4 


originally told it would be a year ago that we would have 5 


confirmation of that. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and this is a, this is a 7 


designation that you’re seeking from the National Registry? 8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  From the National Registry. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and I, Mr., Mr. Evans, I think it, 10 


I’d just proffer to the Board, that it is not a county 11 


landmark.  It’s not, it has not gone through the County 12 


landmark process, as Ms. Pomykala has indicated.  The County 13 


has approved it, approved on her application for the National 14 


Registry.   15 


  Let me ask you more so, Ms. Pomykala, about the more 16 


recent past.  Say since, you’ve talked about the Epsteins and 17 


the prior.  But since the, say the last fifty years, to the 18 


best of your knowledge, who has owned the property. 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The property when the first developers 20 


went up for foreclosure, Bank of America then came in, took 21 


over and it was divided into two, two things.  There was the 22 


Operating Engineers of Maryland took over the mansion portion.  23 


And then the, a new developer came in that took over the rest 24 


of the property.  The Operating -- 25 
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  CHAIR:  When, when was this?  When are we talking 1 


about now?   2 


  MS. POMYKALA:  We’re talking about the succession of 3 


ownership. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I think Mr. Evans asked when. 5 


  CHAIR:  When? 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  What, what’s the timeframe you’re 7 


talking about?  I know you have a, some notes in front of you 8 


with the dates.   9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  In 1989, they, the ownership passed 10 


from the Trinitarians over to Grey Rock. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, well, let me stop you there.   12 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Okay. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  The Trinitarians are who?  What is, 14 


what are the Trinitarians? 15 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It’s an Order of Catholic Priests and 16 


Brothers. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and, and the Trinitarians owned 18 


this property -- 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  For quite a while.   20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  When to when, essentially?  Just give 21 


us a general timeframe even.   22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  They owned it in 1961 and we have lots 23 


of notes, I, on it, because in our research, we had to trace 24 


all this and we even have people, we have, we have notes and 25 
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our research that Valley Catering even did some things at the 1 


Trinitarians when they owned it.  In 1989, Grey Rock, Inc. -- 2 


  CHAIR:  So, did the Trinitarians buy it from the 3 


Epsteins?   4 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes, they did.   5 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  So, the Epsteins owned it in the first 7 


half of the 20th century, essentially. 8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Um hm. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And then the Trinitarians, this 10 


religious order, purchased the property. 11 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And owned it for, from the sixties, 13 


seventies -- 14 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- until the late eighties.   16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  They sold half of the property to Grey 17 


Rock, Inc., which went defunct.  And then they saved the rest 18 


of it to make a really nice retreat center, which they never 19 


really got underway. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Well, Mr. Skudrna, who was owner 21 


back then, can, can talk about that. 22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Okay. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  You’ve owned it since 2018. 24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Twenty, no. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Twenty nineteen, excuse me. 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Twenty nineteen, March 29th. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  March of 2019, okay.  If I can, Ms. 3 


Pomykala, let me ask you just what is the business that goes on 4 


at the mansion?  Tell the Board what kind of functions you have 5 


there, how often.  Just give them an overview of what the 6 


operation is like now. 7 


  MS. POMYKALA:  We have events there.  So, what does 8 


events include?  There are weddings, there are elopements, 9 


there are anniversary parties, there are birthday parties.  We 10 


have corporate events there.  We have seminars there.  We have, 11 


the new thing that’s happening now is the celebration of life.  12 


So, that takes up weekday space.  So, let’s see, what else am I 13 


missing?   14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And have you had these events ever 15 


since you acquired the property?   16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  We had a tremendous amount in 2019. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And I have a list of all that were 19 


booked with me here.  I can read it off if you would like to 20 


hear it. Then in 2018, we also had a lot of events because we 21 


bought the property from Bill Clowney.  And Bill had continued 22 


his catering business and he still had events at the mansion, 23 


as well as outside the mansion, and he had booked quite a few 24 


events for 2019, which then came to us and -- 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and did the, have the events 1 


continued since you bought it up to the current day?   2 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Up to the current day, surprisingly we 3 


did well during COVID.  I would say quite a few events were 4 


postponed. But there were (inaudible) because we had the tent 5 


that could be opened during the evening times.  So, that made 6 


it, rather than going to one of the hotels where you were all 7 


closed in, people preferred to have an open tent.   8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, even during the COVID times 9 


you’ve had events ongoing -- 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  We’ve had events, um hm.   11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- at the mansion and the plan is to 12 


continue? 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Is there any plan in addition to the 15 


building or construction to the building itself? 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  We certainly want to have a 17 


caretaker’s quarter there.  We feel that because of past 18 


experience, (inaudible) we had a fire late in the afternoon in 19 


one of the men’s bathrooms from, and luckily Bill Clowney was 20 


there.  And even though he was able to use a fire extinguisher 21 


to provide a lot, a lot of damage. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  But in terms of the building, 23 


the caretaker’s quarter, do I understand that that will be in 24 


the existing building, you’re not building a new building for 25 
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that? 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, this will be in part of the 2 


existing building and there’s a backroom, you know, just, the 3 


wonderful things you find out about old buildings.  They, there 4 


is a fireplace in there.  It has a pot hanging on a chain and 5 


it has the original embers underneath the pot.  And that was 6 


all enclosed (inaudible) put up and we’ve taken it down and so 7 


it gives a very nice room with a lot of windows. It would make 8 


a, it’s a, an attraction for whoever I get to live in it 9 


(inaudible). 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and so that will be the 11 


caretaker’s quarters? 12 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That will be the caretaker’s quarters. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  How, let me ask you just so the Board 14 


understands, the, the layout of the building, how many stories, 15 


how many floors? 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It’s three stories, plus a basement. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and so the caretaker’s quarters 18 


will be on what floor? 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It will be on the second floor. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and that’s not where the catering 21 


fac, catering, that’s a separate quarters? 22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That’s a separate quarter.  It is 23 


above the commercial kitchen, it’s a little further back, but 24 


it’s in the same wing as the commercial kitchen. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and so, and so the catering 1 


occurs, the events, if I would go there for an event, what 2 


floor or floors would I be on?   3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  You’d be on the first floor as a 4 


guest.  If you’re part of the wedding party, we have a groom’s 5 


room that’s been restored.  We have a bride’s room, which is in 6 


need of restoration. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and what floor are they on? 8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  They are on the second floor. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and -- 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  But they would be limited to the 11 


bridge and whoever she lets go up there.   12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and that’s also the second floor 13 


is where the kitchen is? 14 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The, no, the kitchen is on the first 15 


floor.   16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Oh, it’s on the first floor.  And the 17 


caretaker’s quarter would be on the second floor? 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Second floor, um hm. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  How about the third floor, what’s up 20 


there? 21 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The third floor, well, we rent it to 22 


Bill Clowney.  He had his, all, his catering office up there.  23 


And he also had a private office. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 25 
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  MS. POMYKALA:  And he was allowed to use our restored 1 


conference room if he needed to use that.   2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Are guests up, do guests ever go 3 


up on the third floor? 4 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  No. 6 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Not, I mean, if we have a new 7 


resident, person renting that space, -- 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  A caretaker. 9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Not a caretaker.  But a, a catering 10 


firm, they would be, they would be renting that.  Then they may 11 


bring somebody -- 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  An off, as, as their office. 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yeah, um hm. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  But you don’t have that now? 15 


  MS. POMYKALA:  We do not have that now. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and the basement is, what’s -- 17 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The basement is ugly, yeah, needs 18 


restoration. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Storage? 20 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It’s storage and it has the furnace in 21 


it.  It has the electrical panels in it.  It enters into the 22 


catering shed where the trucks can drive in. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  Now, you’ve described a 24 


little bit.  Tell the Board, you, you’ve asked for approval of 25 
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the caretaker’s quarters.  Who do you anticipate living there, 1 


what will be that arrangement, just if you could tell the 2 


Board, what, what it is that you’re thinking. 3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Well, I want, I want somebody like a 4 


caretaker.  I want somebody that can take care of minor 5 


electrical problems, minor, make sure all the lightbulbs work, 6 


for instance, or let us know what’s not working on the 7 


property.  Solve any plumbing problems that might be there, a 8 


leaky faucet, a, so he has to have some skills as a maintenance 9 


person.   10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Do you have any, do you have any -- 11 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I do not have anybody in mind yet 12 


because I am stymied by the last ruling where he couldn’t have 13 


a second person there.  If I’m looking at the age that I’m 14 


looking at, it’s forty, fifty, somebody that has experience, 15 


somebody that I can trust and somebody that’s probably going to 16 


have a significant other or a wife.   17 


  And to exclude that from my list of prospective 18 


people, I don’t want a seventy-year-old person.  This person 19 


could also be of value to the event going on because if there 20 


was a tremendous emergency.  For instance, somebody had a heart 21 


attack, we have one person on duty, and you have the catering 22 


people there.   23 


  But it would be very helpful if that other person 24 


knew something about first aid, got, you know, helped in the 25 
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transition of getting that person to the hospital.  There’s 1 


lots of things that that person could do.  So, I want him to be 2 


physically able and mentally able to do things.  I don’t want 3 


somebody that’s older and is just not really working that hard.  4 


So, I’m looking forward to a forty, fifty-year-old person that 5 


has a significant other. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Okay and -- 7 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Or at least if he has a significant 8 


other, I can’t just turn him down.   9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and, and again, they would live in 10 


the quarters you’ve described on the second floor? 11 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, you’re not putting a 13 


building addition onto the building or anything like that? 14 


  MS. POMYKALA: (inaudible) an old apartment that had 15 


been lived in once upon a time. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Let me ask you -- 17 


  CHAIR:  How many square feet is that, do you know, 18 


ma’am?  The apartment?   19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Gee, I did not copy that down.  I do 20 


have architectural plans for it.  I can give them to Larry -- 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Do, can, can you, approximation, do, do 22 


you know, let me ask you this.  How many rooms is it? 23 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It is the room in the back, plus the, 24 


wait a minute.  I have a, I think I sent you over the 25 
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architectural drawings. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Um hm. 2 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I can tell you from that, if I had 3 


those up there.   4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, I may not have them right in 5 


front of me.  But how many, how many rooms?  Is there a 6 


bedroom? 7 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It’s a bedroom, another small room 8 


that we’re putting a kitchen in and then a bathroom area.   9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Is there a living room area or 10 


something like that? 11 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, there’s not.  The backroom is big 12 


enough to use for both. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, in terms of, if we would 14 


even look at the footprint of the building, and of the second 15 


floor, how much of the second floor will be the apartment?  16 


Half of it, a third, three-quarters, would you say? 17 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I would say a third if that, if that 18 


much, I would say a quarter.  A quarter. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Between a quarter and a third of the 20 


second floor. 21 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Because the whole big front is a 22 


tremendous area that has the private, our private office, the 23 


groom’s room and the meeting room.   24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 25 
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  MS. POMYKALA:  And then you’re going down, down the 1 


back part and you have the bride’s room.  And then, after the 2 


bride’s room, and the bathroom for the bride’s room, there is 3 


this apartment we’ve got (inaudible). 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  So, I would say it’s even less than a 6 


quarter. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, maybe a quarter of the 8 


second floor would be the apartment.  Could, let me ask you 9 


this, because it might help with a few of Mr. Evans’ questions.  10 


I mean, could you have more than two people living there in 11 


terms of space?   12 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It would be small, but it would be 13 


adequate.   14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  For two people. 15 


  MS. POMYKALA: (inaudible) place to live. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  Okay.  Mr. Evans, I’ll 17 


see, I might be able to find the drawing. 18 


  CHAIR:  That’s okay.  I just wanted a general idea, I 19 


got it -- 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I think that gives you a general idea, 21 


that it’s about a quarter of the second floor.   22 


  CHAIR:  Thank you. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Let me ask you.  Ms. Pomykala, you, 24 


you’ve talked about it a little bit, but I just want you, 25 
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again, to explain the way the parking works for guests of the 1 


mansion.  Where do most people park and how often do you use 2 


the other lot. 3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I think we addressed that before that 4 


we use the swimming pool parking lot very little because our 5 


weddings are averaging between a hundred and twenty-five, a 6 


hundred and thirty, two to a car.  Or more to a car than that.  7 


So, the parking to the left of the mansion has proved adequate 8 


in most cases.  It’s only at a big event like the Cal Ripken 9 


fundraiser that we had to use that parking lot. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  That you would use the pool, okay.  11 


Okay and you don’t propose any change to the building?  When I 12 


say the building, the exterior of the building.  You’re not 13 


enlarging Grey Rock Mansion or putting a wing on or anything 14 


like that? 15 


  MS. POMYKALA:  There are no plans to do that. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 17 


  MS. POMYKALA: (inaudible). 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And I know there were some questions at 19 


the ALJ’s hearing.  Are there any plans to turn this into a 20 


bread, bed and breakfast or turn it into anything other than 21 


what the operation has been?  22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Absolutely not.  From a financial 23 


standpoint, it, it is not a good thing to do.  We spend more in 24 


operating expenses at Gramercy on our bed and breakfast as 25 
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opposed to income coming in, it’s the events that get the 1 


income.  2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and just so the Board is clear, 3 


you mentioned that you also have an ownership interest in the 4 


Gramercy Mansion as well. 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  We own the Gramercy Mansion, we own 6 


the 1840 Plaza, so we have two, Gramercy and 1840 are two of 7 


the top places for weddings in, in this area, Baltimore area. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And obviously, then you own the Grey 9 


Rock Mansion as well. 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Well, that’s because I love 11 


restoration. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And I love seeing historic, history 14 


glorified, because this is really one of the best places to 15 


have, to savor our history, particularly the Jewish history. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  All right.  Okay. 17 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And I’m not Jewish, I’m Catholic, so. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Okay, thank you, Ms. Pomykala.  19 


I don’t have any questions.  Mr. McCann may have some 20 


questions, or the Board members may have some questions.  21 


  MS. POMYKALA:  You were also going to show some of 22 


the improvements that we’ve done. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Oh, I, I apologize.  I’m sorry, I 24 


missed something.  Ms. Pomykala sent me these, these are new 25 
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photographs.  I’m sorry, Mr. Evans, just a couple of things.   1 


  CHAIR:  Sure. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I know you sent me some photos, Mr. 3 


Pomykala, of the, some of the additional work that you’ve done, 4 


or are in the middle of doing to the mansion.  Mr. McCann, 5 


these are new, these were not offered below.  It’s just a 6 


couple of photographs.   7 


  Let me scroll down to them if I can get to them.  I 8 


apologize, I forgot to show them.  There we go, there we are.  9 


So, Ms. Pomykala, again, if you could just describe.  These 10 


are, for the record, these were submitted, Mr. Evans, as 11 


Petitioner’s exhibit number eight.  Ms. Pomykala, 8-A is? 12 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This right here is, again, the front 13 


of the mansion.  It shows the tulips that are in front of the 14 


hedges, it shows the hedges trimmed.  We are trying our best to 15 


make this a garden place just like our original Gramercy is. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and 8-B? 17 


  MS. POMYKALA:  8-B, this was the original groom’s 18 


room, which we restored completely.  It was all paneled, a 19 


terrible mural in here, a broken-down sofa.  And further on is, 20 


you’ll see the picture of the restoration.  It looks much more, 21 


in the Epstein -- 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  But this, this, this particular 23 


room is the groom’s room, where the groomsmen -- 24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes, what has now been restored. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  And this is on the second floor? 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This is on the second floor.   2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This is a picture of some of the 4 


gardens we put in.  We have flowers going everywhere.  That’s 5 


the gazebo in the back. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  How, how long has that, that gazebo 7 


been there longer than you’ve owned it? 8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It was there when we owned it, when we 9 


bought it. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and it had to be restored too.  We 11 


had all sorts of leaks in the top of it, so the gazebo has been 12 


restored. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and guests would go out here if 14 


it’s nice weather for an event? 15 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It would be a place where they would 16 


get married. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay. 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  So, you’d have the gardens in the, you 19 


know, lots of very pretty gardens. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and 8-C? 21 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Now, we left, this is an expensive job 22 


because the exterior was falling apart.  So, all of the facie 23 


at the second-floor level, at the third-floor roof level on the 24 


third floor, is rotting.  You can see there to the left of the 25 
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thing where there’s a gutter coming down, that is, (inaudible) 1 


there was no way, you know, putting stuff in or thickening it 2 


or anything.   3 


  So, I couldn’t follow the national standards.  So, we 4 


did replace it with wood.  This, we rented this crane for two 5 


weeks.  I had four people down there working on scraping the 6 


exterior, because the stucco was a mess.  If you go back up 7 


again, see the top part there?  All of that is deteriorating, 8 


the facie, so that all had to be scraped, painted and where it 9 


was completely rotten, we had to replace wood. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, these, -- 11 


  MS. POMYKALA:  So, I just want to show you that we’ve 12 


invested the money in it to make this place back to the 13 


original.  And this happened just recently because I had to 14 


get, I’ve had enough weddings to give us the ability to do 15 


this.  Also, I had Gramercy’s income too. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 17 


  MS. POMYKALA:  So, because it was my guys who were 18 


doing this.  Here we are -- 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  This is 8-D. 20 


  MS. POMYKALA:  -- painting with a long brush.  That’s 21 


after the crane had been in here and we had taken care of the 22 


stucco. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And this red door would be the? 24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The front entrance. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Front door to the mansion, okay.  And? 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Here’s our crane, again, just showing 2 


you, pull it down a little bit.  But you can see up here at the 3 


very top where we, we have to get up there to improve that.  4 


Whether it’s the rotten wood or whether it’s the scraping, 5 


whether it’s the painting that will prevent further damage to 6 


it.   7 


  It’s, it’s one of those necessities to keep the 8 


mansion intact.  Just like replacing the furnace is ready to 9 


blow up.  Talked to the firemen and they said, I don’t know why 10 


we let it go on so long. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 12 


  MS. POMYKALA:  So, I have a new furnace down there 13 


too.  And that’s not always covered by tax credits because we 14 


had to start right at the beginning to prevent damage. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  8-G? 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This is the terrace room on the garden 17 


side.  We’ve started taking down all the shutters.  They’re 18 


going into our shop at Gramercy to be repaired this winter.  19 


Also, they had to come down so that we could paint behind them, 20 


and it was easier to do it now, to take them down, then to 21 


leave them up.   22 


  This whole space right here, this is a before 23 


picture.  You can see the, the second floor and the top floor 24 


needing a lot of work up there.  That has been done.  We redid 25 
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the window there and, and the roof so this had to be taken, 1 


all, all of these columns in the window were rotten.  So, we 2 


replaced them with mahogany and did a top-notch job according 3 


to national standards on this window. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  This is the groom’s room -- 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  This is the after, the before and 7 


after? 8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  -- (inaudible) all of the paneling is 9 


removed, after all of the nasty furniture is removed, after the 10 


walls have then again been redone and then painted, nice 11 


chandelier in the room, window repaired over here that was, 12 


well, it wasn’t in that bad of shape but it was, it all needed 13 


to be painted.   14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And -- 15 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And then the floor has all been redone 16 


too. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And this is what we’re, we did every 19 


roof in the whole property.  This will show you some of the 20 


damage in the roof.  So, this was not an easy job.  You can see 21 


the gutters hanging off here.  This is on a, it’s a sunporch 22 


addition and deck going out there.   23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  That looks like the corner of the 24 


gazebo out there on the lefthand side, just to kind of give you 25 
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a sense of where this is, is that right?  Am I -- 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes, that would be approximately -- 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  -- where it would be. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And? 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And this is just a, well, it was put 6 


in the wrong way but if you can peg it up, and you can see, 7 


this is in the porch.  I mean, that’s stuff we had to deal 8 


with.  That’s a hole, it’s not even just rotting wood. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and finally -- 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And here’s the gutter damage.  Every 11 


gutter had damage in the facie. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And this is the whole, this is the 14 


third-floor window.  That whole windowsill and the space below 15 


it was completely rotted.   16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 17 


  MS. POMYKALA:  And he’s measuring there to put a new 18 


wood in there for the windowsill. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And another crane? 20 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right, another crane picture was, you 21 


know, more or less done on that particular area.   22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Those would be exhibits, 23 


collectively, Mr. Evans, 8-A through 8-M, as the witness has 24 


described.  And I would offer them.  They were not offered 25 
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below. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  No objection. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and while you’re doing that, Ms.-- 3 


  CHAIR: (inaudible). 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- and, and I know with these remote 5 


hearings, Mr. McCann isn’t in the same room.  So, I attached, 6 


as Exhibit 9, this is just a chart that Ms. Pomykala was 7 


looking at before, Mr. Evans, when she was referring to some of 8 


the ownership history.  And it’s just kind of a general over, 9 


kind of a flow chart, of some of the things that she was 10 


talking about.  And when I said before she was looking at this 11 


instead of having it all committed to memory, this just kind of 12 


gives you a history of the property going back to 1857. 13 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  As it indicates, the mansion was built 15 


between ’57 and ’61. 16 


  CHAIR:  Okay, great. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and I just thought, to be fair to 18 


Mr. McCann, since she was referring to that and we’re not all 19 


in the same room, he would see what she was looking at.   20 


  CHAIR:  That’s fine. 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  But it’s just a, so I would 22 


offer that as well as exhibit number nine.   23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I don’t think it comes in because 24 


she was referring to it.  I think there’s a question here, Mr. 25 
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Evans, of whether or not this, in fact, should, should come in 1 


at all as a reflection of the, the ownership history of this 2 


property.  I don’t think, she’s obviously a bright woman, I 3 


don’t think she’s qualified to, to put something like this 4 


together.  But I’d have to look at it.  You know, generally I 5 


don’t have a problem with it.  I’m sure it’s, I don’t know if 6 


it's accurate.  So, I, I would need to look at it, Mr. Evans, 7 


and I can do that -- 8 


  CHAIR:  Well, well, your, your point is well taken.  9 


It’s certainly correct in terms of the rules of evidence.  But 10 


let, let’s reserve on it because actually it’s, it’s useful 11 


background. I mean, -- 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I -- 13 


  CHAIR:  -- it doesn’t stand for, I, I don’t think it 14 


matters in terms of the zoning issues.  I, I don’t think.  I 15 


don’t think it’s centrally relevant to that.  But it is useful 16 


background just to provide the historical context. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, Mr. Evans (inaudible). 18 


(EVERYONE SPEAKING AT THE SAME TIME) 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- again, it doesn’t relate to the 20 


special exception, which is the caretaker’s quarters.  As Ms. 21 


Pomykala has indicated, I think she put this together generally 22 


as she was doing the research for the National Registry 23 


nomination, which she’s discussed.  She is not a lawyer.  I’m 24 


not offering her as an expert witness.  It is, as you say, 25 
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strictly for background purposes.  I thought it might be 1 


helpful to (inaudible) some of her testimony. 2 


  CHAIR:  Right.  So, Mr. McCann, you take a look at it 3 


and we’ll, we’ll, we’ll, we’ll, we’ll admit it for i.d. only at 4 


this point.  You look at it.  If you want to object to it, then 5 


we’ll deal with the objection. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Great and I don’t want to belabor this, 7 


I just want to make sure that my point is clear.  Listen, I 8 


have no problem with the (inaudible) -- 9 


  CHAIR:  No problem, no problem.  (inaudible). 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  I think what you’ll find, Mr. Evans, as 11 


we move along, that the timeline, including the timeline of 12 


ownership is very important in this case.  It may not be 13 


important to the special exception, but it’s important.  So, 14 


that’s why, that’s why -- 15 


  CHAIR:  Okay, okay. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. I don’t have any further 17 


questions of Ms. Pomykala.   18 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  So, Mr. McCann, or Board, if they have 20 


any questions.   21 


  CHAIR:  Mr. McCann? 22 


  MR. MCCANN:  Great, thank you.  Good morning, ma’am.  23 


Can you hear me?   24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Good morning, yes. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I’ll try to speak up. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Keep your voice up, Anne, if you can.   2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Really, I don’t have many questions.  3 


But I did want to talk about first, and perhaps foremost, the 4 


caretaker that you propose hiring.  As I understand it, from 5 


your testimony this morning and from your testimony last time, 6 


that this caretaker will only take care of sort of the smaller 7 


maintenance items, the odds and ends, things that a handyman 8 


might take care of, is, is that fair? 9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That, that is fair, but he’s there at 10 


night as a security person in case there are, he needs to call 11 


for more help, fire, water damage, entry by people that want to 12 


steal things from the mansion.  He’s there as a security person 13 


at night. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But back to my point.  The, the, 15 


the major work, some of which you’ve actually shown us this 16 


morning-- 17 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I have a -- 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Hold on. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT: (inaudible) ask a question. 20 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Okay. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Other than small handyman type jobs, the 22 


more, more substantial maintenance and repair work will still 23 


need to be done by outside contractors that come in, correct? 24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Almost.  But, but I have a tremendous 25 
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staff.  I have people that are, know every phase of building.  1 


I’ve put an addition on Gramercy as a general contractor, 2 


downtown at the 1840s.  I rehabbed all of the City Light 3 


properties as general contractor.   4 


  I did hire the people I needed to hire.  I have lots 5 


of good subcontractors.  In fact, we’re all reaching an age 6 


now, and turning our businesses over to our children and we 7 


sympathize and we, you know, talk about that.  But it’s, that’s 8 


beside the point.   9 


  The thing is, I, I do know what I’m doing out there.  10 


And my staff knows.  So, we’ve used Gramercy labor over there 11 


to do a lot of repairs, certainly any aspects of carpentry we 12 


can do.  They are tremendous painters and restorers.  They know 13 


the national standards.   14 


  They, so a lot of this work has also been funded by 15 


Gramercy, because I send my guys over, we keep tabulation of 16 


how much Grey Rock owes Gramercy for labor.  And my daughter 17 


(inaudible) and says Mom, won’t you pay your bills?  So, I’m 18 


still, I want to get this place in shape.   19 


  It’s, it’s a disaster what has happened to it over 20 


the years.  And it’s such an important building.  It’s one of 21 


the most important buildings in Maryland, if not the nation.  22 


Because it shows the Jewish history that is tremendous there.   23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, just as an example, you 24 


mentioned the landscaping, we saw some beautiful landscaping on 25 







63 
 


the property.  That’s something that’s going to continue to be 1 


need, to be undertaken, for the most part, by folks that come 2 


in, but -- 3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, the trees get cut down by people 4 


that are qualified to do it.  I do not let my people do it.  5 


But as far as landscaping goes, I am the one that, you know, 6 


says this gets done, this gets done, that gets done.  And I’ll 7 


plant these bulbs here.  I do have some very good people 8 


working for me that I have started to let them go out on their 9 


own.  But I’m in the stage of training them to take over the 10 


landscaping when I’m no longer able to do it.   11 


  MR. MCCANN:  All right. 12 


  MS. POMYKALA:  But we will continue making new 13 


gardens.  There’s that hole spot in the back there that has 14 


nothing in it but trash. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Well, I’m just trying to 16 


distinguish, not the, not the nature of the work, but, but 17 


rather who’s doing it and who will do it.  I think as I’ve 18 


heard you, you have, it sounds like you have some wonderful 19 


staff currently that will take care of some of the things that 20 


you described, including the landscaping.   21 


  And you, and you, it sounds like you intend to have 22 


your staff, as opposed to the handyman, the caretaker, to 23 


continue to do that kind of stuff, correct? 24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Um hm.  But the caretaker also, after 2 


a wedding, there’s, people leave trash, unfortunately, we call 3 


them people flowers, but they’re not flowers and that person 4 


would be going around there collecting in the parking lot some 5 


beer cans that may have been thrown out, you know, just, we 6 


want to keep that property immaculate and clean.  And that, so 7 


that would benefit the, the people in the community too by 8 


having trash in our areas picked up. 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  Right.  But the, the type of thing you 10 


just described, that is, the clean up after events, you, you 11 


already have staff.  I mean, on site for that type of thing 12 


already, correct, during events?  That isn’t -- 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Well, I have staff that are there, but 14 


they’re not going to go out at 11:30 at night and pick up the 15 


trash in the parking lot.  So, that’s left for another day when 16 


we have to send people in.  It’d be much less expensive to have 17 


an onsite person doing that. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  You mentioned security.  Am I 19 


correct, and I think you, and/or your son, acknowledged last 20 


time that you, during the time of your ownership, that is, from 21 


roughly, I think you said March 2019 to the present, present, 22 


you have had no incidents of vandalism or breaking in or 23 


anything like that, is that fair? 24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, we have not.  We have -- 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  You have an alarm, you have an alarm 1 


system, I take it, ma’am?   2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Do you have an alarm system?   3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  We have an alarm system.   4 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, fire, security, that’s all covered 5 


by the alarm system? 6 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That is covered by the alarm system, 7 


but I could break in, so somebody else could figure it out too. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Well, -- 9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It’s a leftover alarm system and I’m 10 


not quite sure, and if somebody makes a mistake in how they put 11 


it on at night, you know, there’s human error there too.   12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and then I think I asked you and 13 


your son about this last time, you agree with me that a spouse 14 


of the caretaker, he or she, is not necessary to the caretaker 15 


job.  It’s just something that you would like to -- 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It gives me, I’m sorry, go ahead.   17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Let him finish. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, let me, let me start over.  Just 19 


if you can, let me finish, that way I keep my train of thought 20 


as well.  As I understand it, you need one caretaker, but what 21 


you’re asking for, it is, well, put it this way, it’s not 22 


necessary to the job of caretaking to have a spouse or 23 


significant other living there with the caretaker.   24 


  As I understand it, you just want that, that, the 25 
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ability when you’re looking for somebody, trying to find 1 


somebody who happens to have a spouse or significant other, is 2 


that fair? 3 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That’s fair.  It makes it an easier 4 


choice for me.  I will get a better person if they’re allowed 5 


to have a spouse or significant other. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I understand.  How, how many 7 


square foot, square feet is the mansion building, ma’am?  Do 8 


you know? 9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It’s close to ten thousand.  I’ve had 10 


different estimates, depending on whether you’re including the 11 


basement or whatnot.  So, I, myself, even get confused about 12 


it.  So, but it’s close to ten thousand, more or less.  And I 13 


think that’s without the basement. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Does that include the tent structure? 15 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, the tent structure is not part of 16 


the house. 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  You talked about the lawn area, 18 


and we saw some photographs and I think they were Exhibits 3 19 


and 8.  The lawn area in front of the mansion building.  Thank 20 


you, Larry, I was going to pull that up as well.  In fact, I 21 


think I may pull up my own copy so I can -- 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Oh, okay.   23 


  MR. MCCANN:  If I share but thank you.   24 


  CHAIR:  You, you want the token?   25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  I think I have it already, Mr. Evans. 1 


  CHAIR:  No, I don’t think so.   2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Oh, no?  That’s, okay.  Great, thank 3 


you.   4 


  CHAIR:  Um hm. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Ma’am, do you see this, what I 6 


have on my screen? 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Can you see that okay, Anne?   8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Let me try (inaudible). 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  This is, for the record, this is the, 11 


what, what was Petitioner’s Exhibit 1.  I’m not sure if it’s 12 


the same number or not, but.  13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  It’s the same, Mr. McCann, just so 14 


everybody is clear, it’s the same one and it’s still marked as 15 


exhibit number one.   16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  So, real quick on the lawn 17 


area, I don’t want to belabor this either.  But, so this area 18 


where we see the circle there, I think everybody has recognized 19 


that.  And the, the lawn that is in and surrounds it.  That, as 20 


you, I think you’ve acknowledged, is owned by one or more of my 21 


clients, correct? 22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Wait, I don’t understand the question.   23 


  MR. MCCANN:  This, this lawn area, including the 24 


circle. 25 
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  MS. POMYKALA:  The lawn area in the center, the 1 


grassy part. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Right, and, and the, and the road 3 


itself, that is the circle, -- 4 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Except for the part right in front of 5 


the mansion. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, yeah, let me, let me, understood.  7 


Let me rephrase it.  There’s a property line here shown in dark 8 


on this photograph, on this plan rather.  Do you see that?   9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and at least according to this 11 


plan, everything below that line, including the lawn area and 12 


the circle is all owned by my, by one or more of my clients, 13 


correct? 14 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, we own the top part of that area 15 


in front of the mansion, of the road. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Above this black line, in other 17 


words, this portion right here you’re speaking to, correct? 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  But the, the road, nevertheless, 20 


although my clients own the circle and the lawn, that’s used by 21 


you in conjunction with the events -- 22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, we do not use that at all.   23 


  MR. MCCANN:  You do not use the lawn area at all?   24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  You do not use the circle at all in 1 


connection with your events?   2 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That’s the same thing you’re talking 3 


about, the circle area. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Do, do you mean for access, or do you 6 


mean for the events? 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  For any, for any use. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Oh, I’m sorry.   9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  We use the road for use to get over to 10 


the mansion.   11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Do you use the circle and the lawn area 12 


for anything other than that? 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, we do not use the lawn area one 14 


time, unless somebody like Cal Ripken comes over and asks the 15 


community association.  They have to deal with the community 16 


association and see what they rent it out for if they want to 17 


use it.   18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  The, the tent structure, let’s 19 


talk about that real quick.  You call it a tent but the, the 20 


tent structure, I think, as you’ve also acknowledged, is, is 21 


permanent in nature, correct?  It’s been there?   22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It’s been there. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, when I say perm, when I say 24 


permanent, number one, I think you’ve acknowledged that it’s 25 
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attached to the building somehow? 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and it has HVAC, it has heating and 3 


air conditioning, correct?  Ma’am? 4 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It had that when we bought the 5 


property. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  All right.  I’m asking you whether it 7 


has it currently.  Does it have it currently? 8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes, it has it currently.  It’s -- 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 10 


  MS. POMYKALA:  -- we’ve had it currently. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and then in terms of electrical, it 12 


has lighting inside of it? 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes, correct. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and it, obviously there’s, there’s 15 


power, electrical power to the tent structure, correct? 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes. 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  And there’s, there’s actually doors with 18 


doorknobs to the tent structure, rather than sort of a tent 19 


flap, right? 20 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct.  There are three doors.  And 21 


the tent can be opened to let fresh air in.   22 


  MR. MCCANN:  Gotcha. 23 


  CHAIR:  Is the, is the roof canvas or is it solid? 24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Is the road what? 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Is the roof canvas? 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The roof is canvas. 2 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  But it’s a sturdy tent structure, it’s 4 


not, I’m sure you’re, and you’re in that business, ma’am, tent 5 


structures can be, can be sturdy.  It is a sturdy tent 6 


structure. 7 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The wind hasn’t blown it down yet. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  And let me just show 9 


you, if I can, I have some photographs real quick.  And this 10 


would be, Mr. Evans and Mr. Lauer, or I’m not sure if Mr. 11 


Pennington, who’s handling the exhibits.  But we’ve pre-marked 12 


seventeen exhibits.  I guess it makes sense to make this 13 


eighteen.  So, let me share this with you.   14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Do you see that, ma’am? 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I’ll try to enlarge that so -- 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes.  Okay, there’s a lot of white in 17 


it, but yes, I can see that. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, it’s not the best photograph, at 19 


least as, as copied.  But this is the interior of the tent 20 


structure, correct? 21 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Correct. 22 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and this is taken, looks to be, 23 


from your website? 24 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I’m not sure.  I would not put that on 25 
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my website, but. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 2 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Could be that one of my subs did that, 3 


but that, that is not what I can remember being on the website. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Okay. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  And that’s the first picture, the second 7 


picture in this Exhibit 18.  Is this also the interior of the 8 


tent structure? 9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and then, the third photograph is a 11 


picture of, we’ve seen the gazebo in other photographs.  This 12 


is a picture of the exterior area of the -- 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Right, that’s a wedding in progress. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and that’s sort of, I guess, to the 15 


east or just northeast of the tent structure, correct? 16 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It is directly in back of the tent 17 


structure. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and this is -- 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That walkway that you see goes from 20 


the tent out to that gazebo. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 22 


  CHAIR:  What’s the tent floor made of? 23 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It’s made of the original patio that 24 


was out there. 25 
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  CHAIR:  So, it’s stone or -- 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Yes, it’s stone, it’s stone. 2 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I’d move eighteen into evidence 4 


before I forget, Mr. Evans. 5 


  CHAIR:  It’s what, A, B and C? 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Correct.   7 


  CHAIR:  Okay, they’re admitted.   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I don’t have any objection.  I guess, 10 


Mr. McCann, just for background, are these, where did you get 11 


these?  Did somebody take these or -- 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  These are all from the, from the 13 


website. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.   15 


  MR. MCCANN:  I just pulled them yester, a couple days 16 


ago (inaudible).  Actually, I pulled them yesterday. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Also, you mentioned, we talked 19 


about Mr. Clowney a couple times.  Mr. Clowney was the, was 20 


the, the owner of the company from whom you purchased the 21 


property, correct? 22 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That is correct. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  And you mentioned something about him 24 


having an office on the second or third floor.  Did he, after, 25 
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after he sold the property to you, -- 1 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Well, okay, -- 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  -- did he continue to maintain an office 3 


at the -- 4 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I think, I think I said before that 5 


Bill could not pay what he owed to Rob Scarda, who is going to 6 


testify next.  And that the property, after a number of years, 7 


Rob put it up for foreclosure.  And then foreclosure came, 8 


Courts approved it, three, three months later and then we 9 


became the owners.   10 


  So, passing from one owner to the other, passed from 11 


Bill Clowney to us.  But all the proceeds from the sale went to 12 


Rob.  So, that’s how we got it.  And during that time that he 13 


was still the owner, he had the second-floor offices that are 14 


now our offices.   15 


  When he then became employed by us or, or rented from 16 


us, not employed by us, but rented from us, the catering space, 17 


he went up to the third floor where he had a large office and 18 


then a private office. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  That’s what I thought you said, 20 


at least so, when Mr. Clowney rented the office space from you, 21 


that, he was, that, that office was for the purpose of, not for 22 


the purpose of Grey Rock Mansion’s business, but rather for 23 


some other business that he continued to maintain, a catering 24 


business? 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Just, objection.  I’m not sure what the 1 


relevance is since he’s not there any longer.  I mean, it 2 


almost sounds like a violation case question.  We’re not here 3 


on a, whether there’s an illegal office there.  I mean, the 4 


owner has an office today, so.  I guess I’m just asking what 5 


the relevance is, Mr. Evans. 6 


  CHAIR:  Well, what’s the relevance, Mr. McCann? 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, we’re dealing with non-conforming 8 


uses, that’s an important part of this case.  And the extent to 9 


which this was used for something other than what it should be 10 


used, you know, beyond the, the relevant time, I think is, is 11 


important, either -- 12 


  CHAIR:  Have, have you finished asking questions 13 


about it? 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, this would be just, what I want to 15 


know as a factual matter, whether Mr. Clowney’s work, as I 16 


said, was in the, in the mansion was for another company or not 17 


or whether, the fact that it’s rented suggests that it is.  But 18 


I wanted to confirm that and move on after that, Mr. Evans, if 19 


that’s your question. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I think the witness has testified that 21 


Mr. Clowney was the guy who operated the catering business that 22 


occurred before.  So, he had an office there for his catering.  23 


I think that’s what Ms. Pomykala said.   24 


  I don’t know how that’s inconsistent with it being a 25 
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non-conforming use for, I mean, the mansion itself is not non-1 


conforming, it’s permitted.  What’s non-conforming is the lawn 2 


area and the parking lot.  So, what he did in the mansion, I, 3 


I’m not sure how that bears on -- 4 


  CHAIR:  Well, I’m not sure either.  But is he still 5 


there? 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  No.  He, he was the, if I can, Mr. 7 


Evans, I think the witness has testified, he was the caterer, 8 


essentially, he was one of the caterers who Ms. Pomykala in, 9 


going back, our position is this has been a catering facility.   10 


  Again, the catering is permitted in the mansion 11 


because the zoning is BR and that allows it.  The, the 12 


testimony that you’ll hear was that the lawn and the parking 13 


has always been used as part of the catering business to, and 14 


that predates 2000 when the zoning changed in those areas to 15 


DR-3.5.   16 


  I’m not trying to get ahead of myself, but it’s kind 17 


of complicated because when they change the zoning, for 18 


whatever reason, they changed, they drew a box around, as it 19 


shows on the site plan, they drew a box around the, the 20 


building and changed the zoning outside that box, which 21 


included part of the lawn and part of the parking.  I don’t 22 


know why they did it that way, but that’s why we find ourselves 23 


in the situation we find ourselves in.   24 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  None of which changes my purpose of my 1 


question, Mr. Evans.   2 


  CHAIR:  Ask your question, let, let, let, this, this 3 


seems like -- 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Much to do about nothing. 5 


  CHAIR:  -- much to do about nothing.  Ask your 6 


question and let’s move on. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Sorry.   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Ma’am, when Mr. Clowney was renting from 9 


you after you purchased the property, was he renting for the 10 


purpose of operating some business other than your business, 11 


some separate business? 12 


  MS. POMYKALA:  The same thing he was doing before, 13 


which was Simply Elegant Catering. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, he was operating Elegant Catering 15 


out of your building? 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Simply Elegant is the name, the name of 17 


it. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Simply Elegant, is that correct? 19 


  MS. POMYKALA:  That is correct. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  Bear with me, I think 21 


that’s all I have.   22 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Any re-direct, Mr. Schmidt?   23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  No, I don’t.  Any questions of the 24 


Board, I guess? 25 
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  CHAIR:  None from me.   1 


  MR. MCCANN:  I, I have one more question actually. 2 


  CHAIR:  Okay, Mr. McCann. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  As I, as I was looking through my notes.  4 


Ma’am, you, you’ve described, and we’ve seen photographs that 5 


the landscaping that you’ve done on sort of the eastern portion 6 


of the property, to the right of the mansion as you’re looking 7 


at it, that was done, was, was, it sounds like it was a lot of 8 


landscaping? 9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, it wasn’t, because we just wanted 10 


to get some beautiful flowers in.  I have gobs of them at 11 


Gramercy, I can bring them on over.  So, we’ve started, you 12 


know, as we take care of the lawn, fertilize it, get it nice 13 


and green.   14 


  We’ve also been trimming all the bushes.  There’s a 15 


lot of bushes that have never been trimmed forever.  So, that 16 


was part of it also.  That will improve.  I’m, I’m a gardener.  17 


I love beautiful gardens and I’ve traveled all over the world 18 


seeing them.  So, all the gardens at Gramercy have been 19 


designed by me and I intend to make this a true garden space 20 


there. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, thank you, ma’am.  No other 22 


questions.   23 


  CHAIR:  Mr. Lauer or Mr. Pennington, any questions? 24 


  MR. LAUER:  I have a couple of quick questions if we 25 
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might, please.  First of all, are you using the third floor now 1 


for offices, is that correct? 2 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, it’s not being used.  It needs to 3 


be restored anyway. 4 


  MR. LAUER:  Okay.  Second, do you have any knowledge 5 


of a caretaker or person living in the mansion at any time? 6 


  MS. POMYKALA:  I have no personal knowledge of that, 7 


that’s before my time.   8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Lauer, just, not to interrupt you 9 


but I have another witness who will testify about that. 10 


  MR. LAUER:  Thank you.  Third thing, if there is a 11 


caretaker there, do you think that that will have a negative 12 


impact on the community in any way? 13 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Well, I sure would hope not because I 14 


hate to see a burnt down mansion sitting there in the middle of 15 


their community.  I hate to see a, I, somebody taking over that 16 


mansion because I can’t, if you all get your way, that I, that 17 


I don’t have the funds to restore it.  It would not make 18 


financial sense for me to keep it.   19 


  So, what happens to that mansion?  It just 20 


deteriorates more and (inaudible) you have a shell, you have 21 


the reputation of destroying something very significant to the 22 


country.  No, I wouldn’t, I, I will, that, that, that caretaker 23 


will be a tremendous asset to the community.  That, that person 24 


will make sure that my, that, that mansion that I’m restoring 25 
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stays that way.   1 


  MR. LAUER:  Ma’am, I’m sure, ma’am, that that person 2 


will be a positive for the mansion.  What about the community 3 


surrounding it?  Do you see any way that -- 4 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Well, (inaudible) -- 5 


  MR. LAUER:  Excuse me.  Do you see any negative 6 


impact upon the community by having a caretaker live on the 7 


property? 8 


  MS. POMYKALA:  How could it possibly be negative?   9 


  MR. LAUER:  Well, I, I’m asking you the -- 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  He’s, he’s asking you the question, so 11 


you have to say yes or no.   12 


  MS. POMYKALA:  It would not have a negative effect on 13 


the community in any way that I could understand.   14 


  MR. LAUER:  Thank you, ma’am.   15 


  CHAIR:  Ma’am, I’m, just to round out Mr. Lauer’s 16 


question.  Is there any negative impact that occurs to you by 17 


the caretaker having a partner there? 18 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Having a partner there? 19 


  CHAIR:  Yeah. 20 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Keep my caretaker happy to have a 21 


significant other there. 22 


  CHAIR:  Is there any, but is there any, can you, you 23 


know, can you think of any negative impact on the community, 24 


the out, outside community by that person having a -- 25 
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  MS. POMYKALA:  One more person using the driveway to 1 


go wherever that person works or she could be working for me.  2 


Indeed, I never know what is going to show up at the front 3 


door. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  But you have to answer the question.   5 


  MS. POMYKALA:  Okay. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yes or no. 7 


  CHAIR:  The answer I think is no, there, there’s no 8 


negative impact that occurs to you, is that correct? 9 


  MS. POMYKALA:  No, there’s no. 10 


  CHAIR:  Okay, thank you.  Mr. Pennington? 11 


  MR. PENNINGTON:  I don’t have any questions.   12 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Mr. Schmidt, any other questions? 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  No, sir.  Thank you. 14 


  CHAIR:  Okay and Mr. McCann, you’re done as well? 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yes, thank you, Mr. Evans. 16 


  CHAIR:  Okay, great.  Okay.  Ma’am, you’re excused.  17 


Thank you.  And we’ll move onto the next witness.   18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yes, sir.  I’m going to have my witness 19 


change seats so you can see him.  We found that if we do this 20 


in my conference room, nobody can hear because of the distance 21 


between the screen on the wall, so.  It’s a little crowded in 22 


my office, but you can hear and see people better.  I just have 23 


to move them around.  Okay.  Mr. Lauer, this is Robert Skudrna.  24 


You want to swear, I think you’re swearing the witnesses?   25 
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  MR. LAUER:  I am.  Thank you, Mr. Schmidt.  Sir, 1 


raise your right hand.  Do you swear and affirm under the 2 


penalty of perjury, that the testimony you are about to give is 3 


true and correct to the best of your knowledge and belief? 4 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, I do. 5 


  MR. LAUER:  And please give us your name, spell your 6 


last name and give us your address for the record. 7 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Robert Joseph Skudrna, S-K-U-D-R-N-A. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And an address. 9 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Address, residence 36125 Huntington 10 


Street, Millville, Delaware 19967.  My current office is still 11 


located in Baltimore County, The Bridge Team of Long & Foster, 12 


46 Main Street, Reisterstown, Maryland 21136.   13 


  MR. LAUER:  Thank you, sir.  I think that’s adequate.  14 


Thank you. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Mr. Skudrna, your name has been 16 


referenced, but let me take you back.  What is your, are you 17 


familiar with the Grace, Grace, Grey Rock Mansion property? 18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Very much so. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And take us back, what’s your first 20 


memory or experience with Grey Rock?  Let’s start at the 21 


beginning. 22 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  My very first memory of Grey Rock was 23 


when I was an altar boy at Sacred Heart of Glyndon.  24 


Trinitarian Brothers owned the property.  They had summer camps 25 
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and retreats for altar boys and for teens or preteens.  I 1 


attended a few summer camp retreats at Grey Rock, dating back 2 


around 1969, 1970.  They were daytime camps, they were not 3 


overnight camps.   4 


  Back then, as a camper/altar boy we utilized the tent 5 


area for lunch and meetings.  If it were really bad weather 6 


out, we would go into the mansion proper.  The Trinitarians 7 


back then had two outbuildings on what would be the north, 8 


behind the building. 9 


  One was an old barn that they had converted into a 10 


miniature golf course, and we would play miniature golf in the 11 


barn.  And there was also a residence, colonial, I believe it 12 


was three bedroom, two bath colonial.  The, that particular 13 


outbuilding and the barn were razed, I guess, in the late 14 


1990s.   15 


  But my first recollection was when the Trinitarians 16 


were there.  At the time it was Brother John, who had just 17 


gotten back from Vietnam, who at the time was a good friend of 18 


mine or mentor.  He wound up going from the brotherhood to the 19 


priesthood.  He was a priest at Sacred Heart of Glyndon for 20 


several years before he relocated out to Illinois.   21 


  Brother John, at that time, lived in Grey Rock 22 


Mansion proper, along with a few of the other brothers.  They 23 


had their personal residence in the second floor, of which we 24 


were not allowed to go up onto the second floor unless we were 25 
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accompanied by several people.  But those are my first 1 


recollections of the mansion.  2 


  After that, I attended Towson University from 1977 to 3 


1980.  At that time, I was employed part-time by Captain 4 


Harvey’s Restaurant in Owings Mills, and I was involved with 5 


Captain Harvey’s when they catered some events at the mansion 6 


during those years.   7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  So, there was catering that was going 8 


on at the mansion as early as? 9 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  To the best of my recollection, like 10 


Anne, although I’m not quite the historian Anne is, when I did 11 


ultimately wind up purchasing the mansion, I went to the 12 


Maryland Historical Society to do some background research.  13 


Lenny and Gail Kaplan, whose families back then owned the 14 


Pimlico Hotel, they catered at the mansion for the Epstein 15 


family, as well as for others dating back to the 1940s and 16 


‘50s.   17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and did the Trinitarians, to the 18 


best of your knowledge, ever have any catered events there when 19 


they owned the property from the ‘60s through the ‘90s? 20 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, for both themselves, as well as 21 


they did allow outside events to come in, although nowhere near 22 


the level that started, I guess, in the early 1980s with Valley 23 


Catering. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, let me -- 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  I’m sorry to interrupt.  I’m going to 1 


object right there.  I, I think we need, Mr. Evans, to be 2 


careful about what this gentleman is testifying about, based on 3 


his personal knowledge versus his research.  And, and with, my 4 


objection is with respect to the last question, which was 5 


whether the Trinitarians were conducting catering activities 6 


between the 1960s and the 1990s.   7 


  He very well may have been there during that time, 8 


but he had just spoken about research that he did.  And I think 9 


it makes a difference, certainly for purposes of, -- 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Well, the research that I would say, 11 


the research dates back to -- 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Hold on, hold on. 13 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Oh, I’m sorry, go ahead.   14 


  MR. MCCANN:  And all I’m asking maybe is, as an 15 


objection to the question, and the lack of foundation, maybe 16 


that’s the objection, Mr. Evans, is that this gentleman should 17 


be asked about what he knows and how he knows it.   18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Evans, can I be heard in response?  19 


I mean, he’s testified he’s been familiar with the property, he 20 


was there, he’s got an experience.  I mean, this is all fine 21 


for cross examination if Mr. McCann wants to cross examine him.   22 


  But, I mean, the witness has testified this is based 23 


on his knowledge.  And I would also say that in an 24 


administrative hearing, hearsay is admissible.  So, he can 25 
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explore that on cross, but the witness said he’s been familiar, 1 


and he was at the property as far back as the 1960s, so.  I, 2 


I’ll ask him.  How do you know about what the Trinitarians were 3 


doing, Mr. Skudrna? 4 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I was there.  I was, I, I, I attended 5 


camps there, I attended catered functions there.  I worked 6 


there for an employer who catered events there. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And who was that employer? 8 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Captain Harvey’s. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And when was that?  What was the 10 


timeframe? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Nineteen seventy-seven to 1979. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay. 13 


  CHAIR:  Tell me again when you were there as a, an 14 


altar boy?  What, that was the late ‘60s? 15 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Nineteen sixty-nine to 1971.   16 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  You would have been in high school at 18 


the time, Mr. Skudrna? 19 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I would have been between twelve and 20 


fifteen years old, junior high school, they used to call it 21 


back then, I guess. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 23 


  CHAIR:  Okay, thank you. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Skudrna, did, I think you’ve 25 







87 
 


described the Trinitarians use.  Did there come a time that you 1 


acquired an ownership interest in the property? 2 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And if you could tell the Board, when 4 


was that and from who’d you acquired the property and sort of 5 


what the circumstances were relating to your ownership, either 6 


yours solely or with others, whatever those circumstances were. 7 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Sure.  I founded Simply Elegant 8 


Catering, Inc. in Baltimore County, State of Maryland, in 1986.  9 


We started in Owings Mills on Cromridge, Cromridge Drive.  We 10 


were strictly off premise caterers, which meant we went to 11 


different venues similar to a Grey Rock or the World Trade 12 


Center or Westminster Hall, or Gramercy Mansion, facilities 13 


like that.   14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And this was in 1986 that you 15 


established this business? 16 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And the name of the business was? 18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Simply Elegant Catering. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I know it was 1986. 20 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Um hm. 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  All right.  If you could maybe bring us 22 


forward and, and tell us how that related to Grey Rock.  Did 23 


you, did Simply Elegant cater at Grey Rock during those years? 24 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No, at that time, Valley Catering was 25 
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the exclusive caterer at Grey Rock Mansion. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And if you know, who owned Valley 2 


Catering? 3 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Valley Catering was owned by Mrs. 4 


Barbara Flecker. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  If you could just, I think, 6 


maybe take us forward then from ’86 to when you established the 7 


company. 8 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Sure.  I had met with Barbara Flecker 9 


many times over the years to express our interest in taking 10 


over Grey Rock Mansion if and when she was ever ready to 11 


retire, sell, get away, what have you.  And the first several 12 


meetings were cordial, but Barbara was not ready to let go.   13 


  So, Valley Catering worked there when the Trinitarian 14 


Brothers owned the property.  They also worked there after the 15 


Trinitarian Brothers sold the property to the operating 16 


engineers of Maryland. 17 


  CHAIR:  So, was Valley Catering actually onsite at 18 


Grey Rock when the Trinitarians were there? 19 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, sir. 20 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 21 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  They had two locations.  They had, they 22 


operated an in-house facility at the mansion. 23 


  CHAIR:  Um hm. 24 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  And they also operated a commissary on 25 
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Main Street in Reisterstown.   1 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 2 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  So, I had approached Barbara several 3 


times.  She never expressed interest in selling.  She was 4 


pleased with her business.  And then out of the blue, in 1995, 5 


we got a phone call from Barbara that she was struggling.   6 


  She was having trouble keeping up with her bills, 7 


revenues were down, and she needed some help, either a merger, 8 


a buyout or, or something because she was about six months in 9 


arrears in her rent, with the operating engineers, they were 10 


going to boot her out and how could we work something out.   11 


  So, I looked at her lease that she had with the 12 


operating engineers.  It was a terrible lease.  Back then, in 13 


the 1990s, she was paying $15,000 a month in rent, plus a 14 


percentage of her gross.  We were interested in taking over, 15 


purchasing the business assets from her.   16 


  But before we did that, I wanted to meet with a few, 17 


I wanted to meet with the landlord, first of all, the Operating 18 


Engineers of Maryland, as well as representatives from Grey 19 


Rock Flats, Grey Rock Villas and Grey Rock Maintenance to make 20 


sure that it was a good situation that we would be getting 21 


involved with and not a hornet’s nest.   22 


  I also met with some County people back at the time, 23 


from Dutch Ruppersberger, who was very involved and 24 


knowledgeable, to Jim Smith, who was a Judge at the time, that 25 
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was before he was County Executive.  I got a lot of great 1 


insight from all of them.   2 


  And my partner and I decided to move forward.  We 3 


renegotiated the lease with the operating engineers, with the 4 


intentions if everything went well, to purchase the real estate 5 


within a couple of years.   6 


  That was in 1996.  We took over the business from 7 


Barbara Flecker.  We employed her for one year as a general 8 


manager.  After that year, she decided to leave, and she 9 


relocated to Texas.  I don’t, I believe Barbara is deceased at 10 


this time.  I know when she left Maryland, she moved to Texas. 11 


She actually had a TV show on one of the networks down there 12 


for a brief period of time about catering and things.  But I 13 


believe she took ill, and I believe she is deceased.   14 


  We did exercise our rights with the operating 15 


engineers and purchased the property from them, with the help 16 


of the Small Business Administration, in 1998.  We borrowed 17 


$1.1 million, which was a lot of money for two young guys back 18 


then.   19 


  A million to purchase the mansion from the operating 20 


engineers and $100,000 to improve the property, install the 21 


parking lot, the main parking lot, have a landscape architect 22 


replace the gazebo that was falling down, replace the temporary 23 


tent with a permanent structure.   24 


  To answer a question from earlier that we had an 25 
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engineer confirm that that structure would sustain winds of up 1 


to a hundred and forty miles an hour.  But we purchased the 2 


property in 1998.  And I operated that property from 1998 3 


running Simply Elegant Catering at Grey Rock Mansion out of 4 


that property from 1998 to roughly the early 2000s, when we 5 


sold the business of Simply Elegant Catering to Bill Clowney, 6 


who was referred to earlier.   7 


  We maintained the real estate for, I think, about 8 


five years, until we could pay off the full mortgage, satisfy 9 


the SBA and then somewhere around 2010, we continued to hold 10 


the note on the property.  But we, in turn, sold the building 11 


to Mr. Clowney.   12 


  So, at that time, I guess, we basically became the 13 


lender, although we weren’t involved with day in and day out 14 


operations.  We held the note, and I did stay employed by Mr. 15 


Clowney for about two years after I, we sold the real estate to 16 


him, operating as his, I guess, trying to keep a lot of the 17 


customers satisfied, mentor, semi-general manager.   18 


  When we purchased the property in 1996, we owned 3.5 19 


acres, is what we purchased.  At that time, it was all zoned 20 


BMBR.  Dutch told me that he was adamant that the mansion not 21 


be destroyed because the developer, Dormant Carter (phonetic), 22 


in the early phases, was hoping to eliminate the mansion.   23 


  Dutch told me back then, he was still the councilman, 24 


and he made it clear that he would allow the two hundred plus 25 
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or minus villas to be built, but that the mansion was not to be 1 


razed and set up some restrictive covenants with the Valley 2 


Planning Council because Valley Planning Council, I guess, has 3 


a reputation of being a good watchdog of property in Baltimore 4 


County, to make sure that things really get handled well.   5 


  When we purchased the property, we were a little 6 


disappointed because it was 3.5 acres BMBR and we had plans, 7 


there were actually plans agreed upon by the County and Valley 8 


Planning Council to build a three story office building behind 9 


the mansion that we would have a florist, a special events type 10 


of wedding coordinator, a rental company in there. 11 


  But unfortunately, in 2000, Kevin Kamenetz, at the 12 


time, was the County Councilman, decided that he wanted to see 13 


that back parcel of property downzoned, which we were really, 14 


we took a real financial hardship when that happened.  But we 15 


wound up selling off the back two acres plus or minus to a 16 


builder who built those ten or eleven residential properties 17 


that are back there.   18 


  And we maintained the one and a half acre, plus or 19 


minus, of the mansion itself, proper, the garden area, the main 20 


parking area, as well as the pool parking lot.  Which the pool 21 


parking lot, we owned, and we granted an easement to Grey Rock 22 


Flats, Grey Rock Villas, Grey Rock Maintenance to use that pool 23 


lot for their swimming pool.   24 


  We had originally proposed to sell them that lot.  We 25 
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were asking for $200,000 to sell that portion to them.  They 1 


didn’t have the money in the budget or decided it was not in 2 


their best interests.   3 


  But they had asked, as long as we always give them 4 


permanent access, ingress and egress, to the pool parking lot, 5 


they would always give us permanent ingress and egress to the 6 


mansion off of Route 140, so that we could have the back 7 


portion of the property sold off, subdivided and the 8 


residential properties be put on the back.   9 


  The tent structure is basically a permanent tent 10 


structure, as mentioned earlier.  It does have air 11 


conditioning, heating, electrical.  Again, it was very 12 


expensive.  We had a structural engineer design it. We bought 13 


it from a company out of Frederick, Maryland.  At the time, we 14 


paid like $65,000 for it.   15 


  It has been there ever since, I believe we signed the 16 


contract for that in 1998, and it was erected in spring of 17 


1999.  That same time, we had the original gazebo –- 18 


  CHAIR:  I, I thought it was there, I thought it was 19 


there when you went to camp there.   20 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  There was a tent there, but not this 21 


tent.   22 


  CHAIR:  Not this tent, okay.   23 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  It was replaced by you in ninety, ’98 25 
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is when you contracted for it, ’99 is when it was built? 1 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Is when it was completed. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  So, it’s the same tent that is there 3 


today? 4 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and so, the same tent has been 6 


there since you, you owned it, I’m sorry, since you acquired it 7 


in ’98, Mr. Skudrna? 8 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Correct. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And has remained, and has that, was 10 


that tent always used, or used when you bought it, for part of 11 


the catering operation.  You saw these, I don’t know if you saw 12 


the pictures of people dining in there -- 13 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, absolutely. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- tables, that’s how it’s always been 15 


used? 16 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Correct. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And has the area, has that lawn area 18 


where the gazebo is and the, and the tent is extending out into 19 


that lawn area, was that always part of the catering operation, 20 


that people would go out there and get married or in nice days, 21 


have a drink or whatever in that area? 22 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, correct. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  How about those parking areas as well? 24 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Parking area, again, when we took over 25 
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the property, it wasn’t even paved.  It was just crush run.  We 1 


did have the large, primary parking lot paved.  We also did, 2 


again, have our meetings with the Grey Rock community to make 3 


sure that the swimming pool lot would be a shared lot and that 4 


we would cooperate with them.   5 


  We really, it was originally intended that it was 6 


just for residents to use during pool hours.  But over time, we 7 


did allow them to have their snow removal equipment and 8 


landscape equipment and things like that stored there from time 9 


to time, just trying to be good neighbors and coordinate with 10 


them. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, Mr. Skudrna, at least since 12 


19, 1998 through the time the property was sold to Ms. Pomykala 13 


and her group in 2019, you were, were you familiar with the 14 


property as either owner or operator or (inaudible), whatever 15 


the capacity was, were you, were you familiar with the property 16 


the entire twenty-year period?   17 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And was the property, and when I say 19 


the property, was the entire property, the parking areas, the 20 


lawn area, the mansion, the tent area, all the area that Ms. 21 


Pomykala described now, was that used by you or others as a 22 


catering operation? 23 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, that’s correct. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and there was no discontinuance of 25 
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that or ceasing of that use for other purposes during that 1 


time? 2 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is correct. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 4 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  And then, I would just also mention 5 


that when we did take over the property from Valley Catering in 6 


1996, they did have a caretaker living on the premise, who was 7 


their executive chef, if you really want to call him that.  I 8 


don’t know how formally he was trained. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And do, do you know where he lived on 10 


the property? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Where was that? 13 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  He lived on the second floor.  There is 14 


one large office there that also has a full bath.  And that was 15 


his residence.   16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  If, if you know, because of the, I know 17 


your familiarity with the property for all these years, Mr. 18 


Evans had asked Ms. Pomykala, do you an idea of the size of 19 


that caretaker’s quarters that he used, or would be used now? 20 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yeah, I would say that particular 21 


office was probably, it was a big office, maybe fifteen by 22 


twenty, if I had to guess, and then the bathroom, so.  Probably 23 


three hundred square feet, plus or minus for the office and 24 


another hundred and fifty square feet for the bathroom.  So, it 25 
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was probably just under five hundred square feet total. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Five hundred or five hundred square 2 


feet? 3 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Five hundred square feet.   4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Would be the caretaker’s quarters? 5 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, and like Anne had testified to 6 


earlier, probably represented less than twenty-five percent of 7 


the space of the second floor. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  I didn’t meant to 9 


interrupt you, Mr. Skudrna, go ahead. 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No, that’s okay.  And I would mention 11 


as well that one of my questions years ago for the same reason 12 


that the community wanted it, the community wanted overnight 13 


security at the gatehouse.  So, it seems to me like for the 14 


same benefit of the community to have security at the gatehouse 15 


overnight, to have security at the mansion would be a huge win 16 


for the community just in case of any catastrophic situation.  17 


You know, I know when I was there, the neighbors were very 18 


concerned about people coming into the community from Greentree 19 


and perhaps creating situations with cars being broken into and 20 


things like that.  So, I guess, unfortunately, in this day and 21 


age, you can just never have enough security.   22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Now, just so the Board is aware, the, 23 


the gatehouse that you mentioned, can you tell the Board 24 


members where is that physically. 25 
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  MR. SKUDRNA:  Sure, the gatehouse is physically 1 


located directly off of Reisterstown Road.  It is a gatehouse 2 


that has two lanes, one for residents of the community, Grey 3 


Rock Flats Villas and one lane for guests.  I’m not sure how, 4 


what the arrangement is any more, but I know when I was 5 


involved, from dusk to dawn, the community had a security guard 6 


in the gatehouse that would check people coming in to just, 7 


again, secure the property for the community. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and Mr. Skudrna, to get to the 9 


mansion and the circular driveway in front of the mansion, how 10 


do you get there?  Can you get there, I mean, what’s, what’s 11 


the way one would drive to get there? 12 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  There is, there is only one way to 13 


access the Grey Rock Mansion and that is off of 140, 14 


Reisterstown Road.  Other than that, it is land locked.  That 15 


was part of my conversations with the Grey Rock Flats, Grey 16 


Rock Villas and Grey Rock Maintenance back in the late 1990s to 17 


around 2000.   18 


  And again, the issue that I was made aware of when 19 


Grey Rock community was being built, they had promised all the 20 


residents there would be a community pool.  And apparently, the 21 


developer made a little mistake and did not have plans for a 22 


pool parking lot.   23 


  And Baltimore County would not allow the pool to be 24 


built without a parking lot.  So, the communities approached 25 
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the operating engineers and then I was part of a follow-up 1 


meeting with the operating engineers and Grey Rock Flats, 2 


Villas and Maintenance, that we would grant them an easement 3 


for that pool parking lot.  And again, in exchange, they would 4 


grant us perpetual easement, ingress and egress, off of 5 


Reisterstown Road.   6 


  So, that was, those were important, serious 7 


conversations because they were very instrumental to the 8 


operation of the mansion, to what we would do with that back 9 


property, as well as to how things would flow for the 10 


communities.   11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and just because you mentioned the 12 


road, the Greentree Road, what, where is that located in 13 


proximity to the, to the, to the Grey Rock Mansion? 14 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Sure.  Greentree Road comes up to the 15 


back of the property, I’d say the mansion property, then you 16 


have Clifton Court that runs into Greentree Road.  When the 17 


Trinitarians owned the property, they owned from Reisterstown 18 


Road all the way to Park Heights Avenue.   19 


  And when they subsequently sold the parcel, the front 20 


parcel, to Grey Rock, Inc., there were plans, County had plans 21 


to put in Greentree Road.  And at that point in time, there 22 


would have been the opportunity to have separate ingress and 23 


egress off of Greentree Road, if that had been the direction 24 


that all parties involved had intended to go.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  But you can’t get to the mansion from 1 


Greentree Road (inaudible)? 2 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Correct.  Not anymore.  In the late 3 


1990s, the barn and the private residence that were in very bad 4 


disrepair were, were leveled and the, after the 2000 zoning 5 


change to residential, that back two acres was sold so that 6 


could be developed residentially.  And that, in a sense, land 7 


locked Grey Rock Mansion from any ingress and egress, except 8 


for Reisterstown Road. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and I guess just because Mr. Lauer 10 


asked Ms., Ms. Pomykala, I mean, based on your experience, do 11 


you see any detriment to the neighborhood by having a 12 


caretaker’s quarters here?   13 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Again, I see it as a big win.  It 14 


seemed to me that if the community and the residents feel the 15 


urge or the necessity to have security at the gatehouse, I 16 


can’t see why they wouldn’t welcome with open arms security at 17 


the mansion. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 19 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Because there could be a weak link in 20 


security.  It would be fairly easy for someone, if they had ill 21 


will, to enter the community off of Greentree and, whether they 22 


were looking to carjack or break in to houses or anything, it, 23 


it could be, again, a loose link in the chain. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  Thank you, Mr. Skudrna.  I 25 
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don’t think I have any other questions of the witness. 1 


  CHAIR:  Is there any downside, Mr. Skudrna, of the 2 


caretaker having a live in companion there?  I mean, -- 3 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I, I even question the legality in 4 


that.  I mean, I have some leases and I can’t discriminate 5 


against a married party.  I mean, I think it would be pretty 6 


disappointing if I had a candidate for a job, in this day and 7 


age especially, when it’s so hard to find valuable employees 8 


and I couldn’t hire them because he’s married, or she’s 9 


married.  I mean, again, I just think, I think it’s a huge -- 10 


  CHAIR:  The, the real question is, is there a 11 


downside to two people living in that space as opposed to one? 12 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Absolutely not. 13 


  CHAIR:  Okay, thank you.   14 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Not in my opinion.  15 


  CHAIR:  Yeah, thanks. 16 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Sure. 17 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Mr. McCann? 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, Mr. Evans, can we take a break, 19 


just a ten-minute break, to get my notes together and also, a 20 


five or ten minutes, and also a bathroom break as well? 21 


  CHAIR:  Sure.  What, what, what are we looking at?  22 


It’s ten after twelve now, so what are we looking at in terms 23 


of today’s scheduling?  Are we going to finish today or are we 24 


going to need another day?  What’s, what’s going on? 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, let me, let me ask this.  Because 1 


I have one other witness who I know I’m going to call is Mr. 2 


Richards, Carl Richards. 3 


  CHAIR:  Um hm. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And I’ll ask Mr. McCann, Mr. McCann, I 5 


have the registered landscape architect who prepared the plan 6 


and the only thing I was going to ask her was basically the, 7 


you know, to describe the plan.  But I don’t even need to do 8 


that unless you have questions of, of her.  I mean, the plan 9 


speaks for itself.  It’s the same plan.  I can call her, I’d 10 


have to check, I think she’s one of the participants listed, 11 


Ms. Tien.  You know, maybe you don’t have to answer me now, but 12 


just to try to get through it, if there’s no reason to call 13 


her, I won’t call her. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  That’s, I, I don’t have any questions if 15 


that’s the scope of what she would say, so that’s fine. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  She’s just going to testify 17 


about the plan, where the zoning lines are, I mean, you can see 18 


it, the acreage, so on and so forth.  Things that are self-19 


explanatory about the plan. 20 


  CHAIR:  So, he’s, so Mr. Richards is what, about a 21 


half an hour or so, forty minutes? 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, I would say, probably, maybe a 23 


little longer on cross examination. 24 


  CHAIR:  Okay, we’ll say roughly an hour.  And how 25 
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about you, Mr. McCann?  What’s your, I, I’m not asking you to 1 


name your witnesses or anything, but just what’s your, what’s 2 


your sense of the time?   3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I, I very much hope we will be 4 


done today and hopefully early.  I mean, I have a number of 5 


community folks, but they all will be short and to the point.  6 


So, there may be several of those, somewhere between three and 7 


five. 8 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  But, but no expert testimony this 10 


afternoon.  So, yeah. 11 


  CHAIR:  Well, if we, should we take our lunch break 12 


now?  I guess is the point I’m trying to get at. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, why don’t we take forty-five 14 


minutes or so, Mr. Evans.  That’s fine with me.   15 


  CHAIR:  Yeah, we’ll come back at, promptly at 1:00, 16 


is that good? 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, Mr. Skudrna says he does have 18 


some commitments.  How long are you going to be with him, Mr. 19 


McCann?  You want to finish him? 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  I’m happy to do that -- 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT: (inaudible) and then finish him? 22 


  MR. MCCANN:  I’m happy to do that, if we could take a 23 


break, Mr. Evans?   24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Can we take five minutes, Mr. Evans and 25 
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the finish Mr. Skudrna to take lunch, is that okay? 1 


  CHAIR:  Is that going to be okay with you, Mr. 2 


McCann?  Is five minutes enough for you? 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  For a break? 4 


  CHAIR:  For a break, yeah. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  A break is fine, maybe a little more 6 


than that, but -- 7 


  CHAIR:  Okay, it’s going to cut into lunch.  We’ll 8 


take ten minutes.  We will be back at 12:25 and hopefully we 9 


will proceed expeditiously, okay?   10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you, all.   11 


  CHAIR:  Okay, 12:25.   12 


(PAUSE) 13 


  CHAIR:  Great.  We’re now back on the record and Mr. 14 


McCann, the witness is yours.   15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you, Mr. Evans.  Good afternoon, 16 


sir.  Can you hear me? 17 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, I can, thank you. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I’d, first of all, I’d like to 19 


flush out some of the timeline that you talked about this 20 


morning and this afternoon.  And I’m going to try to hit the 21 


highpoints.  So, first of all, as, as I understand it, based on 22 


your testimony, between 1969 and 1971, you were an altar boy 23 


during that period of time and had occasion to visit the 24 


mansion for a few summer camp retreats during that period, 25 







105 
 


correct? 1 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is correct. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Also, subsequent to that, or at 3 


that time, you indicated that there were two outbuildings sort 4 


of behind the mansion, a barn and, and a colonial residence, 5 


correct? 6 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, um hm. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  But you said those were razed in the 8 


1990s? 9 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Correct. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, they were not there in, well, strike 11 


that.   12 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  They were there when I purchased the 13 


property.  They were there in 1996 when we took over the 14 


property and we really were hopeful that we could restore that 15 


barn because a lot of people love a mansion setting, but a lot 16 


of people also love a barn pavilion type setting.  And we were 17 


hoping to restore the barn to make it a usable for events as 18 


well.  Unfortunately, it was in such a state of disrepair that 19 


we were told it was past the point of no return. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  But they were razed I guess in the late 21 


1990s, is that right? 22 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is correct. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm, okay.  And then, so jumping 24 


forward from the 1969 to 1971 time period, you then talked 25 
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about the period of 1977 to 1980, during which you were working 1 


at Captain Harvey’s Restaurant, and you had occasion to, to, to 2 


cater some events at the mansion, correct? 3 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, sir, that’s correct. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and then, fast forward from that, 5 


and you started a business, which, as you acknowledge had 6 


nothing to do with the mansion.  But in 1995, so some fifteen 7 


years later, you got a call from Barbara Flecker at Valley 8 


Catering and eventually, and Valley Catering you said at that 9 


time was in-house at the, the mansion doing catering, correct? 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, uh huh. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  And then in 1996, so the following year, 12 


you were able to renegotiate Valley’s lease with the then 13 


property owner, which was Operating Engineers, with the 14 


intention I guess to purchase the property at some time, 15 


correct? 16 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, that goes back to, again, being 17 


familiar with the property for the fifteen years or so that 18 


Valley Catering and Barbara Flecker were involved there.  I had 19 


made several visits because of my interest in acquiring the 20 


property.  But -- 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, go ahead, I’m sorry. 22 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  -- no, that’s fine.  Thank you. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, you, you now are filling in the 24 


gap quite a bit.  You said that during, that, that you had 25 
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occasion to visit Valley at the mansion in, several times 1 


during this 1995 to 1996 time period, is that correct? 2 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I’m sorry, what, what was your time 3 


period again? 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  1995, when you first got the call, and 5 


then 1996, when you renegotiated the lease? 6 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, I thought you said something 8 


about fifteen years in there.   9 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No, I said I was familiar with the 10 


property prior to taking it over, over that fifteen-year period 11 


that Valley Catering operated the property.  I had several 12 


occasions to visit as a guest at different weddings, as well as 13 


appointments with Barbara Flecker dating back to probably 1989, 14 


when we expressed our first interest that if and when she was 15 


ready to sell, we were here and motivated. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Yeah, you didn’t mention that 17 


before, but thank you.  And then, in 1998, it sounds like, two 18 


years later, you exercised your option to purchase the property 19 


from Operating Engineers, is that correct? 20 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is correct. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you operated your business 22 


there, Simply Elegant, from 1998 to you said the early 2000s 23 


when you sold the business to Mr. Clowney? 24 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I’m not sure exactly when it was that I 25 
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sold the business to Mr. Clowney, but it was sometime early to 1 


mid-2000s. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, that, okay.  Yeah, I, did, have 3 


you spoken to Mr. Clowney recently about this? 4 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Not since I foreclosed on the property. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  Did you review Mr. Clowney’s testimony 6 


before the Administrative Law Judge before your testimony this, 7 


this afternoon? 8 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I’m sorry, are you talking to me? 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yes. 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  What was the question? 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Did you review Mr. Clowney’s testimony 12 


before the Administrative Law Judge prior, prior to your 13 


testimony this afternoon?   14 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No, I did not. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, Mr. Clowney represented in 16 


that, during the hearing that you, that he took over the 17 


business and the property in 2004.  Does that sound right? 18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I said early to mid-2000s, so I think 19 


that would be in that time frame, yes. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Did he take over the business and 21 


the property at that point in time or just the business? 22 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  He purchased the business assets, and 23 


he signed the lease on the property. 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, in 2004, correct? 25 
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  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  But he had been an employee of your 2 


company from 1998 to 2004, prior to that, correct? 3 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is correct. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 5 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  And a wonderful employee. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, this tent structure, you indicated 7 


that, number one, that there had been a tent structure at some 8 


point in the past, back in the 1960s when you had visited there 9 


as an altar boy, is that right? 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, over the years there almost was 11 


always some type of tent structure up from when I visited there 12 


in the late 1960s until early 1970s, when I attended functions 13 


there as a guest in the 1970s, 1980s.  There was always, 14 


depending on the season, maybe not in the dead of the winter, 15 


but there was almost always a tent structure covering the patio 16 


portion of the courtyard. 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  Any photographs or videos of that?   18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That was before my time. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, okay.  But in any event, you, you, 20 


the, you indicated that in the spring of 1999, you erected a 21 


tent costing your company $65,000, correct? 22 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is correct. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  And, and you’re certain about that date, 24 


the spring of 1999? 25 
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  MR. SKUDRNA:  Very much so.  I believe I talked to 1 


the company that built the tent structure and the local company 2 


that erected it and put it together and maintained it, Loan 3 


Brothers, spoke with them in 1998, signed the contract and it 4 


was erected in the spring of ’99. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  And you’re equally certain that that 6 


very same tent, the very same tent, is the same tent that is 7 


there today? 8 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  As of 9:00 this morning, it’s the very 9 


same tent, I drove past it and checked it out. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, that tent is now twenty-three years 11 


old? 12 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Correct. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Any photographs or videos of the tent 14 


when it was constructed allegedly back in the spring of 1999 or 15 


soon thereafter? 16 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I sold the business, as you have 17 


mentioned, in 2004, so that’s almost twenty years ago now.  I 18 


don’t have any files of when I owned the business, they were 19 


all turned over. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, no photographs between 1998 and 21 


2004? 22 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No. I mean, I’m sure there’s probably a 23 


lot of photos on the internet, a lot of weddings we catered, a 24 


lot of photographs that are still floating around out there, 25 
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but I don’t have any in my possession. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  And then, in addition to you 2 


testifying that the tent was the very same tent was there from 3 


1999 to the present, you also said that during that same period 4 


of time, there has been no discontinuance of the catering 5 


operations at the mansion during that twenty-three-year period, 6 


correct? 7 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is correct. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  And you didn’t tell us how you know 9 


that, but how do you know that is -- 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Michael, Baltimore is a small town, if, 11 


I don’t think I need to educate anybody on the panel on that.  12 


So, I can’t say a year has gone past that I haven’t attended at 13 


least two or three functions, either as a guest, social 14 


functions like a wedding.   15 


  I was the President of the Reisterstown/Owings 16 


Mill/Glyndon Chamber of Commerce for many years.  We had our 17 


corporate events there.  So, even once I turned over the reins 18 


to that property, I was always fortunate enough to attend many 19 


functions -- 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I understand, I understand there 21 


were many and I under, and I also understand the importance of 22 


details.  Is it your testimony, sir, that every year, every 23 


year from 1998 to, Mr. Schmidt is shaking his head, every year 24 


from 1998 to 2023, you have attended more than one event at the 25 
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mansion, is that your testimony? 1 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Up until 2019 when I sold the property 2 


in foreclosure to Anne, I had a vested interest in that 3 


property and at least multiple times every year from 1996 to 4 


2019, I had firsthand knowledge of that property.  From 2019, 5 


when I sold it to Anne’s group till today, I’ve still had 6 


opportunities to visit the mansion, either as a guest or just 7 


stop by and tour the property.   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But your firsthand knowledge 9 


between the time period 1996 to 2019 was based on physical 10 


visits to the mansion during that time, every year? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Absolutely. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  When was the, when was the 13 


parking lot -- 14 


  CHAIR:  Mr., Mr. Skudrna, you said you were President 15 


of the Chamber of Commerce? 16 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, sir. 17 


  CHAIR:  For, and that’s for what, Reisterstown? 18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Reisterstown, Owings Mills and Glyndon 19 


back then.  And I was involved and on the Board from, I don’t 20 


have that in front of me right now.  But I would say I was 21 


President right around 1999, 2000.  I was on the Board from 22 


roughly 1995 to probably 2004.   23 


  CHAIR:  Does, -- 24 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Sandy Smith, Jim’s wife, was the 25 
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Executive Director.  So, Sandy and I worked very closely back 1 


then.   2 


  CHAIR:  Did those, I, I, I take it that those 3 


responsibilities require you to be familiar with the business 4 


activities in the area, right? 5 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Absolutely.   6 


  CHAIR:  Which would include this business, right? 7 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is very correct.   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Would they require you to visit every 9 


single business in Reisterstown, Owings Mills and Glyndon on an 10 


annual basis? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No.  Yeah, there’s really not a need 12 


for me to visit an accountant’s office.   13 


  MR. MCCANN:  You said in 1996 there was an executive 14 


chef living on the second floor, is that correct? 15 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, that is correct. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  You, you didn’t indicate how long he or 17 


she lived there.  Of what period of time -- 18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  When we took over possession, I told 19 


him he had to find another place to live.  He resided there 20 


when we took over in 1996.  He had probably been there for two 21 


to three years, I couldn’t tell you exactly how long.  But I 22 


knew it had been a couple of years.   23 


  I didn’t really want to rock the boat too much, so 24 


when we took over the business in ’96, we gave Barbara Flecker 25 
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one year employment contract and I allowed the executive chef, 1 


Joel, his name was Joel Maling (phonetic), to stay there until 2 


he found another place to live, which was probably eight or 3 


nine month after we took possession. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I’m going to show you a couple of 5 


exhibits, sir.  Bear with me one second.  And just, just before 6 


I do that, it’s your testimony that at no time from 1998, or 7 


early 1999, to the present, was the tent, or tent structure, 8 


ever temporary, that is, put up for specific events and then 9 


taken down, is that -- 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is correct.  The main reason we 11 


spent all the money was to have a permanent structure.  We 12 


looked about putting an addition on the mansion, but a lot of 13 


our brides preferred the feel of a tent as opposed to brick and 14 


mortar or drywall.  So, we wanted to create an atmosphere where 15 


it felt warm and inviting but was also permanent in nature.  16 


So, -- 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  Right. 18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  -- it did have a canvas top, but it 19 


also had a lot, it had a, a very expensive liner that we put in 20 


it that had chandeliers.  It did have, again, could withhold 21 


winds up to, withstand winds up to a hundred sixty miles an 22 


hour, I believe, is what the structural engineer told us.  It 23 


was bolted into concrete footers over top of a, you know, a 24 


stone patio.  So, yeah, for all, it had the, the warmth and 25 
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elegance of a tent, but we always treated it as a permanent 1 


structure.   2 


  MR. MCCANN:  For, for every day from 1999 to the 3 


present is, the very same tent you just described? 4 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, that is correct. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Let me just show you a couple of 6 


photographs.  So, this is Protestant’s Exhibit 5, and I’ll 7 


represent to you this is an aerial photograph from the County’s 8 


GIS website dated 2002.  And I’m sure you can orient yourself 9 


quicker than most of us here.  But you can see the circle here 10 


and then the, the mansion right here, correct? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and would you agree with me that 13 


this somewhat whiter rectangle appears to be the tent 14 


structure? 15 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Okay.  Let me show you a 17 


photograph -- 18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  If you go further back up on the top, 19 


you can see that barn and you can see that residence, and you 20 


can see Greentree Road. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, you’re talking about these 22 


two? 23 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But those, you, you had indicated 25 
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that those were demolished earlier than 2002, does this -- 1 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  -- refresh your recollection? 3 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yep. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  But they weren’t used, from the time you 5 


took over? 6 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  They were past the state of repair.  7 


Yeah, we couldn’t bring them back to life. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, okay.  I’m going to go to Exhibit 9 


4, Protestant’s Exhibit 4, also an aerial photograph.  This one 10 


from 1998, do you see that, sir? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Now, this photograph has the two 13 


structures that you just spoke about, but it does not have the 14 


tent, correct? 15 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Correct. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  In fact, that, that appears to be just a 17 


patio. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  What, what’s the date of that, Mr. 19 


McCann? 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Nineteen ninety-eight.   21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Nineteen ninety-eight. 22 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  And what’s the month?  Do we have a 23 


date or a -- 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  No. 25 
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  MR. SKUDRNA:  So, my, if it was ’98, then it was the 1 


temporary tent, it was seasonal, so you’re probably looking at 2 


prior to the wedding season. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Wait a minute.  I thought you indicated 4 


there was no temporary tents from 1998 to the present, it was, 5 


it was the same tent? 6 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Same tent from ’99. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Ninety-nine, okay.  So, you’re, you’re 8 


looking at this aerial photograph and you see a temporary tent 9 


here as opposed to a patio?   10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  What do you see here?  Doesn’t that look 12 


like a patio, rather than a tent?  Where my marker is?   13 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yeah, I can see it.  Yeah, that appears 14 


to be the patio. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  So, again, this is -- 16 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Prior, prior to the permanent tent, 17 


with any other tent, you have to have it taken down once or 18 


twice a year to be professionally cleaned, repaired and 19 


maintained.  So, typically, in the Baltimore area, the wedding 20 


season for outdoor events, probably starts around, you know, 21 


beginning of spring and runs perhaps through Halloween.   22 


  So, most venues that have an outdoor tent, if 23 


temporary, even semi-permanent structure, would normally be 24 


taken down some time around November 1 and cleaned and put back 25 
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up early -- 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I’m not asking about general 2 


practice, I’m asking about this case.  Your testimony is that 3 


there was, at some point in time, a temporary tent prior to the 4 


permanent structural tent being constructed in 1999, correct? 5 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Um hm. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and did you, by the way, when you 7 


got that, when you installed the, the permanent structural 8 


tent, did you obtain a permit from Baltimore County for that? 9 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Henry Lewis Contractors was the general 10 


contractor that we worked with.  I’m sure Henry pulled whatever 11 


permits necessary.  He was cus, very accustomed to working with 12 


historic properties and older properties. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  I’m, I’m asking you if one was or not to 14 


your knowledge. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  If you know.   16 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I don’t know.  To my knowledge, I can’t 17 


tell you definitively either way. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I thought you said it was a Loan 19 


Brothers tent? 20 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  The, the tent was built in Frederick, 21 


Maryland, Loan Brothers constructed it, erected it for us. 22 


  MR. MCCANN:  And Henry Lewis did what with respect to 23 


-- 24 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Henry Lewis con, was the general 25 
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contractor.  He looked at the tent.  We had also talked at the 1 


time about putting up handicap restroom facilities off the 2 


tent. We had also talked about putting in a permanent larger 3 


entrance from the tent to the ballroom.  We just looked at a 4 


lot of different options.  We decided that those weren’t 5 


reasonable at the time and went, we went with the permanent 6 


tent as opposed to looking into putting on an addition. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I’m back on Exhibit 5.  This is 8 


2002 aerial photograph which you, in which you, I think your 9 


testimony is that this is, this white rectangular, is the 10 


permanent structural tent, right? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  It’s grainy, but that’s what it appears 12 


to me. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  All right.  Let me show you exhibit 14 


number six. This is an aerial photograph from 2005.  Do you see 15 


the square-ish, not rectangle, but square-ish white structure 16 


to the right or the, I guess the northeast of the mansion, do 17 


you see that? 18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That square-ish is a warehouse that we 19 


constructed. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  I’m talking about right here. 21 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That’s a warehouse. 22 


  MR. MCCANN:  That’s not the tent? 23 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No. 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Well, let’s look at it in 25 
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comparison to the prior exhibit, Exhibit 5, and I’ll blow this 1 


up to make them of equal size.  I want, the record is not going 2 


to reflect what I’m pointing to, but on the righthand side of 3 


the building, this is Exhibit 5, there is a rectangular shaped 4 


white -- 5 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That’s the tent.  Yeah, and maybe I’m 6 


looking at that picture from a different angle, but, the second 7 


picture that you showed me.  That picture there, I’m looking at 8 


the tent to the right side of the mansion. 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I’m looking at the warehouse to the 11 


rear of the mansion. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Well, I’ll show that, again 13 


Exhibit 5, I’m sorry to go back and forth. 14 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Okay.   15 


  MR. MCCANN:  You can actually see from the road the, 16 


the roundabout.  That is, you can see the path -- 17 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, yes. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  -- to, okay. 19 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That’s the tent, correct.   20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Now, Exhibit 6, in the same location, 21 


that is catty corner to the mansion building, you can sort of 22 


almost see -- 23 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, yes. 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  -- the path as well, and so, this, this 25 
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structure, which now is still white but square, is the tent, 1 


correct? 2 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  That’s, and it’s your testimony that 4 


that’s the very same tent? 5 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, as far, again, I, I’m looking at 6 


these somewhat grainy photographs, but the tent was put, 7 


installed for us in 1999 and it looks like the same tent.   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I’m going to show you the next 9 


aerial photograph and this is Exhibit 7.  This is an aerial 10 


photograph dated 2007.  And I’m going to, do you see that? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Same, yeah, same tent, same warehouse, 12 


same mansion.  The only thing that’s different over these 13 


photographs is the configuration of the gardens. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Yeah, let me, answer my question, 15 


if you would, it will go a lot quicker, okay?  My, my question 16 


with respect to this photograph is it, is it your testimony, or 17 


do you agree rather, that this, this white object that appears 18 


just catty corner to the mansion building with the path running 19 


to it, it’s your testimony that that is the very same tent that 20 


you installed in 1999? 21 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, from what I can see, yeah. 22 


  MR. MCCANN:  And even though if we compare it to the 23 


prior, I’m sorry, Exhibit 5, it’s a different shape, is it not, 24 


then the one in 2002? 25 
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  MR. SKUDRNA:  Again, these photographs are too 1 


difficult for me to comment one way or the other. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  Okay.  This next 3 


exhibit is, I think, have we done this one yet, the 2008?  4 


We’ve done this one, right?  Next exhibit, bear with me one 5 


second.  This would be Exhibit 10.  I’ll blow it out.  This, 6 


and I’ll zoom in, sir, but this is a re-subdivision of Phase IV 7 


of Grey Rock.  You’re familiar with, sort of generally 8 


speaking, how the, how the, the Grey Rock community was 9 


subdivided over a period of years in phases (inaudible) -- 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Very much so, yes. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  This is Plat 75-140 and I’ll go 12 


down to the bottom and it’s dated May 15th, 2003.  It’s stamped, 13 


and you can see right here, and I’ll blow it up a little bit, 14 


as being filed for record in July 2003, do you see that? 15 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, this would have been the 17 


period of time when you still owned the mansion property, 18 


correct? 19 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is correct. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, if we go over to the mansion 21 


property, do you recognize this property as being the mansion 22 


property? 23 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and I’m going to zoom into the 25 
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mansion, do you recognize the mansion building there? 1 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Where my cursor is?  And I’ll zoom in a 3 


little more.  And behind the mansion, does it not say in this 4 


2003 plat, existing brick and slate patio? 5 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Okay.  Next exhibit I’m going to 7 


show you is Exhibit 12.  This is, I think you’re familiar with 8 


this, sir, because I think it is also on, on your watch, or 9 


during your period of ownership.  Are you familiar with this 10 


case from 2003 before the Deputy Zoning Commissioner? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I’d have to see it, tell me what it 12 


says.   13 


  MR. MCCANN:  It’s a, a request to approve an 14 


amendment to the partial development plan for Grey Rock.  Have 15 


you ever seen this before? 16 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Again, I would have to read it.  It’s 17 


got my name on it, but is that to sell off the back parcel as 18 


residential? 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, it speaks for itself, it is what 20 


it is.  But if you recall a case back in 2003.  I’ll go to the 21 


bottom, which has the date, May of 2003.  Does that ring a bell 22 


at all? 23 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Well, you’re showing me a document that 24 


I have, the only thing that I’m anticipating or -- 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 1 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  -- is that, again, when Kevin decided 2 


to downzone the back of our parcel, we sold it off to Prestige 3 


to build ten or eleven properties.   4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, and those properties, I think, we 5 


haven’t talked about that, but those are the ones immediately 6 


behind the mansion?   7 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, so this, I’m going back now 9 


to Exhibit 10.  Let me scroll up real quick.  This is the plat 10 


again, these are the homes that, that, what I believe to be 11 


eleven homes right behind the mansion to the northeast, 12 


correct? 13 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Correct. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But back to the decision, it 15 


sounds like you have some recollection of it.  But attached to 16 


the decision and part of it, is the plan that was the subject 17 


of that case in 2003.  Do you see the mansion, this is on page 18 


four of the exhibit.  Do you see the mansion there? 19 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and do you see behind or to the, 21 


I’m sorry, to, I guess to the east, or to the right of the 22 


mansion, there is that same patio area as opposed to a tent, do 23 


you see that?   24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Objection.  That’s not what it says.  I 25 
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think that’s a misrepresentation, Mr. McCann.  I mean, there’s, 1 


there’s a couple of things.  It doesn’t say patio.  I mean, 2 


more importantly, this is a -- 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, we don’t need to testify, Mr. 4 


Schmidt. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Let me finish.  I’m not.  I’m making an 6 


objection.  More importantly, this is a plan and by its very 7 


own terms, that is for the residential subdivision, which is 8 


adjacent to the mansion property.  So, what it shows on the 9 


mansion property, I, I mean, it doesn’t say patio.  You just 10 


said it says patio. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, two things, -- 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  It doesn’t say that. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Two things, -- 14 


  CHAIR:  Let, let, let me interrupt.  So, it is a site 15 


plan, it is what it is.  And it says what it says.  And it has 16 


some probative value, it’s not overwhelmingly probative, so you 17 


object to that, the objection is overruled.  But, let’s move 18 


on. 19 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I mean, I would, I would say it doesn’t 20 


show the tent but, but it also doesn’t show the proper parking 21 


lot either.  So, it’s really -- 22 


  CHAIR:  It’s not a site plan for the property in 23 


question, okay? 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Right. 25 
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  CHAIR:  We, we, we get that, we understand that.  1 


Okay?  That’s not a reason to, that it’s un, that’s not a 2 


reason that it’s inadmissible, okay?  It, it goes to the weight 3 


that one would devote to it, and we get that, okay?  So, it’s, 4 


it’s admissible -- 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, it is the subject of the decision, 6 


just for your, I understand your ruling, Mr. Evans.  But the, 7 


the mansion is the subject -- 8 


  CHAIR:  Well, I ruled in your favor, I ruled in your 9 


favor, so let’s –- 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  No, just, I’m just clarifying, just so 11 


you understand that, that once read, you’ll see what it’s 12 


worth, what, what it pertains to. 13 


  CHAIR:  Okay, that’s fine.  That’s fine, that’s fine. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  And I, I won’t belabor it more than 15 


that.  I asked you, sir, about whether a permit was pulled for 16 


the, the permanent structural tent that you said was 17 


constructed in 1999.  Did you, do you know whether or not 18 


electrical permits were pulled for that structure if, in fact, 19 


it was constructed back then?   20 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I do not know. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  You mentioned an agreement with the 22 


Valleys Planning Council, and I want to show you what is 23 


marked, has not been marked yet, but what I would introduce as, 24 


marked and introduced as Protestant’s Exhibit 19.  I’m sorry, 25 







127 
 


not this exhibit.  The first one, seventeen, which I haven’t 1 


pre-marked.  Let me scroll up to the top.  Do you see that, 2 


sir? 3 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yeah. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  It says restrictive covenant agreement 5 


between --    6 


MR. SKUDRNA:  Yep. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  -- Grey Rock, Grey Rock, Inc., Valleys 8 


Planning Council and the Bank of Baltimore and Gary Blum and 9 


Henri Squitieri.  Do you see that? 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Is this, is this an agreement, or the 12 


agreement that you were referring to? 13 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I’m familiar with that agreement. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.  Okay and, well, I take it when 15 


you say you, you’re presently familiar with it, were you 16 


familiar with it at the time of your ownership of the property? 17 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, just a couple things about 19 


this.  There’s a provision in this agreement, scrolling down, 20 


page six of the exhibit, which is seventeen.  And I’ll just 21 


read number nine to you.  No building or paving for parking 22 


shall be constructed within the area designated as “Restricted 23 


Building Area #1” on Exhibit C.  Did I read that correctly? 24 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, let’s go to Exhibit C.  And 1 


before I do that, I’ll read ten.  No building shall be 2 


constructed within the area designated as “Parking Only” on 3 


Exhibit C.  However, paving for parking shall be allowed.  And 4 


then number eleven, Grey Rock shall preserve the “View 5 


Corridor” as designated in Exhibit C.  Appropriate landscaping 6 


may be added.  Did I read each of those provisions correctly? 7 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, and we did pull permits when we 8 


built the warehouse onto the north side of the building. 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and we’ll get to that in a moment.  10 


Let’s just go to Exhibit C for now.   11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Evans, I’m not trying to shortcut 12 


Mr. McCann, well, maybe I am, but obviously, I mean, this case 13 


is a zoning case before the Board of Appeals and not a case 14 


involving the enforcement of a covenant if there’s been an 15 


alleged breach.  I don’t know where Mr. McCann is going -- 16 


  CHAIR:  Well, we, we don’t know where he’s going with 17 


this.  So, let’s see, let’s see what his question is. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, it is, it is the last page of this 20 


exhibit, for the record, page fifteen of fifteen.  This is 21 


Exhibit C.  It’s titled such, somewhere.  (inaudible).  Well, 22 


this is, it may not actually say C.  But it has, if you, it 23 


has, if you, I’ll zoom in it, sir.  It says restricted building 24 


area number one, do you see that? 25 
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  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and that’s the area to the east, or 2 


to the right side of the mansion, correct?  You recognize the 3 


mansion structure there? 4 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and do you recognize this area that 6 


says, on the lefthand side of the plat or plan, it says parking 7 


only.  Do you see that? 8 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  And then, just above that, it says view 10 


corridor, do you see that? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Would you agree with me that, given your 13 


familiarity with the mansion, that the permanent tent structure 14 


is within this restricted building area number one? 15 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Would you agree with me that the 17 


parking, as it exists today, and as was constructed during the 18 


terms of your ownership, exists in this area called, labeled in 19 


this plan as view corridor, would you agree with that?   20 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That is where that house was that was 21 


demolished.  You’re looking at existing structures need to be 22 


removed.  Those (inaudible) removed, so we had to do something 23 


when those properties were removed.   24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I’m not talking about the existing 25 
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structures to be removed, the building envelopes.  I’m talking 1 


on the lefthand side here, where it says view corridor, is that 2 


not where, at least, you know, some portion if not a 3 


significant portion of the parking associated with the, the 4 


mansion is located? 5 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I couldn’t really comment from looking 6 


at that map. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 8 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That drawing.   9 


  MR. MCCANN:  All right.  Just a couple more things.  10 


Bear with me. 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  I know that when the property was 12 


downzoned, that building envelope was changed.  Again, I’m not 13 


an attorney, I’m not a zoning attorney, so I don’t know how all 14 


that came into play.  But I know that we were basically told we 15 


were going to downzone the back two acres of parcel to 16 


residential, you do whatever you want to do with the mansion.  17 


That was basically the, the shortened, the short and sweet of 18 


it. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I asked you about the permitting 20 


for the tent structure.  Let me just show you what’s been 21 


marked as Protestant’s Exhibit 15.  Sorry, not fifteen.  22 


Fourteen.  Bear with me one second.  Okay.  This is a thirteen-23 


page document, the first page of which is a My Neighborhood 24 


map.  Do you recognize this structure where my pointed, where 25 
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my, my pointer is as the mansion? 1 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Have you ever looked at this kind 3 


of map before, sir? 4 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  No, okay.  And I’ll represent to the 6 


Board this is, obviously, a printout of a My Neighborhood map.  7 


The first page.  The remaining pages are a printout of the 8 


County’s permit open data, open data per portal, permit system.  9 


I just have a question about the one permit that’s reflected in 10 


here and I’ll go down to page four.  Blow it up.  Do you see 11 


that, sir?  Can you read that well enough? 12 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, it has a, an application date 14 


and an issuance date there of November and December 2002.  Do 15 


you recall submitting a building application for a building 16 


permit with respect to an addition to the mansion building back 17 


around that time? 18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  That would be the warehouse to the 19 


north end of the building. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, not, not the two buildings to the, 21 


that we spoke about earlier that were removed, but rather -- 22 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  A permanent structure. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.   24 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Catering warehouse on the north side of 25 
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the building, yes. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, let me just, there’s a, I had 2 


to print these out separately because it was a scroll down.  3 


So, I’m going to go to the next page.  This is page five of 4 


Exhibit 14.  Under description of work, it says construct one 5 


story addition, utility shed on rear of existing caterer’s 6 


building.  Do you see that? 7 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Nine hundred sixty square feet? 9 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, that’s the, the addition that you 11 


just described? 12 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  A catering warehouse, yes. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and just, maybe I’ll find an 14 


exhibit that you can describe where that is, I’m going back to 15 


just Exhibit 10, for instance.  Maybe that’s not the best 16 


exhibit.  Yeah, go to Exhibit 8, which is an aerial photograph 17 


from 2008.  The warehouse that we’re talking about, could you 18 


do tell us which, is it this gray building back here at the 19 


top? 20 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, yes, it is. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  That’s the, the additional 22 


warehouse? 23 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Um hm. 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  All right.  (inaudible) it, just bear 25 
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with me one second.  All right, I have another question.  Let 1 


me show you Exhibit 15.  Do you, again, do you recognize the 2 


property, subject property? 3 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Are you familiar with, this is a 5 


GIS map from My Neighborhood, of course.  And there’s a 6 


reference here to utility easement.  Are you familiar with any 7 


utility easements that cross the property at any, at any point 8 


in time? 9 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  You weren’t familiar with that fact? 11 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Did you ever, during the term of your 13 


ownership, did you ever obtain permission from Baltimore County 14 


to pave over the area of the utility easement? 15 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Again, I’m not familiar –- 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Again, I’m going to object –- 17 


  CHAIR: (inaudible) understand the relevance myself, 18 


but please, Mr. McCann, just wrap this up on this, on these 19 


points because they seem far afield, frankly. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Sure do. 21 


  CHAIR:  I mean, maybe, maybe, I, I’m, I’m indulging 22 


the, the notion that you’re going to tie this all together. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 24 


  CHAIR:  Okay?  But, okay, -- 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, well, it speaks for itself.  So, 1 


I’ll move on from it.   2 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  And make sure I don’t have anything 4 


else.  And I do not. 5 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you, sir.   7 


  CHAIR:  All right.  Do the Board members have any 8 


questions? 9 


  MR. LAUER:  I just have two quick ones, if I might.  10 


Did the neighbors, your neighbors ever complain when you built 11 


the new structure in 1999, the tent? 12 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No, other than the fact that when we 13 


first took over the property in ’96, the neighbors and Valley 14 


Catering, Barbara Flecker, worked very loosely.  They didn’t 15 


have a lot of things in writing.   16 


  For example, it was a different time period, I guess.  17 


Barbara allowed Grey Rock Flats, Grey Rock Villas and Grey Rock 18 


Maintenance Corporation to, to have their, to have their 19 


meetings and things inside the mansion.  She never charged them 20 


anything for that.  And she was just old school.  She would say 21 


I’m going home, when you guys are done, lock the building up.   22 


  We couldn’t really operate a business like that so we 23 


tried to be good neighbors and we said look, we’ll still allow 24 


you to have your meetings here, but it requires us to have an 25 
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employee here just to keep an eye on the building, make sure 1 


there are no issues, we’ll charge you a modest fee, $50, I 2 


think it was, to have your meetings here.   3 


  And some of the Board took offense to the fact that 4 


we wanted to charge them to use the building.  We were always 5 


told from the very beginning when I met with Dutch –- 6 


  MR. LAUER:  Excuse me, sir.   7 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  -- when I met with –- 8 


  MR. LAUER:  Excuse me, hold on, hold on.  Excuse me.  9 


Just, if you could, -- 10 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Yes, sir. 11 


  MR. LAUER:  -- ever complain about the tent being 12 


built? 13 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Oh, no, sir.   14 


  MR. LAUER:  That, that’s really where I was going.  15 


Second question.  Did, was there ever a case filed against you, 16 


your company, the owner, as you were the owner, for a violation 17 


of the restrictive covenants? 18 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No, no, sir. 19 


  MR. LAUER:  Thank you.  That’s all I have, Mr. 20 


Chairman. 21 


  CHAIR:  Thank you. Mr. Pennington? 22 


  MR. PENNINGTON:  I just, I actually do have one 23 


question.  Mr. Skudrna, the, it looks like from the aerial view 24 


from the 2002, was there ever a time, it looks like there’s a 25 
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gap between the tent and the building.  Was there ever a time 1 


when there was a gap there but then it was covered to make it 2 


like a seamless transition between the, the building and the 3 


tent?  Looks like there was a gap between the tent and the 4 


building and then the following picture there was no gap.   5 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  No, the only thing I can remember is 6 


like a rain guard being put up. 7 


  MR. PENNINGTON:  Okay. 8 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Because again, it was a great 9 


structure, but prior to the rain gutter going up, you know, if 10 


you have a really heavy rain or something, guests could get wet 11 


going from the mansion into the tent.  And I think they 12 


constructed like a bladder, I think they called it to prevent 13 


rain from penetrating that area. 14 


  MR. PENNINGTON:  Okay, that’s all I have.   15 


  CHAIR:  Mr., Mr. Schmidt, do you have any re-direct? 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I do not. 17 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Okay.  Well, then I think the witness 18 


is excused then. 19 


  MR. SKUDRNA:  Thank you.   20 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  It’s now 1:09 p.m.   Should we break 21 


for lunch now?  Is, I take it you have Mr. Richardson and 22 


that’s it? 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Richards and that’s it, yeah. 24 


  CHAIR:  Mr. Richards and that’s it.  And that’s, that 25 
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you think is an hour? 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, that’s what I would guess, Mr. 2 


Evans. 3 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  With cross. 5 


  CHAIR:  All right.  Well, let, it’s, it’s 1:09.  6 


We’ll, how about if we come back at 1:40, okay?  Can we do 7 


that?  Will that suit everyone’s needs?   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Sounds good. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Sure, we ordered some quick lunch, 10 


it’ll let everybody go to the bathroom, gobble something and 11 


we’ll be back at 1:40. 12 


  CHAIR:  Right, right.  We’ll be back at 1:40. Thank 13 


you, all. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 16 


  CHAIR:  We’re going off the record. 17 


(PAUSE) 18 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  We’re, we’re back on the record and I 19 


believe that we’re ready, Mr. Schmidt, to call Mr. Richards? 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yes.  So, my next witness would be Carl 21 


Richards and he’s seated here to my left.  If Mr. Lauer wants 22 


to swear him in.   23 


  MR. LAUER:  Yes, please raise your right hand.  Do 24 


you swear and affirm under the penalty of perjury, the 25 
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testimony you’re about to give is true and correct to the best 1 


of your knowledge and belief?   2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, Your Honor. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay. 4 


  MR. LAUER:  And please give us your name for the 5 


record, and your business address, please.   6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  My, I’m retired, Webster Carl 7 


Richards, Jr., 4610 Schenley Road, Baltimore, Maryland 21210. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Mr. Richards, you’ve indicated 9 


you are retired at the present time.  But previously, where did 10 


you work? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I worked for Baltimore County in the 12 


Zoning Office. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And when did you start working in the 14 


Baltimore County Zoning Office? 15 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Nineteen sixty-six. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And from 1966, what was the time of 17 


your retirement? 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  In ’21. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  So, you worked for the Baltimore County 20 


Zoning Office for fifty-five years? 21 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Almost, yes. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and during that time, can you tell 23 


us briefly what you did in the Baltimore County Zoning Office? 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, for thirty years of it, I was a 25 
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zoning supervisor, after Jim Dyer (phonetic) left in 1991.  And 1 


as a zoning supervisor is where I got most of my experience.  2 


But, you know, it was, it was a good time.  I mean, you know, I 3 


can remember back (inaudible) not too many people around here 4 


can. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  But -- 7 


  CHAIR:  Except for his parole officer. 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Go ahead. 9 


  CHAIR:  I’m sorry, go ahead. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Go ahead, Mr. Richards. 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  But, you know, the Zoning Office, I 12 


just enjoyed helping people.  I enjoyed dealing with the 13 


regulations.  I enjoyed finding alternate solutions to many 14 


people’s problems. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And many times, there is an alternate 17 


solution and it’s not just black and white.   18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And Mr. Richards, during your time as 19 


zoning supervisor, did, were you called upon to sometimes 20 


testify before either the Administrative Law Judge or the Board 21 


of Appeals? 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I was, would testify before the Zoning 23 


Commissioner, later became the ALJ, the Board of Appeals and 24 


also the Circuit Court. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  And were you accepted during those 1 


occasions as an expert witness in the field of the Baltimore 2 


County zoning regulations and their application? 3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, I was. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and since your retirement, have 5 


you served, on occasion, as a consultant and testified before 6 


either the ALJ or the Board or both? 7 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Not the Circuit Court, but the ALJ and 8 


the Board, yes. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and have you been accepted as an 10 


expert witness insofar as the Baltimore County zoning 11 


regulations, as a consultant? 12 


  MR. RICHARDS:  So, far. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I would offer him based on his, 14 


Mr. Evans, he’s the only person I know that’s with, been with 15 


Baltimore County for sixty-five years.  I, so, -- 16 


  CHAIR:  Fifty-five years.   17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Fifty-five years, I’m sorry, it’s still 18 


a long time.  So, I would offer him.  He’s actually going to be 19 


a fact witness and also testify about the applicable 20 


regulations in this case. 21 


  CHAIR:  All right.  Mr. McCann, do you have any 22 


objection? 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  I do not, thank you. 24 


  CHAIR:  Okay, all right.  Mr. Richards is accepted as 25 
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an expert in the areas so designated.   1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you.  Mr. Richards, you’ve also, 2 


in addition to being a zoning expert, how long have you lived 3 


in Baltimore County? 4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Oh, actually, I’m in north Baltimore 5 


City. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Oh, you’re in the city? 7 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 8 


  CHAIR:  Yes, Schenley Road is in Baltimore City. 9 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I have, but I have property in 10 


Baltimore County and I’m very interested. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  As a, let me ask you this.  As a 12 


fact witness, have you ever been to the Grey Rock Mansion 13 


property? 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Many times. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Can you take us back to when you 16 


first went there, if you remember when it was or about when it 17 


was? 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, when I first went there, it was 19 


probably back in the sixties.  My grandfather showed me a 20 


shortcut between Reisterstown Road and Park Heights Avenue, and 21 


he actually used it, because he worked for the Suburban Club 22 


and went back and forth.  And I didn’t want to use Hooks Lane 23 


or the beltway to get from one to the other and I went through 24 


the Trinitarians property.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and did there come a time that you 1 


went to the property for any social or catered events? 2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Later on, yes. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And when was that? 4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  That was probably in the eighties. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Mid to early eighties and I had a 7 


girlfriend that was the, in charge of the perfume counter at 8 


Macy’s and Bamberger’s, when it used to be Bamberger’s.   9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Now you are taking us back. 10 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And, and she, she was always going to 11 


all the Macy’s functions.  And when Macy’s would have a party, 12 


she would invite me. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and where were their parties? 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Several of those times, it was at the 15 


Grey Rock. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and did you go inside the mansion 17 


at that time? 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Went inside, went outside, saw the 19 


cook in the backroom and, and, you know, it was a beautiful 20 


place. 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It was a beautiful place.   23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And this was, you believe, during what 24 


time frame? 25 
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  MR. RICHARDS:  I would say in the eight, late 1 


eighties. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yeah. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And, and if you can, have you been 5 


there since the eighties? 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  How often, how often or tell us when. 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Not every single year, but, you know, 9 


I’ve gone to -- 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Is that you? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  -- political, it might be. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT: (inaudible), okay.  I’m sorry, Mr. 13 


Evans.   14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’ve been to political fundraisers and 15 


weddings and just general parties there. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 17 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And not every year, but I’ve been 18 


there, you know, several times.  I don’t have the same 19 


girlfriend and Macy’s isn’t there anymore, but I’ve been to 20 


other functions there. 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  When you were there back in the 22 


eighties and nineties, was there a tent in the yard? 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  The first time I went, I don’t think 24 


there was a tent, but there was seating outside and we sat 25 
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outside because it was such a hot day.  And it was a nice 1 


summer day with a beautiful garden, and I had a pretty girl 2 


with me, so those things you kind of remember. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 4 


  CHAIR:  What, what year was that?  What, what are you 5 


talking about? 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  What timeframe? 7 


  CHAIR:  Yeah, what timeframe? 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  What timeframe? 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Um hm. 10 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’d say mid-eighties. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Did you go there during the 12 


1990s? 13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  How often? 15 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Maybe four or five times at least, you 16 


know, -- 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  During that decade? 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, yes. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and how about since the year 2000?  20 


Have you been out there?   21 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I think I’ve been out there once since 22 


2000. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yeah. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 1 


  MR. RICHARDS:  My, most of my memory is older, like 2 


in the eighties and nineties. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and at that time, where did, where 4 


did you park when you went out there? 5 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, I parked right near the building 6 


there where there is a couple rows of parking. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  On the side of the building? 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  On the side of the building, yes. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Let me ask you, Mr. Richards, 10 


the zoning of the property today is, is what, what combination? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, today it’s BR and 3.5. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  DR-3.5? 13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  DR-3.5 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and is the commercial activity, 15 


the catering facility, a permitted use by right in the, in the 16 


BR, business roadside zone? 17 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Absolutely. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Is the catering or any activity 19 


associated with the catering permitted in the DR-3.5 zone? 20 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No. 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Tell us, Mr. Richards, what is a 22 


non-conforming use? 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It’s for the want of a better word, 24 


and in other subdivisions they call it a grandfather use. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 1 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It’s a use that can continue and not 2 


change and not be vacant for a year or more and that doesn’t 3 


change from the first time it was established, when it was 4 


legal, to the current status where it would be illegal to begin 5 


a new use. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and that would be, for example, if 7 


the zoning of a property had changed? 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  A property, the use, the underlying use 10 


could be grandfathered in? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, it could be. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Now, you indicated that catering 13 


facility is permitted by right in the BR and not permitted in 14 


the DR-3.5, right? 15 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Correct. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And that would be the case for any 17 


activity associated with the catering facility parking, 18 


etcetera? 19 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 21 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Any, any part of the use. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Any part of the underlying use, okay. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Excuse me, excuse me.  Mr. Evans, can, 24 


can we try to avoid the leading questions?  Mr. Richards is 25 
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certainly capable of, I know you’re trying to speed things 1 


along, I just want to say something now -- 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 3 


  CHAIR:  Okay.   4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I apologize.  Mr. Richards, I’m going 5 


to show you an exhibit that’s been pre-marked, which is this 6 


exhibit on the board, which is a two-page site plan from, I’m 7 


going to enlarge this so everybody can see it a little bit 8 


better.  And this is exhibit, exhibit number six, which was 9 


offered below as well.  And Mr. Richards, have you seen that 10 


site plan before? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, I reviewed it, yes. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and this plan, can you tell this, 13 


tell us what this is, if you can (inaudible) that? 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, it’s the first amended 15 


development plan of Grey Rock Phase I. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 17 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And it amends the plan, and this is 18 


done in ’94, and it amends the plan that Jim Dyer approved, the 19 


original plan, in 1991.   20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Does this have a note on it, 21 


specifically note number eleven, which sort of outlines the 22 


history of the development of the residential community of Grey 23 


Rock? 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, yes. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  And is that, I think that speaks for 1 


itself, but is it indicated when the original, initial approval 2 


for the Grey Rock was approved? 3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  When, when was that? 5 


  MR. RICHARDS:  February 14th, ’91. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and was the entire site of Grey 7 


Rock approved at that time or only a part? 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It was the part they were putting the 9 


new dwellings in. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  You know, and but they, they needed a 12 


plan, and this was the plan.  It just happened to include the 13 


original property of Grey Rock on the plan. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and it indicates, I think, on here 15 


that it was approved by the CRG.  What’s the CRG? 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  The County Review, Review Group.  And 17 


they, it’s a development function by (inaudible), people from 18 


the approval agencies, which send a representative to the 19 


review group, and they would approve the development.   20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  Now, Mr., Mr. Richards, 21 


does this plan show, trying to get to the right page, page one. 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yeah. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Does this plan show the zoning of the 24 


subject property as it existed in 1994 when, when this plan was 25 
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approved? 1 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, I believe it does show the 2 


original BM and BR zone. 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and so, I’m drawing your 4 


attention, Mr. Richards, hate doing this remotely, to that area 5 


of the plan where my cursor is.  And does it identify where the 6 


Grey Rock Mansion is located? 7 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, it does. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  So, in 1994, when this plan was 9 


submitted and approved, what was the zoning of the area on 10 


which, of land on which the mansion was located? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, the mansion, the parking, gazebo 12 


and the lawn and the garden out front was all commercial. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It was either BM or BR. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Now, you’ve indicated, well, let 16 


me stop you there.  What’s BR? 17 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Business roadside and it’s a hairier 18 


zone than what’s necessary for catering would be permitted in 19 


the BM.  But for some reason, they made it a BR zone.   20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Is the, is catering permitted in 21 


the BM? 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Is it permitted in the BR? 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, it appears to me that the 1 


zone line for this property was immediately adjacent to the 2 


Grey Rock Mansion, is that correct? 3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Um hm, yes. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, the mansion building itself 5 


was zoned what?   6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, the actual building itself here 7 


looks like it’s zoned BR, but the rest of the property, 8 


including the overflow parking is BM. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and the parking and, I think you 10 


indicated would be permitted in both zones. 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Um hm.   12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And is, can you tell us where on the 13 


drawing the overflow parking, the, the second lot is located? 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Down where it says Phase IV. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It’s like an overflow parking lot.  I 17 


think that’s, that’s where it is.   18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, Mr. Richards, as of 1994, 19 


was the Grey Rock, use of the Grey Rock property, as shown on 20 


this plan from 1994, including the lawn area, the building, the 21 


mansion and the parking areas, was it zoned to permit a 22 


catering facility at that time? 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, it was.  I believe the ’91 plan 24 


showed it a little better. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  We, we may have that as well.  1 


Mr. Evans, these are all plans from -- 2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  That’s it. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Larry, I really need the exhibits. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  They’re, well, you’ve got them from the 5 


first hearing, Mr. McCann.  But I’m happy to send them to you 6 


again.  I’d like to get your exhibits as well.   7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, yeah, all the exhibits, please, 8 


and I’ll send them.   9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  You, you mentioned a, a, a, a 10 


prior version of the Grey Rock CRG plan. 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And that’s this right here.   12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and what’s the date of this? 13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  This is a ’91 plan approved by Jim 14 


Dyer. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and again, does this plan show –- 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  The original zone lines, yes.   17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and I’m just trying to find that 18 


because I’ve had to –- 19 


  MR. RICHARDS:  There it is.   20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- expand it.  And was the zoning the 21 


same in 1991 that it was in 1994 as you previously testified? 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It appears to be but it, it just was 23 


easier for me to see it on this plan, an original. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and the zoned line, as indicated 25 
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is this dashed line? 1 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Um hm. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Um hm, both dashed lines. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  The dashed line, okay.  Now, Mr. 5 


Richards, did, did there come a time when the zoning of the 6 


Grey Rock Mansion property changed? 7 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, back in 2000. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and I’m going to show you an 9 


exhibit, I think Mr. McCann has offered this in one of his 10 


exhibits, but it’s my Exhibit 7-A and it’s a copy of an Order 11 


in case 03-477-SPH.  And does that indicate on page two when 12 


the zoning of the Grey Rock Mansion property occurred?  And I’m 13 


highlighting it for you, Mr. Richards.   14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I think it does, 2000 comprehensive 15 


zoning process. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and similarly, I’m going to show 17 


you an exhibit which we have pre-marked as, let me expand that 18 


if I can, which is taken from the County My Neighborhood 19 


records, it’s a public document.   20 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Issues. 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Does that identify issues in the 2000 22 


zoning map process? 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, it does. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And under issues –- 25 
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  CHAIR:  What’s this exhibit number?  What’s the 1 


exhibit number?   2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  This is exhibit number ten, Mr. Evans. 3 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Does this indicate an exhibit, I’m 5 


sorry, an issue for rezoning in 2000 for the subject property? 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Issue 2-067, yes. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, Mr. Richards, based on this, 8 


what would be the relevant date for the Board of Appeals to 9 


have to consider in determining whether the operation on the 10 


entire property, including the parking and the lawn, etcetera, 11 


is, is grandfathered –- 12 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Probably December 2000. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and that would be when the zoning 14 


–- 15 


  MR. RICHARDS:  That’s when the maps –- 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Maps were adopted in December of 2000. 17 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, Planning actually, the Planning 18 


Board recommended that the zoning stay the same, but I think it 19 


was Councilman Kamenetz changed that. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  I would offer that as 21 


exhibit number ten.  And that’s not one of the ones that was 22 


offered below, Mr. Evans.  It’s the log of issues from the 2000 23 


CZMP.   24 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  That’s, that’s admitted.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  Now, Mr. Richards, if I 1 


can, let, let me ask you about, about the, the use and, and the 2 


way the non-conforming, in your, in your judgment, non-3 


conforming grandfathering works.  You’ve described that a 4 


little bit in, in terms of its grandfathering.  In, in, there’s 5 


been a, you, you’ve been at the hearing all day here today? 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  You’ve heard the testimony about the 8 


tent? 9 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  In your judgment, does the existence of 11 


the tent, either the same tent or a different tent, have any 12 


impact on whether this is a non-conforming use? 13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  My interpretation is that the tent is 14 


immaterial to the issue. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Why is that? 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Because the use is an issue.  And if 17 


the use is in a twenty mile an hour tent or in a hundred and 18 


fifty mile an hour tent, or if it’s an open patio, or it’s a 19 


gazebo or if it’s chairs in the lawn, the use is what zoning 20 


considers part of the principal use.   21 


  And as such, regardless of what kind of coverage you 22 


put over it, whether it’s a permanent building, whether it was 23 


called a, a permanent tent, I think it’s hard to, a flexible 24 


structure, to be a permanent building as defined in Baltimore 25 
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County.   1 


  But regardless, we’re looking at the land area, we’re 2 


looking at the land use.  There’s a lot of land uses that 3 


aren’t temporary or permanent buildings that are grandfathered 4 


in Baltimore County.  So, all the discussion about what kind of 5 


tent, you know, when was the flimsy tent, when was a more 6 


sturdy tent, to me, it’s immaterial to the issue.   7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And that’s because the land was used as 8 


a catering facility? 9 


  MR. RICHARDS:  The land, the land, not the coverage.  10 


But the land. 11 


  CHAIR:  So, Mr. Richards, this is what I was 12 


wondering about over, over lunch.  There would be no problem if 13 


they erected a tent for each venue, each event and then took it 14 


down and then erected it again for the next event.  That, 15 


that’s no different than having the permanent tent, correct? 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Whether it’s permanent or temporary, I 17 


don’t think either one -- 18 


  CHAIR:  It doesn’t matter, right, right.   19 


  MR. RICHARDS: (inaudible) necessary, you know.   20 


  CHAIR:  All right, all right. 21 


  MR. RICHARDS:  To determine.  If non-conforming goes 22 


with the land, I don’t think the coverage has any bearing on 23 


whether it’s non-conforming or not. 24 


  CHAIR:  Right.  You’re saying that the non-conforming 25 







156 
 


use, so to speak, or, not so to speak, the, the actual, literal 1 


non-conforming use is used, is actually not relevant, because 2 


what they’ve been doing is using the patio as, for, for 3 


catering.  Right. 4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And the gazebo, and the lawn.  When I 5 


was there, I was out on the lawn, I wasn’t even in the gazebo 6 


sitting at a table once. 7 


  CHAIR:  All right.  Right.  Okay. 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And, and I know at certain times of 9 


the year, they may not have had the tent, but I think they have 10 


a more permanent tent there now than before.  But I don’t think 11 


that’s as big an issue as where it was the use.   12 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  You were there, the use was outside the 14 


building and in the building? 15 


  MR. RICHARDS:  The use was both, on the patio, on the 16 


lawn, in the gazebo, that’s where it was because I went to a 17 


couple of functions there that were pretty crowded.  So, you 18 


couldn’t find a seat in the tent, you know, there, there wasn’t 19 


a space in the tent for you to sit.   20 


  CHAIR:  And so, the zoning, the zoning for the patio, 21 


for the stone and slate patio, that’s DR-3.5? 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yes. 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yeah. 24 


  CHAIR:  Okay, all right.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  If, Mr., maybe I’ll show the site plan 1 


-- 2 


  CHAIR:  No, that’s okay.  You don’t have to, you 3 


don’t have to do that.  I just want to make sure, so the, the 4 


question really isn’t whether the tent pre-existed in 2000 -- 5 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Originally, originally the 6 


(inaudible). 7 


  CHAIR:  -- the question is whether the catering was 8 


pre-existing –- 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah. 10 


  CHAIR:  -- to year, the year 2000, right? 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And Mr. Rich, Mr. Evans, I’m not going 12 


to answer for the witness, but this is the site plan that’s 13 


submitted.  And just so the Board can understand what they’re 14 


looking at.  You, you can see that the DR zone line and the BR 15 


zone line cuts right through the tent and then this is the area 16 


of the lawn.   17 


  CHAIR:  Right, okay. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Just so you’re clear what you’re 19 


looking at.   20 


  CHAIR:  So, part, part of the patio is BR and part is 21 


DR-3.5? 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Exactly. 23 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Why they drew the zone line there, I 25 
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can’t even begin to imagine.   1 


  MR. RICHARDS:  When they did the map in 2000, they 2 


ignored the use when they put that zone line on there.   3 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  For some un, inexplicable reason they 4 


ignored the use.   5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Right. 6 


  CHAIR:  Right, okay.   7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Since we’re, since we’re talking freely 8 


about it, Mr. Schmidt, are you suggesting that this rectangular 9 


thing behind the house, I mean, to the right of the mansion, 10 


that is, represents the tent?   11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I believe it represents the tent and/or 12 


the patio.  I mean, that’s the, the area, right, right here. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  That’s, okay.   14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  But it’s clearly right in the middle 15 


as, as is the parking lot.  You can see the zone line is, cuts, 16 


cuts the parking lot and part of it is zoned DR-3.5 and part of 17 


it’s zoned BR. 18 


  CHAIR:  Hm, okay.   19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And, and that’s, and I, I don’t want to 20 


testify, I’m sorry.  I’m just trying to make it clear.  It’s so 21 


hard when we’re remote like this to, to share exhibits without 22 


them being in front of all of us.   23 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It, it was obvious to me when I first 25 
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looked at this plan, that in 2000, they just, well, the 1 


Planning Board recommended that the, they keep the zoning that 2 


they had.  But Kamenetz, as the Councilman, cut back the zoning 3 


and ignored the existing uses. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  That, and created a non-conforming use. 5 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And created a non-conforming use when 6 


he did that. 7 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Let me change gears, if I can, 9 


Mr. Richards.  Under the BR zone, which is the zone of the, of 10 


the mansion, how, if at all, would a residential use, or 11 


residential quarters, be permitted? 12 


  MR. RICHARDS:  If I was being asked this question and 13 


I was still the zoning supervisor administering the zoning 14 


regs, and somebody came in and said, you know, we want you to 15 


confirm that a residential use would be permitted in this 16 


building, I would first ask, or check to make sure there were 17 


no violations and no challenges and, to the property.  And no 18 


recent complaints.   19 


  After, after there being none, I would have 20 


determined that since it was originally used as a residence, I 21 


would, I would not require a special exception.  And I would 22 


not use the test in 104.  I would send an inspector out and I’d 23 


ask him to tell me what’s physically on the property.   24 


  And if he told me there was an electric meter and 25 
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there was a kitchen and a bathroom and a place where you could 1 


easily have living quarters, if he told me that was originally 2 


there, I would not require a special exception and I’d approve 3 


it. 4 


  Now, not going to a hearing, obviously my approval 5 


could be challenged but I would approve it anyway, based on the 6 


evidence. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  But under the strict reading of 8 


the regulations is residential quarters in a commercial 9 


building a defined special exception use in the BR zone? 10 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, it is.  But we, over the years, 11 


interpreted if it’s a new residential use. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Well, does, does it say new residential 13 


use? 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No, it does not. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  So, it doesn’t say new but -- 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- it, it, the regulations do, in fact, 20 


state that residential quarters -- 21 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Is a permitted use. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- in a commercial building. 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yeah. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  By special exception. 25 
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  MR. RICHARDS:  By special exception, yes. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Now, Mr. Richards, generally 2 


describe to the Board, what’s the criteria for considering 3 


whether a special exception should be granted.  What, what, 4 


what’s looked at? 5 


  MR. RICHARDS:  You have, you have to meet the 6 


provisions in 502, which relates to many, many different 7 


things, including the environment and traffic and, you know, 8 


does it fit in with the community, you know, is, is, is the use 9 


changing the nature of the use changing, would it adversely 10 


affect the community, pretty much. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Do you see, you, you’ve considered this 12 


property, you’ve been to the property? 13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  You’re familiar with what’s being 15 


proposed? 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, I am. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Being familiar from, you’ve heard the 18 


testimony about how large the apartment quarters will be today? 19 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  In your opinion, Mr. Richards, are 21 


there any adverse impacts associated with a proposed 22 


caretaker’s quarters on the community? 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I would say, I would determine that 24 


no, there are no adverse impacts.  That would be my 25 
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interpretation. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Are there any adverse impacts 2 


from a traffic standpoint?   3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Not, not that I could be aware of.  4 


You know, absent any objection, you know, it doesn’t make sense 5 


that one, that one residence, when there was residences there 6 


in the past.  But reinstituting one residence on the property 7 


when it’s basically a commercial use, is not going to affect 8 


traffic in the overall neighborhood.   9 


  If you were proposing a whole development with a lot 10 


of cars, I would say yes.  I think that the change is so small 11 


that it would not affect the community.   12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Does it have any adverse impact, 13 


just going to the stat, statute, on the health, safety or 14 


general welfare of the locale? 15 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I, I don’t see how it could. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Does it have any adverse impact and 17 


create congestion in the roads, the streets or the alleys in 18 


the locale? 19 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I would, I would say no also.  And I 20 


would say it would, it would be more of an advantage than a 21 


disadvantage. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Does it have any adverse impact, 23 


or would it create potential hazards from fire, panic or 24 


similar dangers? 25 
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  MR. RICHARDS:  I don’t know of any. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  How about as to, would it 2 


overcrowd the land or cause undue concentration of population 3 


on the site? 4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I would, I would say no. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Does it interfere with any 6 


adequate provisions for schools or parks or water, sewage, 7 


transportation or other public requirements, conveniences, 8 


improvements or infrastructure? 9 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I don’t see how one or two people 10 


could change that, no. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Will it interfere with any 12 


provisions regarding adequate light or air? 13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No, because I don’t think anything is 14 


changing to the building. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  I think you’ve answered this, 16 


but would the caretaker’s quarters be inconsistent with the 17 


property zoning classification or inconsistent with any other 18 


provisions of the regulations? 19 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Absolutely not. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and will it cause any 21 


inconsistency with any impermeable surface or other vegetative 22 


retention provisions of the Baltimore County zoning 23 


regulations? 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I can’t see how it would.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Mr. Richards, let me ask you 1 


about the parking, if I can.  Now, I think the site plan shows, 2 


and I’ll reference this, that the parking calculations on the 3 


plan and it shows a hundred and four parking spaces are 4 


provided, correct? 5 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Um hm. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Now, let me first, I know the 7 


Petition for Special Hearing has also requested sort of a non-8 


conforming designation as to the parking.  Can you, can you 9 


address that and whether you believe the parking is non-10 


conforming, and if so, why? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  If the parking is going to be 12 


existing, wherever people are parking before, whether it was 13 


lined or not, whether it was paved or not, regardless of the 14 


location, it was in a commercial zone and being used for the 15 


principal use that it could remain the way it was always being 16 


used in the past. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And that parking areas were shown on 18 


this prior plan? 19 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, it was. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  From, from the 1990s? 21 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and the parking, to the best of 23 


your knowledge, was utilized as it is today, back in the 1990s? 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I don’t think it’s changed, no.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Was it like that when you were out 1 


there? 2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes.   3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And you said you actually parked there? 4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I actually parked out there, yes. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  How about, Mr. Richards, no sort 6 


of alternative relief was requested.  We reference 409.12.  7 


What is that provision of the zoning regulations and how might 8 


that apply? 9 


  MR. RICHARDS:  You can amend 409.  It’s, to ask for a 10 


parking lot that maybe would not be striped, it might not be 11 


paved, you might not have required screening and there may be a 12 


lesser number of spaces.  409 is very complex.  It involves a 13 


certain width of driveways of certain size spaces.  You need, 14 


excuse me, you need certain size aisles for the parking.   15 


  Some people ask for stadium parking and that would be 16 


a change that you could ask for under that provision, where, 17 


where, where you would have a person that would drive the cars 18 


and just stack them up.  You could get more cars than a lot 19 


that way.  And do like a stadium park.  You’d need to ask for 20 


that 12 provision for something like that.  And there’s a lot 21 


of provisions in 409, and anyones that you couldn’t meet to the 22 


letter of the law, you could ask that it be amended.   23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Or modified? 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Or modified, yes.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  And that’s 409 allows a modification of 1 


any of those standards? 2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, it does.   3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, it does. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Do you have an opinion as to whether 6 


the parking that’s actually onsite out here is adequate and 7 


appropriate for this use, given the history? 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Over the years, and absent any 9 


complaints documented to the, you know, it not being enough, 10 


then I would say that it’s okay. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 12 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I mean, you know, the, you know, it’s, 13 


it’s, it’s obviously hasn’t caused a problem over, and what’s 14 


it, twenty, at least since the zoning change, I mean, it was 15 


long before that.  But since the zoning change there hasn’t 16 


been a problem with anybody documenting any problems with the 17 


parking or the uses. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Mr. Richards, would it be a 19 


hardship on the property owner to have to tear up the lawn or 20 


provide additional parking?  Would that possibly detract from 21 


the use or the character of the property? 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It would, it would -- 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Objection, objection to that question.   24 


  CHAIR:  Well, that’s, that is leading. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Leading and it’s compound. 1 


  CHAIR:  Yeah. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 3 


  CHAIR:  Why don’t, why don’t you just say what would 4 


the effect be? 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, what if, what if any, what if any 6 


impacts would be on the property by provide, by a requirement 7 


to provide additional parking? 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, it’d have to require that they 9 


tear up the lawn, they could, they might have to line the 10 


driveway to put parallel parking in.  It would affect the views 11 


and the use and the original use, yes. 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and do you believe it would be 13 


warranted in this case from a zoning perspective to require 14 


additional parking? 15 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I wouldn’t require if over the years 16 


the use has existed as it was and, and there were no complaints 17 


that it was affecting the neighborhood.   18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Thank, thank you, Mr. Richards.  19 


I don’t have any other question, questions. 20 


  CHAIR:  Mr. McCann? 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yes, thank you. 22 


  VOICE: (inaudible).   23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Write it down for me because 24 


(inaudible). 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 1 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I’m sorry. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  That’s all right.  Good afternoon, Mr. 3 


Richards. 4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  You’re not going to wish me a good 6 


afternoon?   7 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Hey. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Good to see you.   9 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Same here. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I know you know this question is 11 


coming, but I’ll ask it anyway.  You’ve done some consulting 12 


over the past couple years, I think you’ve already discussed 13 


that.  Have you ever worked or consulted for any of, any 14 


community groups or any of my clients in opposition to any 15 


development or zoning requests? 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  So far, I had one, one group down in, 17 


in the east side of the County, yes.  But I didn’t have to 18 


testify.  I just answered the telephone. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and that, and that was -- 20 


  MR. RICHARDS:  A lot of times, a lot of times my 21 


contacts are just a telephone call that sometimes isn’t too 22 


short.   23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.  I’m talking about testifying or 24 


offering opinions in opposition. 25 
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  MR. RICHARDS:  Not, not at a, at a hearing, no. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, fair enough.  So, just, you know, 2 


a couple things.  First, you, you indicated that the physical 3 


structural tent does not matter for purposes of analyzing the 4 


non-conforming use issue.  That’s your, your testimony, 5 


correct? 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yeah, but I don’t consider a tent a 7 


structure either.   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, -- 9 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I mean, I don’t think, in Baltimore 10 


County, I don’t think it would meet the definition of a 11 


building.  But the, the type of coverage isn’t important to me, 12 


but the use is. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, let me ask you first about that.  14 


You just said that you didn’t, you wouldn’t consider it a 15 


structure.  Were you here for the testimony of the other 16 


persons in this case? 17 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Did you hear the testimony that the tent 19 


is, has been described, not just by me, but by others, as a 20 


permanent tent with, that is attached to the building?   21 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I heard the use of the word permanent, 22 


I don’t necessarily would agree with that. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Well, have you, have you seen the 24 


tent recently? 25 
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  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  When? 2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I don’t think it’s a permanent 3 


structure -- 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  When, when did -- 5 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I guess about a year or so ago, yes. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  You went out and looked at the tent? 7 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I did look at the tent.  I mean, I, I 8 


was inside of it.   9 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  You didn’t mention that before.  10 


On what, for what, for what reason were you out there? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It was pretty fancy, I mean, it looks 12 


really nice, and you feel nice and safe and covered in there. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It’s the same use area as if you 15 


didn’t have the tent. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, well, getting back, well, we’ll 17 


get to the use area that you’re, you’re, you’re talking about.  18 


I’m just talking about the, the, the tent structure itself.  19 


It, it doesn’t matter to you, or you don’t consider it even a 20 


building, even though it’s permanent, it’s attached to the 21 


house, it has HVAC and electrical to it, you don’t consider 22 


that to be a structure or building of any sort? 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I don’t, I don’t consider that part of 24 


the use as a zoning use, you know, as a permanent building, no. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, and you make this 1 


distinction, and Mr. Evans was asking you about the distinction 2 


between the use and the, and the building itself.  When you, 3 


when you test, when you state that the non-conforming use 4 


analysis doesn’t apply to the building, only the use, are you, 5 


are you relying upon 104 itself when you say that?  Are –- 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’m, I’m relying on 104 and my 7 


experience through the years, yes.   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 9 


  MR. RICHARDS:  That there’s a lot of non-conforming 10 


uses that have no structure on them at all.  There’s also non-11 


conforming uses that have temporary structures.  So, whether 12 


you call it a temporary or permanent, I don’t know what the 13 


issue is.  I mean, we’re talking about a use. 14 


  CHAIR:  So, Mr. Richards, Mr. Richards, if, if, 15 


assume for the moment that the, the tent that we’re talking 16 


about was an actual, actually attached as part of the mansion, 17 


okay? 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Okay. 19 


  CHAIR:  I, how does that affect the analysis? 20 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It can be attached.  I mean, it would 21 


keep people dry, you know, -- 22 


  CHAIR:  But how does it affect non-conforming use 23 


analysis?   24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I, I’m sorry, we didn’t hear that.  25 
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Could you repeat that, Mr. Evans? 1 


  CHAIR:  If, if it were, if it were, let, let’s say it 2 


was an addition to the, to the mansion, okay?  So, that it was 3 


a building, how, how would that fact then influence the non-4 


conforming use analysis? 5 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I don’t think it would affect it one 6 


bit, because the use was in the patio, not in the structure.   7 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, you just said patio.  Mr., Mr. 9 


Evans’ question was not, and I assume, and I’ll ask a different 10 


hypothetical, if that’s not what you’re asking, Mr. Evans.  Not 11 


that it’s a patio but it is, it is an addition.  No different 12 


than the addition that we talked about earlier that’s behind 13 


the mansion.   14 


  Say it’s got everything that the house has, it just 15 


happens to be an extension or an addition into the, the DR-3.5.  16 


Is, how did that affect the non-conforming use analysis? 17 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I don’t think the non-conforming use 18 


changed one bit. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Not, not the use but how would the 20 


structure, the use of that structure, how would that change the 21 


analysis? 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I don’t think, I mean, I don’t, I 23 


don’t really understand your question.   24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.  Let me ask it this way.  Maybe a 25 
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little differently than Mr. Evans.  So, we, if you’re correct, 1 


tomorrow the owner of this property could construct a forty by 2 


sixty self-standing catering accessory building on the DR-3.5, 3 


could do that today and automatically that would, that wouldn’t 4 


have any non-conforming use implications.  Is that your 5 


testimony? 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  If the use area, you know, if it 7 


wasn’t being used for that previously, yes. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  But if it, I’m just talking about the 9 


structure itself, just the, the addition of a structure that I 10 


just described on the completely unattached to the mansion 11 


building, but sitting on, as an accessory building on the three 12 


point, on the DR-3.5 and it was constructed today, post-2000, 13 


that would have non-conforming use implications would it not? 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Not in the DR-3.5 unless it was used 15 


previously as the same use area. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, well, all right.  104, and we can 17 


all look at it, and I’m sure the Board will, also speaks to 18 


non-conforming structures, does it not?  Non-conforming 19 


buildings? 20 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  In fact, non-conforming buildings 22 


or structures can’t be extended, correct, can’t be expanded by 23 


a certain percentage? 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Twenty-five percent, yes. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  And is there also common law that 1 


addresses the, the implications of non-conforming structures?  2 


Is there, is there not case law on that issue as well? 3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’m only thinking of the zoning issue. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  You’re not familiar with any case 5 


law that addresses that? 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I think I remember it being brought 7 


up, but it’s not really a factor for me.   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  Well, you also, well, 9 


you spoke about, I think Mr. Schmidt asked you explicitly about 10 


the non-conforming parking.  In fact, that’s part of the relief 11 


sought in this case.  Does the, the parking lot, the physical 12 


parking lot, that’s in the DR-3.5, does that have non-13 


conforming use implications? 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  If it was zoned BM originally, yes. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, excuse me, I’m sorry.  I dropped my 16 


phone here.  So, it does, it is relevant, that is, the physical 17 


parking that exists in the DR-3.5 needs to be established as a 18 


non-conforming use? 19 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, in my interpretation, by looking 20 


at the different development plans, I’d say absolutely yes.   21 


  MR. MCCANN:  And, and what do you mean by that?  22 


Looking at the different -- 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It meets non-conforming use standards.  24 


It was there before the zoning change.  It was there as a 25 
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permitted part of the principal use. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  What was there? 2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Parking.   3 


  MR. MCCANN:  The same parking that’s there today? 4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  The same what? 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  The same parking that’s there today? 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, we could, and I don’t have to 8 


do it with you right now, but in our, in our time, we can go 9 


back and look at the, the parking that’s on the site today and 10 


compare it to those prior plans that were approved and that 11 


would support the establishment of that parking as a non-12 


conforming use? 13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I don’t see the parking any different 14 


than what it was before. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.   16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Now, well, I didn’t go out and count 17 


the spaces, but the same area looks like it’s being used. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 19 


  CHAIR:  And the, again, the operative date is 20 


December 2000, correct?    21 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Absolutely (inaudible) maps were 22 


final, yes. 23 


  CHAIR:  If it’s different in 1990 than what we have 24 


today, but it’s the same in November of 2000 as what we have 25 
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today, then that satisfies the non-conforming use, correct? 1 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, absolutely.   2 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  And to that point, are you aware of any 4 


plans that were approved in 2000 or prior to December of 2000, 5 


other than those that you’ve been shown so far this afternoon? 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Mostly, the plan that I looked at the 7 


most, even before today, was the 1991 development plan that 8 


showed the area, even though it didn’t concern the actual 9 


commercial use property, it showed the commercial use and it 10 


showed the, the different areas of use, it showed the parking 11 


and I’d say that whatever was shown on that plan and whatever 12 


is shown on the ’94 or ’93 plan that Mitch Kellman approved, 13 


those two plans were very instructive to determining whether 14 


there’s a non-conforming use with the parking or not.   15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I don’t think that answered my 16 


question, but that’s okay, I’ll move on.  With respect to the, 17 


the caretaker’s issue, if I heard you correctly, and I’m not 18 


sure that I did, that you would consider that the proposed, or 19 


the req, the Petition Special Exception to not even be 20 


necessary because it was used residentially in the past and 21 


you’ve always read the, the caretaker’s provision to mean a new 22 


residential use, one that was not used in the past? 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Correct. 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and on what do you base your, your 25 
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opinion, or your belief that it was used, it meaning the 1 


mansion, was used residentially in the past?  What do you base 2 


that on?  And by, by in the past, I mean, go ahead, I’ll let 3 


you answer.   4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, the, the current owner may want 5 


a decision that’s not appealable.  If I was a zoning supervisor 6 


and I approved an insurance letter or approved a use for tax 7 


purposes, if I looked at it and determined that we could 8 


approve living quarters in there because of the existing 9 


conditions on the property, then that decision that I made and 10 


documented, could be appealed.  But I’m not, I’m telling you I 11 


have enough information that I would have made that decision 12 


from listening to this case.   13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Well, I’m asking you what about 14 


this case that you’ve heard, and I think you just used the term 15 


existing conditions, what are the existing conditions that 16 


would supp, that support your belief that there, there would 17 


not need to be a special exception for the caretaker’s --   18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, somebody was living there, 19 


correct? 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  I’m asking you.   21 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I mean, I, that’s the testimony I 22 


heard. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  When, -- 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Back as far as the Trinitarians it was 25 
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used as a residence, and that use continued.  And that was a 1 


small part of the second floor, maybe it wasn’t part of the 2 


catering operation, but somebody was living there. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, anytime any, with regard to any, so 4 


any time it was used, as long as it was used at some point in, 5 


in the past.  It doesn’t matter whether it was forty years ago, 6 


for some period of time, it hasn’t, doesn’t matter whether it’s 7 


been used recently or, or now as such, you would not require a 8 


special exception? 9 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, if it was fifty years ago and no 10 


use in between, I probably wouldn’t.  But because I’ve heard 11 


testimony in this case that not too long ago in the nineties 12 


and 2000s, I think even, that there was somebody living there, 13 


that’s the basis I would make that decision, yes. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  The, the testimony was what it 15 


was, but what, your, your opinion in that regard is based on 16 


what was stated during the course of this hearing in terms of 17 


residential use, correct? 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, and I would make that decision 19 


based on no con, no challenges to the person living there from 20 


the community, no complaints or existing violations on the 21 


property and those two things I would consider before I would 22 


give any approval, yes. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  You said no complaints and what else, no 24 


violations? 25 







179 
 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No challenges. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  To the use or no violations on the 3 


property, documented violations. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, a couple questions there.  5 


Number one, you did not conduct some independent investigation 6 


outside of the course of this hearing today about when, if and 7 


when, the, the mansion was used residentially.  You didn’t 8 


undertake that? 9 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No, I don’t.  10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Did you, likewise, did you ever, did you 11 


do a search or conduct any investigation to determine whether 12 


there are any complaints? 13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I, I haven’t but I’m only telling you 14 


that’s a criteria I would use. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’m giving you a criteria that I would 17 


have before I would do an approval and that’s one of them.   18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I’m not asking about how you would 19 


do an approval.  For better or worse, you’re no longer head of 20 


Zoning Review.  I’m just asking in support of your testimony 21 


today, did you undertake any investigation or search for any 22 


complaints about the residential use or, for that matter, the, 23 


the tent structure? 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Did you speak to any of my 1 


clients or anybody else in the community?  Did you -- 2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Your comments, can you repeat it? 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Did you, did you go out to the site and, 4 


and speak to anybody from the community about any of this? 5 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No, I did not.  Did I, did, I can ask 6 


you a question? 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  No. 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Oh, because that gives me a good one.   9 


  CHAIR:  Mr. Richards, you can’t do that.   10 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Okay.   11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  He knows better, Mr. Evans.  He’s just 12 


trying to get a rise out of Mr. McCann 13 


  CHAIR: (inaudible). 14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Sorry.   15 


  CHAIR:  Yeah. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, on that, I guess related to that, 17 


you talked about the impacts in, in connection with the special 18 


exception standard.  Your testimony about there, that there 19 


would be no impacts and that this proposed special exception 20 


complies with the factors in 502.1, is just based on your 21 


review, it, of the use, it’s not based on any investigation you 22 


did, for instance, any communications with folks in the 23 


neighborhood or my clients, is that true? 24 


  MR. RICHARDS:  That’s based on my fifty years’ 25 







181 
 


experience is what it’s based on.   1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, but you don’t live in this 2 


community, right? 3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I didn’t go out to the property and 4 


investigate, no. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  How many parking spaces are 6 


required under the zoning regulations?  Could you just restate 7 


that for us?   8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’m sorry, what was the question 9 


again?   10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  How, how many, how many parking 11 


regulate, how many parking spaces are required under the zoning 12 


regulations? 13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It, it’s twenty per thousand but if 14 


part of that was used as a residence and office, you’d have to 15 


subtract that area.  So, they may be a lot closer to the 16 


parking then they think, what’s required.   17 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, put aside the residential 18 


aspect of it.  You said twenty per a thousand square feet, 19 


correct? 20 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  And that’s in 409? 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, it is. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and maybe I just missed it.  Is 24 


that, is there a separate use in 409 for catering facilities, 25 
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or does it fall in somewhere else? 1 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No, but it’s, it’s similar to a 2 


restaurant and catering, you know, they’re all twenty per 3 


thousand where you would have eating and, and sitting. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, that’s, that, I think, I 5 


think you answered my question.  So, if we go to look at 409, 6 


it lists all these uses in a chart and it -- 7 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  -- tells us the required number of 9 


parking spaces.  You looked at, you looked at restaurants to, 10 


as a comparison? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  And not carryout restaurant, right?  Not 13 


fast food?  Which, which type of restaurant did you use for 14 


that calculation? 15 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It would be a standard restaurant. I 16 


don’t have the page open right now. 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  But anywhere where you’re serving food 19 


with the tables, you know, like a restaurant is twenty per 20 


thousand.   21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 22 


  CHAIR:  Would that mean there would have to be five 23 


hundred parking spaces, if it’s ten thousand square feet, 24 


right?  If it’s ten thousand square feet -- 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  That, that would be the math, Mr. 1 


Evans.  That’s correct.  Assuming the entire building -- 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Hold, hold on.  Larry, you can’t 3 


testify. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  No, I’m sorry (inaudible). 5 


  CHAIR: (inaudible) I was ask, actually asking Mr. 6 


Richards but -- 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Oh, I’m sorry.  I thought you were 8 


asking me.   9 


  CHAIR:  So, the math is if this is ten thousand 10 


square feet, it would require five hundred parking spaces under 11 


409, right? 12 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Um hm, that’s correct. 13 


  CHAIR:  Okay, okay.   14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I’m sorry, Mr. Evans.  I thought you 15 


were asking me.   16 


  CHAIR:  That’s okay.   17 


  MR. MCCANN:  I have 409 and I think this is important 18 


enough that at least I should pull up and ask you where that 19 


comes from because I don’t see it, frankly.  I see standard 20 


restaurants, I don’t see the twenty per thousand.  So, real 21 


quick, I’ve got 409 here, Mr. Richards.  And I’ll blow it up.  22 


Can you see it?  Mr. Richards?  Do you see it? 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’m looking now.   24 


  CHAIR:  I think he’s, he’s looking at a hard copy. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Oh, okay, got it, got it.  It’s 409.6 in 1 


particular, right?  And I’ll go down to standard restaurants, 2 


which is I think what you said.   3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Okay.  Look at the top of page four 4 


colon forty in the zoning regs.   5 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Nightclub, tavern, strip tease, 7 


catering hall or drive-in restaurant, twenty per thousand.   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Got it, okay, great.  Thank you.  9 


Appreciate that.  Sorry to waste the time on that.  How many 10 


square feet is the, is the mansion, do you know? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’m sorry, what was that?   12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Can you say it again, Mr. McCann? 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, how many square feet is the 14 


mansion?  Or what would, what square footage did you use in 15 


determining the number of required spaces? 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I didn’t figure the number of parking 17 


spaces.  You know, I, the engineer may have done that, but I 18 


didn’t do that.   19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But you determined under 409.12 20 


that there was sufficient undue hardship for a modified parking 21 


plan, right? 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  If it was like that all over the 23 


years, I’m sure the existing owner would want to confirm that 24 


it could continue the same way it has existed through the 25 
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years.  And if it didn’t meet the exact number, or wasn’t 1 


paved, or wasn’t striped, or didn’t have a wide enough 2 


driveway, that it could still remain and be used. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, the answer to my question is 4 


yes, there, you believe there’s, there’s an undue hardship?  5 


That’s the standard, right?   6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and, essentially, why you believe 8 


so is because it’s already there, why would we make them comply 9 


with the law, right? 10 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Correct. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, bear with me one second.  You know 12 


when 409.12 came into existence?  When it was part, part of the 13 


zoning regulations offhand? 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yeah, I think it might even say it in 15 


the regs, if you have the regs open. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yep, I’m looking now, yeah. 17 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’d say eighties or nineties.   18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  Bear with me one 19 


second.   20 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’m, I’m guessing in the late 21 


eighties, but you know I’m not sure, because in the regs it 22 


doesn’t, it doesn’t give you a quote next to the requirement. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But I, I would guess at least the 24 


eighties. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  So, well before the parking lot was 1 


established? 2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I believe so, yes.   3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and real quick, I don’t want to 4 


belabor this too much either, but this .74-acre parcel that’s 5 


shared with the community over near the pool, are you familiar 6 


with that? 7 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Like the overflow lot?  Yes. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, yeah, I think that’s how you refer 9 


to it. 10 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Correct. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Isn’t that, wouldn’t that require a, a 12 


shared parking adjustment under the zoning regulations?   13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  If it’s not paved, if it’s not 14 


striped, if, you know, all the little things, I don’t know.  I 15 


didn’t go out and measure the spaces and the driveways and see 16 


if it’s paved or not now. 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  But if it can’t meet those 19 


requirements, it, it could be part of that request, yes. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  And that’s under 409.6, right?  Shared 21 


parking adjustments?  Let me, I don’t want, I don’t want to 22 


drag this out too much, but there’s a provision, is there not-- 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Six is the number of spaces.  You were 24 


talking about twelve, I believe, weren’t you? 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  No, I’m talking about 409.6(B)(3) and I 1 


can pull it up.  I’m just trying to move things along, but I 2 


can certainly pull it up. 3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  The number or (inaudible) adjustment, 4 


or ride sharing?   5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Here. 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Oh, shared parking adjustment. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Oh, no, I have no, you know, whether 9 


that was, I guess in the past, if the time differential worked, 10 


then it was approved.   11 


  MR. MCCANN:  I’m not asking whether it has been 12 


approved, just that provision, 409.6(B)(3), essentially, 13 


requires when you have a shared parking arrangement that, in 14 


this case, between the community pool and the mansion, there’s 15 


some findings that need to be made, correct? 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, yes. 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  And the, but you didn’t look at that, 18 


correct?  Is that a yes? 19 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, it doesn’t, it doesn’t 20 


(inaudible) that one of the uses isn’t residential. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  You believe that under 409.6(B)(3) one 22 


of the uses needs to be residential? 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, I, you know, I guess the owner 24 


can appeal it and say that that provision was in effect when 25 
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the plan was approved. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 2 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And the residents can’t use that lot. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.   4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  It has restaurant on there and I think 5 


we would look at the current use similar to a restaurant. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  But you didn’t look at that prior to 7 


today, I just want, correct? 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I’m sorry, what? 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  You did not look at that prior, or give 10 


some consideration to that prior to today, correct? 11 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and then, likewise (inaudible) -- 13 


  MR. RICHARDS: (inaudible) part of an agreement, I 14 


guess.  It was part of an agreement that was approved 15 


originally. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Do you know that, Mr. Richards or are 17 


you just asking -- 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Shared parking adjust, shared parking 19 


with the overflow lot. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Are you asking or are you telling me 21 


that’s what you understand is the case? 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I, I mean, that’s what I heard at the 23 


hearing.   24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. RICHARDS:  That there was an agreement, and I 1 


don’t know whether zoning was part of that agreement.  And 2 


you’re asking me if it meets this regulation.  Well, how would 3 


I know if I wasn’t part of the agreement or improved it?   4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  Thank you, Mr. 5 


Richards.  No other questions.   6 


  CHAIR:  Anyone from the Board have any questions for 7 


Mr. Richards? 8 


  MR. LAUER:  I do, if I might, Mr. Chairman.   9 


  CHAIR:  Sure. 10 


  MR. LAUER:  Mr. Richards, can you hear me? 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yes, can you hear him? 12 


  MR. LAUER:  Can you hear me?  Okay. 13 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes, yes. 14 


  MR. LAUER:  Two things here.  Number one, considering 15 


that portions of the property were rezoned to DR-35 in 2000, 16 


are there other alternatives to getting that zoning corrected? 17 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I think the councilman made a mistake. 18 


  MR. LAUER:  Okay.  Can, can the property owner go 19 


appear and ask to have that zoning corrected?  How is that 20 


corrected? 21 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Well, -- 22 


  MR. LAUER:  If there is a mistake? 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  -- an administrative hearing is a lot 24 


easier for you to okay it at the Board than it is to go through 25 
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the whole zoning process.   1 


  MR. LAUER:  So, what you’re saying is, you’d have to 2 


go through the whole zoning process again, the next time 3 


there’s a comprehensive rezoning?   4 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Either comp or out of cycle, yes. 5 


  MR. LAUER:  Okay.  Second thing, does the fact that 6 


there’s a kitchen, I believe there was testimony that there’s a 7 


kitchen and bathroom on the second floor.  Would that affect 8 


your determination of whether the property was used as 9 


residential? 10 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I think a building inspector, if he 11 


looked at those utilities, he would say yes, that can be used 12 


as an apartment.   13 


  MR. LAUER:  And it would be, it would also affect 14 


your determination if you sent an inspector out to look at it 15 


and they came back and said hey, there’s a kitchen there, 16 


there’s a bathroom there, and would -- 17 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 18 


  MR. LAUER:  Yeah, okay.  That’s all I got, thank you. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Evans, I had something on re-20 


direct, -- 21 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- I didn’t know if the Board had any 23 


questions and I just forgot to ask the witness this.  Mr. 24 


Richards, I asked you, I think, about the, all the standards 25 
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for the special exception and I, I didn’t differentiate per se.   1 


  Is, is your opinion different if there’s one person 2 


or two people living in the apartment?  Does, do, do you see 3 


that there would be a detrimental impact if there was a husband 4 


and wife there as opposed to if it was just a single person, or 5 


does it even matter for your analysis?   6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I don’t think zoning wise, the number 7 


of people in a family makes no difference.   8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, your conclusions would be 9 


the same, that there would be no detrimental impact if it was a 10 


couple, when I say couple, a husband and a wife or a man and a 11 


significant other or whatever -- 12 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Correct. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- than if it was just one person? 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Absolutely not.   15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  That, that’s all.  Thank you. 16 


  CHAIR:  All right.  Mr. McCann, is -- 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I just had one follow-up, and this 18 


is to Mr. Lauer’s question. 19 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Mr. Richards, you, you said that if the 21 


commercial kitchen was there and an inspector saw it, that that 22 


would affect your determination.  I guess my, what, what 23 


determination would that affect? 24 


  CHAIR:  Well, Mr. McCann, I don’t think he said the 25 
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commercial kitchen.  I think he was talking about the 1 


residential kitchen.  It was a residential kitchen in the 2 


second stor, on the second, second floor. 3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Right. 4 


  CHAIR:  That’s I think what Mr. Lauer was asking 5 


about, not the commercial kitchen. 6 


  MR. LAUER:  That is what I was asking, yes.   7 


  MR. MCCANN:  I didn’t, I didn’t hear anywhere today 8 


that there was a residential kitchen on the second floor. 9 


  CHAIR:  Well, there was testimony to that effect.   10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Oh, back in, oh, okay. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yes.   12 


  MR. MCCANN:  I didn’t, I didn’t hear it was still 13 


there today, that’s, maybe that’s what I’m asking.  I, I didn’t 14 


-- 15 


  CHAIR:  Well, -- 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  It was twenty years ago.  And it’s been 17 


remodeled.  So, let’s assume that there was still a residential 18 


kitchen today on the second floor and that it hasn’t, hasn’t 19 


changed since, I think, I think, well, whenever said it was 20 


there.  What determination would that affect?  You said 21 


something, it would affect your determination. 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I think if, if, if I was making a 23 


determination of whether to approve a caretaker there, living 24 


quarters, before I would do it without a special exception and 25 
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approve the use, I want to make sure, number one, that recently 1 


it was used as an apartment, like maybe in the last eight or 2 


ten years or so, not fifty years, but sooner than that. And is 3 


it physically still existing, like the utilities, maybe a 4 


meter, like a bathroom and a kitchen. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  Right. 6 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And I would send an inspector out 7 


there to look at it and give me a report that it could be used 8 


as a residential unit before I would make that zoning decision, 9 


yes.   10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Got it.  So, you, you were talking, in 11 


response to Mr. Lauer’s question, about what you would do 12 


sitting in your office across from my office as zoning, as head 13 


of the zoning office, what you might do? 14 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Yes. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 16 


  MR. RICHARDS:  And what criteria I would use -- 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  All right. 18 


  MR. RICHARDS:  -- before I would approve that, yes. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  When, when, when you would make the 20 


decision as zoning, as the head of zoning, whether or not 21 


someone needed a special exception or not? 22 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Correct.  Those are the criteria I 23 


used.  And I used many times.   24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, well, that is among your many, 25 
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that, that was among your very, your many superpowers over 1 


there, was it not, deciding when and when not a special 2 


exception -- 3 


  MR. RICHARDS:  You know what, if it’s appealable, 4 


it’s not that super, correct? 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, well, we can talk about whether 6 


you had the power or not, but that’s, that’s a different, 7 


that’s a different story.  So, thank you for that 8 


clarification.  Thank you. 9 


  CHAIR:  But isn’t the ultimate point here, and, is 10 


that the Petitioner has applied for a special exception, so Mr. 11 


Richards’ criteria, whether they’re idiosyncratic or office 12 


wide, aren’t really the question here.  He’s just saying what 13 


he would do if he were in charge.  But in, in this particular 14 


case, a special exception has been applied for, right? 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  I agree.  I was just reacting to Mr. 16 


Lauer’s question. 17 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And Mr., Mr. Evans, we, I mean, you’re 20 


correct.  We’ve applied for the special exception.  Mr. 21 


Richards is no longer sitting in that office to make that 22 


request. 23 


  MR. RICHARDS:  No. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  But I think it’s his background as to 25 
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the way he views this. 1 


  MR. RICHARDS:  I only, I only thought that my thought 2 


process could, if I had this same situation, that my thought 3 


process could help you make your decision.   4 


  CHAIR:  Okay, thank you.  We appreciate that.  All 5 


right.  Any other questions for Mr. Richards?  No?  Okay.  Mr. 6 


Richards, you’re excused.  Thank you very much.  As always, we 7 


appreciate your contribution. 8 


  MR. RICHARDS:  Thank you.   9 


  CHAIR:  Um hm. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Evans, I, that would be the 11 


Petitioner’s case.  I just want to make sure my exhibits are in 12 


that I submitted to the Board.  I think one through seven were 13 


the exhibits that were before the ALJ and are already in your 14 


file and I think we talked about them.   15 


  Eight were the new photos that Ms. Pomykala talked 16 


about, the ones with the crane.  Nine was her sort of chart 17 


about the history, just her informational chart.  Ten was the 18 


CZMP log of issues, which Mr. Richards talked about.   19 


  And, and eleven is just a letter, I know the Board 20 


gets letters before and after, and there was a letter from the, 21 


about the historic application that I, was sent to me as 22 


opposed to you.  I think it’s a to, to whom it may concern 23 


letter and I included that as eleven, the eleventh exhibit.   24 


  And I know I don’t have Mr. McCann’s exhibits and he 25 
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doesn’t have mine and there, maybe there ought to be some 1 


requirement to exchange them before the hearing, but those 2 


eleven exhibits are mine.   3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I sent them to you.   4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  When? 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  Early, just, you know, when we last 6 


brought this up.  So, within the last hour and a half or so. 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Oh, okay.  Okay. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  But those are, just so we’re clear, 9 


these are cross examination exhibits, which I don’t have to 10 


disclose but as the Petitioner, I think we’ve always 11 


understood, Larry, that you’re supposed to send them in advance 12 


of the hearing, so -- 13 


  CHAIR:  Well, be that as it may, let’s move on here 14 


today.  And so, Mr. McCann, it seems to me the only two 15 


exhibits that are potentially at issue here would be Exhibit 16 


11, which is -- 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I haven’t seen it.  But -- 18 


  CHAIR:  And then, back to, I think, Exhibit 7, was 19 


that the newspaper articles?   20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Actually, that was five.   21 


  CHAIR:  Five, okay. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Five.   23 


  CHAIR:  So, have you had a chance to look at the 24 


newspaper article? 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, five is okay. 1 


  CHAIR:  Okay, five is okay. 2 


  MR. MCCANN: (inaudible) for the reasons I indicated. 3 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  And I haven’t looked at the chart, to be 5 


honest with you, but my first glance at it, it seems to be 6 


okay.  But, -- 7 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, why don’t you ponder the 8 


question of Exhibit 11 and -- 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 10 


  CHAIR:  -- and we’ll come, we’ll return to that, for, 11 


at, at some further point. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, sounds good.  Sounds good.   13 


  CHAIR: (inaudible) the Board is inclined to admit it 14 


(inaudible). 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I understand, I understand.   16 


  CHAIR:  Yeah, okay.   17 


  MR. MCCANN:  In fact, you know, since it’s just a 18 


chart, it describes (inaudible), if I see any mistakes I could 19 


just point them out in the brief, you know, the deed says 20 


something otherwise.   21 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 22 


  MR. MCCANN: (inaudible). 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And just so we’re clear, I’m not 24 


representing that to be some legal title search or anything 25 
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like that.   1 


  CHAIR:  That’s okay, that’s fine.  We understand. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Ms., you know, Ms. Pomykala put that 3 


together so she had, could help her testify, that’s all. 4 


  CHAIR:  We’re all good with that, okay.  Okay, so 5 


it’s admitted.   6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 7 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yep. 9 


  CHAIR:  So, Mr. McCann. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yes. 11 


  CHAIR:  The ball is now in your court. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  I think Steve Weinstein is 13 


with us.  He would be our first witness.   14 


  CHAIR:  Okay, let’s see if we can make him a 15 


panelist, right?  Okay, Mr. Weinstein, can you hear us? 16 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes, I can.   17 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  You are now a panelist. 18 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Let me start the video.   19 


  CHAIR:  Okay.   20 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Let’s see, I’ve got to -- 21 


  CHAIR:  It’s working, it’s just not, there it is.  22 


There it is, okay, there it is.  Okay, all right.  I guess we 23 


need to swear you.   24 


  MR. LAUER:  Would you raise your right hand, as you 25 
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just have.  Do you swear and affirm under the penalty of 1 


perjury, that the testimony you are about to give is true and 2 


correct to the best of your knowledge and belief? 3 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I do. 4 


  MR. LAUER:  And please give us your name, spell your 5 


last name and your address for the record. 6 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Steven Weinstein, W-E-I-N-S-T-E-I-N, 7 


I live at 207 John Eager Court, Pikesville, Maryland. 8 


  MR. LAUER:  I’m sorry, repeat that address again, I 9 


didn’t quite get it. 10 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  207 John Eager Court. 11 


  MR. LAUER:  Okay. 12 


  CHAIR:  Is that Steven with a P-H or V? 13 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  V. 14 


  CHAIR:  V, okay.  15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, thank you, Mr. Lauer.  Mr. 16 


Weinstein, tell the, the Board where it is that the address you 17 


just identified is in relationship to the mansion. 18 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  My backyard backs up to the circle 19 


right in front of the mansion. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, maybe what I’ll do is, I have 21 


an exhibit.  It’s the, I’ll share this.  This is Protestant’s 22 


Exhibit 3.  This is a My Neighborhood map.  Do you see that, 23 


Mr. Weinstein? 24 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Do you see the mansion property 1 


where it says BR? 2 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you, your, where is your house?  4 


Just -- 5 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Just below where your cursor is.  Go 6 


down, straight down, down, down, down, down, down a little 7 


more, right there.   8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Sort of in this little box. 9 


  MR. WEINSTEIN: (inaudible) the top end right there is 10 


my unit. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and these are, what kind of units 12 


are these?   13 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  We’re considered, my site is 14 


considered the villas.  We’re basically a townhouse that’s done 15 


as a condo. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Let me just, just describe 17 


generally, I know we’ve talked a lot about the community.  But 18 


just describe real quick if you would the Grey Rock community, 19 


what types of houses it consists of and who lives there, 20 


demographically maybe. 21 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  There are two halves.  You’ve heard 22 


about the flats and the villas.  The villas are a, everything 23 


is a condo.  The villas are a townhouse condo where the flats 24 


are more of an apartment condo, an apartment type unit that’s a 25 
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condo. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 2 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  And everything above my unit going to 3 


Greentree Road -- 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm. 5 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  -- is the flats and everything below 6 


my building going towards Reisterstown Road is the villas. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and Greentree, we’ve talked about 8 


that a couple times, that’s this road here that curves around-- 9 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  -- the flats? 11 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  All right, great.  The Grey Rock 13 


Maintenance Corporation, tell us what that is and what your 14 


affiliation is with that corporation. 15 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  With having two condo associations, 16 


the maintenance corp was set up to own and maintain the common 17 


areas, the main roads in and out of the community, which is 18 


Grey Rock Road and Howard Square Road.  It’s the swimming pool, 19 


the guardhouse the fences that enclose the community, the 20 


stormwater management ponds.  They were all put into the Grey 21 


Rock Maintenance Corp.  And the Grey Rock Maintenance Corp. is 22 


owned by the flats and the villas. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Evans, if it’s appropriate at this 25 
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point in time, I’m going to object to any testimony that the 1 


witness makes about this in reference to that as the Grey Rock 2 


Maintenance Corporation is not a corporation in good standing, 3 


according to the State Department of Assessments and Taxation.  4 


And is thus, not a, not a valid entity in the State of 5 


Maryland.   6 


  So, I suspect the witness can testify as a resident, 7 


but not on behalf of an entity which does not, is not in good 8 


standing with the State of Maryland.   9 


  CHAIR:  Yeah, I’m not sure that’s the law on, with 10 


regard to corporations that aren’t in good standing.  But 11 


let’s, let’s, your, your comment is noted and let’s just 12 


continue and see where we go with this, okay?   13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Thank you. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Mr. Weinstein, amongst the properties, 15 


just for, by way of background, you described Grey Rock Road 16 


here and then we talked quite a bit about this sort of circle 17 


turnaround that’s right in front of the mansion, do you see 18 


that? 19 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  So, this parcel that’s sort of roughly 21 


rectangular and the one below it, which is very much oblong, 22 


are those parcels owned by the maintenance corporation? 23 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes, they are. 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and are those, as I asked an 25 
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earlier witness, are those parcels maintained by the 1 


maintenance corporation? 2 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes, they are. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  How long have you 4 


lived where you’ve lived, Mr. Weinstein? 5 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I purchased the house in 2008 and 6 


moved in a couple of months later in 2009, after having done 7 


some renovation work. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and who do you live with? 9 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  My wife. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Kids are out of the house? 11 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you’re, I neglected to ask you 13 


what your position with the maintenance corporation is. 14 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I am currently the president of the 15 


maintenance corporation. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and how long have you held that 17 


position? 18 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  For just about a year. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Are you here testifying this 20 


afternoon both as an individual resident of the community and 21 


as a president of the corporation? 22 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and have you, well, number one, did 24 


you have the pleasure of sitting through the hearing before the 25 
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Administrative Law Judge? 1 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Well, I wasn’t sitting, but yes, I 2 


was on it. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I think I recall you were in, 4 


somewhere out of town. 5 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I was in Vail, Colorado skiing, 6 


listening to the hearing. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yes.  And then, have you had the 8 


pleasure of sitting through today’s hearing? 9 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes, I did. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  And are you familiar with, with what’s 11 


been proposed by the mansion in terms of the relief it’s 12 


requesting of the Board? 13 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  What, if any, concerns do you 15 


have about the relief that’s being sought in this case? 16 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Well, the concerns that I heard 17 


through the community, everyone’s worried that if you allow a 18 


residential component in the mansion, that at some point that 19 


it could be expanded.   20 


  You hear about fights all the time where something 21 


was allowed and people have pushed the boundaries on it, and 22 


then the community would be in the position of having to try to 23 


get the restrictions enforced through the County, through the 24 


Courts and that’s something that the community is very worried 25 
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about.   1 


  And then to move, you know, from the Administrative 2 


Law Judge allowing one person there, now they’re asking for a 3 


couple to be allowed there, what’s to stop, you know, a forty-4 


year-old and his thirty year old wife, or whatever, from having 5 


babies and all of a sudden, we have a whole family living 6 


there?   7 


  Their front yard is our property, which they use on a 8 


regular basis.  Mrs. Pomykala claimed that they didn’t, but her 9 


bridal parties are out in the grass there taking wedding 10 


pictures almost every affair.   11 


  One party years ago, before the Pomykalas owned the 12 


property, someone was having a sweet sixteen for their daughter 13 


and wanted to impress their friends and landed a helicopter in 14 


the front circle.  They had a tree that needed to come down, 15 


they pulled a crane onto our property, doing damage to our 16 


property, never bothered to fix it, clean anything up.  We 17 


wound up having to fix the mess that they made.   18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm. 19 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Mrs. Pomykala said that, you know, 20 


was talking about having to clean up their grounds after a 21 


party.  They’ve never once sent those clean up people down Grey 22 


Rock Road to get the cups and bottles and beer cans and all 23 


that wind up in our grass when those people are leaving.  24 


They’ve been a bad neighbor. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah.  Well, getting back to the, the 1 


caretaker facility, and you heard the testimony this morning, 2 


other than the fact that it could be expanded and beyond what 3 


is requested in the future, what about the impact, if any, that 4 


you think just having an additional resident or two or more 5 


might have, what impact, I think you might have just spoken to 6 


it, but I just want to make sure that we’re clear about what, 7 


what those impacts may be.  Aside from just something happening 8 


in the future. 9 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yeah.  You know, I think that this 10 


building has existed in this community for twenty years, 11 


roughly, based on previous testimony with no one living there.  12 


It hasn’t burned down.  It hasn’t, you know, fallen apart.  13 


There have been no big issues and even Ms. Pomykala testified 14 


that there have been no issues in the couple years that they’ve 15 


owned this building.  I don’t see why there is all of a sudden 16 


a need for this today.   17 


  CHAIR:  But put that aside, Mr. Weinstein, whether 18 


they need it or not.  The question is whether it impacts the 19 


flats or the villas.  That’s really the, the point. 20 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Any, any traffic going in on our 21 


roads, which they are not paying a penny towards the upkeep, 22 


maintenance of, has an impact on us.   23 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 24 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  It’s more traffic in and out of our 25 
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community.  They allow a box truck to park in the parking lot 1 


down by the pool, which we are responsible under that easement 2 


to maintain.  They don’t pay, maintain it, but yet they’re 3 


allowing a box truck now to come in every day in our community, 4 


use our roads, leak oil on our parking lot and they don’t 5 


contribute a penny. 6 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 7 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  To me, they’re a bad neighbor.   8 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, I get that.  I get that.  Just 9 


trying to understand the specific issues here and the specific 10 


issue that is being addressed at this moment is the negative 11 


impact from having, we’ll call it a caretaker couple, in the 12 


mansion.   13 


  The negative impact from that feature.  And what, 14 


what I understand you to say is that, even that, what would 15 


appear (inaudible) to be a small impact is, it generates more 16 


traffic and it’s onerous even, even when limited to that 17 


extent.  Is that -- 18 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  And again, the fact that they never 19 


stop people from using our property.  I don’t, you know, I 20 


don’t need more people out there using it.  They don’t pay to 21 


maintain it.  They don’t pay to use, you know, for anything 22 


with it.   23 


  I don’t want, you know, someone else who’s living 24 


there, they really, other than the little bit of a grass area 25 
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next to the tent, they don’t have a, you know, a real yard.  1 


And that’s why people are always out there taking pictures in 2 


our grass area, utilizing our space and -- 3 


  CHAIR:  Okay, okay. 4 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  -- we don’t need more people doing 5 


that.   6 


  CHAIR:  All right, okay.  Got it. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Mr. Weinstein, there’s also been 8 


a lot of discussion, well, let me back up.  Some of the 9 


concerns that you’ve just expressed, both about a caretaker but 10 


also about the, the, I think you called them bad neighbors, 11 


have you expressed these concerns to them over the years and to 12 


the predecessor? 13 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  We, we have, I, I was not involved 14 


until about a year and a half ago.  So, I don’t know the 15 


conversations and everything that went beyond that. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 17 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I know there was discussions between 18 


Rachel Hess, our lawyer and Larry on behalf of the owners about 19 


trying to get some kind of a contribution towards our 20 


infrastructure that we’re responsible for. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm. 22 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  That has, nothing has really come 23 


about from that.  So, I know there were previous discussions.  24 


We have, since I’ve gotten involved, we, I have reached out to 25 
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the Pomykalas about it and, basically, I got told to go fly a 1 


kite.  And, you know, that’s where we are at the moment. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I’m asking less about the 3 


contributions to the maintenance and more so about, the 4 


concerns about the use of the mansion and the living quarters 5 


as affecting the community.  Any, any, you mentioned the trash 6 


and some of the other things that, have, have you or your 7 


predecessors reached out to them about that? 8 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I believe there have been some 9 


letters and there’s a letter getting ready to go out to the 10 


Pomykalas now.  Recently they had a party there where they had 11 


armed guards.  The armed guards at the bottom of the circle 12 


were trying to stop our residents from walking around on our 13 


property.  So, that, and there was another party recently that 14 


the music was blaring till midnight. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yep. 16 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I believe is in violation of the 17 


zoning laws.  So, there’s a letter getting ready to be sent out 18 


by Rachel Hess to the mansion for those items. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  You’ve heard a lot since you, 20 


you’ve been attending the hearing, you heard a lot about the, 21 


the tent, the tent structure.  And when it was there and when 22 


it wasn’t there.  What’s, having been there, as you said, since 23 


approximately, what did you say, 2008? 24 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Two thousand nine I moved in.   25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, what, what, if anything, can you, 1 


can you add to that discussion? 2 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I do not recall a tent there when I 3 


moved in.  I have dogs, I walk that community three to four 4 


times a day and I do not recall a tent there.  And I went onto 5 


Google Earth and found a picture from the end of 2008 on Google 6 


Earth, a picture I had sent you, Mike, that does not show the 7 


tent.   8 


  If, you know, if you look at the picture before from 9 


a year, couple years before, there’s a big, the picture quality 10 


is not great, but there’s a big white blob there.  You look a 11 


couple years later, there’s a big white blob there.  The one 12 


picture that I found from two thousand, the end of 2008, shows 13 


more of a blue/gray color, which to me is the patio, because 14 


it's a flagstone patio.   15 


  So, the fact that they’re saying that the tent was 16 


not, was there continually, I don’t buy.  In addition, the 17 


pictures that you were showing earlier to the prior owner, I 18 


don’t remember his last name, if you look between, I think it 19 


was like 2004 and 2005 pictures, the tent (inaudible) is 20 


different.  So, the tent has changed, unlike what his testimony 21 


is, you know, based on my observations. 22 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  You mentioned that the, the 2008 23 


aerial.  Let me just pull that up and mark that.  And this 24 


would be, this would be nineteen.  Do you see that? 25 
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  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  All right.  Is this the -- 2 


  MR. WEINSTEIN: (inaudible). 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  I’ll zoom in, yes.  Is this the one you 4 


were talking about? 5 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  And where did you get this from? 7 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Google Earth. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and does this, it says mansion 9 


10/2008 up here. Is that your addition? 10 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes, yes, I put that in. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  How, how do you know it was October 2008 12 


when the aerial was taken? 13 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  That was on the tag that was on the 14 


Google Earth website. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and why don’t you go ahead, now 16 


that we have it up, describe what it is.  This is your address, 17 


207? 18 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  But tell, tell us what, what you 20 


wanted to point out about this. 21 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  You see the little blue dot right 22 


next to where it says Grey Rock Mansion. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 24 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Just to the right of that is where 25 
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that tent should be. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 2 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  And all I see is a blue/gray color 3 


there, which to me, is the flagstone patio there, not a tent. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 5 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  And again, I looked, and the picture 6 


quality from back, you know, in these days isn’t as good as it 7 


is today, unfortunately.  But I looked at a picture from like 8 


two years before, you saw a bright white blob.  You looked for, 9 


you know, like a 2010 picture, again, still a little grainy, 10 


but you saw that big white area. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 12 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  You don’t see that in here.   13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, I think you testified that 14 


you don’t recall seeing a tent there when you first moved in.  15 


How is it that you, I think you said you walked, but how is it 16 


that you would know that, number one.  And number two, did you, 17 


have you at any time seen a tent there? 18 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes, a couple years after I moved in 19 


is when the tent appeared.  Again, with the dog, I walked the 20 


neighborhood and a lot of times we would walk around the circle 21 


as a lot of the neighbors do, walking around, just for 22 


exercise.  And that’s when I noticed the tent.   23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, you think it was after you 24 


moved in, that’s the first time you saw it anyway, a couple 25 
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years after? 1 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yep. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Is it, is the, is the tent 3 


structure something that can be seen from the, from the circle 4 


in front of the mansion? 5 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 7 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  There’s, there’s low shrubbery at the 8 


edge of the mansion and that walkway that you pointed out on an 9 


aerial previously, so when you’re walking around the circle 10 


it’s very easy to see. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Well, let me just, I wanted to 12 


show you these photographs anyway.  These are Exhibits 1 13 


through, 1-A through F and we’ll just go through them real 14 


quick and, is this a photograph you took? 15 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I believe so. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Do you know when approximately it 17 


was?  I think we used these last time. 18 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I think I took these before the 19 


hearing last year.  So, it was probably November/December of 20 


’21.   21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and where are you standing?  Are 22 


you in the circle or somewhere beyond it? 23 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  No, I was in the circle. 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  Real quick I’ll go 25 







214 
 


through these.  1-B? 1 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  That again, I think I was in the 2 


walkway just shooting down towards the little grass area and 3 


their gazebo.  That’s where they, that’s, most of that land is, 4 


or actually that is almost all the DR-3.5.  And in front of the 5 


gazebo is where they set up chairs and all for weddings all the 6 


time, in the residential neighborhood. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  1-C? 8 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  That’s coming from the other side, 9 


pointing up towards the tent and the mansion. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 11 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  And look again, that’s the grass area 12 


where they set up the chairs for the weddings.   13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  I know the Board has a lot of 14 


photographs, but just for the record anyway, 1-D is sort of the 15 


same view, just a little closer? 16 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and 1-E, we’ve already seen that 18 


one, I think. 19 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yeah, or something very similar, 20 


yeah. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, and lastly 1-F.  Where is this 22 


from? 23 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  This is actually from our grass area 24 


that we own.  The mansion owns to the edge of the paving back 25 
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towards the mansion. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm. 2 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  And up along the edge of the 3 


evergreen trees that you see on the right edge. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 5 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  And everything on, in front of that 6 


paving is owned by the Grey Rock Maintenance Corp. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 8 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  And so, you can see from the circle 9 


and even from the grass area, that tent is very visible.   10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you walk, you mentioned walking 11 


your dogs, do you walk your dogs regularly, have you since you 12 


first moved in, in the circle? 13 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  Just make sure that’s 15 


it.  Okay.  Before I let you go, anything else you wanted to 16 


add, Mr. Weinstein? 17 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Mrs. Pomykala mentioned that they, 18 


she uses her labor from Gramercy a lot to do the work here. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 20 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  If she can do that, what’s the need 21 


for a handyman onsite?  It sounds like most of the work is 22 


being done now with her other labor.  Why is it suddenly so 23 


important to have somebody onsite living there?  And the other 24 


thing, which no one, I never saw Mr. Schmidt or anyone show was 25 
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any kind of a permit for building this tent in the first place. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, okay.  Thank you, Mr. Weinstein.  2 


I’ll move the exhibits into evidence, and they were Exhibit 19, 3 


the aerial photograph, and then Exhibits 1-A through F, which 4 


were the photographs.  And with that, with that, I have no 5 


other questions. 6 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Any cross examination, Mr. Schmidt? 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, very briefly.  Mr. McCann, can 8 


you put up Exhibit 19?  I think that’s the Google Earth 9 


picture. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Sure. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Weinstein, Mr. McCann has put up 12 


this photograph again.  And you’re, you’re saying this, this 13 


shows what? 14 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I’m, when I went to the pictures from 15 


like two years before this and two years after -- 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  You have those?   17 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I do. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Well, are they (inaudible) -- 19 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I think I sent them to you this 20 


morning, Mike.  Did you get the e-mail I sent you this morning 21 


with three pictures?   22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Weinstein, you have to answer my -- 23 


  CHAIR:  Don’t, we don’t just have conversations.  24 


You’re a witness under oath, okay?  So, just answer the 25 
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questions and if you have a document, you can say you have it.  1 


If you don’t, you can say your counsel has it.  But you don’t 2 


just start talking, okay?   3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, Mr. Weinstein, this 4 


purportedly shows what?  And I’m not asking you to compare it 5 


to anything, but this particular photograph shows what in your 6 


opinion?  Because I’m, I’m, I’m, I’ll be honest with you, I 7 


can’t, the, the resolution is so difficult, I can’t tell what 8 


it shows other than where the building is.  What do you think 9 


this shows? 10 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I don’t think it shows a tent there 11 


in, in, on 10 of, in 10 of ’08, in October of ’08, when -- 12 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 13 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  -- Google Earth has this image, I 14 


don’t see the white tent there. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  You don’t see the white tent there, 16 


okay.  Thank you.  Okay.  You, okay, so, so, and I know you 17 


indicated on your direct examination that the, the maintenance 18 


corporation has hired an attorney, correct, to contact Mrs. 19 


Pomykala and her, her LLC about contribution for expenses in 20 


the community, is that correct? 21 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes. 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Weinstein, you’re under oath, is, 23 


isn’t your opposition in this case all about trying to get 24 


leverage to force the Pomykalas to pony up some money to, to 25 
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pay for things?  Do, you, you really object to a single 1 


caretaker, or a, or a couple living in that, in that place and 2 


keeping an eye on it?   3 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I, I don’t know why it’s necessary 4 


after all this time and I --    5 


MR. SCHMIDT:  I didn’t ask, I didn’t ask -- 6 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  -- (inaudible) a lot of my neighbors 7 


are concerned that that use expands and grows. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 9 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  And that’s why we’re fighting this. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Well, Mr. Weinstein, if the 11 


Board of Appeals makes a determination that nobody other than a 12 


couple can be there, so that’s a requirement that the Board 13 


would impose, then would that allay your concerns that it would 14 


turn into something else? 15 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Well, I want to know how they’re 16 


going to make sure that that couple doesn’t have a family in 17 


the future.  That, if so a younger couple, a younger couple 18 


that they don’t have babies there, and now we have a family 19 


living there. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  So, we might have a family living 21 


there?  Oh, my God, what, what, what, -- 22 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  We don’t, we don’t need to go there. 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay. 24 


  CHAIR:  You don’t need to be snarky here, okay?   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  I’m sorry, but this is all about the 1 


leverage, okay.  I’ll move on.   2 


  CHAIR:  He’s denied, he’s denied that that’s the 3 


motive.   4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 5 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 6 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Now, Mr., Mr. Weinstein, you moved in 7 


in 2008, correct? 8 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  No, I purchased it in 2008, moved in 9 


in 2009. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  If I can ask, where did you live 11 


before then? 12 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I lived in, in Avalon, in a townhouse 13 


over there.   14 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Did you ever come to this 15 


property, the Grey Stone Mansion property, prior to your moving 16 


in here, or purchasing the property? 17 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Yes, yes. 18 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  For what purpose? 19 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Probably five, six years before we 20 


were there for a bar or bat mitzvah. 21 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Was there a tent? 22 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I believe there was a tent at that 23 


time. 24 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  So, that would have been 25 
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around, around 2000 or about that, that time frame? 1 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Probably around 2002. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and, and you think that tent has 3 


been removed on one or more occasions since you first saw it in 4 


2002 until now? 5 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Bill Clowney, when he testified at 6 


the original hearing, said that in 2004 that he had taken down 7 


the tent and replaced it.  And to me, that coincides with the 8 


pictures and the different orientation.  But I believe the tent 9 


was not there when I moved in. 10 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  You, do you have a transcript of 11 


the prior testimony?  Because that’s not what Mr. Clowney said. 12 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  I do not have a transcript with me. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  I have it. 14 


  MR. WEINSTEIN:  But you do.   15 


  MR. MCCANN:  I have it.  We can provide it to the 16 


Board.   17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, okay.  All right.  Okay.  I don’t 18 


have any other questions.  Thank you, sir.   19 


  CHAIR:  Any questions from the Board? 20 


  MR. LAUER:  I do not. 21 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Mr. Weinstein, thank you very much.  22 


We appreciate your contribution.  We appreciate your patience 23 


all day long and we certainly thank you for your testimony.  24 


Thank you, okay? 25 
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  MR. WEINSTEIN:  Thank you for the time hearing this 1 


on our behalf. 2 


  CHAIR:  Sure.  Okay.  So, I’m going to put you back 3 


to where you were.  Okay.  Mr. McCann, another witness?   4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, thank you.  I’ll, I’ll try to go 5 


through these quicker.  I think they will be quicker.   6 


  CHAIR:  Take your, look, if we have to come back or 7 


we have to go late today, we’ll, we do whatever we need to do 8 


to make sure your, you get to present your case, okay? 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  I appreciate it.  But I don’t foresee 10 


that happening at all.  So, -- 11 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  -- just a couple more.  So, I think I 13 


saw Doris Randall present.  If she could be unmuted. 14 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  I’m going to make her a panelist, 15 


right? 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  I’m not sure if she has a camera or not. 17 


  CHAIR:  Okay, all right.  Well, she’s unmuted.  Ms. 18 


Randall, can you hear us? 19 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yes, I can. 20 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Do you have a camera or are you just 21 


by audio? 22 


  MS. RANDALL:  I do have a camera, but I’m not sure if 23 


I know how -- 24 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, we can do it by audio.  That’s 25 







222 
 


fine, that’s fine. 1 


  MS. RANDALL:  Okay.   2 


  CHAIR:  Yeah.  Okay, you need to be sworn. 3 


  MR. LAUER:  Ms. Randall, please raise your right 4 


hand.  Do you swear and affirm under the penalty of perjury, 5 


that the testimony you are about to give is true and correct to 6 


the best of your knowledge and belief? 7 


  MS. RANDALL:  I do. 8 


  MR. LAUER:  And please give us your full name, 9 


spelling your last name and give us your address for the 10 


record. 11 


  MS. RANDALL:  My name is Doris Randall, R-A-N-D-A-L-12 


L.  I live at 40 Thomas Craddock Court, Pikesville, Maryland 13 


and that is in the Grey Rock community. 14 


  MR. LAUER:  Thank you very much.  You might try the 15 


stop video screen or start video on your screen. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Do you see that, Ms. Randall, at the 17 


bottom?  Well, I’m happy you got on.  I know we were talking 18 


about (inaudible). 19 


  MS. RANDALL:  Right.   20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Is it okay if I go ahead? 21 


  CHAIR:  Yes, please. 22 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  Thank you.  Ms. 23 


Randall, can you see the screen?   24 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  I’m going to show you what 1 


I just showed Mr. Weinstein, and that is this map.  Just 2 


identify real quickly where it is that you live.  I see, if you 3 


don’t mind me pointing it out, I see Thomas Craddock Court, 4 


which is sort of behind or north, northwest, of the, the 5 


mansion property.  Is that where you live, in that area? 6 


  MS. RANDALL:  Okay, bring your arrow to the left 7 


where there’s a circle, double circle, keep going. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yep. 9 


  MS. RANDALL:  Okay.  Now, angle down to the right 10 


corner. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Right here? 12 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yep, that’s me.   13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Good, okay.  So, you’re, you’re almost 14 


due west of the mansion property. 15 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yes, my patio backs up to the parking 16 


lot side of the mansion, which is opposite from where the tent 17 


is. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and how long have you lived there? 19 


  MS. RANDALL:  I moved in in June of 1998. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and who do you live with, or who 21 


have you lived with over that time? 22 


  MS. RANDALL:  At that time, I moved in with my 23 


husband.  Sadly, he suffered a heart attack two weeks after 24 


that, so, I’m widowed now.   25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, you said, I’m sorry, June 1 


1998? 2 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yes. 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you’ve listened to the hearing 4 


today, or most of it anyway? 5 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yes, yes. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you have a good understanding, 7 


you believe, of what is being proposed by the mansion and what 8 


is, what relief is requested? 9 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yes, I think so. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Did you also hear the testimony 11 


so far today about the tent structure? 12 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yes, I did. 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  And what, if anything, can you add to 14 


that discussion about when it was first at the mansion 15 


property?  Do you have any knowledge about that? 16 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yes.  In, as I said, in June of 1998 17 


when I moved in, the community was only half developed.  I was 18 


a big walker in the community every day, I was working full-19 


time at that time.  So, I would walk in the morning and then 20 


usually in the evening. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm. 22 


  MS. RANDALL:  Basically, through the whole community, 23 


including the mansion area, just about daily. 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm. 25 
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  MS. RANDALL:  There was no tent when I moved in, 1 


period.  Not temporary, permanent, small, large, there was no 2 


tent.  Again, it was June, which I’m assuming was the height of 3 


wedding season. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm. 5 


  MS. RANDALL:  So, periodically then there would be a 6 


tent, I guess, for lack of a better term, I’ll call it a 7 


temporary tent, that would be put up for an event, might be 8 


there for a few days, may be there for a week to cover several 9 


events.  But it was a tent that would be up and down, not 10 


something that was left for an entire season.  That’s how that 11 


progressed for a fairly extensive period of time. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 13 


  MS. RANDALL:  I really, I can’t say when they, they 14 


then converted to a permanent structure.  I, I just don’t, it 15 


was definitely, we’re talking at least a year, maybe longer 16 


before they got to that permanent structure.  But until then, 17 


they were very temporary structures that would be up and down, 18 


as needed. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Are you able to recall that at 20 


some point or I think you said that the term, the temporary, 21 


the tent became permanent.  Are you able to tell us whether 22 


that was, whether that happened before or after 2000? 23 


  MS. RANDALL:  I really could not say definitely a 24 


date but. 25 
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  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 1 


  MS. RANDALL:  No, I just could not do that.   2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, all right.  Any other, any 3 


concerns that you have that you want to express to the Board 4 


based on what you’ve heard today and based on what relief is 5 


requested by the mansion? 6 


  MS. RANDALL:  No. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  None that haven’t been already 8 


said -- 9 


  MS. RANDALL:  Right. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  -- or none at all?   11 


  MS. RANDALL:  No, no concerns.   12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  All right.  Thank you, Ms. 13 


Randall. 14 


  MS. RANDALL:  Okay, thank you.   15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Appreciate it. 16 


  CHAIR:  Any cross? 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Very briefly.  So, Ms. Randall, you, so 18 


you moved in in the summer of 1998, correct? 19 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yes. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And you said you don’t know when the 21 


permanent tent would have gone up, but I think you said 22 


initially maybe about a year after you moved in, you couldn’t 23 


say for sure, is that correct? 24 


  MS. RANDALL:  Yes. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, that would be then 1 


consistent with what Mr. Skudrna said, that they actually put 2 


the tent in in 1999, is that correct? 3 


  MS. RANDALL:  Could be, yes. 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, very well.  Thank you, ma’am.  I 5 


don’t have any other questions. 6 


  MS. RANDALL:  Okay.   7 


  CHAIR:  Anyone from the Board?   8 


  MR. LAUER:  No. 9 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Ms. Randall, thank you very much.  I 10 


don’t need to repeat everything I said to Mr. Weinstein, but we 11 


do, we do appreciate your participation.  Absolutely.   12 


  MS. RANDALL:  Thank you.   13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Richard Soypher would be next. 14 


  CHAIR:  All right.  Richard Soypher, okay.  Mr. 15 


Soypher, can you hear us? 16 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I can, I can. 17 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Can you see us? 18 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I can see you.  19 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  We can’t see you for some reason. 20 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Can you give me a second, see if I can 21 


make this adjustment. 22 


  CHAIR:  There we go.  Yep, we see you now.   23 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Thank you. 24 


  CHAIR:  Yep, okay.  You want to swear the witness, 25 
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Mr. Lauer? 1 


  MR. LAUER:  Yes, sir.  Raise your right hand.  Do you 2 


swear and affirm under the penalty of perjury, that the 3 


testimony you are about to give is true and correct -- 4 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I will. 5 


  MR. LAUER:  -- to the best of your knowledge and 6 


belief? 7 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I do, thank you. 8 


  MR. LAUER:  And please, give us your name for the 9 


record, spell your last name and give us your address. 10 


  MR. SOYPHER:  My first name is Richard, and my last 11 


name is Soypher, S-O-Y-P like in Paul-H-E-R.  I live at 20 12 


Joanna Court in the community of Grey Rock and that is 13 


Pikesville, Maryland 21208. 14 


  MR. LAUER:  Thank you, sir. 15 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Thank you.   16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Thank you, Mr. Lauer.  Mr. Soypher, the 17 


property you just described, tell us where it is in 18 


relationship to the mansion property. 19 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I live on Joanna Court, so if you want 20 


to go all the way to the upper left corner, well, to the left 21 


corner, the community there.   22 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yep. 23 


  MR. SOYPHER:  You see Joanna Court? 24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yep. 25 
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  MR. SOYPHER:  And go, all the way in the far corner, 1 


all the way near you, far left corner.  That’s it, I live right 2 


there.   3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  And how long have you 4 


lived there? 5 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I moved in in August of 1999. 6 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and who do you live with? 7 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I live with my wife. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you’ve sat through both the ALJ 9 


hearing as well as the Board of Appeals hearing today, correct? 10 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I did, correct. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  And what’s your, what, if any, 12 


affiliation do you have with the Grey Rock Flats Condominium 13 


Association? 14 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I am the President of the Grey Rock 15 


Flats and I’ve been in that position for approximately three 16 


years.  But I’ve been on the board since approximately 201. 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  You say 201, you mean February 2001? 18 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Yeah. 19 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.   20 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I entered the board, but I’ve been the 21 


president for the last approximately three years.   22 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Are you testifying in your 23 


individual capacity, as well as on behalf of the flats 24 


condominium association? 25 
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  MR. SOYPHER:  That’s correct. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And Mr. Evans, I, pardon me, Mr. 3 


McCann.  I understand your prior ruling, but again, according 4 


to the Department of Assessments and Taxation, Grey Rock, Grey 5 


Rock Flats Condominium Council, Inc. is not a corporation or 6 


entity in good standing in the State of Maryland.  So, I don’t 7 


know how this witness could testify on its behalf.  But I’ll 8 


just say that and shut up.  Thank you, sir.   9 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, that objection is noted.  But 10 


does this require rule eight documents for this witness. 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I, I, I would think so, as a community 12 


association. 13 


  CHAIR:  Yeah. 14 


  MR. MCCANN:  Well, I’ll ask him, I’ll ask him to 15 


testify as an individual just to avoid -- 16 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Can I, can I ask a question real 17 


quickly, just curiosity as the President -- 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  It’s okay -- 19 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Why are we classified not in good 20 


standing?  What does that mean?   21 


  CHAIR:  Don’t worry about that, Mr. Soypher.  That, 22 


that really doesn’t matter.   23 


  MR. MCCANN:  I’ll just ask -- 24 


  CHAIR:  It’s not relevant here, okay? 25 
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  MR. SOYPHER:  Okay, thank you.  Thank you.  I was 1 


just curious. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  You don’t get to ask questions, 3 


unfortunately.   4 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I understand, I was a little concerned. 5 


  MR. MCCANN:  But just in your individual capacity, I 6 


want to ask you some questions, okay?   7 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Sure. 8 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  So, now Mr. Soypher is testifying just 9 


as a resident of the community. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  Correct.   11 


  CHAIR:  Okay, okay.   12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Mr. Soypher, first of all, let’s talk 13 


about the tent issue.  What, if any, recollection do you have 14 


about when the tent structure first appeared and whether it 15 


stayed or not, etcetera? 16 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Well, as I, as I mentioned before, I, 17 


my wife and I moved in here in August of 1999.  Shortly 18 


thereafter, we started attending the, our monthly condo 19 


meetings and they were held at the mansion.  I think one of the 20 


witnesses said that earlier, that they housed the meetings 21 


there.   22 


  And I did attend meetings there on a monthly basis.  23 


And during the beginning period of my attendance of meetings, I 24 


did not see a tent there.  As time went on, there was a tent 25 
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there but not in the permanent structure, style that it is now. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Can you give us a sense of, of 2 


those sort of three time periods?  That is when you saw nothing 3 


there, when you saw something temporary there and when you saw 4 


something permanent -- 5 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Well, I would say I started attending 6 


meetings in September, a month after I moved in here, 7 


September, maybe October.  I’m not sure they had a September 8 


meeting within a month or two in ’99.  And I attended the 9 


meetings.   10 


  I did not see a tent at the back of the facility.  We 11 


met in the ballroom.  Saw no tent through any windows, didn’t 12 


observe any tent on the property when I was walking up to the 13 


property, either the side or the front.   14 


  I, I think I started, I saw a tent, some type of tent 15 


there, not in this present form, in about 2/01, 2/01, 2/02.  I 16 


think you showed a picture of 2/02.  But I saw around that 17 


area, I saw a tent, not in the present formal state it is now, 18 


as it, as showed.  19 


  MR. MCCANN:  And how do you know that?  Well, let, 20 


let, let me clarify, what do you mean when you say not in its 21 


present form when you did see it back in 2001 or 2002? 22 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Well, when I saw it, it didn’t have all 23 


the wheels and, and bells that I could tell by it.   24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 25 
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  MR. SOYPHER:  Looked outside, it was a very informal 1 


type of tent, temporary tent, as Ms. Randall said.  Right now, 2 


it’s more of a type of, more of a permanent structure, and more 3 


bells and whistles to it.   4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and secondly, how is it that you, 5 


you can recall these dates, given that they’re so long ago -- 6 


  MR. SOYPHER:  In looking back at the records when I 7 


first got on the board and trying to piece back my memory. 8 


  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm, okay.  And -- 9 


  MR. SOYPHER:  The best I can. 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  -- when you were attending these board 11 


meetings and you did not see the tent, did you, did you have 12 


the opportunity to do so?  I mean, how, how do we, how should 13 


we, how are we to believe that you had the opportunity to do 14 


so, not that you just didn’t see it? 15 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Well, I was attending our monthly board 16 


meetings. 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 18 


  MR. SOYPHER: (inaudible) into the mansion, that’s 19 


what drew me to the mansion. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 21 


  MR. SOYPHER:  So, I was walking around looking out 22 


windows at various angles from the, from the ballroom. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 24 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I looked in the back a couple times and 25 
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didn’t see any tent. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you recall doing that? 2 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Saw no structure, like a tent, a tent 3 


structure. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Are you able to pinpoint at what 5 


point in time that the tent became permanent and had the bells 6 


and whistles, as you described? 7 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I, I would, well, when it, its present 8 


state it is now, maybe 2/04, 2/05. 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  So, it was some period of time 10 


where it was temporary before it became permanent? 11 


  MR. SOYPHER:  That’s correct. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  All right.  Moving onto the other 13 


issues.  I heard Mr. Weinstein, and you, you don’t need to 14 


repeat anything he said, but do you have anything to add to 15 


what Mr. Weinstein said in terms of concerns about the relief 16 


that’s been requested by the mansion? 17 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Well, one, one of my issues is, he said 18 


it, but I’ll try to talk quickly without being too redundant.  19 


I’m worried of the spinoff problem of allowing any type of 20 


residential in this property.  I’m sure Baltimore County has 21 


other cases where they’re trying to take people off of property 22 


and a spin, off a spinoff has occurred like this where it 23 


started for one purpose, has expanded to other purposes.   24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Um hm. 25 
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  MR. SOYPHER:  I’m really not in favor of a 1 


residential person there for that reason.  That’s (inaudible) 2 


in my mind.   3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Anything else you wanted to add? 4 


  MR. SOYPHER:  No, I’m not going to re, re, go over 5 


anything else anybody said.  I, I, I did find a couple things 6 


interesting.  I did hear the owner’s testimony and some other 7 


previous owner’s testimony about some advantages we would get 8 


as a, having a resident living there, a caregiver living there.   9 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah. 10 


  MR. SOYPHER:  One of the points they mentioned that, 11 


that was that they’ll be someone to help with events there.  I 12 


believe they have supervision there already.  They also 13 


mentioned, somebody mentioned the fact that it would help in 14 


medical emergencies.   15 


  Absent a doctor or a nurse being on, this caretaker, 16 


I don’t see how that would play out.  If they’re providing 17 


supervision, that supervisor is just as capable as a regular 18 


caretaker of making arrangements to have a person addressed 19 


with a medical emergency.   20 


  As to about security, I think the previous owner 21 


mentioned to the affect that that would help our neighborhood 22 


as security.  Well, everything that I’m going to mention to 23 


you, I understand is sort of in a limited sense, and I 24 


understand the value and the, the real value and the potential 25 
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value.   1 


  We live in a gated community.  That means nothing by 2 


itself.  But it is a deterrent for some people.  We also employ 3 


guards at night in the front to cover the whole community for 4 


the benefit of the mansion, as well as the benefit of our 5 


residents.  So, the mean to tell me that to have a caregiver 6 


there is going to provide an extra security for our residents, 7 


is I find to be somewhat of a foolish statement.  I don’t think 8 


it's accurately portrayed.  So, I would make a comment on that, 9 


what advantage it would show for us.   10 


  I don’t think I have anything else to say.  I don’t 11 


want to be, as I said, I don’t want to be redundant.  It’s been 12 


a long day and (inaudible) -- 13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.   14 


  MR. SOYPHER:  -- (inaudible) made my point. 15 


  MR. MCCANN:  Do you agree with Mr. Weinstein’s 16 


comments about his concerns? 17 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I do, I do -- 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 19 


  MR. SOYPHER:  -- have concerns about that.  I do have 20 


concerns. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  Do you share his concerns, I guess, is 22 


my question. 23 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I do share his concerns.   24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Soypher, I 25 
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appreciate it.   1 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Thank you very much.  Thank the Board.  2 


Thank you very much.   3 


  CHAIR:  Thank you.  Mr. Schmidt? 4 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Soypher, when’s the last time 5 


you’ve been in the mansion? 6 


  MR. SOYPHER:  In the mansion? 7 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Um hm. 8 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I haven’t been in the mansion since the 9 


last time we had condo meetings and I, minimally ten years, and 10 


I’m probably more than that.   11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Do, do you know, sir, do you 12 


know where the ballroom is located in the mansion? 13 


  MR. SOYPHER:  The room we were at was the back and 14 


the right, if I remember correctly.  It’s been a while, but 15 


it’s back and right, but I got, okay.  That’s my answer to your 16 


question.   17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, that’s the ballroom.  Are you 18 


aware, sir, that you can’t see the tent from the ballroom? 19 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I’m not aware of it. 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  If I told you that, would that 21 


surprise you?  That you have to go through another door to get 22 


to another room to get to see the tent from, from there?   23 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I don’t have a good answer.  I’ll take 24 


you at your word.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, if that’s correct and you 1 


went into the ballroom for a meeting and couldn’t see the tent, 2 


then, then that wouldn’t necessarily evidence the fact that a 3 


tent was not there, would it? 4 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Well, there’s -- 5 


  MR. MCCANN: (inaudible), go ahead, I’m sorry. 6 


  MR. SOYPHER: (inaudible) the answer to that is not 7 


only did I primarily go into the main room to attend my 8 


meeting, I also walked around the area when I was up there too. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Ah, okay.  I didn’t hear you say that-- 10 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I did get a view of the outside.  I did 11 


attempt to look through the back.  But I did walk around 12 


because I was curious what type of property this was, what type 13 


of facility they had, either for my own personal use to 14 


recommend to a friend or family and the curiosity of being a 15 


neighbor.   16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay and you don’t think having a 17 


presence there twenty-four hours a day would help in the event 18 


somebody tried to break in or if there was a guest there who 19 


had a medical emergency who could call 911, that, that’s not 20 


helpful? 21 


  MR. SOYPHER:  I don’t think so.  But can I, can I 22 


answer besides yes?  Would you allow me, okay -- 23 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Sure, sure. 24 


  MR. SOYPHER:  As I said before, they provide 25 
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supervision.  That person, and everybody’s got a phone in their 1 


real world.  Somebody could make that arrangement. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  How about at 3:00 in the morning when 3 


nobody is there, and somebody tries to break in or there’s a 4 


fire or electrical problem?  Would that be beneficial to have 5 


somebody there then?   6 


  MR. SOYPHER:  You’re speaking of a possibility and 7 


not the reality of it because they, Ms. Pomykala testified that 8 


she has had no such problem at this time.   9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  So, she could never have a 10 


problem -- 11 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Everything is, I would say, could be a 12 


possibility. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Sure. 14 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Potential.  But in reality, she 15 


testified she hasn’t had this problem up to this time and I 16 


would, I would concur with her. 17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  Thank you, sir. 18 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Thank you. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I don’t have any other questions. 20 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Appreciate it.   21 


  CHAIR:  Any questions from the Board?   22 


  MR. LAUER:  No. 23 


  CHAIR:  Okay, Mr. Soypher, you are excused.  Thank 24 


you.  As with both Ms. Randall and Mr. Weinstein. 25 
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  MR. SOYPHER:  Okay.  Thanks for your service.  1 


  CHAIR: (inaudible) your time and we appreciate your 2 


patience. 3 


  MR. SOYPHER:  Thank you.  Yep.  Okay. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Trying to get one, one person by phone 5 


while that was going on, Mr. Evans. 6 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  But I think Larry Levin, or Levin, I’m 8 


sorry, is on the phone, is, is on the Webex.   9 


  CHAIR:  8-6-8, 4-1-0-8-6-8? 10 


  MR. MCCANN:  No, no, no, Lawrence -- 11 


  CHAIR:  Oh, Lawrence Levin, I see, I’m sorry.  Okay. 12 


  MR. LEVIN:  I’m (inaudible). 13 


  CHAIR:  There he is.   14 


  MR. LEVIN:  Good afternoon, gentlemen.   15 


  CHAIR:  You’ve made your appearance here.   16 


  MR. LAUER:  Would you raise your right hand, please?  17 


Do you swear and affirm under the penalty of perjury, the 18 


testimony you’re about to give is true and correct to the best 19 


of your knowledge and belief? 20 


  MR. LEVIN:  I do. 21 


  MR. LAUER:  And please give us your name, spell your 22 


last name and your address for the record. 23 


  MR. LEVIN:  My name is Lawrence, that’s with a W, 24 


Levin, L-E-V as Victor-I-N.  My address is 8823 Howard Forest 25 
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Lane, Pikesville, Maryland 21208. 1 


  MR. LAUER:  Thank you, sir. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Lauer.  Mr. Levin, 3 


I apologize for mispronouncing your name, I should know better.  4 


But let me share with you, if I could, the, the map we’ve all 5 


been looking at and real quick, just where in relationship to 6 


the subject property you live. 7 


  MR. LEVIN:  Go due south and I’m in here somewhere.  8 


Let’s see, Howard Forest. 9 


  MR. MCCANN:  Right -- 10 


  MR. LEVIN:  Right about there, go, stop. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 12 


  MR. LEVIN:  Right in that area.   13 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you’re, you’re part of the 14 


villas, as opposed to the flats, right? 15 


  MR. LEVIN:  That is correct. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  And by the way, how many units are in 17 


the villas? 18 


  MR. LEVIN:  There are a hundred and fifteen units in 19 


the villas. 20 


  MR. MCCANN:  Do you know how, how, how many there are 21 


offhand in the flats? 22 


  MR. LEVIN:  One hundred sixty. 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great.  And how long have you 24 


lived in the property you just described? 25 







242 
 


  MR. LEVIN:  Since 2017. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay.  Relatively recently and who do 2 


you live with? 3 


  MR. LEVIN:  My wife. 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and you’ve sat through the ALJ’s 5 


hearing as well as this hearing, is that correct? 6 


  MR. LEVIN:  That is correct. 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay and without repeating any of the 8 


concerns expressed by Mr. Weinstein and Mr. Soypher, do you 9 


have anything to add, or can you tell us, I guess, number one, 10 


do you agree with the concerns that they’ve expressed? 11 


  MR. LEVIN:  I understand some of their concerns.  12 


What I would like to suggest here, and this was based on one of 13 


Mr. Schmidt’s questions to Mr. Weinstein.  Unfortunately, there 14 


is what I will call, I, I hesitate to say adversarial, but 15 


certainly the relationship between the, the mansion and the 16 


other parties, is, is possibly, may be one of distrust. 17 


  I appreciate that both sides today have presented 18 


their cases to the Board, and I thank you for, for your time.  19 


And I understand possibly much of what was presented is not 20 


relevant to the decision you will make as, as a zoning matter. 21 


  The concern that I have, and has been expressed to me 22 


by other residents, relates to a story possibly anecdotal, 23 


which came out when the zoning was first filed and it came as a 24 


surprise to everyone, the zoning request.   25 
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  It was suggested that, rumored, whatever, that the 1 


alternative to the mansion getting the zoning variance that was 2 


being requested, they would sell, this would become a funeral 3 


home, it would become a, an assisted living facility.  I don’t 4 


know that that is the case.  I don’t believe that that is the 5 


case. 6 


  But the concern I have would be if the Board does 7 


decide, as it can, that a caretaker apartment is appropriate 8 


for this facility, that that permission be framed in such a way 9 


that any renovations necessary to create the apartment be 10 


limited to the apartment.   11 


  And that the permission, if granted, not be so broad 12 


as to permit, effectively, an infrastructure, a permit for 13 


infrastructure changes to electric, plumbing, etcetera.  Such 14 


that the mansion could be converted to other use than, than a 15 


catering hall.   16 


  It is what it is now.  And that frankly is the 17 


biggest concern that I personally have.  The, you know, 18 


hopefully over time, relationships get better.  That would be 19 


very useful for all parties concerned.  I certainly appreciate 20 


the work that the Pomykalas are putting into renovating the 21 


mansion. 22 


  By the same token, it should be appreciated that the 23 


residents of the flats and the villas have a vested interest in 24 


preserving their own lifestyles as, as well as we can.  So, I 25 
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guess on, on that note, I don’t think that I have anything more 1 


to say.   2 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Mr. Schmidt? 3 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I don’t have any questions, thank you. 4 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Anyone from the Board?   5 


  MR. LAUER:  No, sir. 6 


  CHAIR:  Okay, all right.  Mr. Levin, we will excuse 7 


you with our thanks.   8 


  MR. LEVIN:  Thank you, gentlemen.  I appreciate your 9 


time.   10 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, Mr. Evans, I did speak to one 12 


other person who wanted to say something and I, while I don’t 13 


think it’s necessary, I don’t want to break a promise to her, 14 


so. 15 


  CHAIR:  No, no, no, yes, let’s here from her. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Could, could I have a moment?  I don’t, 17 


I don’t see her phone number.  She was someone that could not, 18 


doesn’t have the capabilities to do it by computer.  But I told 19 


her to call in and -- 20 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 21 


  MR. MCCANN:  But I’ve been trying to call her while 22 


you guys have been talking and I haven’t been able to reach 23 


her, but can I take a two-minute break and give it a better 24 


shot or -- 25 
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  CHAIR:  Yes, absolutely. 1 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay, great. 2 


  CHAIR:  We’ll take, I’m going to go off the record 3 


for five minutes and -- 4 


  MR. MCCANN:  And she would be our last witness.  5 


Thank you. 6 


  CHAIR:  -- and then we’ll, we will -- 7 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 8 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 9 


(PAUSE) 10 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  We are back on the record, and I 11 


believe, Mr. McCann, you have a witness? 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  I, actually I do not.  I was able to 13 


reach her, thank you for that.  And she said she didn’t have 14 


any great urge to, to testify. 15 


  CHAIR:  Oh, okay.  Oh, well, I misunderstood you 16 


then.  Okay.  So, do you have any other witnesses? 17 


  MR. MCCANN:  We do, we do not. 18 


  CHAIR:  Okay and Mr. Schmidt, do you have any 19 


rebuttal witnesses? 20 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I do not. 21 


  CHAIR:  Okay.  Well, then that concludes the hearing.  22 


So, what we need to do, I guess, is establish a briefing 23 


schedule.   24 


  MR. MCCANN:  Okay. 25 







246 
 


  CHAIR:  And I, I don’t want to pressure anyone.  This 1 


is a tough time of year with the holidays.  So, does anyone 2 


want to suggest a date?  I, I, if left to my own devices, I 3 


would probably say January 9th, or, or January 6th or maybe 4 


January 9th.  Something like that, but what -- 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. Evans, I just, I was talking to my 6 


client when I had you on mute.  I know there had been a 7 


question about the size of the apartment.  And during the lunch 8 


break we did try to take a look at that.  If I could have Ms. 9 


Pomykala just answer how big we think it is square footage, if 10 


that would be helpful to the Board. 11 


  CHAIR:  I think, I mean, I think we figure it’s 12 


around six hundred square feet or something. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Yeah, it’s about, it’s about, I’ll just 14 


proffer, if, Mr. McCann, if it’s okay, -- 15 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  -- it’s about eight hundred square 17 


feet.   18 


  CHAIR:  Eight hundred square feet, okay.  All right. 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  That would be her testimony.  We, we 20 


looked at it and tried to be a little more accurate than 21 


twenty-five percent of the floor area.   22 


  CHAIR:  Right.  Okay, all right.  So, we’ll, we’ll 23 


accept that proffer of twenty-five, as, as eight hundred square 24 


feet.   25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay, thank you.   1 


  CHAIR:  All right. 2 


  MR. MCCANN:  But, yeah, Mr. Evans, the 6th or the 9th 3 


is fine with me.  I, I agree that would be much better than 4 


before the new year. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  And that’s fine with me, Mr. Evans.  I 6 


think, just looking at the calendar, what days of the week is 7 


that, Mr. Evans?   8 


  CHAIR:  Well, the 9th is a Monday, the 6th is a Friday. 9 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  It doesn’t matter to me.  I, I actually 10 


think I’m going away for the week on the, for the 7th, just to 11 


be out of town.  So, I could file it before I leave or have my 12 


staff file it on Monday.  I’ll leave it up to Mr. McCann, it’s 13 


whatever he wants to do.  Or -- 14 


  CHAIR:  Which, which day would you prefer?  You want 15 


to work that weekend, or do you want to have it done by that 16 


weekend?   17 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I’m going to have it done by that 18 


(inaudible). 19 


  CHAIR: (inaudible), Mr. McCann.   20 


  MR. MCCANN:  You know, I always want to take the time 21 


if it’s there, so just -- 22 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  January 9th? 23 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, that’d be great, thank you.   24 


  CHAIR:  Okay, all right. 25 
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  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.   1 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 2 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Close of business on January 9th, Mr. 3 


Evans, right? 4 


  CHAIR:  Correct. 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 6 


  CHAIR:  Although I think actually, I think, I think 7 


it’s better to say 3:00. 8 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Three o’clock.  I think that’s what Ms. 9 


Cannington always says to us. 10 


  CHAIR:  Yes, I think that -- 11 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Have it at 3:00.   12 


  CHAIR:  Three p.m. 13 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay.  That’s fine.   14 


  CHAIR:  Is there anything else we need to discuss or 15 


take into account or -- 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  Oh, I’m sorry.  Exhibits, Mr. Evans. 17 


  CHAIR:  Exhibits, yes.  Yes, yes. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, and I think -- 19 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Mr. McCann, can we exchange exhibits 20 


and, and if, if, if we have any problem with any of them, I 21 


think I’ve disclosed all mine.  But if we have any problem with 22 


any of them, we could alert the Board.  I, I don’t think, from 23 


what I’ve seen of yours, they appear to be photographs and 24 


public documents, unless there’s something else that you have 25 
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in there that you haven’t really referenced, that I have a 1 


problem to any of them.   2 


  But I know it’s been unfortunate that there’s no 3 


requirement we exchange them in advance.  We probably should 4 


have done that in this case.  But I’m happy to take a look at 5 


yours in the next day or two and I’ll send you mine.  And Mr. 6 


Evans, if there’s an issue, we can let you know.  I don’t think 7 


there will be, quite honestly. 8 


  CHAIR:  Yeah, okay.  Well, that’s, that’s acceptable.  9 


And again, Mike, I indicated I think to Mr. McCann earlier with 10 


regard to your exhibits I would tilt rather significantly 11 


towards admitting all of Mr. McCann’s as well, so. 12 


  MR. MCCANN:  Yeah, I’m, I’m okay, including the last 13 


Exhibit 11, I’m okay with all of those, Mr. Evans. 14 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 15 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 16 


  MR. MCCANN:  If we could avoid the need to do that, 17 


I’m sure you have other things to do.  The only thing, all my 18 


Exhibits 1 through 19, have all been referred to, with the 19 


exception of number three, which is the zoning map from 1996, 20 


which doesn’t really, what I did want to, maybe what I could 21 


do, I, I’ve since found the zoning map for 2000.   22 


  And I think Larry would agree, that’s the, that’s the 23 


zoning map we should all be working off of.  So, I’ll send that 24 


to Larry.  But the, the zoning map from 2000 would be my 25 
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Exhibit 3 in place of the 1996 one.   1 


  CHAIR:  And is that the map that incorporates the 2 


CZMP -- 3 


  MR. MCCANN:  Correct, yeah. 4 


  CHAIR:  -- pages? 5 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  I, I, I will tell you Mr. McCann, 6 


there’s one, I don’t know if you got it from My Neighborhood, 7 


but I think the one from 2000, I, I’m not sure that’s accurate 8 


and I noticed actually a disclaimer at the bottom of that, 9 


because I looked at that.  Why don’t you, before you substitute 10 


it, send it to me and I’ll take a look at it, and we can talk. 11 


  MR. MCCANN:  I, I think, you know what?  I’ll, I’ll 12 


just, we already, I think the Board is, is already aware, it’s 13 


already in evidence that the operative date is when it is, when 14 


the maps were passed in, in late 2000.  So, it, I’ll just 15 


remove Exhibit 3 altogether. 16 


  MR. SCHMIDT:  Okay. 17 


  CHAIR:  Okay. 18 


  MR. MCCANN:  And then lastly, number sixteen were 19 


some letters that were introduced below that are folks in the 20 


community.  And I would, that’s the only exhibit I would, that 21 


I don’t think I’ve referenced.  Actually, I’m sorry, number 22 


eleven are –- 23 


(RECORDING GOES MUTE – ONE MINUTE OF DISCUSSION UNABLE TO 24 


TRANSCRIBE) 25 
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Rock Properties, case number 21-273-SPHX, heard before the 6 
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BOA Exhibit List  
Grey Rock Mansion – 400 Grey Rock Road 


Case No.: 21-273-SPHX  
 
 


Description                                                                                               Petitioner’s Exhibit #  
Site Plan  1  
Aerial – Far 2A 
Aerial – Mid 2B 
Aerial – Close 2C 
Site Photos        3A – 3X 
Liling T. Tien CV 4 
Newspaper articles 5 
Development Plans for Grey Rock (from PAI) 6 
Decision from Case No.: 03-477-SPH 7A 
Plan from Case No. 03-477-SPH 7B 
Site Photos Showing Improvements Needed/Completed 8A-8M 
History of Grey Rock Mansion Ownership 9 
2000 CZMP Log of Issues – 2-067 10 
Maryland Historical Trust Letter Dated 11.28.2022 11 
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PHONE: (410)-296-3990
FAX: (410)-296-3898


SEAL:


CLIENT:
GREY ROCK PROPERTIES, LLC


400 GREY ROCK ROAD
PIKESVILLE, MARYLAND 21208


SHEET TITLE:


PLAN TO ACCOMPANY SPECIAL
EXCEPTION APPLICATION


REVISION


MARK DATE DESCRIPTION


DRAWN:
RH


DESIGN:
LT


CHECKED:
LT


DATE:
08-30-2021


PROJECT NO.:


PELA 21.06.10


SCALE:
1"=40`


SHEET NO.:


1


GENERAL NOTES:
1. OWNER:


GREY ROCK PROPERTIES, LLC.
GREENSPRING VALLEY ROAD
STEVENSON, MD 21153


2. SITE AREA
GROSS: 2.770 ACRES
NET: 2.770 ACRES


3. BUILDING AREA
EXISTING: 6,511.5 SQ. FT.
PROPOSED: 6,511.5 SQ. FT. (NO CHANGE)


4. UTILITIES
PUBLIC WATER: EXISTING
PUBLIC SEWER: EXISTING


5. TO OUR BEST KNOWLEDGE, NO FLOODPLAIN EXISTS WITHIN
THE PROPERTY


6. BUILDING HEIGHT
MAX PERMITTED: 100'
EXISTING: 37', 3 STORIES (COMMERCIAL USE ON 1ST AND 2ND
FLOORS, STORAGE ON 3RD FLOOR)


7. PARKING CALCULATIONS
REQUIRED:
5X(6,511.5 SFX2FL/1,000 SF)=65 PARKING SPACES
EXISTING: 104 SPACES
60 SPACES (WEST OF MANSION, STRIPED AND PAVED)
4 SPACES (NORTH OF THE MANSION)
40 SPACES (SOUTHEAST OF MANSION, PAVED, ON A SEPERATE
PARCEL)
PROPOSED: 104 SPACES


8. SETBACKS
REQUIRED EXISTING


FRONT 50' FROM STREET CENTERLINE   N/A
   25' FROM PROPERTY LINE            25'


SIDE     30' 90'
REAR    30' 151'


9. DEED REFERENCE:
LIBER 12795, FOLIO 404 (MARCH  25,1998)


10. TAX ACCOUNT NO.: 24-00-003482
11. ELECTION DISTRICT: 11
12. COUNCILMAN DISTRICT: 3RD
13. REGIONAL PLANNING DISTRICT: CENTRAL MARYLAND
14. CENSUS TRACT NUMBER: 4037.01
15. WATERSHED: JONES FALLS WATERSHED
16. ZONING: BR AND DR 3.5
17. TAX MAP REFERENCE: M68, GRID 13, PARCEL 312
18. PREVIOUS ZONING CASES:


THE DEVELOPMENT AND ZONING HISTORY FOR THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY, AND THE ACREAGE OF DEVELOPMENT OF WHICH
IT IS A PART, IS SET FORTH IN THE ZONING FILE FOR CASE NO.
03-477-SPH.  THE PARKING REQUIREMENT WAS DETERMINED
TO BE 104 PARKING SPACES.


19. PERMITS ON FILE: NONE FOUND
20. FLOOR AREA FOR BR:


MAX PERMITTED:   2.0
EXISTING: 1.0
PROPOSED:   NO CHANGE


21. THE SITE DOES NOT LIE WITHIN THE CHESAPEAKE BAY
CRITICAL AREA.


22. HISTORIC FEATURES: GREY ROCK MANSION (BA-39) HAS
SURVEYED ON THE MARYLAND INVENTORY OF HISTORIC
PLACES.  BALTIMORE COUNTY LANDMARK COMMISSION HAS
REVIEWED AND RECOMMENDED THE NOMINATION OF GREY
ROCK MANSION BE LISTED AS A NATIONAL REGISTER.  IT IS
CURRENTLY BEING REVIEWED BY THE MARYLAND HISTORICAL
TRUST AND NATIONAL PARK SERVICES FOR FINAL APPROVAL.


23. PREVIOUS DRC MEETINGS:   NONE
24. PLAT REFERENCE: PLAT BOOK 75, PAGE 140
25. ZONING MAP NO.   068A2
26. ALL ADJACENT PROPERTIES ARE RESIDENTIAL USE.
27. THE SITE IS NOT IN THE FAILED BASIC SERVICE AREA MAP.
28. ALL ENTRANCE DRIVES TO THE MANSION ARE DRIVE DRIVE.
29. ALL SIGNAGE SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH BCZR SECTION


450.
30. EXISTING USE: COMMERCIAL MEETING FACILITY


PROPOSED USE: COMMERCIAL FACILITY AND CARETAKER'S
APARTMENT (LIVING QUARTERS).
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RESUME 
 


 
 
 
LILING T. TIEN, PLA, ASLA 
President/Principal Landscape Architect 
 
Education 
Master of Science, Landscape Architecture 
Master of City and Regional Planning 
 
Professional Registrations 
1996/Landscape Architecture/Maryland/1129 
2019/Landscape Architecture/Florida/TLA 145 
2020/Landscape Architecture/Indiana/22000011 
2021/Landscape Architecture/South Carolina/LSA 1501 
 
Professional Associations 


▪ American Society of Landscape Architects 
▪ Member of Maryland Board of Examiners of 


Landscape Architects, appointed 1999-2008 
▪ Member of Maryland Public Art Council, 


appointed 2013 to 2019 
 


Years experience: With This Firm: 26; With Other Firms: 10 


 
Experience: Ms. Tien is a design-award winning planner 
and landscape architect with over 35 years of experience 
in projects of various planning and design disciplines. 
Prior to establish P.E.L.A. Design, she worked for Baltimore 


County Community Planning Division, Office of Planning, and 


KCI Technologies. Her education in both planning and 


landscape architecture and her work experience in both public 


and private sectors enable her to perform efficiently a wide 


range of services for the client. Her work experience includes 


performing comprehensive planning for towns and open space 


system, streetscape design, urban design, land planning for 


residential and commercial developments, institutional master 


planning, park planning and design, landscape architecture 


design for various types of developments, In addition, she has 


testified as expert witness for a number of projects. Listed below 


are selected projects for each planning and design category. 


  
Planning – cities, towns and institutions 


▪ Windsor Township Comprehensive Plan Update, York 


County, PA 


▪ .Lower Paxton Township Comprehensive Plan 


Update, Dauphin County, PA 


▪ Carroll Township Park, Recreation Area, and Open 


Space Comprehensive Plan, York Co. PA 


▪ Town of Bel Air Comprehensive Plan Update, Town of 


Bel Air, MD 


▪ U.S. National Arboretum Master Plan Update, 


Washington, DC (including landscape design 


guidelines) 


▪ Hallowing Point Waterfront Park Master Plan, Prince 


Frederick, MD 


▪ Johns Hopkins Wyman Park Master Plan, Baltimore 


City, MD 


 


Projects Testified as Expert Witness or Presented to Design 


Review Panels  


▪ Washington Homes Hospice Renovation and 


Expansion, Washington DC. 


▪ 210 on the Park Mixed-use Development, Capital 


Heights, MD 


▪ Rye Street Mixed-use Development, Balto. City, MD 


▪ Holy Spring Meadow Apartment Solar Panel 


Installation, Capital Heights, MD 


▪ Coppin State University Science and Technology 


Center, Baltimore City, MD 


 


Design Guidelines 


▪ Baltimore County Landscape Design Manual, 


Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Harford County Landscape Design Manual Buffer 


Requirement, Harford County, MD 


▪ Route 140 Corridor at Finksburg Design Guidelines, 


Carroll County, MD 


▪ Argonne Drive Streetscape Design Guidelines, 


Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Trail and Shared-use Sign and Trailhead Design 


Guidelines, Howard County, MD 


 


Land Use and Zoning Study 


▪ White Marsh Plant Land Use Study, Baltimore Co, MD 


▪ Edrich Property Zoning Reclassification Study, 


Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Montanye Property Zoning Reclassification, Baltimore 


County, MD 


▪ Shapiro Property Zoning Reclassification Study, 


Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Gudelsky Property Zoning Reclassification and Land 


Use Study, Prince George’s County, MD  


 


Transportation Corroridor Land Use/Urban Design Study 


▪ Franklin-Mulburry-US 40 Transportation Corridor 


Study, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Pennsylvania Avenue Corridor Urban Design Study, 


City of Westminster, MD 


▪ Old Court Corridor Study, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Reisterstown Road Corridor Study, Baltimore Co, MD 


▪ Druid Park Lake Drive Corridor Complete Street 


Study, Baltimore City, MD 


 


Urban Design /Urban Renewal Studies 


▪ City Crescent Site Urban Design Study, Baltimore 


City, MD 


▪ Oella Entranceway Urban Design Study, Baltimore 


County, MD 


▪ Dundalk Village Urban Design Study, Baltimore 
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County, MD 


▪ Fenton Village Urban Design Study, Montgomery 


County, MD 


▪ Burtonsville Commercial Area Design Study, 


Montgomery County, MD 


 


Feasibility Study/ Land Planning  


▪ Jenna Estates, Carroll County, MD 


▪ Delta Crossing Community, York Co., PA 


▪ Wise Avenue Shopping Center, Baltimore, MD 


▪ Cape St. Clair RV Park, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Parkside Nursing Home, Baltimore, MD 


▪ Clarke Concrete Plant, Baltimore County, MD 


 


Park Design 


▪ Heritage Trail Park Concept, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Hanlon Park Reconstruction, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Largo Town Center Park, Prince George’s Co., MD  


▪ Sewell’s Orchard Comm. Park, Howard County, MD 


▪ Woodlawn Cultural Park & Museum, Montgomery 


County, MD 


 


Mixed Use Development 


▪ 210 on the Park, Capital Heights, MD 


▪ Penn Place, Capital Heights, MD 


▪ Port Covington Rye Street Development, Baltimore 


City, MD 


▪ Riva Street Development, Annapolis City, MD 


▪ Park Avenue Development, Baltimore City, MD 


 


Health Care 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Hillsborough, FL 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Ocala, FL 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Orangeburg, SC 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Terre Haute, IN 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Port Richie, FL 


 


Higher Education 


▪ University of Maryland Medical Center, Balto City, MD 


▪ Rigg’s Alumni Center, University of Maryland, College 


Park, MD 


▪ UMMS Emergency Entranceway Streetscape Design, 


Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Coppin State University Science and Technology 


Center, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Truxal Library Renovation and Expansion, Anne 


Arundel Community College, Arnold, MD 


 


Streetscape Design 


▪ Charles Street Reconstruction and Streetscape 


Design at JHU, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ North Avenue Reconstruction and Streetscape 


Design, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Fenton Village Streetscape Design, Montgomery 


County, MD 


▪ Kensington Antique Row Streetscape Design, 


Montgomery County, MD 


▪ Make It Right Foundation Pilot Streetscape Project, 


New Orleans, LA 


 


Projects Integrating Green Infra Structure into the 


Landscape 


▪ Park Circle Improvements, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Charles Street Reconstruction and Streetscape 


Design, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Woodlawn Museum and Visitor Center, Montgomery 


County., MD 


▪ Anne Arundel Community College Truxal Library 


Renovation and Expansion, Arnold, MD 


▪ Pikesville High School Renovation and Expansion, 


Baltimore County, MD 


 


Transportation Related Landscape Design Projects 


▪ Purple Line Light Rail Streetscape and Urban Design 


Concept Plan, Montgomery and Prince George’s 


Counties, MD 


▪ MD 5 and MD 375 Interchange Improvements, Prince 


George’s County, MD 


▪ MD 152 Improvements, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Camden Marc Station Reconstruction, Balto City, MD 


▪ MD 43 Bike Lane, Somerset County, MD 


 


History Relevant Landscape Design 


▪ 1840’s Plaza Adaptive Re-use, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Mt Auburn Cemetery Perimeter Improvements, 


Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Heritage Trail Park Concept Plan, Baltimore Co, MD 


▪ Woodlawn Cultural Park Visitor Center and Museum, 


Montgomery County, MD 


▪ Kensington Antique Row Streetscape Design, 


Montgomery County, MD 


 


Selected Awards 


▪ MD ASLA – Heritage Trail Concept Design, Baltimore 


County, MD 


▪ MD AIA – Coppin State University New Science and 


Technology Center, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ MNCPPC Design Excellence Open Space Category – 


Woodlawn Museum and Visitor Center, An Adaptive 


Reuse of a Historic Property, Montgomery Co., MD 


▪ Downtown Development Association Streetscape 


Category 1st Place – Fenton Village Streetscape 


Design, Silver Spring, MD 


▪ MDOT Green Award – South Mountain Welcome 


Centers, Frederick County, MD 
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Baltimore County 2000 Comprehensive Zoning Map Issues 


Issue 
Number


Owner, 
Petitioner


Location Existing 
Zoning and 


Acres


Requested 
Zoning and 


Acres


CommentsPlanning
Board


Recommendations


County
Council


Decisions


2-061 Staff 2330 Smith Ave, northeast corner of Old Pimlico Rd and Smith 
Ave


BL 1.1


Total 1.1


BLR 1.1


Total 1.1


BLR 1.1


Total 1.1


BL 1.1


Total 1.1


2-062 Planning Board Northwest corner of Park Heights Ave and Hooks Ln Overlay Adopted
RC 5 39.3


Total 39.3


DR 1 39.3


Total 39.3


DR 1 25.8


RC 5 13.5


Total 39.3


DR 1 25.8


RC 5 13.5


Total 39.3


2-063 Staff North and south side of Smith Ave, east of Pimlico Rd
DR 3.5 151.0


Total 151.0


DR 2 151.0


Total 151.0


DR 3.5 151.0


Total 151.0


DR 3.5 151.0


Total 151.0


2-064 Staff West side of Falls Rd, south of Clarkview Rd See Issues 2-029, 2-048
2-078


DR 5.5 4.1


Total 4.1


DR 3.5 4.1


Total 4.1


DR 3.5 4.1


Total 4.1


DR 2 4.1


Total 4.1


2-065 Staff North side Mt. Wilson Ln, north of Winands Rd See Issue 2-030
Overlay Adopted


DR 3.5 42.7


Total 42.7


DR 1 42.7


Total 42.7


DR 3.5 42.7


Total 42.7


DR 3.5 39.9


DR 2 2.8


Total 42.7


2-066 Staff North side of Old Court Rd, 1700' west of Greenspring Ave
DR 1 155.0


Total 155.0


RC 2 155.0


Total 155.0


DR 1 155.0


Total 155.0


DR 1 155.0


Total 155.0


2-067 Staff South side of Greentree Rd, 1200' west of Castleton Ave Overlay Adopted
BM 5.1


BR 0.9


Total 6.0


DR 3.5 5.5


BR 0.5


Total 6.0


BR 0.9


BM 5.1


Total 6.0


BR 0.9


DR 3.5 5.1


Total 6.0


2-068 Staff Greentree Rd, north of Stone Chapel Rd
BM 7.2


Total 7.2


DR 3.5 7.2


Total 7.2


DR 3.5 6.7


BM 0.5


Total 7.2


DR 3.5 7.2


Total 7.2


Page 9 of 11October 10,  2000
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Maryland Historical Trust   •   100 Community Place   •   Crownsville   •   Maryland   •   21032 
 


Tel: 410.697.9591   •   toll free 877.767.6272  •   TTY users: Maryland Relay   •   MHT.Maryland.gov 


Larry Hogan, Governor 
Boyd Rutherford, Lt. Governor 


Robert S. McCord, Secretary 
Sandy Schrader, Deputy Secretary 


 


 


November 28, 2022 


SENT VIA EMAIL 


Re: Historic Significance of Grey Rock Mansion, 400 Grey Rock Rd, Pikesville, MD  


TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:  


The National Register of Historic Places recognizes districts, buildings, structures, objects, 
and sites for their significance in American history, archaeology, architecture, engineering, 
or culture, and identifies them as worthy of preservation. The National Register is a 
program of the U. S. Department of the Interior, National Park Service, and is administered 
at the State level by the Maryland Historical Trust.  


At the February 23, 2021 meeting of the Governor’s Consulting Committee (GCC), the 
Maryland state review board for National Register of Historic Places nominations, a 
nomination for Grey Rock Mansion was considered. The GCC approved the nomination 
under Criterion C for its architecture (built 1857-1861 and extensively renovated 1923-
1931) and Criterion B, for its association with Ethel Epstein Katz and Jacob Epstein. As 
stated in the Significance Summary from the National Register Nomination:  


 


Grey Rock Mansion is significant under Criterion C for its architecture. When A. Jay 
and Ethel Epstein Katz purchased the property in 1923, it was an1857 Italianate 
Villa with a cupola, broad overhanging eaves, round-arched windows and a 
commodious porch.  Working over a period of several years with Baltimore 
architect Benjamin Frank, Mrs. Katz transformed N. G. Starkweather’s original 
design into an elaborate Classical pastiche including a comprehensive remodeling of 
the exterior, addition of a giant portico, creation of a ballroom, and re-trimming the 
interior with woodwork whose details derived from 18th-century landmarks. The 
library copied the detailed and elaborate overmantel carvings from Sutton-
Scarsdale Hall, Derbyshire England, circa 1724-7, and the drawing or terrace room 
at Grey Rock copied Wrightington Hall, Lancashire, England, 1748, both as exhibited 
at the Philadelphia Museum of Art.  The ballroom copied Whitehall, Annapolis, 
Maryland, 1764, for the terrace entryway, and also copied the Mundy House mantel, 
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Dumfries, Virginia, circa 1756.  The dining room was a copy of Mount Pleasant 
Mansion’s "Great Chamber" room in Philadelphia, circa 1762.  The exterior of Grey 
Rock was renovated to resemble George Washington’s Mount Vernon, copying the 
portico columns and balustrade. 


The property derives additional significance under Criterion B, for association with 
Ethel Epstein Katz and her father, Jacob Epstein.  Jacob had started Baltimore 
Bargain House, one of Baltimore’s largest businesses.  Jacob was one of Baltimore’s 
most prominent philanthropists.  He had helped found Federated Jewish Charities 
and the United Hebrew Charities, and was greatly involved with and a founder and 
board member of the Baltimore Museum of Art.  Its founding art collection was 
donated by him, and also such works as Rodin’s bronze the “Thinker.” 


 


MHT expects Grey Rock Mansion to be officially listed on the National Register by early 
next year.  


If you have any further questions, I can be reached via email me at 
Jessica.french@maryland.gov or by phone at 410-697-9623.  


 


 


Sincerely,  


 


Jessica French 


Administrator of Evaluation and Registration  


Maryland Historical Trust  



mailto:Jessica.french@maryland.gov
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Tammy Zahner


From: Michael McCann <michael@mmccannlaw.net>
Sent: Monday, November 28, 2022 1:48 PM
To: Krysundra Cannington; Tammy Zahner
Subject: RE: Grey Rock -email 3
Attachments: Prots' Ex. 12 - Op. (03-0477).pdf


CAUTION: This message from michael@mmccannlaw.net originated from a non Baltimore County Government or non BCPL email 
system. Hover over any links before clicking and use caution opening attachments.  


 
Please replace this exhibit 12 for the one previously sent. It was missing a page.   
 
Thanks!  
 


From: Michael McCann  
Sent: Monday, November 28, 2022 1:41 PM 
To: 'Krysundra Cannington' <kcannington@baltimorecountymd.gov>; 'Tammy Zahner' 
<tzahner@baltimorecountymd.gov> 
Subject: RE: Grey Rock -email 3 
 
 
 


From: Michael McCann  
Sent: Monday, November 28, 2022 1:39 PM 
To: 'Krysundra Cannington' <kcannington@baltimorecountymd.gov>; 'Tammy Zahner' 
<tzahner@baltimorecountymd.gov> 
Subject: Grey Rock -email 1  
 
Sunny/Tammy: Attached in three emails are Protestants’ Exhibits (1-17), along with an exhibit list.  I will drop off a hard 
copy shortly. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Michael 
 
Michael R. McCann 
Michael R. McCann, PA 
118 W. Pennsylvania Avenue 
Towson, Maryland 21204 
(p) 410-825-2150 
(f) 410-825-2149 
 
E-mail Confidentiality: The information contained in this message may be confidential, 
proprietary and/or protected by the attorney-client privilege or work product doctrine. 
If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or an employee or agent 
responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is 
strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please 
delete/destroy any copy of this message and notify Michael R. McCann at 410 825-2150.  
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Tammy Zahner


From: Michael McCann <michael@mmccannlaw.net>
Sent: Wednesday, November 30, 2022 4:51 PM
To: Krysundra Cannington; Tammy Zahner
Cc: Lawrence Schmidt
Subject: Grey Rock - Final Exhibits - email 1 of 4
Attachments: Prots' - Ex List - Final.pdf; Prots' Ex. 1A.jpg; Prots' Ex. 1B.jpg; Prots' Ex. 1C.PANO.jpg; 


Prots' Ex. 1D.jpg; Prots' Ex. 1E.jpg; Prots' Ex. 1F.jpg


CAUTION: This message from michael@mmccannlaw.net originated from a non Baltimore County Government or non BCPL email 
system. Hover over any links before clicking and use caution opening attachments.  


 
Sunny/Tammy: Attached are our final exhibit list and exhibits, as introduced, in 4 emails. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Thanks 
 
Michael 
 
Michael R. McCann 
Michael R. McCann, PA 
118 W. Pennsylvania Avenue 
Towson, Maryland 21204 
(p) 410-825-2150 
(f) 410-825-2149 
 
E-mail Confidentiality: The information contained in this message may be confidential, 
proprietary and/or protected by the attorney-client privilege or work product doctrine. 
If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or an employee or agent 
responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is 
strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please 
delete/destroy any copy of this message and notify Michael R. McCann at 410 825-2150.  
 
 
 

















IN THE MATTER OF 
GREY ROCK PROPERTIES, LLC, LEGAL 
OWNERS AND PETITIONERS FOR SPECIAL 
HEARING AND SPECIAL EXCEPTION 
ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 
400 GREY ROCK ROAD ALSO KNOWN AS 
400 CLIFTON COURT 
(GREY ROCK MANSION) 


3rd ELECTION DISTRICT 
2nd COUNCIL DISTRICT 


* 


* 


* 


* 


* * * * 


* 


* 


* * * * 


OPINION 


BEFORE THE 


BOARD OF APPEALS 


OF 


BAL TIM ORE COUNTY 


Case No. 21-273-SPHX 


* * * * * 


This matter comes before the Baltimore County Board of Appeals ("Board") on an appeal 


of the Opinion and Order of Administrative Law Judge Maureen E. Murphy dated March 3, 2022, 


which granted, in part, a Petition for Special Exception and a Petition for Special Hearing filed 


by Grey Rock Properties, LLC., ("Petitioner" or "Grey Rock") for its property located at 400 


Grey Rock Road (a/k/a 400 Clifton Court and hereinafter the "Property") in the Pikesville 


community of Baltimore County. The appeal was filed by Grey Rock Maintenance Corporation, 


Grey Rock Flats Condominium Association, and Grey Rock Villas Association (collectively the 


"Protestants"). 


As filed, the petitions sought relief as follows: 


1. Approval of a Special Exception, as permitted by§ 236.2 of the Baltimore County 
Zoning Regulations ("BCZR"), to allow living quarters within a commercial 
building for a property caretaker(s); and 


2. Approval of a Special Hearing, as permitted by BCZR §500.7, to approve an 
existing commercial meeting facility use and attendant parking as legal, non­
conforming uses. 


A de nova hearing was held before this Board on November 30, 2022, via Webex. 


Petitioners were represented by Lawrence E. Schmidt, Esquire and Smith, Gildea & Schmidt, 







In the matter of: Grey Rock Properties. LLC 
Case No.: 21-273-SPHX 


LLC. Protestants were represented by Michael R. McCann, Esquire. A public deliberation was 


held on February 22, 2023, via Webex. 


BACKGROUND 


The subject Property consists of two parcels which total slightly over 2. 7 acres in area. 


One parcel is a 2.025-acre parcel property on which is located a historic building known as the 


Grey Rock Mansion (the "Mansion"), an attached tent, an area of parking serving the same, and 


a lawn area used in connection with activities at the Mansion. This parcel is split zoned BR 


(Business-Roadside) and DR 3.5. The Mansion building is entirely within the BR zone, as is a 


portion of the adjacent parking lot and a part of the lawn. The Special Exception Petitioner 


seeks is to allow a limited residential use in this commercial/business zone, specifically a 


caretaker's apartment for one-individual and their partner/spouse. 1 Areas of the parking lot and 


lawn which are zoned DR 3.5 are the subject of the Special Hearing request for a non-conforming 


use designation. The second parcel is 0.7444 in area and contains a parking area which is used 


by the Petitioners in connection with activities at the Mansion and (by agreement with the 


residential neighbors) for parking at an adjacent community swimming pool. This second 


parcel is zoned DR 3.5 and the non-conforming use of this parcel for commercial parking is also 


requested by Petitioner. The parcels are within close proximity to one another near the terminus 


of a private road (i.e., Grey Rock Road) which leads into the community from Reisterstown Road. 


This road ends as a circular driveway immediately in front of the Mansion Building. The 


Mansion building, parking area, and lawn are used by the Petitioner as a commercial venue to 


hold events such as weddings, memorial services, parties, etc. 


1 The ALJ below granted the special exception but limited the permission for a living quarters to one and only one 
person. 
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As to the history of the Property and its current use, the Grey Rock Mansion was built 


between 1857 and 1861 and has substantial historical significance. It's located on a portion of 


the extensive property originally owned by the John Eager Howard family. Howard was a key 


figure in Maryland during colonial times and shortly after the formation of the United States. 


He served as governor of the State, and was a confidant of George Washington. For many 


years, the Mansion was used as a residence, however in the mid-20th century, the building was 


acquired and used as a retreat center by the Trinitarians, a Christian order. 


The first use of the Property as a catering/event venue occurred while the Trinitarians 


were owners. At that time, the Property was occasionally rented as a catering facility by the 


Trinitarians to generate income. The catering company affiliated with the site during the 


Trinitarians ownership was Valley Catering. 


In the mid 1980's the Property was acquired by an entity (Simply Elegant Catering) of 


which Mr. Skudrna was a principal. The Property and Mansion was thereafter converted for 


exclusive use as a commercial event and catering venue. Mr. Skudrna initially owned both the 


Property and the catering business that was operated thereon. Later, he sold the business 


(retaining the Property) to Bill Clowney in 2003 and eventually (in 2010) sold the property to 


Mr. Clowney. Mr. Clowney operated the catering business on the Property during that time. 


The current owners acquired the Property at foreclosure in 2018 and have continued the catering 


operation since then. 


The residential community of Grey Rock was approved and built in a series of phases 


beginning in 1989. The County Review Group ("CRG") was the entity of County government 


that approved residential development in the Grey Rock community when it was first proposed. 


The "Grey Rock Partial Development Plan Phase II," dated April 1, 1991, visually depicts the 
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Grey Rock Mansion and its Lawn, and indicates that the property immediately around the 


Mansion was zoned BR and much of the lawn and parking area (on both lots) was zoned BM at 


that time. (Petitioner's Ex. 6). Both of those classifications are commercial zones allowing 


catering facilities and their attendant uses (i.e., parking), by right. Another subsequently 


approved plan, the "Grey Rock First Amended Partial Development Plan, Phase I," dated 


November 30, 1993, also identifies the Grey Rock Mansion and its Lawn as zoned BR and BM, 


respectively. (Id.) 


In 2000, as part of the Comprehensive Zoning Map Process ("CZMP"), the zoning on the 


Mansion's property was changed from BR and BM to a combination of BR and DR 3.5. The 


area containing the Mansion, a small area of the lawn and a small area of the parking lot were 


changed to BR. The remaining parking area and most of the lawn were changed to DR 3.5. 


On June 20, 2003, a Final Development Plan was approved for Phase 4 of the Grey Rock 


Residential Community (Petitioner's Ex. 6). On May 12, 2004, the First Amended Final 


Development Plan was approved. This plan shows the current zoning of the property. (Id.) 


DISCUSSION 


At the hearing before the Board, on behalf of the Petitioner, testimony was presented by 


Anne Pomykala, the managing member (principal) of Grey Rock Properties, LLC. Ms. 


Pomykala is experienced in operating facilities similar to the catering facility venue at Grey 


Rock, in that she owns and operates the Gramercy Manson in Baltimore County and also the 


1840's Inn and Plaza in Baltimore City. Also testifying in support of the Petition was Robert 


Skudrna, a previous owner of the Property and business thereon, and Carl Richards, the longtime 


supervisor in the County Zoning Office who now serves as a consultant and qualified as an expert 


witness in the interpretation and application of the County's zoning ordinance. In addition to 
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these witnesses, the Petitioner submitted a number of documents (Exhibits 1-lOA-B). These 


included photographs, plans depicting the development of the neighborhood, prior relevant 


decisions of the ALJ, newspaper articles and other relevant material. 


On behalf of the Protestants, testimony was presented by Steven Weinstein, president of 


the Grey Rock Maintenance Corporation. This corporation owns and maintains the common 


areas of the Grey Rock community. Mr. Weinstein expressed concern that allowing a residential 


component to the Mansion would just add additional people and traffic coming in and out. He 


spoke about the problems that the community currently has with the patrons of the Mansion using 


the lawn area in front of the Mansion. He explained that, contrary to Ms. Pomykala' s testimony, 


this area is used regularly during events, and Petitioners have never cleaned up the cups, bottles 


and other trash that are left behind after its events, nor have they contributed monetarily to the 


costs and maintenance of the access road or the lawn area. He expressed concern that the 


residential component could potentially be expanded in the future and the community would need 


to reach out to the County due to the non-conforming use. He also questioned the need for a 


caretaker given that the facility has not had one in the past and there have been no issues. 


Three others testified, Richard Sopher, Doris Randall and Lawrence Levin. They all 


testified similarly to Mr. Weinstein. They expressed concerns about having a caretaker living 


in the Mansion. 


DECISION 


SPECIAL EXCEPTION 


In order to grant a request for a Special Exception under BCZR, §502.1, it must appear 


that the use for which the Special Exception is requested will not: 


A. Be detrimental to the health, safety or general welfare of the locality involved; 
B. Tend to create congestion in roads, streets or alleys therein; 
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C. Create a potential hazard from fire, panic or other danger; 
D. Tend to overcrowd land and cause undue concentration of population; 
E. Interfere with adequate provisions for schools, parks, water, sewerage, transportation 
or other public requirements, conveniences or improvements; 
F. Interfere with adequate light and air; 
G. Be inconsistent with the purposes of the property's zoning classification nor in any 
other way inconsistent with the spirit and intent of these Zoning Regulations; 
H. Be inconsistent with the impermeable surface and vegetative retention provisions of 
these Zoning Regulations; nor 
I. Be detrimental to the environmental and natural resources of the site and vicinity 
including forests, streams, wetlands, aquifers and floodplains in an R.C.2, R.C.4, R.C.5 
or R.C. 7 Zone. 


In Schultz v. Pritts, 291 Md. 1, 22-23, 432 A.2d at 1331 (1981), the Court of Appeals held 


that "the appropriate standard to be used in determining whether a requested special exception 


use would have an adverse effect and therefore should be denied, is whether there are facts and 


circumstances that show that the particular use proposed at the particular location proposed 


would have any adverse effects above and beyond those inherently associated with such a special 


exception use irrespective of its location within the zone." The Supreme of Maryland in 


People's Counsel for Baltimore County v. Loyola College in Md. 406 Md. 54, 106, 956 A.2d 166 


(2008) upheld that longstanding Shultz analysis, explaining that a Special Exception use has 


"certain [inherent] adverse effects .... [which] are likely to occur". In its analysis, the Loyola 


Court observed that "[t]he special exception adds flexibility to a comprehensive legislative 


zoning scheme by serving as a 'middle ground' between permitted use and prohibited uses in a 


particular zone." (Id., 406 Md. at 71, 956 A.2d at 176 (2008).) The Schultz and Loyola Courts, 


and more recently in Attar v. DMS Tollgate, LLC, 451 Md. 272,285 (2017) have expressly 


recognized that "[a] special exception is presumed to be in the interest of the general welfare, and 


therefore a special exception enjoys a presumption of validity." (See also Loyola, 406 Md. at 84, 


88; 105 Schultz, 291 Md. at 11). This is in stark contrast to a variance request which seeks to 


do something within the zoning classification that is not otherwise permitted. 
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Based on the Schultz standard, once an applicant puts on its prima facie evidence in 


support of a special exception, the opponents must then "set forth sufficient evidence to indicate 


that the proposed [use] would have any adverse effects above and beyond those inherently 


associated with such use under the Schultz standard." Attar, 451 Md. at 287. (See Montgomery 


County v. Butler, 417 Md.271, 276-77 (2010) (opponent must show "non-inherent adverse 


effects" to "undercut the presumption of compatibility enjoyed by a proposed Special Exception 


use").) (See also, Clarksville Residents Against Mortuary Defense Fund, Inc. v. Donaldson 


Properties, 453 Md. 516, 543 (2017) ("there is a presumption that the [Special Exception] use is 


in the interest of the general welfare, a presumption that may only be overcome by probative 


evidence of unique adverse effects").)2 


-Ms. Pomykala presented testimony regarding the proposed caretaker's quarters. 


Pursuant to her testimony, a caretaker would be beneficial to the Mansion as well as the 


surrounding neighborhood because they would be there to provide 24-hour care of the premises. 


They would perform routine maintenance and repairs of the facilities and grounds. They would 


2 The use of the word "presumption" in this context is confounding. The special exception uses have been legislatively 
pre-determined to be proper, under certain circumstances, within the zoning classification in question. Consequently, 
special exceptions are distinct from variances which involve uses not legislatively pre-approved. At the same time, there 
is absolutely nothing that eases the burden of persuasion as to the criteria in BCZR § 502, et seq. It is the applicant' s 
obligation to present convincing evidence as to each aspect of the BCZR special exception requirements and to establish 
by a preponderance of the evidence that the special exception use is warranted in that particular location. There is no 
burden shifting to the protestants. Everyone knows and agrees that if the applicant filed its petition, showed that the 
sought-after use was permitted by special exception, and then rested, the applicant would lose because the applicant had 
failed to prove that the statutory criteria had been met. If there were some sort of meaningful evidentiary "presumption" 
in favor of the special exception, then the special exception would be granted based on that minimalist showing unless 
the protestants could affirmatively demonstrate that the BCZR criteria were not satisfied. The so-called presumption 
means only that the petitioner does not need to show that the special exception will benefit the area. Nonetheless, the 
applicant is still required to show that the proposed use will not be detrimental at the proposed location. See generally 
Montgomery County v. Butler Landscape Design, 417 Md. 271, 301-08 (2010). Justice Murphy's concurrence in 
People's Counsel vs. Loyola College, 406 Md. 107 (2008) (Murphy, J., concurring) is the most succinct explanation of 
how the Baltimore County special exception process fits into the law's fairly grand jurisprudence regarding 
presumptions. Id. at p. 109. Nothing in the Board's decision in this matter should be interpreted as approval of an 
evidentiary presumption that eases or shifts the burden of proof. 
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also be present in case of an emergency, such as a medical emergency or fire. 


The living quarters would be located on the second floor. The quarters would consist of 


a bedroom, a kitchen area, and a bathroom. It would be approximately 800 square feet and 


would cover approximately one quarter of the area of the second floor. All the catered events 


occur on the first floor. The only current uses of the second floor are an office and separate 


bride and groom prep rooms. The living quarters would not require any build outs of the current 


building. 


The building would not be used for a hotel or bed and breakfast. There would be no 


additional accommodations to the caretaker's quarters. Additionally, Ms. Pomykala is opposed 


to the restriction allowing only one person to occupy the living quarters because it is extremely 


difficult to find someone who is experienced enough for the job, and single. She testified that 


there is enough room for more than one person in the living quarters. 


Mr. Richards provided expert testimony regarding the proposed living quarters. He 


testified that the proposed residential use would cause no detrimental impact to the neighborhood 


and would be a benefit because of the on-site supervision of the property. He also addressed all 


the factors listed in BCZR, §502.1 and concluded that the proposed residential use meets the 


standards of the section. 


• The Proposed addition of living quarters satisfies the applicable special 
exception standard. 


The Petitioner presented testimony and evidence that the proposed addition of a living 


quarters will not have a detrimental impact greater than those effects inherently associated with 


a living quarter irrespective of its location within the zone. Mr. Richards testified as an expert 


in zoning on this issue. He testified that there would be no adverse impacts in having a person, 
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or small family living in the quarters. Any impact at this location would not be more impactful 


than at a different location within the same zone. 


• The proposed use would not be detrimental to the health, safety or general 
welfare of the locality involved (BCZR § 502.1.A). 


Sufficient evidence exists to show that the addition of a living quarters will not be 


detrimental to the health, safety and welfare of the locality involved. In fact, as Petitioner points 


out, the addition of a caretaker on the premises would help promote health, safety and welfare. 


The caretaker would be on site in case a situation was to arise which demanded immediate 


attention such as a fire or a break-in. 


• The proposed use will not tend to create conge tion in roads, streets or alleys 
therein (BCZR § 502. l.B). 


The Court in Anderson, 23 Md. App. 617-25 (a case that involved a funeral home seeking 


a special exception approval), reversed the Board's finding that the use would create traffic 


problems as there was no probative evidence to show "that the particularized proposed use has 


detrimental effects above and beyond the inherent ones ordinarily associated with such uses." 


Following that reasoning, there is no evidence to suggest that one person or one person with a 


partner/spouse will have the effect of creating congestion in the roads, alleys, or streets. 


• The proposed use will not create a potential hazard from fire, panic or other 
danger (BCZR § 502.1.C). 


As previously stated, the addition of a caretaker would help to alleviate any worries of 


fire, panic or danger because someone would be physically on the mansion's premises. Having 


someone live on the premises would help to protect the community in that regard. 
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• The proposed use will not tend to overcrowd land and cause undue 
concentration of population (BCZR § 502.1.D). 


The subject site is approximately 2.7 acres with a mansion located on it. Having a 


caretaker or caretaker couple, reside on the already existing premises will not have the effect of 


overcrowding the land and causing undue concentration of population, even including a caretaker 


with their partner/spouse. 


• The proposed use will not interfere with adequate provisions for school , 
parks, water, sewerage, tran portation or other public requirements, 
conveniences or improvements (BCZR § 502.1.E). 


There will be no impact on schools, parks, water, sewerage, transportation or other public 


requirements, conveniences or improvements. The mansion has been operating on the land for 


decades. Adding a caretaker with a partner/spouse would have virtually no impact on such 


public requirements, conveniences or improvements. 


• The proposed use will not interfere with adequate light and air (BCZR § 
502.1.F). 


The addition of living quarters inside of an existing building will have no interference 


with adequate light and air. 


• The proposed use will not be inconsistent with the purposes of the property's 
zoning classification nor i11 any other way inconsistent with the spirit and 
intent of these Zoning Regulations (BCZR § 502.1.G). 


The living quarters is not "inconsistent with the spirit and intent of these zomng 


regulations." Living quarters within a commercial building are permitted by special exception 


in the BR zone. As an enumerated special exception use, the proposal is part of the zoning 


scheme legislatively pre-approved by the Baltimore County Council and absent convincing 


evidence to the contrary, is valid. See Schultz v. Pritts, supra at p. 6-7. 
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• The proposed use will not be inconsistent with the impermeable surface and 
vegetative retention provisions of these Zoning Regulations (BCZR § 
502.1.H). 


Nothing is proposed to the exterior of the building, including the surrounding grounds, 


Therefore, there is no impact on the impermeable surface or vegetation. 


• The proposed use will not be detrimental to the environmental and natural 
resources of the site and vicinity including forests, streams, wetlands, 
aquifers and floodplains in an R.C.2, R.C.4, R.C.5 or R.C.7 Zone (BCZR § 
502.1.1). 


There is no evidence that the addition of living quarters in an existing building will have 


any impact whatsoever on the environment and natural resources. 


Based upon the evidence and testimony presented, the Board finds that the use for which 


the special exception is requested, including permission for a couple to reside in the requested 


caretaker quarters, will not violate Sections A - I of BCZR §502.1. 


SPECIAL HEARING 


A Special Hearing Petition is effectively a request for declaratory judgment. (BCZR § 


500.7,Antwerpen v. Baltimore County, 163 Md. App. 194,209 (2005).) The applicable County 


law, BCZR § 101.1, defines a nonconforming use as follows: 


"[a] legal use that does not conform to a use regulation for the zone in which it is 
located or to a special regulation applicable to such a use. A specifically named use 
described by the adjective "nonconforming" is a nonconforming use." 


BCZR § 104 is entitled "Nonconforming Uses" and provides: 


"[a] nonconforming use (as defined in Section 101) may continue except as otherwise 
specifically provided in these regulations, provided that upon any change from such 
nonconforming use to any other use whatsoever, or any abandonment or 
discontinuance of such nonconforming use for a period of one year or more, the right 
to continue or resume such nonconforming use shall terminate." 
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BCZR § 104.1 allows nonconforming uses to continue unless changed, abandoned or 


discontinued. The burden of establishing a nonconforming use is on the Petitioner. Such 


burden can be satisfied by showing that the use in question was well known throughout the 


neighborhood at the pertinent time. (Calhoun v. County Board of Appeals, 262 Md. 265 (1971).) 


Mere change in ownership does not destroy the nonconforming use. (Green v. Garrett, 192 Md. 


52 (1949).) The nature and extent of the use must have remained unchanged and substantially 


the same facilities have to be used throughout the years in question. (Kastendike v. Baltimore 


Association for Retarded Children, 267 Md. 389, 403 (1974); citing Jahnigen v. Staley, 245 Md. 


130,137,225 A.2d 277 (1967).) 


A valid and lawful nonconforming use is established if the owner can demonstrate that 


before and at the time of the adoption of a new zoning classification/ordinance, the property was 


being used in a lawful manner that, by later legislation, became non-permitted. (Trip Assocs., 


Inc. v. Mayor and City Council of Baltimore, 392 Md. 563, 569 (2006).) 


In this case, the issue is whether there exists a legal non-conforming use of the catering 


business on the Mansion property. The Mansion property consists of the Mansion itself, the 


lawn, and the parking lots. The testimony of Ms. Pomykala and Mr. Skudrna establish that, 


prior to the zoning change in 2000, the facility acted as an active catering facility. The Mansion 


itself was utilized for the catering and event hosting. The lawn area was used during the events, 


and the parking lots were utilized by the patrons of the catered events. After the change in 


zoning in 2000, the Mansion continued to operate as a catering facility. The testimony was 


clear that there has not been any interruption in the use of the Mansion. The catering and event 


hosting has been constant before and after the change in zoning. The shared parking lot has 


remained unchanged physically since prior to the zoning change, and its use has been constant 
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before and after the change in zoning. Between Mr. Skudrna and Ms. Pomykala's testimony, 


the mansion operated as a catering business constantly from the 1980s through present time. 


Additionally, Mr. Skudrna testified that in 1999, a permanent tent structure measuring 40 


feet x 60 feet was erected on the property to hold catered events. Mr. Skudrna further testified 


that the tent is still utilized today. Protestants assert that the tent is a non-conforming use that 


did not exist prior to the zoning change in 2000. They argue in their brief that the permanent 


tent did not exist until sometime after 2003, citing various plats, ariel photos and Mr. Clowney's 


testimony from the hearing before the Administrative Law Judge. Based on the evidence and 


testimony, the Board finds that the tent indeed existed prior to the zoning change in 2000. Even 


if the tent was replaced after 2003, as Protestants assert, we do not find an interruption in the use 


of the tent. Further, Mr. Richards testified as an expert in zoning regarding the non-conforming 


use. He testified that the existence of a tent is immaterial. The use of the land is what zoning 


considers. The tent was used for the catering business, which was permissible under the zoning 


prior to 2000. Protestants offered no expert testimony regarding this issue. The Board agrees 


with the assessment of Mr. Richards. The use of the tent is incidental to the use as a catering 


and event hosting business. 


CONCLUSION 


In summary, the Board approves the Special Exception to allow a residence for a caretaker 


and their partner/spouse in the Mansion in the location identified in the hearing before this Board, 


and approves the Special Hearing to permit the nonconforming use in the residential zoning 


designation. 
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ORDER 


THEREFORE, IT IS THIS 29th day of June, 2023, by the Board of Appeals of 


Baltimore County, hereby: 


ORDERED that the Petition for Special Exception, pursuant to BCZR §236.2, to permit 


living quarters for a caretaker and their partner/spouse in a commercial building, in the location 


within the building as presented to the Board in the hearing, is hereby GRANTED; and it is, 


FURTHER ORDERED, that the Special Hearing, pursuant to BCZR §500.7, to approve 


an existing commercial meeting facility use and attendant parking as legal, non-conforming uses, 


is hereby GRANTED. 


Any petition for judicial review from this decision must be made in accordance with Rule 


7-201 through 7-210 of the Maryland Rules. 


BOARD OF APPEALS OF 
BALTIMORE COUNTY 
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June 29, 2023 


Lawrence E. Schmidt, Esquire 
Jason T. Vettori, Esquire 
Smith, Gildea & Schmidt, LLC 
600 Washington Avenue, Suite 200 
Towson, Maryland 21204 


Michael R. McCann, Esquire 
Michael R. McCann, P.A. 
118 W. Pennsylvania A venue 
Towson, Maryland 21204 


RE: In the Matter of: Grey Rock Properties, LLC - Legal Owner 
Case No.: 21-273-SPHX 


Dear Counsel: 


Enclosed please find a copy of the final Opinion and Order issued this date by the Board of 
Appeals of Baltimore County in the above subject matter. 


Any petition for judicial review from this decision must be made in accordance with Rule 7-
201 through Rule 7-210 of the Maryland Rules, WITH A PHOTOCOPY PROVIDED TO THIS 
OFFICE CONCURRENT WITH FILING IN CIRCUIT COURT. Please note that all 
Petitions for Judicial Review filed from this decision should be noted under the same civil 
action number. If no such petition is filed within 30 days from the date of the enclosed Order, the 
subject file will be closed. 


Very truly yours, 


I~ 
Krysundra "Sunny" Cannington 
Administrator 


KLC/taz 
Enclosure 
Duplicate Original Cover Letter 


c: See Distribution List following 







In the matter of: Grey Rock Properties, LLC - Lega I Owner 
Case No.: 21-273-SPHX 
Distribution List 
June 29, 2023 


Anne Pomykala and Brian Pomykala/Grey Rock Properties, LLC 
Steven Weinstein, President/Grey Rock Maintenance Corporation 
Richard Soypher, President/Grey Rock Flats Condominium Association 
Lawrence Levin, President/Grey Rock Villas Association 
Office of People's Counsel 
Paul M. Mayhew, Managing Administrative Law Judge 
Stephen Lafferty, Director/Department of Planning 
C. Pete Gutwald, Director/PAI 
James R. Benjamin, Jr., County Attorney/Office of Law 


2 





		Grey Rock Properties, LLC 21-273-SPHX Opinion

		IN THE MATTER OF GREY ROCK PROPERTIES, LLC, LEGAL OWNERS AND PETITIONERS FOR SPECIAL HEARING AND SPECIAL EXCEPTION ON THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 400 GREY ROCK ROAD ALSO KNOWN AS 400 CLIFTON COURT (GREY ROCK MANSION) 3rd ELECTION DISTRICT 2nd COUNCIL DISTRICT 

		OPINION 

		ORDER 












 
January 3, 2023 


 


NOTICE OF DELIBERATION 
 


IN THE MATTER OF:   Grey Rock Properties, LLC – Legal Owner 


    400 Grey Rock Road / 400 Clifton Court 


 21-273-SPHX   3rd Election District; 2nd Council District  
 


Re: Petition for Special Hearing pursuant to BCZR §500.7 to approve an existing commercial meeting 


facility use and attendant parking as legal, nonconforming uses; and from BCZR §409.12.B to approve 


a modified parking plan; and 


 


 Petition for Special Exception pursuant to BCZR §236.2 to permit living quarters in a commercial 


building. 


 


3/3/22 Opinion and Order of the Administrative Law Judge wherein the Petition for Special Hearing under 


BCZR §500.7 to approve the existing commercial meeting facility use and attendant parking as legal, 


nonconforming uses was GRANTED; and the request to approve a modified parking plan pursuant to 


BCZR §409.12.B was DISMISSED AS MOOT; and the Petition for Special Exception under BCZR 


§236.2 to permit living quarters in a commercial building was GRANTED, with conditions. 


 


This matter having been heard and concluded on November 30, 2022, a public 


deliberation has been 
 


ASSIGNED FOR:  FEBRUARY 22, 2023, AT 9:00 A.M. 
 


The above scheduled public deliberation will be held remotely using WebEx for audio 


and video participation.  Call-in information and a link to the public deliberation 


will be posted on our web calendar the night before at 
www.baltimorecountymd.gov/departments/appeals.html. 
 
NOTE:  PUBLIC DELIBERATIONS ARE OPEN WORK SESSIONS WHICH ALLOW THE PUBLIC TO 


WITNESS THE DECISION-MAKING PROCESS.  A WRITTEN OPINION AND ORDER WILL BE 


ISSUED BY THE BOARD WITHIN A REASONABLE TIMEFRAME AFTER DELIBERATION AND A 


COPY SENT TO ALL PARTIES.  


 


NOTE:  Closing briefs are due on January 9, 2023 no later than 3:00 p.m. 


(Electronic copy emailed to:  
appealsboard@baltimorecountymd.gov) 
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If you do not have access to a computer or smart device, please contact our office for the call-in 


information the day before the scheduled deliberation.  
 


       Krysundra Cannington, Administrator 


 


c. Counsel for Legal Owners/Petitioners  : Lawrence E. Schmidt, Esquire 


         Jason T. Vettori, Esquire 


  Legal Owner/Petitioners   : Grey Rock Properties, LLC 


         Anne Pomykala and Brian Pomykala 


 


 Counsel for Protestants/Appellants  : Michael R. McCann, Esquire 


Protestants/Appellants : Steven Weinstein, President/Grey Rock       


Maintenance Corp.; Richard Soypher, 


President/Grey Rock Flats Condominium 


Association; Lawrence Levin, President/Grey 


Rock Villa Association  


 


 


 


Office of People’s Counsel 


Paul M. Mayhew, Managing Administrative Law Judge 


Stephen Lafferty, Director/Department of Planning 


C. Pete Gutwald, Director/PAI 


James R. Benjamin, Jr., County Attorney/Office of Law 
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PHONE: (410)-296-3990
FAX: (410)-296-3898


SEAL:


CLIENT:
GREY ROCK PROPERTIES, LLC


400 GREY ROCK ROAD
PIKESVILLE, MARYLAND 21208


SHEET TITLE:


PLAN TO ACCOMPANY SPECIAL
EXCEPTION APPLICATION


REVISION


MARK DATE DESCRIPTION


DRAWN:
RH


DESIGN:
LT


CHECKED:
LT


DATE:
08-30-2021


PROJECT NO.:


PELA 21.06.10


SCALE:
1"=40`


SHEET NO.:


1


GENERAL NOTES:
1. OWNER:


GREY ROCK PROPERTIES, LLC.
GREENSPRING VALLEY ROAD
STEVENSON, MD 21153


2. SITE AREA
GROSS: 2.770 ACRES
NET: 2.770 ACRES


3. BUILDING AREA
EXISTING: 6,511.5 SQ. FT.
PROPOSED: 6,511.5 SQ. FT. (NO CHANGE)


4. UTILITIES
PUBLIC WATER: EXISTING
PUBLIC SEWER: EXISTING


5. TO OUR BEST KNOWLEDGE, NO FLOODPLAIN EXISTS WITHIN
THE PROPERTY


6. BUILDING HEIGHT
MAX PERMITTED: 100'
EXISTING: 37', 3 STORIES (COMMERCIAL USE ON 1ST AND 2ND
FLOORS, STORAGE ON 3RD FLOOR)


7. PARKING CALCULATIONS
REQUIRED:
5X(6,511.5 SFX2FL/1,000 SF)=65 PARKING SPACES
EXISTING: 104 SPACES
60 SPACES (WEST OF MANSION, STRIPED AND PAVED)
4 SPACES (NORTH OF THE MANSION)
40 SPACES (SOUTHEAST OF MANSION, PAVED, ON A SEPERATE
PARCEL)
PROPOSED: 104 SPACES


8. SETBACKS
REQUIRED EXISTING


FRONT 50' FROM STREET CENTERLINE   N/A
   25' FROM PROPERTY LINE            25'


SIDE     30' 90'
REAR    30' 151'


9. DEED REFERENCE:
LIBER 12795, FOLIO 404 (MARCH  25,1998)


10. TAX ACCOUNT NO.: 24-00-003482
11. ELECTION DISTRICT: 11
12. COUNCILMAN DISTRICT: 3RD
13. REGIONAL PLANNING DISTRICT: CENTRAL MARYLAND
14. CENSUS TRACT NUMBER: 4037.01
15. WATERSHED: JONES FALLS WATERSHED
16. ZONING: BR AND DR 3.5
17. TAX MAP REFERENCE: M68, GRID 13, PARCEL 312
18. PREVIOUS ZONING CASES:


THE DEVELOPMENT AND ZONING HISTORY FOR THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY, AND THE ACREAGE OF DEVELOPMENT OF WHICH
IT IS A PART, IS SET FORTH IN THE ZONING FILE FOR CASE NO.
03-477-SPH.  THE PARKING REQUIREMENT WAS DETERMINED
TO BE 104 PARKING SPACES.


19. PERMITS ON FILE: NONE FOUND
20. FLOOR AREA FOR BR:


MAX PERMITTED:   2.0
EXISTING: 1.0
PROPOSED:   NO CHANGE


21. THE SITE DOES NOT LIE WITHIN THE CHESAPEAKE BAY
CRITICAL AREA.


22. HISTORIC FEATURES: GREY ROCK MANSION (BA-39) HAS
SURVEYED ON THE MARYLAND INVENTORY OF HISTORIC
PLACES.  BALTIMORE COUNTY LANDMARK COMMISSION HAS
REVIEWED AND RECOMMENDED THE NOMINATION OF GREY
ROCK MANSION BE LISTED AS A NATIONAL REGISTER.  IT IS
CURRENTLY BEING REVIEWED BY THE MARYLAND HISTORICAL
TRUST AND NATIONAL PARK SERVICES FOR FINAL APPROVAL.


23. PREVIOUS DRC MEETINGS:   NONE
24. PLAT REFERENCE: PLAT BOOK 75, PAGE 140
25. ZONING MAP NO.   068A2
26. ALL ADJACENT PROPERTIES ARE RESIDENTIAL USE.
27. THE SITE IS NOT IN THE FAILED BASIC SERVICE AREA MAP.
28. ALL ENTRANCE DRIVES TO THE MANSION ARE DRIVE DRIVE.
29. ALL SIGNAGE SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH BCZR SECTION


450.
30. EXISTING USE: COMMERCIAL MEETING FACILITY


PROPOSED USE: COMMERCIAL FACILITY AND CARETAKER'S
APARTMENT (LIVING QUARTERS).
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RESUME 
 


 
 
 
LILING T. TIEN, PLA, ASLA 
President/Principal Landscape Architect 
 
Education 
Master of Science, Landscape Architecture 
Master of City and Regional Planning 
 
Professional Registrations 
1996/Landscape Architecture/Maryland/1129 
2019/Landscape Architecture/Florida/TLA 145 
2020/Landscape Architecture/Indiana/22000011 
2021/Landscape Architecture/South Carolina/LSA 1501 
 
Professional Associations 


▪ American Society of Landscape Architects 
▪ Member of Maryland Board of Examiners of 


Landscape Architects, appointed 1999-2008 
▪ Member of Maryland Public Art Council, 


appointed 2013 to 2019 
 


Years experience: With This Firm: 26; With Other Firms: 10 


 
Experience: Ms. Tien is a design-award winning planner 
and landscape architect with over 35 years of experience 
in projects of various planning and design disciplines. 
Prior to establish P.E.L.A. Design, she worked for Baltimore 


County Community Planning Division, Office of Planning, and 


KCI Technologies. Her education in both planning and 


landscape architecture and her work experience in both public 


and private sectors enable her to perform efficiently a wide 


range of services for the client. Her work experience includes 


performing comprehensive planning for towns and open space 


system, streetscape design, urban design, land planning for 


residential and commercial developments, institutional master 


planning, park planning and design, landscape architecture 


design for various types of developments, In addition, she has 


testified as expert witness for a number of projects. Listed below 


are selected projects for each planning and design category. 


  
Planning – cities, towns and institutions 


▪ Windsor Township Comprehensive Plan Update, York 


County, PA 


▪ .Lower Paxton Township Comprehensive Plan 


Update, Dauphin County, PA 


▪ Carroll Township Park, Recreation Area, and Open 


Space Comprehensive Plan, York Co. PA 


▪ Town of Bel Air Comprehensive Plan Update, Town of 


Bel Air, MD 


▪ U.S. National Arboretum Master Plan Update, 


Washington, DC (including landscape design 


guidelines) 


▪ Hallowing Point Waterfront Park Master Plan, Prince 


Frederick, MD 


▪ Johns Hopkins Wyman Park Master Plan, Baltimore 


City, MD 


 


Projects Testified as Expert Witness or Presented to Design 


Review Panels  


▪ Washington Homes Hospice Renovation and 


Expansion, Washington DC. 


▪ 210 on the Park Mixed-use Development, Capital 


Heights, MD 


▪ Rye Street Mixed-use Development, Balto. City, MD 


▪ Holy Spring Meadow Apartment Solar Panel 


Installation, Capital Heights, MD 


▪ Coppin State University Science and Technology 


Center, Baltimore City, MD 


 


Design Guidelines 


▪ Baltimore County Landscape Design Manual, 


Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Harford County Landscape Design Manual Buffer 


Requirement, Harford County, MD 


▪ Route 140 Corridor at Finksburg Design Guidelines, 


Carroll County, MD 


▪ Argonne Drive Streetscape Design Guidelines, 


Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Trail and Shared-use Sign and Trailhead Design 


Guidelines, Howard County, MD 


 


Land Use and Zoning Study 


▪ White Marsh Plant Land Use Study, Baltimore Co, MD 


▪ Edrich Property Zoning Reclassification Study, 


Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Montanye Property Zoning Reclassification, Baltimore 


County, MD 


▪ Shapiro Property Zoning Reclassification Study, 


Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Gudelsky Property Zoning Reclassification and Land 


Use Study, Prince George’s County, MD  


 


Transportation Corroridor Land Use/Urban Design Study 


▪ Franklin-Mulburry-US 40 Transportation Corridor 


Study, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Pennsylvania Avenue Corridor Urban Design Study, 


City of Westminster, MD 


▪ Old Court Corridor Study, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Reisterstown Road Corridor Study, Baltimore Co, MD 


▪ Druid Park Lake Drive Corridor Complete Street 


Study, Baltimore City, MD 


 


Urban Design /Urban Renewal Studies 


▪ City Crescent Site Urban Design Study, Baltimore 


City, MD 


▪ Oella Entranceway Urban Design Study, Baltimore 


County, MD 


▪ Dundalk Village Urban Design Study, Baltimore 
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County, MD 


▪ Fenton Village Urban Design Study, Montgomery 


County, MD 


▪ Burtonsville Commercial Area Design Study, 


Montgomery County, MD 


 


Feasibility Study/ Land Planning  


▪ Jenna Estates, Carroll County, MD 


▪ Delta Crossing Community, York Co., PA 


▪ Wise Avenue Shopping Center, Baltimore, MD 


▪ Cape St. Clair RV Park, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Parkside Nursing Home, Baltimore, MD 


▪ Clarke Concrete Plant, Baltimore County, MD 


 


Park Design 


▪ Heritage Trail Park Concept, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Hanlon Park Reconstruction, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Largo Town Center Park, Prince George’s Co., MD  


▪ Sewell’s Orchard Comm. Park, Howard County, MD 


▪ Woodlawn Cultural Park & Museum, Montgomery 


County, MD 


 


Mixed Use Development 


▪ 210 on the Park, Capital Heights, MD 


▪ Penn Place, Capital Heights, MD 


▪ Port Covington Rye Street Development, Baltimore 


City, MD 


▪ Riva Street Development, Annapolis City, MD 


▪ Park Avenue Development, Baltimore City, MD 


 


Health Care 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Hillsborough, FL 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Ocala, FL 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Orangeburg, SC 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Terre Haute, IN 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Port Richie, FL 


 


Higher Education 


▪ University of Maryland Medical Center, Balto City, MD 


▪ Rigg’s Alumni Center, University of Maryland, College 


Park, MD 


▪ UMMS Emergency Entranceway Streetscape Design, 


Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Coppin State University Science and Technology 


Center, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Truxal Library Renovation and Expansion, Anne 


Arundel Community College, Arnold, MD 


 


Streetscape Design 


▪ Charles Street Reconstruction and Streetscape 


Design at JHU, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ North Avenue Reconstruction and Streetscape 


Design, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Fenton Village Streetscape Design, Montgomery 


County, MD 


▪ Kensington Antique Row Streetscape Design, 


Montgomery County, MD 


▪ Make It Right Foundation Pilot Streetscape Project, 


New Orleans, LA 


 


Projects Integrating Green Infra Structure into the 


Landscape 


▪ Park Circle Improvements, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Charles Street Reconstruction and Streetscape 


Design, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Woodlawn Museum and Visitor Center, Montgomery 


County., MD 


▪ Anne Arundel Community College Truxal Library 


Renovation and Expansion, Arnold, MD 


▪ Pikesville High School Renovation and Expansion, 


Baltimore County, MD 


 


Transportation Related Landscape Design Projects 


▪ Purple Line Light Rail Streetscape and Urban Design 


Concept Plan, Montgomery and Prince George’s 


Counties, MD 


▪ MD 5 and MD 375 Interchange Improvements, Prince 


George’s County, MD 


▪ MD 152 Improvements, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Camden Marc Station Reconstruction, Balto City, MD 


▪ MD 43 Bike Lane, Somerset County, MD 


 


History Relevant Landscape Design 


▪ 1840’s Plaza Adaptive Re-use, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Mt Auburn Cemetery Perimeter Improvements, 


Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Heritage Trail Park Concept Plan, Baltimore Co, MD 


▪ Woodlawn Cultural Park Visitor Center and Museum, 


Montgomery County, MD 


▪ Kensington Antique Row Streetscape Design, 


Montgomery County, MD 


 


Selected Awards 


▪ MD ASLA – Heritage Trail Concept Design, Baltimore 


County, MD 


▪ MD AIA – Coppin State University New Science and 


Technology Center, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ MNCPPC Design Excellence Open Space Category – 


Woodlawn Museum and Visitor Center, An Adaptive 


Reuse of a Historic Property, Montgomery Co., MD 


▪ Downtown Development Association Streetscape 


Category 1st Place – Fenton Village Streetscape 


Design, Silver Spring, MD 


▪ MDOT Green Award – South Mountain Welcome 


Centers, Frederick County, MD 
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Baltimore County 2000 Comprehensive Zoning Map Issues 


Issue 
Number


Owner, 
Petitioner


Location Existing 
Zoning and 


Acres


Requested 
Zoning and 


Acres


CommentsPlanning
Board


Recommendations


County
Council


Decisions


2-061 Staff 2330 Smith Ave, northeast corner of Old Pimlico Rd and Smith 
Ave


BL 1.1


Total 1.1


BLR 1.1


Total 1.1


BLR 1.1


Total 1.1


BL 1.1


Total 1.1


2-062 Planning Board Northwest corner of Park Heights Ave and Hooks Ln Overlay Adopted
RC 5 39.3


Total 39.3


DR 1 39.3


Total 39.3


DR 1 25.8


RC 5 13.5


Total 39.3


DR 1 25.8


RC 5 13.5


Total 39.3


2-063 Staff North and south side of Smith Ave, east of Pimlico Rd
DR 3.5 151.0


Total 151.0


DR 2 151.0


Total 151.0


DR 3.5 151.0


Total 151.0


DR 3.5 151.0


Total 151.0


2-064 Staff West side of Falls Rd, south of Clarkview Rd See Issues 2-029, 2-048
2-078


DR 5.5 4.1


Total 4.1


DR 3.5 4.1


Total 4.1


DR 3.5 4.1


Total 4.1


DR 2 4.1


Total 4.1


2-065 Staff North side Mt. Wilson Ln, north of Winands Rd See Issue 2-030
Overlay Adopted


DR 3.5 42.7


Total 42.7


DR 1 42.7


Total 42.7


DR 3.5 42.7


Total 42.7


DR 3.5 39.9


DR 2 2.8


Total 42.7


2-066 Staff North side of Old Court Rd, 1700' west of Greenspring Ave
DR 1 155.0


Total 155.0


RC 2 155.0


Total 155.0


DR 1 155.0


Total 155.0


DR 1 155.0


Total 155.0


2-067 Staff South side of Greentree Rd, 1200' west of Castleton Ave Overlay Adopted
BM 5.1


BR 0.9


Total 6.0


DR 3.5 5.5


BR 0.5


Total 6.0


BR 0.9


BM 5.1


Total 6.0


BR 0.9


DR 3.5 5.1


Total 6.0


2-068 Staff Greentree Rd, north of Stone Chapel Rd
BM 7.2


Total 7.2


DR 3.5 7.2


Total 7.2


DR 3.5 6.7


BM 0.5


Total 7.2


DR 3.5 7.2


Total 7.2


Page 9 of 11October 10,  2000
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Tammy Zahner


From: Appeals Board
Sent: Monday, January 9, 2023 2:55 PM
To: Alyssa Moyers
Subject: RE: Grey Rock Properties, LLC/400 Grey Rock Road/400 Clifton Court (Case No. 21-273-


SPHX)


Received.      
Thank you. 
 
Tammy A. Zahner, Legal Assistant 
Board of Appeals for Baltimore County 
The Jefferson Building, Suite 203 
105 W. Chesapeake Avenue 
Towson, Maryland 21204 
tzahner@baltimorecountymd.gov 
(410) 887-3180 
(410) 887-3182 Fax 
 
Confidentiality Statement 
This electronic mail transmission contains confidential information belonging to sender which is legally privileged and 
confidential.  The information is intended only for the use of the individual or entity named above.  If you are not the intended 
recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution, or taking of any action based on the contents of this 
electronic mail transmission is strictly prohibited.  If you have received this electronic mail transmission in error, please immediately 
notifiy sender. 
 


From: Alyssa Moyers <amoyers@sgs-law.com>  
Sent: Monday, January 9, 2023 2:41 PM 
To: Appeals Board <appealsboard@baltimorecountymd.gov> 
Cc: Lawrence Schmidt <lschmidt@sgs-law.com> 
Subject: Grey Rock Properties, LLC/400 Grey Rock Road/400 Clifton Court (Case No. 21-273-SPHX) 
 
CAUTION: This message from amoyers@sgs-law.com originated from a non Baltimore County Government or non BCPL email 
system. Hover over any links before clicking and use caution opening attachments.  


 
Sunny/Tammy,  
 
Please see the attached to be filed in the above referenced matter.   
 
Thanks!                 
 
 


 


Alyssa F. Moyers 
SENIOR PARALEGAL 
 
Smith, Gildea & Schmidt, LLC 
600 Washington Avenue, Suite 200  
Baltimore, MD 21204 







2


(443) 595-7785 (Direct) 
(410) 821-0070 (Office) 
(410) 821-0071 (Fax) 
amoyers@sgs-law.com  
http://secure-web.cisco.com/1W6sMh7b7IioIyVZTQbzsRChf9ID-
iLdst6j4VCcuiYs2J3GOJ3vkcRudRzcMv7736KTYWCOKFFpN_v7v640ZyOVzzNq8l5TvxAucHc37OSk9Fmch0fwgSr0Z0GVC3w0ZPWogkdEvuohl2uPytNw_dV6NG
wQq_qLknHTcFUM6WIucbTPW1H65C9JTMDS_SNht6pVcU-
aRxT5TAXJ3SGNM6YnKQ_nMPCPKXofoWen9YJCxX1cw0LbG1Ofjq52LuAZ6BWkfOK8cwTLoSlNR7c3l11zgBIXCeLHyYYE9Nkusfc5UM1GUP3D
lnQ5OU062yXdGlkjGYx6VOyJ9VfNR-ddbX12MlggS5S0oQMGVn1-a8jKBtS4RHZ08roJ7YsJ0QPpQu7x0FzZ3FCaKU2BTGIdRZMX6XKJanpJUULo1LeyeXCv_EyzB
dsH1UA1Leg/http%3A%2F%2Fwww.sgs-law.com 
 
 


This email contains information from the law firm of Smith, Gildea & Schmidt, LLC which may be confidential and/or 
privileged.  The information is intended to be for the exclusive use of the individual or entity named above.  If you are not 
the intended recipient, be advised that any disclosure, copying, distribution or other use of this information is strictly 
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PROJECT NO.:
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GENERAL NOTES:
1. OWNER:


GREY ROCK PROPERTIES, LLC.
GREENSPRING VALLEY ROAD
STEVENSON, MD 21153


2. SITE AREA
GROSS: 2.770 ACRES
NET: 2.770 ACRES


3. BUILDING AREA
EXISTING: 6,511.5 SQ. FT.
PROPOSED: 6,511.5 SQ. FT. (NO CHANGE)


4. UTILITIES
PUBLIC WATER: EXISTING
PUBLIC SEWER: EXISTING


5. TO OUR BEST KNOWLEDGE, NO FLOODPLAIN EXISTS WITHIN
THE PROPERTY


6. BUILDING HEIGHT
MAX PERMITTED: 100'
EXISTING: 37', 3 STORIES (COMMERCIAL USE ON 1ST AND 2ND
FLOORS, STORAGE ON 3RD FLOOR)


7. PARKING CALCULATIONS
REQUIRED:
5X(6,511.5 SFX2FL/1,000 SF)=65 PARKING SPACES
EXISTING: 104 SPACES
60 SPACES (WEST OF MANSION, STRIPED AND PAVED)
4 SPACES (NORTH OF THE MANSION)
40 SPACES (SOUTHEAST OF MANSION, PAVED, ON A SEPERATE
PARCEL)
PROPOSED: 104 SPACES


8. SETBACKS
REQUIRED EXISTING


FRONT 50' FROM STREET CENTERLINE   N/A
   25' FROM PROPERTY LINE            25'


SIDE     30' 90'
REAR    30' 151'


9. DEED REFERENCE:
LIBER 12795, FOLIO 404 (MARCH  25,1998)


10. TAX ACCOUNT NO.: 24-00-003482
11. ELECTION DISTRICT: 11
12. COUNCILMAN DISTRICT: 3RD
13. REGIONAL PLANNING DISTRICT: CENTRAL MARYLAND
14. CENSUS TRACT NUMBER: 4037.01
15. WATERSHED: JONES FALLS WATERSHED
16. ZONING: BR AND DR 3.5
17. TAX MAP REFERENCE: M68, GRID 13, PARCEL 312
18. PREVIOUS ZONING CASES:


THE DEVELOPMENT AND ZONING HISTORY FOR THE SUBJECT
PROPERTY, AND THE ACREAGE OF DEVELOPMENT OF WHICH
IT IS A PART, IS SET FORTH IN THE ZONING FILE FOR CASE NO.
03-477-SPH.  THE PARKING REQUIREMENT WAS DETERMINED
TO BE 104 PARKING SPACES.


19. PERMITS ON FILE: NONE FOUND
20. FLOOR AREA FOR BR:


MAX PERMITTED:   2.0
EXISTING: 1.0
PROPOSED:   NO CHANGE


21. THE SITE DOES NOT LIE WITHIN THE CHESAPEAKE BAY
CRITICAL AREA.


22. HISTORIC FEATURES: GREY ROCK MANSION (BA-39) HAS
SURVEYED ON THE MARYLAND INVENTORY OF HISTORIC
PLACES.  BALTIMORE COUNTY LANDMARK COMMISSION HAS
REVIEWED AND RECOMMENDED THE NOMINATION OF GREY
ROCK MANSION BE LISTED AS A NATIONAL REGISTER.  IT IS
CURRENTLY BEING REVIEWED BY THE MARYLAND HISTORICAL
TRUST AND NATIONAL PARK SERVICES FOR FINAL APPROVAL.


23. PREVIOUS DRC MEETINGS:   NONE
24. PLAT REFERENCE: PLAT BOOK 75, PAGE 140
25. ZONING MAP NO.   068A2
26. ALL ADJACENT PROPERTIES ARE RESIDENTIAL USE.
27. THE SITE IS NOT IN THE FAILED BASIC SERVICE AREA MAP.
28. ALL ENTRANCE DRIVES TO THE MANSION ARE DRIVE DRIVE.
29. ALL SIGNAGE SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH BCZR SECTION


450.
30. EXISTING USE: COMMERCIAL MEETING FACILITY


PROPOSED USE: COMMERCIAL FACILITY AND CARETAKER'S
APARTMENT (LIVING QUARTERS).
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LILING T. TIEN, PLA, ASLA 
President/Principal Landscape Architect 
 
Education 
Master of Science, Landscape Architecture 
Master of City and Regional Planning 
 
Professional Registrations 
1996/Landscape Architecture/Maryland/1129 
2019/Landscape Architecture/Florida/TLA 145 
2020/Landscape Architecture/Indiana/22000011 
2021/Landscape Architecture/South Carolina/LSA 1501 
 
Professional Associations 


▪ American Society of Landscape Architects 
▪ Member of Maryland Board of Examiners of 


Landscape Architects, appointed 1999-2008 
▪ Member of Maryland Public Art Council, 


appointed 2013 to 2019 
 


Years experience: With This Firm: 26; With Other Firms: 10 


 
Experience: Ms. Tien is a design-award winning planner 
and landscape architect with over 35 years of experience 
in projects of various planning and design disciplines. 
Prior to establish P.E.L.A. Design, she worked for Baltimore 


County Community Planning Division, Office of Planning, and 


KCI Technologies. Her education in both planning and 


landscape architecture and her work experience in both public 


and private sectors enable her to perform efficiently a wide 


range of services for the client. Her work experience includes 


performing comprehensive planning for towns and open space 


system, streetscape design, urban design, land planning for 


residential and commercial developments, institutional master 


planning, park planning and design, landscape architecture 


design for various types of developments, In addition, she has 


testified as expert witness for a number of projects. Listed below 


are selected projects for each planning and design category. 


  
Planning – cities, towns and institutions 


▪ Windsor Township Comprehensive Plan Update, York 


County, PA 


▪ .Lower Paxton Township Comprehensive Plan 


Update, Dauphin County, PA 


▪ Carroll Township Park, Recreation Area, and Open 


Space Comprehensive Plan, York Co. PA 


▪ Town of Bel Air Comprehensive Plan Update, Town of 


Bel Air, MD 


▪ U.S. National Arboretum Master Plan Update, 


Washington, DC (including landscape design 


guidelines) 


▪ Hallowing Point Waterfront Park Master Plan, Prince 


Frederick, MD 


▪ Johns Hopkins Wyman Park Master Plan, Baltimore 


City, MD 


 


Projects Testified as Expert Witness or Presented to Design 


Review Panels  


▪ Washington Homes Hospice Renovation and 


Expansion, Washington DC. 


▪ 210 on the Park Mixed-use Development, Capital 


Heights, MD 


▪ Rye Street Mixed-use Development, Balto. City, MD 


▪ Holy Spring Meadow Apartment Solar Panel 


Installation, Capital Heights, MD 


▪ Coppin State University Science and Technology 


Center, Baltimore City, MD 


 


Design Guidelines 


▪ Baltimore County Landscape Design Manual, 


Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Harford County Landscape Design Manual Buffer 


Requirement, Harford County, MD 


▪ Route 140 Corridor at Finksburg Design Guidelines, 


Carroll County, MD 


▪ Argonne Drive Streetscape Design Guidelines, 


Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Trail and Shared-use Sign and Trailhead Design 


Guidelines, Howard County, MD 


 


Land Use and Zoning Study 


▪ White Marsh Plant Land Use Study, Baltimore Co, MD 


▪ Edrich Property Zoning Reclassification Study, 


Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Montanye Property Zoning Reclassification, Baltimore 


County, MD 


▪ Shapiro Property Zoning Reclassification Study, 


Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Gudelsky Property Zoning Reclassification and Land 


Use Study, Prince George’s County, MD  


 


Transportation Corroridor Land Use/Urban Design Study 


▪ Franklin-Mulburry-US 40 Transportation Corridor 


Study, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Pennsylvania Avenue Corridor Urban Design Study, 


City of Westminster, MD 


▪ Old Court Corridor Study, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Reisterstown Road Corridor Study, Baltimore Co, MD 


▪ Druid Park Lake Drive Corridor Complete Street 


Study, Baltimore City, MD 


 


Urban Design /Urban Renewal Studies 


▪ City Crescent Site Urban Design Study, Baltimore 


City, MD 


▪ Oella Entranceway Urban Design Study, Baltimore 


County, MD 


▪ Dundalk Village Urban Design Study, Baltimore 
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County, MD 


▪ Fenton Village Urban Design Study, Montgomery 


County, MD 


▪ Burtonsville Commercial Area Design Study, 


Montgomery County, MD 


 


Feasibility Study/ Land Planning  


▪ Jenna Estates, Carroll County, MD 


▪ Delta Crossing Community, York Co., PA 


▪ Wise Avenue Shopping Center, Baltimore, MD 


▪ Cape St. Clair RV Park, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Parkside Nursing Home, Baltimore, MD 


▪ Clarke Concrete Plant, Baltimore County, MD 


 


Park Design 


▪ Heritage Trail Park Concept, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Hanlon Park Reconstruction, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Largo Town Center Park, Prince George’s Co., MD  


▪ Sewell’s Orchard Comm. Park, Howard County, MD 


▪ Woodlawn Cultural Park & Museum, Montgomery 


County, MD 


 


Mixed Use Development 


▪ 210 on the Park, Capital Heights, MD 


▪ Penn Place, Capital Heights, MD 


▪ Port Covington Rye Street Development, Baltimore 


City, MD 


▪ Riva Street Development, Annapolis City, MD 


▪ Park Avenue Development, Baltimore City, MD 


 


Health Care 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Hillsborough, FL 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Ocala, FL 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Orangeburg, SC 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Terre Haute, IN 


▪ Veteran Administration Community Based Medical 


Center, Port Richie, FL 


 


Higher Education 


▪ University of Maryland Medical Center, Balto City, MD 


▪ Rigg’s Alumni Center, University of Maryland, College 


Park, MD 


▪ UMMS Emergency Entranceway Streetscape Design, 


Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Coppin State University Science and Technology 


Center, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Truxal Library Renovation and Expansion, Anne 


Arundel Community College, Arnold, MD 


 


Streetscape Design 


▪ Charles Street Reconstruction and Streetscape 


Design at JHU, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ North Avenue Reconstruction and Streetscape 


Design, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Fenton Village Streetscape Design, Montgomery 


County, MD 


▪ Kensington Antique Row Streetscape Design, 


Montgomery County, MD 


▪ Make It Right Foundation Pilot Streetscape Project, 


New Orleans, LA 


 


Projects Integrating Green Infra Structure into the 


Landscape 


▪ Park Circle Improvements, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Charles Street Reconstruction and Streetscape 


Design, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Woodlawn Museum and Visitor Center, Montgomery 


County., MD 


▪ Anne Arundel Community College Truxal Library 


Renovation and Expansion, Arnold, MD 


▪ Pikesville High School Renovation and Expansion, 


Baltimore County, MD 


 


Transportation Related Landscape Design Projects 


▪ Purple Line Light Rail Streetscape and Urban Design 


Concept Plan, Montgomery and Prince George’s 


Counties, MD 


▪ MD 5 and MD 375 Interchange Improvements, Prince 


George’s County, MD 


▪ MD 152 Improvements, Baltimore County, MD 


▪ Camden Marc Station Reconstruction, Balto City, MD 


▪ MD 43 Bike Lane, Somerset County, MD 


 


History Relevant Landscape Design 


▪ 1840’s Plaza Adaptive Re-use, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Mt Auburn Cemetery Perimeter Improvements, 


Baltimore City, MD 


▪ Heritage Trail Park Concept Plan, Baltimore Co, MD 


▪ Woodlawn Cultural Park Visitor Center and Museum, 


Montgomery County, MD 


▪ Kensington Antique Row Streetscape Design, 


Montgomery County, MD 


 


Selected Awards 


▪ MD ASLA – Heritage Trail Concept Design, Baltimore 


County, MD 


▪ MD AIA – Coppin State University New Science and 


Technology Center, Baltimore City, MD 


▪ MNCPPC Design Excellence Open Space Category – 


Woodlawn Museum and Visitor Center, An Adaptive 


Reuse of a Historic Property, Montgomery Co., MD 


▪ Downtown Development Association Streetscape 


Category 1st Place – Fenton Village Streetscape 


Design, Silver Spring, MD 


▪ MDOT Green Award – South Mountain Welcome 


Centers, Frederick County, MD 
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Exhibit List  
Grey Rock Manion – 400 Grey Rock Road 


Case No.: 21-273-SPHX  
 
 


Description                                                                                                Petitioner’s Exhibit #  
Site Plan  1 


Aerial – Far 2A


Aerial – Mid 2B


Aerial – Close 2C


Site Photos        3A – 3X


Liling T. Tien CV 4


Newspaper articles 5


Development Plans for Grey Rock (from PAI) 6


Decision from Case No.: 03-477-SPH 7A


Plan from Case No. 03-477-SPH 7B
  


 








RE: PETITION FOR SPECIAL 
HEARING 
 
Grey Rock Properties, LLC. 
Petitioner 
 
400 Grey Rock Road (400 Clifton Court) 
 
3rd Election District 
2nd Councilmanic District 
 


* 
 
* 
 
* 
 
* 
 
* 
 
* 
 


BEFORE THE BOARD 
 
OF APPEALS 
 
FOR 
 
BALTIMORE COUNTY 
 
  
 
Case No.: 2021-0273-SPHX 


*     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *  
 


PETITIONER’S MEMORANUDM IN LIEU OF CLOSING ARGUMENT 


Grey Rock Properties, LLC., (“Petitioner”, Grey Rock” or “Owner”) by and through their 


attorneys, Lawrence E. Schmidt and Smith, Gildea & Schmidt, LLC, submits this Memorandum 


in Lieu of Closing Argument and respectfully states the following: 


Introduction 


This matter comes before the County Board of Appeals of Baltimore County (“Board”) on 


an appeal of the Opinion and Order of Administrative Law Judge Maureen M. Murphy dated 


March 3, 2022, which granted a Petition for Special Exception and Petition for Special Hearing 


filed by Grey Rock for its property located at 400 Grey Rock Road (a/k/a 400 Clifton Court and 


hereinafter the “Property”) in the Pikesville community of Baltimore County. The appeal was filed 


by Grey Rock Maintenance Corporation, Grey Rock Flats Condominium Association, and Grey 


Rock Villas Association (collectively the “Protestants”).  


A Special Exception is a conditional use, permitted subject to the provisions and 


requirements of Baltimore County Zoning Regulations (“BCZR”) Sec. 502.1. (See Attar v. DMS 


Tollgate, LLC, 451 Md. 272, 280, 152 A.3d 765, 769 (2017). Additionally, the Special Hearing 


Petition is filed pursuant to BCZR Sec. 500.7, which allows an individual to petition the ALJ for 







an interpretation of the proper application of any zoning regulation. A Special Hearing has been 


likened to a request for a declaratory judgment (See Antwerpen v. Baltimore County, 163 Md. App. 


194, (2005)). This specifically includes the determination of any nonconforming use. As filed, the 


petitions sought relief as follows: 


1. Approval of a Special Exception, as permitted by § 236.2 of the Baltimore 
County Zoning Regulations (“BCZR”), to allow living quarters within a 
commercial building for a property caretaker(s); and 
 


2. Approval of a Special Hearing, as permitted by § 104.1 of the BCZR, to permit 
the Property’s nonconforming commercial use within a residential zoning 
designation. 


 
Statement of Facts 


 
The matter came before the Board for a public hearing and the presentation of testimony 


and evidence by the parties was completed in one day. On behalf of the Petitioner, testimony was 


presented by Anne Pomykala, the managing member (principle) in Grey Rock Properties, LLC. 


Ms. Pomykala has vast experience in operating facilities similar to the catering facility venue at 


Grey Rock, in that she owns and operates the Gramercy Manson in Baltimore County and also the 


1840’s Inn and Plaza in Baltimore City. Also testifying in support of the Petition was Robert 


Skudrna, a previous owner of the Property and business thereon and Carl Richards, the longtime 


supervisor in the County Zoning Office who now serves as a consultant and qualified as an expert 


witness in the interpretation and application of the County’s zoning ordinance. In addition to these 


witnesses, the Petitioner submitted a number of documents (Exhibits 1-10A-B). These included 


photographs, plans depicting the development of the neighborhood, prior relevant decisions of the 


ALJ, newspaper articles and other relevant material. The Protestants evidence consisted of the 


testimony of several neighbors/residents of the area. The Protestants offered no expert testimony. 


They also submitted a series of documents as exhibits in the matter.  







The evidence established that the Property consists of two parcels which total slightly over 


2.7 acres in area. One parcel is a 2.025-acre parcel property on which is located a historic building 


known as the Grey Rock Mansion (the “Mansion”), an attached tent, an area of parking serving 


the same, and a lawn area used in connection with activities at the Mansion. This parcel is split 


zoned BR (Business-Roadside) and DR 3.5. The Mansion building is entirely within the BR zone, 


as is a portion of the adjacent parking lot and a part of the lawn. The Special Exception is to allow 


a limited residential use in this commercial/business zone, specifically a caretaker’s apartment (for 


one individual and his/her spouse/partner).  Areas of the parking lot and lawn which are zoned DR 


3.5 are the subject of the Special Hearing request for a non-conforming use designation. The 


second parcel is .7444 in area and contains a parking area which is used by the Owners in 


connection with activities at the Mansion and also (by agreement with the residential neighbors) 


for parking at an adjacent community swimming pool.1 This second parcel is zoned DR 3.5 and 


the non-conforming use of this parcel for commercial parking is also requested. The parcels are 


within close proximity to one another near the terminus of a private road (i.e. Grey Rock Road) 


which leads into the community from Reisterstown Road. This road ends as a circular driveway 


immediately in front of the Mansion Building. The Mansion building, parking area, and lawn are 


used by the Owner as a commercial venue to hold events such as weddings, memorial services, 


parties, etc. 


The crux of Petitioner’s case is two-fold; (1) to confirm, as a valid non-conforming use,  


the continued utilization of the Mansion’s surrounding grounds now zoned residential (DR 3.5) 


(including parking areas and lawn) as an extension of the commercial venue catering business; 


 
1 There is an easement of record recorded in the Land Records of Baltimore County at Lliber 9133, Page 
230 by and between a prior owner (Operators Engineers Local No. 17 Pension Fund) and Grey Rock, Inc. 
allowing the parking lot on the .7444 acre parcel to be used for parking by both the Mansion for functions 
there and the community for the nearby community swimming pool.   







and, (2) to allow living quarters of approximately 650 square feet within the Mansion to be 


occupied by a caretaker and (possibly) their partner, as permitted by special exception, for the 


purpose of further ensuring the safety and security of the Mansion and its surrounding grounds. 


Significantly, the accessory residential use proposed by the Petitioner is identical to a caretaker’s 


quarters which previously existed in the Mansion when the Property and catering business was 


owned/operated by a previous owner. This small caretaker’s apartment will occupy only a small 


percentage of the building, which is in excess of 10,000 square feet in total.2 


As to the history of the Property and its current use, the Grey Rock Mansion was built 


between 1857 and 1861 and has substantial historical significance. It’s located on a portion of the 


extensive property originally owned by the John Eager Howard family. Howard was a key figure 


in Maryland during colonial times and shortly after the formation of the United States. He served 


as governor of the State, was a confidant of George Washington, and is a figure of historic 


importance in Maryland. For many years, the Mansion was used as a residence, however in the 


mid-20th century, the building was acquired and used as a retreat center by the Trinitarians, a 


Christian order.  


The first use of the Property as a catering/event venue occurred while the Trinitarians were 


owners. At that time, the Property was occasionally rented as a catering facility by the Trinitarians 


to generate income. Mr. Skudrna testified that he was familiar with the Property when owned by 


the Trinitarians as he served as an altar boy during his youth and was thus familiar about the 


Trinitarians ownership and use of the Property dating back to the 1970’s. The catering company 


affiliated with the site during the Trinitarians ownership was Valley Catering.   


 
2 Records from an appraisal of the Property, as well as data at the State Dept. of Assessments and Taxation, 
indicate that the Mansion is in excess of 10,000 square feet in area. However, that portion used for the 
catering events (not including areas of storage, utilities, etc.) is approximately 6,500 square feet. See site 
plan (Pet. Ex. 1), note 3.  







In the mid 1980’s the Property was acquired by an entity (Simply Elegant Catering) of 


which Mr. Skudrna was a principal. The Property and Mansion was thereafter converted for 


exclusive use as a commercial event and catering venue. Mr. Skudrna initially owned both the 


Property and the catering business that was operated thereon. Later, he sold the business (retaining 


the Property) to Bill Clowney in 2003 and eventually (in 2010) sold the property to Mr. Clowney. 


Mr. Clowney operated the catering business on the Property during that time. The current owners 


acquired the Property at foreclosure in 2018 and have continued the catering operation since then. 


Thus, it is clear that a catering use has operated continuously on the Property from the 1980’s 


through the present day without interruption. The testimony of Mr. Skudrna and Ms. Pomykala 


was thorough and complete. They are the two individuals who have owned the Property and/or the 


catering business(es) that have operated on the Property continuously and uninterruptedly since 


the 1980’s. Their testimony was not challenged by the Protestants and clearly established (as will 


be argued hereinafter in detail) that a non-conforming catering use was operated on the portion of 


the property now zoned DR 3.5 prior to the re-zoning by Baltimore County in 2000. The current 


owners have continued to operate the Mansion and its surrounding property as a commercial event 


and catering venue. 


The development of the Grey Rock residential community which surrounds Grey Rock 


Mansion’s Property began in 1989, after the Mansion had been converted to the commercial 


operation. In addition to the testimony of Ms. Pomykala and Mr. Skudrna which established the 


non-conforming use, Petitioner submitted several Newspaper articles3 at the Administrative 


Hearing (Petitioner’s Ex. 5) from the 1980’s and 1990’s as evidence establishing that the 


 
3 “The houses will be next to the historic Grey Rock Mansion, which dates from about 1700, was restored 
around 1890, and now is leased by Valley Caterers.”  Edward Gunts, Grey Rock community will feature 
villas, flats, Baltimore Sun, June 9, 1991, § 3, at 1. 







commercial catering business was in operation when the residential development of the Grey Rock 


community was first contemplated and approved. 4 


The County Review Group (“CRG”) was that entity of County government that approved 


residential development in the Grey Rock community when it was first proposed. In fact, the first 


CRG plan for the Grey Rock residential community was approved on Sept. 7, 1989. The residential 


community of Grey Rock was approved and built in a series of phases and the CRG plan was 


amended accordingly as the development evolved. The “Grey Rock Partial Development Plan 


Phase II,” dated April 1, 1991, visually depicts the Grey Rock Mansion and its Lawn, and indicates 


that the property immediately around the Mansion was zoned BR and much of the lawn and 


parking area (on both lots) was zoned BM at that time. (Petitioner’s Ex. 6).  Both of those 


classifications are commercial zones allowing catering facilities and there attendant uses (i.e 


parking), by right. Another subsequent approved plan, the “Grey Rock First Amended Partial 


Development Plan, Phase I,” dated November 30, 1993, also identifies the Grey Rock Mansion 


and its Lawn as zoned BR and BM, respectively. Id. 


Baltimore County rezones land through its Comprehensive Zoning Map Process (“CZMP”) 


which occurs every four years (known as the “CZMP”). In the 2000 CZMP, the Grey Rock 


Mansion’s Property was rezoned to what it is today, a combination of BR and DR 3.5. (See Ex. 


10, 2000 CZMP Log of Issues) The location of the zone line adopted in 2000 limited the BR zone 


on the 2.025-acre parcel to a rectangularly shaped area that contains the Mansion and a small area 


of the lawn and parking lot. Remaining areas for parking and much of the lawn are in the area 


zoned DR 3.5. The location of the line separating these two zones appears to be haphazardly 


 
4 “[T]he owner of Grey Rock agreed to preserve the 130-year-old mansion and the surrounding grounds in 
return for rezoning that allows 18 acres of condominiums and 30,000 square-feet of commercial space.  
Katherine Drew DeBoalt, Housing could circle mansion, The Jefferson, June 2, 1988. 







placed, at best. That is, the adopted zoning map shows a rectangular box drawn around the 


Mansion, in which the zoning of BR was applied. This zoning line bisects the adjacent parking lot 


and lawn area. Outside the rectangle, the balance of the property is zoned DR 3.5 The “Partial 


Development Plan for Phase IV,” approved June 10, 2003, depicts the Grey Rock Mansion 


property’s present zoning designations. (Petitioner’s Ex. 6) More to the point, note #9 on the 2003 


Phase IV Plan indicates that the rezoning took place in 2000. Id. This Grey Rock residential 


development plan was ultimately approved by Baltimore County on February 14, 1994. Id. A 


review of these documents and the timing of the re-zoning leads to the clear conclusion that the 


re-zoning of the Property was done to permit the proposed adjacent residential development, in 


that residential uses are not permitted in the business zones. Apparently, when the new zoning map 


was approved, little thought was given to determining the precise acreage of the commercial 


activity occurring at and around the Mansion, and instead, commercial/business zone was retained 


to essentially include the Mansion building only, and not the entire parking and lawn/tent areas 


that are used in connection with the catering business. 


At the Board’s hearing, Petitioner established through testimony from the prior/current 


owners, previous zoning cases, and secondary sources such as newspaper articles that the Grey 


Rock Property has indisputably been continuously used as a commercial event and catering venue, 


without interruption, since prior to the residential development of the surrounding area. 


(Petitioner’s Exhibits 5, 7A, and 7B) and, more importantly, prior to the rezoning in 2000. In sum, 


there is no doubt that the entire use of the Property is (and has) been in connection with the catering 


business and that the Special Hearing should therefore be granted.  


As to the Special Exception, testimony was received from Ms. Pomykala regarding her 


desire to have a 24-hour presence (i.e. caretaker) on the Property. Ms. Pomykala specifically 







testified that she opposes the restriction imposed by the ALJ below that limits occupancy to a 


single individual. As she indicated, no caretaker has yet been identified or hired and she does not 


want to limit the pool of potential candidates to only those individuals who are 


unmarried/unattached. Thus, she requests approval to allow a caretaker and spouse/significant 


other to occupy the apartment. Under BCZR § 236.2, a residential apartment in the commercial 


BR zone is permitted by special exception, only. There is nothing devious or underhanded about 


this request (contrary to the Protestants veiled assertions). There is no change in the use of the 


Property proposed and the operation will continue as has existed for years. The building is not 


being converted to a bed and breakfast operation or hotel. There are no proposed overnight 


accommodations for guests.  The rationale for the request is simple; the building is an old structure 


in a suburban locale. It makes sense to have an individual on the Property on a 24 hour basis to 


address any issues that require immediate attention and to help maintain the Property. Ms. 


Pomykala testified that the Mansion is a multi-storied building. The catered events (weddings, 


receptions, fundraisers, etc.) take place on the main/first floor. On the upper floors there is a 


kitchen, separate bride and groom’s rooms and office space. In this area, Mr. Pomykala indicated 


that a small residential apartment is proposed. It will be occupied by an individual (either alone or 


with a spouse or significant other). That individual will live on the Property to “keep an eye on 


things”, perform some general maintenance and repair and be available in the event of sudden 


emergency. Importantly, Mr. Skudrna testified that there was a similar caretaker’s quarters when 


he initially owned the Property, whose function was much the same as now proposed. In addition 


to the testimony of Ms. Pomykala and Mr. Skudrna regarding the appropriateness of the caretaker’s 


quarters, expert testimony was also offered to the Board by Mr. Richards. He indicated that the 


residential use would cause no detrimental impact to the neighborhood and would actually be a 







benefit by providing on site supervision of the Property.  He addressed each of the requirements 


in BCZR § 502.1 and concluded that the proposal meets the standards of that section. He also 


attaches great significance to the fact that the Mansion previously had a similar caretaker’s quarters 


and concurred that the addition of another individual (spouse/significant other) would not cause 


any further impact.  


Standard of Review 
 


I. Special Exceptions in Baltimore County 


A special exception use in Baltimore County refers to a permissive land use category 


authorized by the Baltimore County Council, which may be permitted pursuant to specific 


statutory standards. The special exception process is initiated by the filing of a special exception 


petition. The special exception petition is first reviewed and commented on by County agencies 


(Zoning Advisory Committee) and then proceeds forward to an evidentiary hearing before the 


Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”). Comments issued by the Zoning Advisory Committee are 


advisory in nature and are part of the evidentiary record before the ALJ.  


As with any special exception, the subject request must be adjudged in accordance with 


the provisions of BCZR § 502.1 entitled “Special Exceptions.” BCZR § 502.1 states:  


“Before any special exception may be granted, it must appear that the use for which 
the special exception is requested will not: 
 


A. Be detrimental to the health, safety or general welfare of the locality 
involved; 


B. Tend to create congestion in roads, streets or alleys therein; 
C. Create a potential hazard from fire, panic or other danger; 
D. Tend to overcrowd land and cause undue concentration of population; 
E. Interfere with adequate provisions for schools, parks, water, sewage, 


transportation or other public requirements, conveniences or improvements; 
F. Interfere with adequate light and air; 
G. Be inconsistent with the purposes of the property's zoning classification nor 


in any other way inconsistent with the spirit and intent of the Zoning 
Regulations; 







H. Be inconsistent with the impermeable surface and vegetative retention 
provisions of these Zoning Regulations; nor 


I. Be detrimental to the environmental and natural resources of the site and 
vicinity including forests, wetlands, aquifers and floodplains in an R.C.2, 
R.C.4, R.C.5 or R.C.7 Zone.[”] 


 
 As noted above, Mr. Richards offered explicit and uncontradicted testimony that the 


proposed special exception use met each and every criteria in BCZR § 502.1. The law of special 


exceptions in Maryland has been comprehensively addressed by the appellate courts of this state. 


As is well settled, the criteria stated in BCZR § 502.1 is to be applied to each petition in the manner 


as outlined in the seminal case of Schultz v. Pritts, 291 Md. 1 (1981).  


 In Schultz, the court discussed the role of special exceptions in the comprehensive zoning 


scheme enacted by the local jurisdiction and opined, “[t]he special exception use is a part of the 


comprehensive zoning plan sharing the presumption that, as such, it is in the interest of the general 


welfare, and therefore, valid.” Id. at 11. Thus, a special exception use is not an exception to the 


zoning ordinance at all, rather, it’s a conditional use that shares the legal presumption of validity, 


absent a showing that it should be denied because of particular egregious impacts at the locale 


considered. As stated by the Court in Schultz, “[t]he appropriate standard to be used in determining 


whether a requested special exception use would have an adverse effect and, therefore, should be 


denied is whether there are facts and circumstances that show that a particular use proposed at the 


particular location proposed would have an adverse effect above and beyond those inherently 


associated with such special exception use irrespective of its location within the zone.” Id. at 15.  


 In Mossburg v. Montgomery Co., 107 Md. App. 1 (1995), the Court of Special Appeals 


further clarified this standard and stated that impacts from special exception uses are not, in and 


of themselves, a basis by which the special exception can be denied. Id. at 8-9. As held by the 







Court, it is the existence of these impacts in the first instance that justify the use being a special 


exception use (rather than allowed by right). Id. 


 The holding that detrimental impacts from a proposed special exception must be greater 


than those normally associated with impacts in similarly zoned areas is premised upon the concept 


that special exceptions are part of the contemplated zoning process established by the County 


Council. As such, all special exceptions are presumptively permissible and, therefore, in the 


interest of the general welfare of the public. See Schultz, 291 Md. at 11.  


As such, the Schultz Court found: 


“The special exception use is a valid zoning mechanism that delegates to an 
administrative body a limited authority to allow enumerated uses which the 
legislature has determined to be permissible absent any fact or circumstance 
negating the presumption.”  


Schultz, 291 Md. at 11. 


 Therefore, the Board  is guided by the special exception factors listed in § 502 of the BCZR 


with special attention placed upon whether detrimental effects would be any greater at the subject 


location, compared with other locations generally in the zone. The test is not whether the proposed 


use provides a benefit to the community, although it can certainly be argued here that the proposal 


does benefit the neighbors. Likewise, the question here is not to compare one permitted use to 


another. Additionally, the Schultz standard shoulders no evidentiary burden on the petitioner (nor 


analysis by the zoning decision maker) to consider other sites in the zone for comparison. See 


People’s Counsel v. Loyola College, 406 Md. 54, 103-104 (2008).  


II. Petition for Special Hearing to Permit Nonconforming Uses in Baltimore County 


A Special Hearing has been likened to an action for declaratory judgment. (See Antwerpen v. 


Baltimore County, 163 Md. App. 194, (2005)).  The applicable County law, BCZR § 101.1, 


defines a nonconforming use as follows: 







“[a] legal use that does not conform to a use regulation for the zone in which it is 
located or to a special regulation applicable to such a use.  A specifically named 
use described by the adjective "nonconforming" is a nonconforming use.”   
 


BCZR § 104 is entitled “Nonconforming Uses” and provides: 


“[a] nonconforming use (as defined in Section 101) may continue except as 
otherwise specifically provided in these regulations, provided that upon any change 
from such nonconforming use to any other use whatsoever, or any abandonment or 
discontinuance of such nonconforming use for a period of one year or more, the 
right to continue or resume such nonconforming use shall terminate.”  
 
BCZR § 104.1 allows nonconforming uses to continue unless changed, abandoned or 


discontinued. The burden of establishing a nonconforming use is on the Petitioner. Such burden 


can be satisfied by showing that the use in question was well known throughout the neighborhood 


at the pertinent time. Calhoun v. County Board of Appeals, 262 Md. 265 (1971). Mere change in 


ownership does not destroy the nonconforming use. Green v. Garrett, 192 Md. 52 (1949). The 


nature and extent of the use must have remained unchanged and substantially the same facilities 


have to be used throughout the years in question. Kastendike v. Baltimore Association for Retarded 


Children, 267 Md. 389 (1974). In addition, “a nonconforming use is not personal to the current 


owner or tenant but attaches to the land itself.” 83 Am. Jur. 2d, Zoning & Planning, § 587. Further, 


an “established nonconforming use runs with the land, and hence a change in ownership will not 


destroy the right to continue the use.” 8A McQuillin, The Law of Municipal Corp. §25.183.50.  


Discussion 


I.  The addition of living quarters within the Grey Rock Mansion to permit a caretaker’s 
quarters for the purpose of ensuring the safety and security of the Mansion and its 
surrounding grounds is not detrimental, and actually provides benefit, to the surrounding 
locale. 
 


As noted above, BCZR § 502.1 contains the criteria which must be specifically applied to 


any requested special exception. Moreover, as previously noted, it is not merely the existence of 


impacts by the proposed use in these subject areas which is to be considered, it is whether the 







effects are more egregious here than elsewhere in the zone. Significantly, as Mr. Richards testified, 


the inherent impact on the locality of adding living quarters within the Mansion are virtually 


nonexistent. Most of the enumerated criteria in BCZR § 502.1 do not even apply. More 


importantly, the impacts (to whatever degree they even exist) are no more impactful here than 


elsewhere in the zone. In this regard, it’s hard to fathom the reasons for any opposition to this 


request. Having a 24-hour presence on the Property is beneficial as it ensures that any emergencies 


or issues on the Property can be addressed immediately. Whether there is a single individual or an 


attached couple, the impacts of the proposed residential quarters are minimal. As was made clear 


from the testimony of certain residents in the area, the Mansion’s activities and responsibility to 


fund common expenses (i.e. private road maintenance, landscaping, gate security, etc.) are issues 


of contention between the parties. But these issues are entirely unrelated to the question presented 


in the instant special exception petition; to wit, should the residential quarters be allowed? 


Apparently, to use as leverage to support their demands for monetary contribution by the 


Petitioners, the Protestants who appeared oppose the Petitions.  


§ 502.1 (a) The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Be Detrimental To The Health, 
Safety Or General Welfare Of The Locality Involved. 
 
BCZR § 502.1 (a) is broadly written and is a general catch all provision. Petitioners 


presented ample evidence that the grant of a special exception for the requested living quarters will 


not be detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of the locale.  


In fact, considering the intent behind Petitioner’s proposition of adding living quarters for 


an on-sight property caretaker, the locality will realize an added benefit of enhanced safety and 


security. Whereas previously the Mansion and its surrounding property was left unattended, the 


addition of a caretaker on the premises will add an extra layer of protection to the Property and 







locality as an “extra set of eyes” will undoubtedly limit any crime or unexpected disasters that 


could impact the Grey Rock Mansion Property and quite possibly the neighboring community.  


§ 502.1 (b) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Tend To Create Congestion In 
The Roads, Streets Or Alleys Therein. 
 
Based on the uncontroverted evidence, the proposed living quarters will generate 


minimal/no traffic. This is a single individual, or couple added to the makeup of a sprawling 


community. Petitioner anticipates extremely limited traffic to and from the subject property. As 


such, there is no “adverse impact” in this regard. 


§ 502.1(c) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Create A Potential Hazard 
From Fire, Panic Or Other Danger. 
 
The living quarters will not create any hazards as it relates to fire, panic, or other danger. 


As discussed before, the addition of a caretaker to the property will provide an added veil of 


protection against any hazard that could impact the surrounding community. The activity on the 


property is such that it will not create a panic or public nuisance.  


§ 502.1 (d) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Tend To Overcrowd Land 
And Cause Undue Concentration Of Population. 
 
The living quarters will not overcrowd the land or inappropriately concentrate population 


as it’s inconceivable that a caretaker(s) would render the concentration of the area as overcrowded. 


Further, there is nothing in the proposition that includes an extension of the current property that 


would “overcrowd” the land. There are no area or bulk standard variances requested and thus all 


setback and size restrictions in the zone are observed.  


§ 502.1 (e) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Interfere With Adequate 
Provisions For Schools, Parks, Water, Sewage, Transportation And Other Public 
Requirements, Conveniences Or Improvements. 
 
Surely a caretaker will not impact schools or parks. The use does not increase the 


enrollment in local schools or generate use of public parks and open space. The impact of one 







added individual to the locality’s public facilities will go nearly unrealized. The apartment is not 


designed for a family with children. The proposal will not change to character of the commercial 


use or impact the nature of the neighborhood. 


§ 502.1 (f) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Interfere With Adequate Light 
And Air. 
 
The proposed living quarters will not interfere with adequate light and air. The footprint of 


the existing building will not change. It will not cast a shadow on adjacent properties. There are 


no smells to be generated. There is no additional noise that is generated. 


§ 502.1 (g) – The Proposed Living Quarters Are Consistent With The Purpose Of 
The Property’s Zoning Classification And Are Consistent With The Spirit And 
Intent Of These Zoning Regulations. 
 
Simply stated, there is no adverse impact. The living quarters is not “inconsistent with the 


spirit and intent of these zoning regulations.” Living quarters within a commercial building are 


permitted by special exception in the BR zone. As an enumerated special exception use, the 


proposal is part of the zoning scheme legislatively adopted by Baltimore County and is thus 


presumptively valid (See Schultz v. Pritts, infra).  


§ 502.1 (h) – The Proposed Living Quarters Are Consistent With The Impermeable 
Surface And Vegetative Retention Provisions Of These Zoning Regulations. 
 
There is no impact under this criterion. Nothing is being changed to the exterior structure 


of the Mansion or Property. 


§ 502.1 (i) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Be Detrimental To The 
Environmental And Natural Resources Of The Site And The Vicinity, Including 
Forests, Streams, Wetlands, Aquifers And Floodplains In An RC-2, RC-4, RC-5 
And RC-7 Zones. 
 
There is no environmental impact caused by the addition of living quarters and a 


subsequent single individual on the multi-acre property. They produce no chemicals, toxins or 







other impacts that might produce environmental degradation or impact the underground water 


table.  


As discussed in Schultz, this special exception use is not an exception to the zoning 


ordinance at all, rather, it’s a conditional use that shares the legal presumption of validity, absent 


a showing that it should be denied because of particular egregious impacts at the locale considered. 


Since there is no showing that there are any particular egregious or adverse impacts as a result of 


living quarters being added to the Grey Rock Mansion, there is no basis for the ALJ’s denial of 


the special exception. Schultz v. Pritts, 291 Md. 1 (1981).  


For the reasons stated above, the Board should grant the requested relief regarding the 


special exception and permit a caretaker (plus spouse or significant other) to reside in the Mansion. 


II.  The commercial use of the Grey Rock Property’s “surrounding grounds” or “Lawn” 
is permitted as a right of law, regardless of its current zoning designation, as it qualifies as a 
“grandfathered” nonconforming use. 
 
 As discussed above, a nonconforming use is permitted in accordance with BCZR § 104 


upon the existence of two elements within the facts: 


1) The previous zoning designation of the land, before the change to its current zoning 
designation, permitted the current use, and; 


2) The current use has continued, without abandonment of one year or greater, since prior to 
the change in zoning designation to present day. 


 
A. The Grey Rock Property’s previous zoning designation of BM, which permitted 
the Property’s current commercial use, existed prior to the inception of its current 
zoning designation of DR 3.5 which subsequently prohibits the Property’s current 
commercial use. 


The Court of Appeals has consistently held whether a non-conforming use is permitted, 


and the standard is clear and well settled: 


A non-conforming use is a “grandfathered” use. The BCZR recognizes that some 
uses of land are not permitted under a property’s existing zoning classification but 
that those uses pre-date the date when the zoning classification/regulation 







prohibiting the use became applicable. A valid and lawful nonconforming use is 
established if the owner can demonstrate that before and at the time of the adoption 
of a new zoning classification/ordinance, the property was being used in a lawful 
manner that, by later legislation, became non-permitted.  


Trip Assocs., Inc. v. Mayor and City Council of Baltimore, 392 Md. 563, 569 (2006). 


As noted above, the area “outside of the rectangle” on the 2.025 acre parcel and the entire 


.7444 acre “lawn-parcel” of the Grey Rock Property was changed from BM to DR 3.5 in the 2000 


CZMP. This residential zone was adopted in order to permit residential development on the 


adjacent properties. The DR 3.5 zone does not permit a catering business, even the ancillary 


parking associated therewith.   


Petitioner submitted substantial and overwhelming proof that the Grey Rock lawn and 


parking areas were used to support the commercial catering business prior to the zoning change. 


As noted above, the “Grey Rock Partial Development Plan Phase II,” dated April 1, 1991, depicts 


the Grey Rock Mansion’s Property, and indicates the Mansion was zoned BR and the Lawn or 


surrounding area was zoned BM. (Petitioner’s Ex. 6). Further to that point, the “Grey Rock First 


Amended Partial Development Plan, Phase I,” dated November 30, 1993, also identifies the Grey 


Rock Mansion’s Lawn as zoned BM. Id. As noted above, The “Partial Development Plan for Phase 


IV” from 2003 reflects the Grey Rock lawn as it’s presently zoned – DR 3.5. Id. As noted above, 


this change in the Property’s zoning designation can be accredited to the 2000 CZMP as, on the 


plan submitted in the 2003 case, note #9 indicates that the rezoning of the Property took place in 


the 2000 CZMP to accommodate the residential development. Id. Regardless of the 2000 change, 


Petitioner provided substantial and overwhelming evidence showing that the entire Grey Rock 


Property was used for the catering business prior to the zoning change. Specifically, the testimony 


of the former owner/operator (Rob Skudrna) was undisputed. He testified about the tent and the 


outdoor lawn area that was used for catering events. This testimony was corroborated by Mr. 







Richards, who visited the Mansion as a guest prior to 2000. It is clear that activity outside the 


Mansion building itself and the rectangle now containing the BR zone occurred prior to the 


rezoning. This is in the areas now zoned DR 3.5. This included parking (where guests of the 


Mansion parked while attending functions at the Property); as well as a tent and lawn area that 


were used for events, particularly during the months of favorable weather. In sum, the non-


conforming use existed across the entire Property, as the commercial activities occurred prior to 


the zoning change and have been consistent ever since. 


Petitioner has indisputably established  that the Grey Rock Property was previously zoned 


BR and BM; thus, as the Court of Appeals established in Trip Assocs., Inc. v. Mayor and City 


Council of Baltimore, even though the Lawn-parcel’s current residential zoning of DR 3.5 


prohibits the current use of the parcel, the valid and lawful nonconforming use is established as 


Petitioner has demonstrated that before and at the time of the adoption of the change in zoning 


designation, the property was being used in a lawful manner that, by the 2020 CZMP, became non-


conforming.  


Ultimately, the Board should find that the uses permitted for BR and BM under the 


Baltimore County Zoning Regulations should be “grandfathered” or “preserved” to the Grey Rock 


Property to present day contingent on the fact that the respective use of the Property has been 


uninterrupted since prior to the change.  


B. The current use of the Grey Rock Property has continued, without abandonment 
for a period of one year or more, since prior to the change to the Property’s current 
zoning designation which subsequently prohibits the Property’s current use. 


 
The nonconforming use of the Grey Rock Property was not lost due to abandonment or 


discontinued use under the applicable State law.  Courts have held, an “established nonconforming 







use runs with the land, and hence a change in ownership will not destroy the right to continue the 


use.” 8A McQuillin, The Law of Municipal Corp. §25.183.50.  


Through exhibits consisting of zoning maps, testimony from Rob Skudrna and the current 


owner of the Property, stating the commercial use has been consistent since long before the change 


in zoning, and dated newspaper articles detailing the background of the Grey Rock Property, 


Petitioner established that the zoning regulations prior to the change in 2000 are operative in this 


case and as discussed, Petitioner established that the nonconforming commercial use within the 


DR 3.5 zone has continued uninterruptedly since before the inception of the DR 3.5 zoning in 


2000. (Petitioner’s Ex. 5, 6, 7A). There is no testimony or evidence offered that the nonconforming 


commercial use has been discontinued or abandoned on the Property for a period greater than one 


year. McLay v. Maryland Assemblies, Inc., 269 Md. 465, 466-67 (1973).  


Per the BCZR, catering venues as well as commercial enterprises are permitted within the 


BM zoning designation. (See BCZR § 233.1B). Thus, since the Grey Rock Property’s parking and 


lawn areas have been utilized as a commercial event and catering venue in connection with the 


catering operation within the Mansion, the Board should grant the Petition for Special Hearing..  


As reiterated above, Petitioner, through evidence and testimony from the Property’s prior 


owner, past zoning maps which depict the Property, and newspaper articles which detail the 


background of the Property can establish that the Grey Rock Mansion Property’s use as a 


commercial catering and event venue has operated continuously and has not been abandoned for 


one year or more between 1991 to present day.  


Ultimately, the Board should find that the use of the Grey Rock Mansion Property’s 


Lawn/Parking Area must be preserved or “grandfathered” since that use has existed prior to the 


2000 CZMP’s changing of the Lawn-parcel’s zoning to DR 3.5, and that permitted commercial 







use has not been interrupted for one year or greater, thus permitting the continued commercial use 


of the parcel in accordance with BCZR § 233. 


Much of the Protestants’ opposition to the Special Hearing request for a non-conforming 


designation focused on the tent which is attached to the Mansion and extends into the lawn. Mr. 


Skudrna testified that the tent was initially put into place prior to the 2000 zoning change and that 


the same tent has remained in place since then. He described that the tent was used to provide 


additional space for guests and events at the Property, a practice that has continued with the current 


owners. Mr. Skudrna also described the use of the outdoor lawn area (which is shown in 


promotional materials for the Mansion) during periods of good weather. This testimony was 


corroborated by Mr. Richards and even by one of the neighbors who testified (Doris Randall) who 


testified that the tent was there in 1999.  Notwithstanding that the factual record in this case is clear 


that the tent (as it currently exists) is indisputably part of the non-conforming use, Protestants at 


the ALJ hearing below argued that the tent somehow altered the non-conforming use so that the 


Petition should be denied. But this argument was rebutted by Petitioner’s zoning expert, Mr. 


Richards. As he indicated, it is the “use” that is the key, when examining the non-conforming 


issue. He recalled attending events at the Mansion prior to 1999 and that the lawn area was part of 


the venue. Thus, this area (irrespective of whether tented or not) was “used” for the commercial 


activity associated with the catering venue and is thus part of the non-conforming use. Thus, even 


if the tent was altered/replaced (which Petitioner avers that it was not) the area of the lawn was 


used for the commercial catering operation and thus the non-conforming designation should attach.  


 


 







III. No conditions or limitations should be imposed as a condition on the grant of the 
Special Exception. 


 
It is anticipated that the Protestants may well request that the ALJ impose certain 


restrictions and/or limitations as part of the grant of any zoning relief. However, any such 


imposition is improper in this case unless it relates specifically to the requested relief (i.e. a Special 


Exception for residential quarters). Certainly, the ALJ is empowered to impose reasonable and 


appropriate conditions upon the grant of any special exception (See. BCZR 502.2). However, such 


conditions must be reasonable and relate to the impact of the particular special exception use 


granted (See Mossburg, Infra. and Skipjack Cove Marina, Inc. v. Board of County Comm’rs 264 


Md. 381 (1972)).  


The Protestants expressed concerns here are as to the impact of the commercial business 


(which is permitted by right) and their claim that the Mansion owners should be obligated to help 


fund “common expenses” in the overall community of Grey Rock. But neither of these issues are 


relevant to the matter at hand. The relief granted here is for residential quarters and any imposed 


restriction/condition must relate to the impacts of that use and not corollary issues. One can 


scarcely imagine any appropriate restriction that could be imposed to mitigate the impact of a 


caretaker living within the Mansion. 


Conclusion 


For the reasons stated above, the Board should grant the requested relief within both the 


Petition for Special Exception as well as the Petition for Special Hearing. Additionally, the 


caretaker’s quarters should be permitted to be occupied by either a single or married (or 


otherwise attached) individual(s).  


 







       Respectfully Submitted, 


_________________________________ 
       Lawrence E. Schmidt 
       Smith, Gildea & Schmidt, LLC 
       600 Washington Avenue, Suite 200 
       Towson, MD 21204 
       410-821-0070 
       lschmidt@sgs-law.com  
 
 
 
 


CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this  9th    day of January, 2023, that a copy of Petitioner’s 
Memorandum in Lieu of Closing Argument was sent via email to: 
 
Michael McCann – michael@mmccannlaw.net 
Attorney for Respondents 


 
 


 
       ___________________________________ 
       Lawrence E. Schmidt 
 








1 
 


RE: PETITION FOR SPECIAL 
HEARING 
 
Grey Rock Properties, LLC. 
Petitioner 
 
400 Grey Rock Road (400 Clifton Court) 
 
3rd Election District 
2nd Councilmanic District 
 


* 
 
* 
 
* 
 
* 
 
* 
 
* 
 


BEFORE THE OFFICE 
 
OF ADMINISTRATIVE  
 
HEARINGS  
 
FOR 
 
BALTIMORE COUNTY  
 
Case No.: 2021-0273-SPHX 


*     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *     *      
 


PETITIONER’S MEMORANUDM IN LIEU OF CLOSING ARGUMENT 


Grey Rock Properties, LLC., (“Petitioner” or “Owner”) by and through their attorneys, 


Lawrence E. Schmidt and Smith, Gildea & Schmidt, LLC, submits this Memorandum in Lieu of 


Closing Argument and respectfully states the following: 


Introduction 


This matter comes before the Office of Administrative Hearings (“OAH”) for public 


hearing as a Petition for Special Exception as well as a Petition for Special Hearing filed for the 


Petitioner’s property located at 400 Grey Rock Road (400 Clifton Court) (the “Property”) in the 


Pikesville community of Baltimore County. A Special Exception is a conditional use, permitted 


subject to the provisions and requirements of Baltimore County Zoning Regulations (“BCZR”) 


Sec. 502.1. (See Attar v. DMS Tollgate, LLC, 451 Md. 272, 280, 152 A.3d 765, 769 (2017). 


Additionally, the Special Hearing Petition is filed pursuant to BCZR Sec. 500.7, which allows an 


individual to petition the ALJ for an interpretation of the proper application of any zoning 


regulation. This specifically includes the determination of a nonconforming use. As filed, the 


petitions sought relief as follows: 
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1. Approval of a Special Exception, as permitted by § 236.2 of the Baltimore 
County Zoning Regulations (“BCZR”), to allow living quarters within a 
commercial building for a property caretaker; and 
 


2. Approval of a Special Hearing, as permitted by § 104.1 of the BCZR, to permit 
the Property’s nonconforming commercial use within a residential zoning 
designation. 


 
Statement of Facts 


 
The Grey Rock property consists of two parcels which total slightly over 2.7 acres in area. 


One parcel is a 2.025-acre parcel property on which is located a historic building known as the 


Grey Rock Mansion (the “Mansion”), an attached tent, an area of parking serving the same, and a 


lawn area used in connection with activities at the Mansion. This parcel is split zoned BR 


(Business-Roadside) and DR 3.5. The second parcel is .7444 in area and contains a parking area 


which is used by the Owners in connection with activities at the Mansion and also (by agreement 


with the residential neighbors) for parking at an adjacent community swimming pool. This second 


parcel is zoned DR 3.5. The parcels are within close proximity to one another at the terminus of a 


private road which leads into the community from Reisterstown Road. The Mansion building, 


parking area, and lawn are used by the Owner as a commercial venue to hold events such as 


weddings, memorial services, partis, etc. 


The crux of Petitioner’s case is two-fold; (1) to allow living quarters of approximately 1000 


square feet within the Mansion to be occupied by a caretaker and (possibly) their partner, as 


permitted by special exception, for the purpose of further ensuring the safety and security of the 


Mansion and its surrounding grounds, and; (2) to confirm the continued utilization of the 


Mansion’s surrounding grounds (parking and lawn) as an extension of the Mansion use for the 


events held thereat. 
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The Grey Rock Mansion was built between 1857 and 1861 and has substantial historical 


significance. It’s located on a portion of the extensive property originally owned by the John Eager 


Howard family. Howard was a key figure in Maryland during colonial times and shortly after the 


formation of the United States. He served as governor of the State, was a confident of George 


Washington, and is a figure of historic importance in Maryland. For many years, the Mansion was 


used as a residence, however in the mid-20th century, the building was acquired and used as a 


retreat center by the Trinitarians, a Christian order. 


In the mid 1980’s the Property was acquired by Valley Catering which converted the 


Mansion and its surrounding grounds for use as a commercial event and catering venue. This use 


has continued from then to the present day. Mr. Bill Clowney, a former tenant/owner/operator of 


the Property and the commercial business that occurs within the Mansion, testified that he leased 


the Property from Valley Catering to operate his own commercial event and catering business for 


several years until he ultimately acquired the Property from Valley Catering in 1998 to further his 


commercial venue and catering business. After 21 years of owning and operating the Grey Rock 


Mansion Property as a commercial venue, Mr. Clowney sold the Property in 2019 to the current 


owners, Grey Rock Properties, LLC, who has since continued to operate the Mansion and its 


surrounding property as a commercial event and catering venue. Testimony was also received from 


the current owners of the Property (Anne Pomykala and Brian Pomykala, her son) about the 


ongoing commercial use of the Mansion and their desire to have a 24-hour presence (i.e. caretaker) 


on the Property. 


The development of the Grey Rock residential community which surrounds Grey Rock 


Mansion’s Property began in 1989, after the Mansion had been converted to the commercial 
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operation. Petitioner submitted Newspaper articles1 at the Administrative Hearing (Petitioner’s 


Ex. 5) from the 1980’s and 1990’s as evidence establishing that the commercial catering business 


was in operation when the residential development of the Grey Rock community was first 


contemplated and approved. 2 


The County Review Group (“CRG”) was that entity of County government that approved 


residential development in the Grey Rock community when it was first proposed. In fact, the first 


CRG plan for the Grey Rock residential community was approved on Sept. 7, 1989. The residential 


community of Grey Rock was approved and built in a series of phases and the CRG plan was 


amended accordingly as the development evolved. The “Grey Rock Partial Development Plan 


Phase II,” dated April 1, 1991, visually depicts the Grey Rock Mansion and its Lawn, and indicates 


that the property immediately around the Mansion was zoned BR and much of the lawn and 


parking area (on both lots) was zoned BM at that time. (Petitioner’s Ex. 6).  Both of those 


classifications are commercial zones allowing catering facilities, by right. Another subsequent 


approved plan, the “Grey Rock First Amended Partial Development Plan, Phase I,” dated 


November 30, 1993, also identifies the Grey Rock Mansion and its Lawn as zoned BR and BM, 


respectively. Id. 


Baltimore County rezones land through its Comprehensive Zoning Map Process which 


occurs every four years (known as the “CZMP”). In the 2000 CZMP, the Grey Rock Mansion’s 


Property was rezoned to what it is today, a combination of BR and DR 3.5. The location of the 


zone line adopted in 2000 and outlining the BR zone on the 2.025-acre parcel appears to be 


 
1 “The houses will be next to the historic Grey Rock Mansion, which dates from about 1700, was restored around 
1890, and now is leased by Valley Caterers.”  Edward Gunts, Grey Rock community will feature villas, flats, 
Baltimore Sun, June 9, 1991, § 3, at 1. 
2 “[T]he owner of Grey Rock agreed to preserve the 130-year-old mansion and the surrounding grounds in return 
for rezoning that allows 18 acres of condominiums and 30,000 square-feet of commercial space.  
Katherine Drew DeBoalt, Housing could circle mansion, The Jefferson, June 2, 1988. 
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haphazardly drawn, at best. That is, the adopted zoning map shows a rectangular box drawn around 


the Mansion, in which the zoning of BR was applied. This zoning line bisects the adjacent parking 


lot and lawn area. Outside the rectangle, the balance of the property is zoned DR 3.5 The “Partial 


Development Plan for Phase IV,” approved June 10, 2003, depicts the Grey Rock Mansion 


property’s present zoning designations. (Petitioner’s Ex. 6) More to the point, note #9 on the 2003 


Phase IV Plan indicates that the rezoning took place in 2000. Id. This Grey Rock residential 


development plan was ultimately approved by Baltimore County on February 14, 1994. Id. A 


review of these documents and the timing of the re-zoning leads to the clear conclusion that the 


re-zoning of the Property was done to permit the proposed adjacent residential development, in 


that residential uses are not permitted in the business zones. Apparently, when the new zoning map 


was approved, little thought was given to determining the precise acreage of the commercial 


activity occurring at and around the Mansion, and instead, commercial/business zone was retained 


to essentially include the Mansion building only, and not the entire parking and lawn/tent areas 


that are used in connection with the catering business. 


At the Administrative Hearing on January 13, 2022, Petitioner established through 


testimony from the prior/current owners, previous zoning cases, and secondary sources such as 


newspaper articles that the Grey Rock Property has indisputably been continuously used as a 


commercial event and catering venue, without interruption, since prior to the residential 


development of the surrounding area. (Petitioner’s Exhibits 5, 7A, and 7B) and, more importantly, 


prior to the rezoning in 2000. 
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Standard of Review 
 


I. Special Exceptions in Baltimore County 


A special exception use in Baltimore County refers to a permissive land use category 


authorized by the Baltimore County Council, which may be permitted pursuant to specific 


statutory standards. The special exception process is initiated by the filing of a special exception 


petition. The special exception petition is first reviewed and commented on by County agencies 


(Zoning Advisory Committee) and then proceeds forward to an evidentiary hearing before the 


Administrative Law Judge (“ALJ”). Comments issued by the Zoning Advisory Committee are 


advisory in nature and are part of the evidentiary record before the ALJ. 


As with any special exception, the subject request must be adjudged in accordance with 


the provisions of BCZR § 502.1 entitled “Special Exceptions.” BCZR § 502.1 states:  


“Before any special exception may be granted, it must appear that the use for which 
the special exception is requested will not: 
 


A. Be detrimental to the health, safety or general welfare of the locality 
involved; 


B. Tend to create congestion in roads, streets or alleys therein; 
C. Create a potential hazard from fire, panic or other danger; 
D. Tend to overcrowd land and cause undue concentration of population; 
E. Interfere with adequate provisions for schools, parks, water, sewage, 


transportation or other public requirements, conveniences or improvements; 
F. Interfere with adequate light and air; 
G. Be inconsistent with the purposes of the property's zoning classification nor 


in any other way inconsistent with the spirit and intent of the Zoning 
Regulations; 


H. Be inconsistent with the impermeable surface and vegetative retention 
provisions of these Zoning Regulations; nor 


I. Be detrimental to the environmental and natural resources of the site and 
vicinity including forests, wetlands, aquifers and floodplains in an R.C.2, 
R.C.4, R.C.5 or R.C.7 Zone.[”] 
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 The law of special exceptions in Maryland has been comprehensively addressed by the 


appellate courts of this state. As is well settled, the criteria stated in BCZR § 502.1 is to be applied 


to each petition in the manner as outlined in the seminal case of Schultz v. Pritts, 291 Md. 1 (1981).  


 In Schultz, the court discussed the role of special exceptions in the comprehensive zoning 


scheme enacted by the local jurisdiction and opined, “[t]he special exception use is a part of the 


comprehensive zoning plan sharing the presumption that, as such, it is in the interest of the general 


welfare, and therefore, valid.” Id. at 11. Thus, a special exception use is not an exception to the 


zoning ordinance at all, rather, it’s a conditional use that shares the legal presumption of validity, 


absent a showing that it should be denied because of particular egregious impacts at the locale 


considered. As stated by the Court in Schultz, “[t]he appropriate standard to be used in determining 


whether a requested special exception use would have an adverse effect and, therefore, should be 


denied is whether there are facts and circumstances that show that a particular use proposed at the 


particular location proposed would have an adverse effect above and beyond those inherently 


associated with such special exception use irrespective of its location within the zone.” Id. at 15.  


 In Mossburg v. Montgomery Co., 107 Md. App. 1 (1995), the Court of Special Appeals 


further clarified this standard and stated that impacts from special exception uses are not, in and 


of themselves, a basis by which the special exception can be denied. Id. at 8-9. As held by the 


Court, it is the existence of these impacts in the first instance that justify the use being a special 


exception use (rather than allowed by right). Id. 


 The holding that detrimental impacts from a proposed special exception must be greater 


than those normally associated with impacts in similarly zoned areas is premised upon the concept 


that special exceptions are part of the contemplated zoning process established by the County 
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Council. As such, all special exceptions are presumptively permissible and, therefore, in the 


interest of the general welfare of the public. See Schultz, 291 Md. at 11.  


As such, the Schultz Court found: 


“The special exception use is a valid zoning mechanism that delegates to an 
administrative body a limited authority to allow enumerated uses which the 
legislature has determined to be permissible absent any fact or circumstance 
negating the presumption.”  


Schultz, 291 Md. at 11. 


 Therefore, the ALJ is guided by the special exception factors listed in § 502 of the BCZR 


with special attention placed upon whether detrimental effects would be any greater at the subject 


location, compared with other locations generally in the zone. The test is not whether the proposed 


use provides a benefit to the community. Likewise, the question here is not to compare one 


permitted use to another. Additionally, the Schultz standard shoulders no evidentiary burden on 


the petitioner (nor analysis by the zoning decision maker) to consider other sites in the zone for 


comparison. See People’s Counsel v. Loyola College, 406 Md. 54, 103-104 (2008).  


II. Petition for Special Hearing to Permit Nonconforming Uses in Baltimore County 


A Special Hearing has been likened to an action for declaratory judgment. (See Antwerpen v. 


Baltimore County, 163 Md. App. 194, (2005)).  The applicable County law, BCZR § 101.1, 


defines a nonconforming use as follows: 


“[a] legal use that does not conform to a use regulation for the zone in which it is 
located or to a special regulation applicable to such a use.  A specifically named 
use described by the adjective "nonconforming" is a nonconforming use.”   
 


BCZR § 104 is entitled “Nonconforming Uses” and provides: 


“[a] nonconforming use (as defined in Section 101) may continue except as 
otherwise specifically provided in these regulations, provided that upon any change 
from such nonconforming use to any other use whatsoever, or any abandonment or 
discontinuance of such nonconforming use for a period of one year or more, the 
right to continue or resume such nonconforming use shall terminate.”  
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BCZR § 104.1 allows nonconforming uses to continue unless changed, abandoned or 


discontinued. The burden of establishing a nonconforming use is on the Petitioner. Such burden 


can be satisfied by showing that the use in question was well known throughout the neighborhood 


at the pertinent time. Calhoun v. County Board of Appeals, 262 Md. 265 (1971). Mere change in 


ownership does not destroy the nonconforming use. Green v. Garrett, 192 Md. 52 (1949). The 


nature and extent of the use must have remained unchanged and substantially the same facilities 


have to be used throughout the years in question. Kastendike v. Baltimore Association for Retarded 


Children, 267 Md. 389 (1974). In addition, “a nonconforming use is not personal to the current 


owner or tenant but attaches to the land itself.” 83 Am. Jur. 2d, Zoning & Planning, § 587. Further, 


an “established nonconforming use runs with the land, and hence a change in ownership will not 


destroy the right to continue the use.” 8A McQuillin, The Law of Municipal Corp. §25.183.50.  


Discussion 


I. The addition of living quarters within the Grey Rock Mansion to permit a caretaker’s 
quarters for the purpose of ensuring the safety and security of the Mansion and its 
surrounding grounds is not detrimental, and actually provides benefit, to the surrounding 
locale. 
 


As noted above, BCZR § 502.1 contains the criteria which must be specifically applied to 


any requested special exception. Moreover, as previously noted, it is not merely the existence of 


impacts by the proposed use in these subject areas which is to be considered, it is whether the 


effects are more egregious here than elsewhere in the zone. Significantly, the inherent impact on 


the locality of adding living quarters within the Mansion here are virtually nonexistent. More 


importantly, the impacts (to whatever degree they even exist) are no more impactful here than 


elsewhere in the zone. In this regard, it’s hard to fathom the reasons for any opposition to this 


request. Having a 24-hour presence on the Property is beneficial as it ensures that any emergencies 


or issues on the Property can be addressed immediately. As was made clear from the testimony of 







10 
 


certain residents in the area, the Mansion’s activities and responsibility to fund common expenses 


(i.e. private road maintenance, landscaping, gate security, etc.) are issues of contention between 


the parties. But these issues are entirely unrelated to the question presented in the instant special 


exception petition; to wit, should the residential quarters be allowed? Apparently, to use as 


leverage to support their demands for monetary contribution by the Petitioners, the Protestants 


who appeared oppose the Petitions.  


§ 502.1 (a) The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Be Detrimental To The Health, 
Safety Or General Welfare Of The Locality Involved. 
 
BCZR § 502.1 (a) is broadly written and is a general catch all provision. Petitioners 


presented ample evidence that the grant of a special exception for the requested living quarters will 


not be detrimental to the health, safety, or general welfare of the locale.  


In fact, considering the intent behind Petitioner’s proposition of adding living quarters for 


an on-sight property caretaker, the locality will realize an added benefit of enhanced safety and 


security. Whereas previously the Mansion and its surrounding property was left unattended, the 


addition of a caretaker on the premises will add an extra layer of protection to the Property and 


locality as an “extra set of eyes” will undoubtedly limit any crime or unexpected disasters that 


could impact the Grey Rock Mansion Property and quite possibly the neighboring community.  


§ 502.1 (b) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Tend To Create Congestion In 
The Roads, Streets Or Alleys Therein. 
 
Based on the uncontroverted evidence, the proposed living quarters will generate 


minimal/no traffic. This is a single individual added to the makeup of a sprawling community. 


Petitioner anticipates extremely limited traffic to and from the subject property. As such, there is 


no “adverse impact” in this regard. 
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§ 502.1(c) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Create A Potential Hazard 
From Fire, Panic Or Other Danger. 
 
The living quarters will not create any hazards as it relates to fire, panic, or other danger. 


As discussed before, the addition of a caretaker to the property will provide an added veil of 


protection against any hazard that could impact the surrounding community. The activity on the 


property is such that it will not create a panic or public nuisance.  


§ 502.1 (d) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Tend To Overcrowd Land 
And Cause Undue Concentration Of Population. 
 
The living quarters will not overcrowd the land or inappropriately concentrate population 


as it’s inconceivable that a single individual would render the concentration of the area as 


overcrowded. Further, there is nothing in the proposition that includes an extension of the current 


property that would “overcrowd” the land. There are no area or bulk standard variances requested 


and thus all setback and size restrictions in the zone are observed.  


§ 502.1 (e) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Interfere With Adequate 
Provisions For Schools, Parks, Water, Sewage, Transportation And Other Public 
Requirements, Conveniences Or Improvements. 
 
Surely a single individual will not impact schools or parks. The use does not increase the 


enrollment in local schools or generate use of public parks and open space. The impact of one 


added individual to the locality’s public facilities will go nearly unrealized. 


§ 502.1 (f) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Interfere With Adequate Light 
And Air. 
 
The proposed living quarters will not interfere with adequate light and air. The footprint of 


the existing building will not change. It will not cast a shadow on adjacent properties. There are 


no smells to be generated. There is no additional noise that is generated. 


§ 502.1 (g) – The Proposed Living Quarters Are Consistent With The Purpose Of 
The Property’s Zoning Classification And Are Consistent With The Spirit And 
Intent Of These Zoning Regulations. 
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Simply stated, there is no adverse impact. The living quarters is not “inconsistent with the 


spirit and intent of these zoning regulations.” Living quarters within a commercial building are 


permitted by special exception in the BR zone. As an enumerated special exception use, the 


proposal is part of the zoning scheme legislatively adopted by Baltimore County and is thus 


presumptively valid (See Schultz v. Pritts, infra).  


§ 502.1 (h) – The Proposed Living Quarters Are Consistent With The Impermeable 
Surface And Vegetative Retention Provisions Of These Zoning Regulations. 
 
There is no impact under this criterion. Nothing is being changed to the exterior structure 


of the Mansion or Property. 


§ 502.1 (i) – The Proposed Living Quarters Will Not Be Detrimental To The 
Environmental And Natural Resources Of The Site And The Vicinity, Including 
Forests, Streams, Wetlands, Aquifers And Floodplains In An RC-2, RC-4, RC-5 
And RC-7 Zones. 
 
There is no environmental impact caused by the addition of living quarters and a 


subsequent single individual on the multi-acre property. They produce no chemicals, toxins or 


other impacts that might produce environmental degradation or impact the underground water 


table.  


As discussed in Schultz, this special exception use is not an exception to the zoning 


ordinance at all, rather, it’s a conditional use that shares the legal presumption of validity, absent 


a showing that it should be denied because of particular egregious impacts at the locale considered. 


Since there is no showing that there are any particular egregious or adverse impacts as a result of 


living quarters being added to the Grey Rock Mansion, there is no basis for the ALJ’s denial of 


the special exception. Schultz v. Pritts, 291 Md. 1 (1981).  
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For the reasons stated above, the Honorable Administrative Law Judge should grant the 


requested relief regarding the special exception. 


II. The commercial use of the Grey Rock Property’s “surrounding grounds” or “Lawn” is 
permitted as a right of law, regardless of its current zoning designation, as it qualifies as a 
“grandfathered” nonconforming use. 
 
 As discussed above, a nonconforming use is permitted in accordance with BCZR § 104 


upon the existence of two elements within the facts: 


1) The previous zoning designation of the land, before the change to its current zoning 
designation, permitted the current use, and; 


2) The current use has continued, without abandonment of one year or greater, since prior to 
the change in zoning designation to present day. 


 
A. The Grey Rock Property’s previous zoning designation of BM, which permits the 
Property’s current commercial use, existed prior to the inception of its current zoning 
designation of DR 3.5 which subsequently prohibits the Property’s current 
commercial use. 


The Court of Appeals has consistently held whether a non-conforming use is permitted, 


and the standard is clear and well settled: 


A non-conforming use is a “grandfathered” use. The BCZR recognizes that some 
uses of land are not permitted under a property’s existing zoning classification but 
that those uses pre-date the date when the zoning classification/regulation 
prohibiting the use became applicable. A valid and lawful nonconforming use is 
established if the owner can demonstrate that before and at the time of the adoption 
of a new zoning classification/ordinance, the property was being used in a lawful 
manner that, by later legislation, became non-permitted.  


Trip Assocs., Inc. v. Mayor and City Council of Baltimore, 392 Md. 563, 569 (2006). 


As noted above, the area “outside of the rectangle” on the 2.025 acre parcel and the entire 


.7444 acre “lawn-parcel” of the Grey Rock Property was changed from BM to DR 3.5 in the 2000 


CZMP. This residential zone was adopted in order to permit residential development on the 


adjacent properties. The DR 3.5 zone does not permit a catering business.  


Petitioner submitted substantial and overwhelming proof that the Grey Rock lawn and 


parking areas were used to support the commercial catering business prior to the zoning change. 
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As noted above, the “Grey Rock Partial Development Plan Phase II,” dated April 1, 1991, depicts 


the Grey Rock Mansion’s Property, and indicates the Mansion was zoned BR and the Lawn or 


surrounding area was zoned BM. (Petitioner’s Ex. 6). Further to that point, the “Grey Rock First 


Amended Partial Development Plan, Phase I,” dated November 30, 1993, also identifies the Grey 


Rock Mansion’s Lawn as zoned BM. Id. As noted above, The “Partial Development Plan for Phase 


IV” from 2003 reflects the Grey Rock lawn as it’s presently zoned – DR 3.5. Id. As noted above, 


this change in the Property’s zoning designation can be accredited to the 2000 CZMP as, on the 


plan submitted in the 2003 case, note #9 indicates that the rezoning of the Property took place in 


the 2000 CZMP to accommodate the residential development. Id. Regardless of the 2000 change, 


Petitioner provided substantial and overwhelming evidence showing that the entire Grey Rock 


Property was used for the catering business prior to the zoning change. Specifically, the testimony 


of the former owner/tenant/operator (Bill Clowney) was undisputed. It is also clear that activity 


outside the Mansion building itself and the rectangle now containing the BR zone occurred prior 


to the rezoning. This is in the areas now zoned DR 3.5. This included parking (where guests of the 


Mansion parked while attending functions at the Property); as well as a tent and lawn area that 


were used for events, particularly during the months of favorable weather. In sum, the non-


conforming use existed across the entire Property, as the commercial activities occurred prior to 


the zoning change and have been consistent ever since. 


Petitioner has indisputably ascertained that the Grey Rock Property was previously zoned 


BR and BM; thus, as the Court of Appeals established in Trip Assocs., Inc. v. Mayor and City 


Council of Baltimore, even though the Lawn-parcel’s current residential zoning of DR 3.5 


prohibits the current use of the parcel, the valid and lawful nonconforming use is established as 


Petitioner has demonstrated that before and at the time of the adoption of the change in zoning 
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designation, the property was being used in a lawful manner that, by the 2020 CZMP, became non-


conforming.  


Ultimately, the Administrative Law Judge should find that the uses permitted for BR and 


BM under the Baltimore County Zoning Regulations should be “grandfathered” or “preserved” to 


the Grey Rock Property to present day contingent on the fact that the respective use of the Property 


has been uninterrupted since prior to the change.  


B. The current use of the Grey Rock Property has continued, without abandonment 
for a period of one year or more, since prior to the change to the Property’s current 
zoning designation which subsequently prohibits the Property’s current use. 


 
The nonconforming use of the Grey Rock Property was not lost due to abandonment or 


discontinued use under the applicable State law.  Courts have held, an “established nonconforming 


use runs with the land, and hence a change in ownership will not destroy the right to continue the 


use.” 8A McQuillin, The Law of Municipal Corp. §25.183.50.  


Through exhibits consisting of zoning maps, testimony from Bill Clowney and the current 


owner of the Property, stating the commercial use has been consistent since long before the change 


in zoning, and dated newspaper articles detailing the background of the Grey Rock Property, 


Petitioner established that the zoning regulations prior to the change in 2000 are operative in this 


case and as discussed, Petitioner established that the nonconforming commercial use within the 


DR 3.5 zone has continued uninterruptedly since before the inception of the DR 3.5 zoning in 


2000. (Petitioner’s Ex. 5, 6, 7A). There is no testimony or evidence offered that the nonconforming 


commercial use has been discontinued or abandoned on the Property for a period greater than one 


year. McLay v. Maryland Assemblies, Inc., 269 Md. 465, 466-67 (1973).  


Per the Baltimore County Code, catering venues as well as commercial enterprises are 


permitted within the BM zoning designation. (See BCZR § 233.1B). Thus, since the Grey Rock 
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Property’s Lawn-parcel has been utilized as a commercial event and catering venue in connection 


with the Mansion-parcel without interruption, the ALJ should grant the Petition for special hearing 


permitting the Lawn-parcel’s continued use as such.  


As reiterated above, Petitioner, through evidence and testimony from the Property’s prior 


owner, past zoning maps which depict the Property, and newspaper articles which detail the 


background of the Property can establish that the Grey Rock Mansion Property’s use as a 


commercial catering and event venue has operated continuously and has not been abandoned for 


one year or more between 1991 to present day.  


Ultimately, the Administrative Law Judge should find that the use of the Grey Rock 


Mansion Property’s Lawn/Parking Area must be preserved or “grandfathered” since that use has 


existed prior to the 2000 CZMP’s changing of the Lawn-parcel’s zoning to DR 3.5, and that 


permitted commercial use has not been interrupted for one year or greater, thus permitting the 


continued commercial use of the parcel in accordance with BCZR § 233. 


III. No conditions or limitations should be imposed as a condition on the grant of the 
Special Exception. 


 
It is anticipated that the Protestants may well request that the ALJ impose certain 


restrictions and/or limitations as part of the grant of any zoning relief. However, any such 


imposition is improper in this case unless it relates specifically to the requested relief (i.e. a Special 


Exception for residential quarters). Certainly, the ALJ is empowered to impose reasonable and 


appropriate conditions upon the grant of any special exception (See. BCZR 502.2). However, such 


conditions must be reasonable and relate to the impact of the particular special exception use 


granted (See Mossburg, Infra. and Skipjack Cove Marina, Inc. v. Board of County Comm’rs 264 


Md. 381 (1972)).  







17 
 


The Protestants expressed concerns here are as to the impact of the commercial business 


(which is permitted by right) and their claim that the Mansion owners should be obligated to help 


fund “common expenses” in the overall community of Grey Rock. But neither of these issues are 


relevant to the matter at hand. The relief granted here is for residential quarters and any imposed 


restriction/condition must relate to the impacts of that use and not corollary issues. One can 


scarcely imagine any appropriate restriction that could be imposed to mitigate the impact of a 


caretaker living within the Mansion. 


Conclusion 


For the reasons stated above, the Honorable Administrative Law Judge should grant the 


requested relief within both the Petition for Special Exception as well as the Petition for Special 


Hearing. 


       Respectfully Submitted, 


_________________________________ 
       Lawrence E. Schmidt 
       Smith, Gildea & Schmidt, LLC 
       600 Washington Avenue, Suite 200 
       Towson, MD 21204 
       410-821-0070 
       lschmidt@sgs-law.com  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



mailto:lschmidt@sgs-law.com
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this    16th    day of February, 2022, that a copy of 
Petitioner’s Memorandum in Lieu of Closing Argument was sent via email to: 
 
Michael McCann – michael@mmccannlaw.net 
Attorney for Respondents 


 
 


 
       ___________________________________ 
       Lawrence E. Schmidt 
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Tammy Zahner


From: Michael McCann <michael@mmccannlaw.net>
Sent: Monday, January 9, 2023 3:39 PM
To: Krysundra Cannington; Tammy Zahner
Cc: Lawrence Schmidt
Subject: Grey Rock
Attachments: 20230109153237746.pdf; Grey Rock 11-30-22.pdf


CAUTION: This message from michael@mmccannlaw.net originated from a non Baltimore County Government or non BCPL email 
system. Hover over any links before clicking and use caution opening attachments.  


 
Sunny/Tammy:  Attached is Protestants’ memorandum in this matter, which I just dropped off at your office.  
 
Also attached for the Board’s reference is the transcript of the proceedings. 
 
Thank you. 
 
 
Michael 
 
Michael R. McCann 
Michael R. McCann, PA 
118 W. Pennsylvania Avenue 
Towson, Maryland 21204 
(p) 410-825-2150 
(f) 410-825-2149 
 
E-mail Confidentiality: The information contained in this message may be confidential, 
proprietary and/or protected by the attorney-client privilege or work product doctrine. 
If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, or an employee or agent 
responsible for delivering this message to the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this communication is 
strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please 
delete/destroy any copy of this message and notify Michael R. McCann at 410 825-2150.  
 
 
 




















































Protestants’ Exhibits

400 Grey Rock Rd (2021-0273-SPHX)



1. Photographs (A-F)

2. Zoning Map (current)

3. Zoning Map (1996)

4. Aerial (1998)

5. Aerial (2002)

6. Aerial (2005)

7. Aerial (2007)

8. Aerial (2008)

9. Plat 63-133 (1991)

10. Plat 75-140 (2003) 

11. Final Development Plans (Phases 1, 2, and 4)

12. Opinion of Zoning Comm’r (03-0477)

13. PIA request

14. MyNeighborhood Map - permits

15. MyNeighborhood Map – utility easement

16. Letters opposing petition

17. Restrictive Cov. Agreement

[bookmark: _GoBack]









Sources: Esri, HERE, Garmin, Intermap, increment P Corp., GEBCO, USGS, FAO, NPS, NRCAN, GeoBase, IGN, Kadaster NL, Ordnance Survey, Esri Japan,
METI, Esri China (Hong Kong), (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS User Community


Baltimore County Government,  VITA, Esri, HERE, Garmin, INCREMENT P, USGS, EPA, USDA | 
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